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Mission statement, philosophies

and values

Mission Statement

Phitosephies

Single organisation

Meritocracy

Focused businesses

Differentiated, yet integrated

Material employee ownership

Creating an environment that stimulates extraordinary
pcriormance

Values

We demand cast-iron integrity in all internal and
external dealings, consistently and uncampromisingly
displaying morat strengih and behaviour which promotes
trust.

We will break china for the client, having the tenacity
znd confidence to challenge convention.

We show concern for people. suppert our calleagues
and encourage growth and development.

We strive to be a distinctive specialist banking group, driven by commitment to our core
philosophies and values

We thiive on change, continually challenging the status
quo and recognising that success depends on flexibility.
innovation and enthusiasm in meeting the needs of cur
changing environment,

We believe that open and honest debate is the
appropriate process 1o test decisions. seek consensus
and acrept responsibility

We are creative individuals who co-operate and
collabarate unselfishly in pursuit of group performance.
We regpect the dignity and worth of the mcividual
through openness and tolerance of difference and by
the sincere, consistent and considerate manner in which
we interact.

We refjuire talented people with passion, energy and
staming, who exercise comman sense in achieving
effective performance i a high pressure, mufti-task
envirapment.

We promote entrepreneurial fiair and the freedom to
operafe within the context of risk consciousness, sound
judgerpent and the obligation to do things properly.




Financial highlights

UK GAAP

Profit and Loss Account and Sefected Returns

Earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders before
exceptional items and amaortisation of goedwill {£000)

Headline earnings {£'000)

Operating profit before amortisation of goodwill,
exceptional items and taxation (£000)

Gperating profit: South Africa and Other (% of total)
Operating profit: Non-Scuth Africa and Other (% of total)
Cost to income ratic (%)

Staff compensation to operating income ratio (%)

Return on average equity shareholders’ funds (%)

Return on average tangible net asset value (%)

Annuity income as a percentage of operating income (%)
MNet-interest income as a percentage of operating income (%)
Non-interest income as a percentage of operating income (%)

Effective tax rate (%)

Bafance Sheet
Total capital resources (£ milhons)
Tota! sharehoiders’ funds (£ millions)

Total equity shareholders’ funds
{excl. preference shares){£ m:lions)

Total assets (£ miliions)
Core loans and advances {£ millians)
Core loans and advances as a percentage of total assets (%)

Total assets under administration {£ mitlons)

31 March
2004

106 082
105 752

132 139
58.6%
41.4%
72.7%
47.3%
16.0%
27.5%
67.8%
18.8%
81.2%
21.6%

| 346
809

682

15 361
5 060

330%

47 805

%
change

18.3%
26.5%

54.1%

40.4%

264%

6£.6%
3.0%
194%

17.9%

31 March
2003*

89 668
83 595

85 762
21.0%
19.0%
80.0%
51.1%
13.1%
260%
£9.1%
21.3%
78.7%

5.3%

958
640

640
14914
3909

40 559




Financial highlights

UK GAAP!

Salient Financial Features and Key Statistics
Earnings per share before exceptional items and
amortisation of goodwill (pence)

Headline earnings per share (pence)

Basic earnings per share {pence)

Diluted earnings per share {pence}

Dividends declared per share (pence)

Dwidend cover (times)

Net tangible asset value per share (pence)
Weighted number of ordinary shares in issue (million})
TJotal number of shares in issue (million)
Cormbined group market capitalisation (£ millions)
Closing share price (pence}

Number of employees in the group

Average $/£ exchange rate

Average ZAR/Y. exchange rate

Notes:
Refer to definitions on pages 229 and 230.

* Restated for changes to accounting policies and disclosures.

Presentation of financial information

Under the contractual arrangements implernenting the Dual
Listed Companies Structure (DLC} structure, Investec
Limited and Investec pic effectively form a single economic
entity. in which the economic and voting rights of
sharehclders are equalised. In accordance with this structure.
the directors of the two companies consider that for
financial reporting purposes, the farest presentation s
achieved by consolidating the results and financial position of
both companies using merger accounting principles.

Accordingly. the results for investec ple set out on pages 150
to 157 presents the results and financial position of the
comibined DLC group under, UK GAAP, denominated in
Pounds Sterling {i.e. "Investec's consclidated results”).
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'31 March %

3| March

2004 change 2003%
103.7 7.9% 96.1
103.4 I5.4% 39.4
59.9 >100% (67.6)
595 > 100% (67.6)
580 7.4% 540
.79 .78
431.8 15.2% 3749
102.3 G.7% 93.3
1184 5.0% 1130
| 292 25.9% 695
| 089 77.1% 615
4 458 (8.5% 4 874
169 (5.0%) |55
12.02 2001% 1504

Investec hag previously reported its consclidated results
both in accordance with $SA GAAR denominated in Rands
and UK GAAR denominated in Pounds Sterling. In terms of
the new [SE listing requirements. and agreed to by the |SE,
the group is only required to report its consolidated results
in accordance with UK GAAP denominated in Pounds
Sterling. However because SA GAAP differs in certan
respects from UK GAAFR the group sets out a high-level
recenciliation and summary of these principal differences on
page 227.

The financal information contained throughout this
document has been prepared in accordance with UK GAAP
All referentes in this document referring to Investec” ar
“the group|' relate to the combined BLC group comprising
investec Limited and Investec ple.




Chairman’s statement

- Hugh Herman

Results

| am pleased to report an improved performance in the
group's operations in the past year A steady improvement in
economic conditions across the globe resulted in a relatively
good year for financial markets. As stability returmed to
equity markets, investor sentiment became increasingly
positive and activity levels picked up, aleng with stock
market valuations.

The more favourable economic and financial envirenment
supported the performance of Investec’s businesses. This,
together with tight cost control and disciplined capital
management, enabrled the group 1o grow basic earnings per
share before goodwill amortisation and exceptional items by
79% - to 1037 pence from 96.1 pence. Total dividends per
share for the year amounted to 580 pence, compared 1o
540 pence i 2003

Overall performance

The better market envirenment was conducive to the
group's Investment Banking and Private Client Stockbroking
and Portfolio Management activities. Performance was
further enhanced by consistently strong results from the
Private Banking diision. In the UK, the Treasury and
Specialised Finance division achieved a remarkable
turnaround, fostered by the restructuring of the trading
actvities undertaken i the previous financial year,

Qverall perfoermance was partally offset by a weaker result
from the South African Treasury and Specialised Finance
activities, which recovered somewhat in the second half of
the financial year. Last year's exceptional result from the
South African life assurance activities, which benefited from
substantial operatianat earnings as a result of restructuring
and rationalisation, wasn't repeated this year.

Empowerment and transformation

In the past “ew years, Invgstec participated, along with other

financial institutions in So
drafting the guidelines fo
document, which provide

ith Africa, in negotiating and
the Financial Sector Charter This
5 a framework to enable broad-

based black economic empowerment, (BEE) through greater

inclusion and empowerm
Alrican society, was finalig

During the vear. we dem
commitment to empowe

ent of all segments of South
ed and published in October 2003,

nstrated an established
rment and transformation, when

investec Limited concluded a pioneenng empowerment

shareholding transaction,

the first of its kind in the sector

Subsequently, we were recagnised for our transformation

and BEE initiatives in Sou
Progressive Established C
Foundation;.

h Africa and awarded the "Most
ompany of the Year” (BusinessMan

We remain committed tg transformation and will continue

to play a meaningful role
economy. T1is role is givel
pledge of our employees
process and the ongoing
owned and managad con

Sustainability

nvestec's current efforts
all levels of the business !
the link between socially
Gusiness practice. The grg
term interests of the bus
broader stakeholders tha
sustainability is embrace

activitias

wn BEE and growing South Africa's
n added impetus through the

to an internal employment equity
support of our businesses for black
rpanies.

towards integrating sustainability at
ave added value in demaonstrating
responsible management and good
up beleves that 115 in the long-
ness. emplovess, shareholders and
% a tangible commitment to

and embedded into all ws




The group has played an active role in supperting corporate
social investment activities focusing on projects that are
entrepreneurial and sustainable and empower people
through education and skills training, Qur efforts to build a
strong culture aiso encourage a desire to give back to the
communities in which we live and do business, Over the
years, our employees have developed a strong spirit to give
back to communities, not just in monetary terms, but also
through volunteering their time and skills to charitable
projects.

During the year, Investec was selected for inclusion in the
Kempen SNS Smaller Europe SRI Index, the first sustainable
index for smaller European companses. Investec was also
included in the recently launched |SE Socially Responsible
Investrnent Index. the first index of its kind in an emerging
market. We performed well and were commended for the
quality of our triple bottom-line reporting as well as for our
move 1o using an internationally recognised reporting
framewaork.

While our South African operations are more advanced in
the integration of sustainability, we are confident that our
non-South African operations will continue to devalop their
own approaches to sustainability integration during the next
financal year.

Integrity

In the past few vears, the corporate environment has been
marked by intense regulatory scrutiny particularly in the
financial services industry where there is increased pressure
to improve the structure and practices of financial markets,
The board is committed to high standards of corporate
governance and business ethics in all its activities, which wili
remain the cornerstone of our business.

During the year under review. Investec Limited was assigned
an extremely sound corporate governance rating by CA
Ratings in an independent governance rating, based on the
principles of King Il and on international practices. Factors
supporting the rating include the receptiveness of directors
and senior management to open and vigorous debate, the
clear organisational alignment of goals and the extensive
consultative managerment approach,

As we strive to strengthen further our own policies and
procedures, a primary priarity remains cur commitment (o
integrity in everything we do.

Acknowledgements

In these modern times, where there is increasing corporate
governance and regulatory pressure, a strong board is
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essential to fthe effective management of the company. |
would like tb acknowiedge the invaluable contribution made
by all the difectors in the past year and extend rry sincerest
appreciatior] to the Chief Executive and Managing Director
for their vital contribution and resolute loyalty to the group.

We were deeply saddened by the sudden death of John
Abell, the ldad non-executive director on the Board of
Directors of Investec plc and Investec Limited, on

26 May 2004. John was a member of the board since 1993
and made g significant contribution. His wise counsel will be
greatly missed.

In February! 2004, we announced that Fani Titi, Chief
Executive of the Tiso Group, was appointed a non-executive
director on|the boards of Investec Limited and Investec plc.
Fani is a distinguished business leader and thoughtfut
corparate director and we welcome the contripution he is
already making to the board.

The year's accomplishments would not have been possible
without thg focused dedication and teamwork of all our
employees.[Their invaluable contribution and genercus spirit
are the essence of investec and it is through their
endeavourd and expertise that we were able to produce a
creditable performance for the year.

Finally, to opr shareholders and clients, thank you for the
trust and confidence you place in Investec.

Qutlook

As we enter the 2005 financial vean, growing corgorate
earnings and consumer confidence continue to support
healthy equity markets worldwide.\While we canrot, of
course, forecast with certainty how global events will shape
the markets in which we operate. we can confrm that our
employees|and management will remain focused and
committed| tc serving our stakeholders.

As & group, we look forward 1o the year ahead, and s
challenges pnd opportunities with confidence. It 1s our strong
sense of infernal drive and dedication, steadfast morale and
determination to secure an even firmer positioning in the
regions in ywhich we coperate that form the basis of the
aptimism with which we view the future,

Hugh Henman
Chairman




Review by the chief executive
managing director

- Stephen Koseff and Bernard Kantor

Overview of performance

On balance. 2003 proved to be a more favourable operating
environment than was anticipated at the beginning of the
financial vear. Economic growth was better in mast major
economies, equity markets rose, and business confidence
increased, improving market sentiment in general. The more
favourable market environment, together with sucgessiul
rationalisation and restructaring of the group’s operations in
the previous vear, benefited Investec, with better
performance from most business areas.

Profits were boosted by stronger performance from the
group’s operations in the UK and Australia, and the
elimination of losses from the US operations. The UK
business expertenced a significant turnaround in
performance due to the result of robust result from Private
Banking and Treasury and Specialised Finance These factors
were offset 1o some extert by a weaker performance from
the South Alrican Treasury and Specialised Finance division
and a decline in income from the South Alrican Iife
assurance activities.

The salient financial features of the year under

review include:

v Operating profit of the group's operations before
excentional items and goodwill amortisation increased
54.1% - from £85.8 million to £132.1 million.

«  nvestee plc and its subsidiaries accounted for 41.4%
{2003: 19.0%) of Investec's operating profit befare
exceptional ttems and amaortisation of goodwill

¢ The ratio of total operating expenses 1o total operating
income decreased from B0.0% to 72.7%.

+  Investec Bank {UK} Limited successfully placed a
£200 million. | 2-year subordinated note in the UK
market to a diversified range of investors.

+  Investec Bank Limited issued R1.5 billion (£127.5 million)
in non-cumulative, non-redeemable and non-
participating preference shares.

+  The operational effactive tax rate of the group
{excluding the tax effect on exceptional items) increased
from 6.3% to 21.1%.

officer and

|
|

For maore details on the gfoup's performance in the periad
under review, see pages 9 to 29.

Commendable tur
performance

naround in the UK

The UK businesses recorded an operating profit before

exceptional items and am

prtisation of goodwill of £38.7

millicn, an increase of 71.1% over the previous financial year.
The strong results from tﬂe Private Banking and Treasury
and Specialised Finance divisions were supported by a solid

performance from Carr S
Furthermare, the Investm

neppards Crosthwaite.
ant Banking activities benefited

from greater corporate agtivity and a strearnfined cost base
but without the benefit of any significant private equity

realisations.
Mixed performanc
African businesses

The Southern African bus
befare excestional items

es from the Southern

nesses posted an operating profit
nd amertisation of goodwill of

£77 4 million, representing an increase of [1.4%.The
cperations benefited frorrti the strength of the Rand and a
solid perfermance from tHe fnvestment Banking and Private
Banking divisions. This strong performance was offset by a
poor pericrmance from the Treasury and Specialised Finance
division and a decline in the earnings of the group's
Assurance Activities and (entral Funding division.

Solid performance
businesses

from the Australian

The Australian operating profit before exceptional items and

amortisation of goodwill i

mcreased by 62.5% to £9.6 million.

a3 a result of favourable sarket conditions. The business

experienced solid activity
all its core activities. In O

evels and made good progress in
ttober 2003, Investec Bank

{Australia) received a favolrable long-term deposit and




issuer rating of Baal from Moody's, enabling the group to
enhance its funding base.

Israel benefits from a better economic and
financial environment

The lsraeli operation benefited from cost cutling initiatives
undertaken in the previous period and a stronger economic
and financiai environment, Despite performance reported in
nominal terms being weakened by negative inflation,
operating profit before exceptional items and amortisation
of goodwill increased by 69.3% to £5.9 million. Assels under
management increased by 104% to NIS20.2 billion

(£2.4 pillion), from NIS3.9 bilion (£1.3 billion), Investec Bank
(Israel) continues to grow its market share in the mutua
funds custedy business and 1s now taking on new business
from two additional independent fund managers. Subsequent
to the year end the group sold its stake in investec Bank
{lsraely to First International Bank of lsrael, Further details
are provided on page 148,

Improved performance from the US
business

The heavily reduced ongoing operations in the US, consisting
of several fixed income trading operations and a small
equities trading desk supporting Investec Bank {Israel}'s
clients, posted a modest operating profit before excepticnal
items and amortisation of gaodwill of £0.4 milion. The
fundamental restructuring of the US business was completad
and. with the exception of run-off related activities, all other
businesses in Investec USA and Investec Inc. ceased
operating as of 31 May 2003.

Investec recognised for empowerment and
transformation initiatives

Over the past few years, Investec has been particularly
active in promating black economic empowerment (BEE)
within the financial services sector, having been at the
forefront of several empowerment initiatives pefore BEE
becarne a legistative prerequisite. Investec played an
important role in the development of the Financial Secter
Charter which seeks to promote BEE in the South African
financial services sector and was released in October 2003,
Of further significance, in April 2004, investec was
recognised for its BEE and transformation nitiatives in South
Africa, receiving the BusinessMap Foundation's "Maost
Progressive Established Company of the Year”™ award.

During the year, Investec concluded a significant deal with
two empowerment companies - Tiso Group and Peu
Investment Group - Lhat will greatly enhance the
particpation of BEE in the South African market The
transaction with Tisa and Peu is unique in that it introduces
black shareholders at a holding company level, with 25.1% of
Investec Limited now ownead by Tiso, Peu, a develogment
wrust and an employee trust, To ensure that broad-based
empowerment takes place. the Entrepreneurship

007

Annual Report 2004

Developmént Trust was created 1o augment these
transactiong, effectively ieading to communities participating
in 60% of the 25.1% shareholding the BEE consartium
acquired m|investec Limited. In November 2003, the
transaction [was concluded, with the group issuing 5.6 million
new shares| (£46.0 million}.

Investec bejieves thal BEE, if properly impiemented, is critical
to economic and social transformation in South Africa and
the cornerstone for longer-term sustainable development.
Investec's proactive approach to BEE - which focuses on
ingraining tJTuis commitment into the group’s cullure and
values, and provides a source of competitive business
advantage - positions the group as a leader in developing
nnovative gnd effective solutions 1o the challenges facing the
sector in Sjuth Africa.

Sustainable development - the “Investec
"

way

As an interational group, Investec recognises that
sustainability is more than just BEE and also involves
managing a [rumber of direct and indirect sccial and natural
environmental impacts. Investec's journey to sustainability s
an integral part of its business strategy and crilical o its
future success.

In keeping with the Investec entrepreneurial spirit, the
group's sustainabitity efforts focus on issues that are most
relevant to the business of a specialist bank. The group is
committed Lo making a material contribution to its business,
moving beyond a "tick-the-box" appreach to doing it the
“Investec way". This means being innovative, relevant, practical
and having due regard for the values and culture of the
organisation,

In the past year, the group committed to sustainable
developrent as a strategic intention and began a group-
wide interndl engagement process, 1o ensure each division
understands the implications of sustainable development.
This process of internal debate and interaction is essential
for embedding the concept of sustainability throughout the
organisation, and for ensuring that the group identifies and
proactively gddresses key oppartunities and risks within each
division. Investec is confident that this objective will be
reached.

Locking to the year ahead, the group faces a number of
exciting challenges as the process of translating the concept
of sustainab|lity into operational reality continues. During the
coming yea| Investec will be undertaking various initiatives
to raise employee awareness and understanding of
sustainability and to further embed sustainability principles
into the gropp's operations at alf levels.

Strategic| direction

During the F003 financial year, a comprehensive woridwide
exercise was undertaken in which every employee had an
opportunity|to comment on the values of the organisation.




the extent 1o which they are or are not lived, and changes
they would recommend. This input of employees was
considered at an international Investec management
conference in Aprii 2004, Furthermaore, progress was made
in crystallising the group’s strategic direction and resulted in
the revision of the group's missien statement. as follows:
“Investac sirives to be a distinctive specialist banking group
driven by commitment to our core philosophies and values.”

In considering the concept of being distinctive, management
recagnised that the following questions need continual
consideration:

I. How dees the group build and retain distinctive human
talent?

2. How can integrity and morality in business practices act
as a source of distinction?

3. What are the values that will make Investec Lruly
distinctive?

4. What will define success and delivery of distinctive
rasults?

Consequently, the group commenced a process to drive its
misston to ali areas of its operaticns and to clearly articulate
its strategic direction. This direction - which will centre on
the need to be distinctive - incorporates renewed client
focus, employees who are recognised and rewarded for their
achievernents, intensified cooperation and collaboration
between divisions, the fostering of an enlrepreneurial
environment and renewed efforts among all Investec's
people w0 actively live the values.

The group continues to concentrate on building a full
service specialist bank in South Africa and a niche specialist
bank in the UK and other countries. This focus is based an a
recognition that Investec cannot compete on all fronts and
has 1o zllocate resources where it can achieve meaningful
growth and return on equity. Management has also
recognised that Investec needs to drive its return on equity
Lo more than 20% and reduce its cperating leverage, by
lowering its cost to income ratie o 65%.This requires
ongoing assessment of aclivities that do not meet these
targets. n the past few years, Investec has demonstrated an
ability to take tough decisions and to align the group to
changes in operating conditions. Management is committed
Lo dealing with situations that inhibit the achievement of the
above targets.
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Investec's performance in the past year reflects the collective
efforis of employees worldwide We would like to thank all
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We would also fike 1o extend our sincerest appreciation (o
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Qutlook for 2004

The past few years have

ean challenging for the financial

services industry, with international economic events and

weak stock market cond

itions weighing heavily on

performance, Notwithstanding this. the operational heaith of
the group's activities is sgund, with vigilant management of
costs and significant measures taken to address the non-

performing elements of

e business. Ongoing cost discipline

will remain a priority and the group is commitied to
maintaining rigorous costl reduction.

Looking ahead 1o 2004,
conditions appear to be

vhile uncertainties remain,
mproving and Investors are

becoming increasingly optimistic. In particuian the recent

announcement that Sout

Cup Soccer should resul
create a conducive envir
infrastructural finance ac
equity markets are creat

Africa is to host the 2010 Warld
n positive economic aclivity and
nment for the group's
ivities. Higher and more stable
g a more pOS\UVE envirgnment for

Investec's activities in thel UK and Austraha.

The group strives to confinue to build distinctive businesses

in its core areas of aper:

tion, focusing on where it can

compete effectively. By maintaining concentration on the

fundamentals of growing

earnings, improving efficiency and

maintaining credit quality: Investec is confident that it can

continue to build a susta
deliver value 1o sharehol

Steph
Chieffexecutive Officer

Koséff

nable business model thal will
Hers,

Bernard Kantor
Managing Director




Financial review

Introduction

This commentary and analysis of the group’s financial results for
the year ended 31 March 2004 should be read together with the
financial statements and the notes to such statements on pages
150 ta 724.The commentary and aralysis are based on the
group's consolidated financial results presented in accordance
with UK GAAP and dencminated in Pounds Sterling The financial
information discussed below is based on the period under
review, and may not necessarily reflect the financial condition or
results of the operations of the group going forward,

Key income drivers

Investee provides a wide range of financial products and
services to a niche client base in two principal markets,

South Afric
including A
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B and the UK, as well as certain other markets,
histralia, the US and lIsrael. Investec 15 organised

into four principal business divisions: Investrent Banking,

Private Clig
Asset Mana

In addition
wide integ
Information
Marketing.,
Developma

nt Activities, Treasury and Specialised Finance and
gement.

Investec’s head office provides certain group-
ating functions including Risk Management.
Technology, Finance, Investor Relations,
Human Resources and Organisationa

nt. it is also responsible for the group's central

funding ang other activities, such as Investec's Property

business, Tr]
operations|

A detalled
provided el

ade Finance and Traded Endowment

description of the group’s principal businesses is
sewhere in this report.




An overview of Investec’s key income drivers \

Business
activity

Key income
drivers

Income impacted
primarily by

Investment Banking i

Corporate Finance Fees resulting from the provision
of capital markets and financial

adwvisory work

+ Macro- and micro-economic
fundamentals
* Industry-specific trends

+ Underlying stock market activity,

particutarly in Irvestec's prima
markets

Institutional Research,
Sales and Trading

Brokerage commissicns + Stock market rading volume

and volatility

Y

+ Client allocation of broking transactions
* Investec’s ability to source securities and

execute trades on behalf of it

+ Macro- and micro-economic |
market conditions

+ Availability of profitable exit rg

+ Whether appropriate market
exist to maximise gains on sale

Sale of investments and revaluation
of trading investments

Private Equity and
Direct Investments

clients

utes
onditions

Profit & loss account
- reflected as

Fees and commissions
- deal

Fees and commissions
- annuity

Cealing profits

Private Client Activities

* Interest earned in connection with
the bank's lending activities

* Fees earned for advisory and
tending services

+ Income earned in respect of
private client investment banking
activities

Private Banking
* The genreral state of the propg

» Rate environrent
advisory services

Private Clienc Portfolioc + Fees levied as a percentage of ets
Management and assets under management
Stockbroking + Commissions earned for executing

transactions for chents

« Movernents in the value of assl
underlying client portfolios
+ The levei of clients investment
which, in turn, is affected by, am
things, the performance of the
markets. the equzy investrment
of Investec's clients and markeq

s The size of Investec’s loan portfolio

rty

market {in South Africa, UK antd Australia)
» The demand for Investec's spetialised

+ Quality of transactions and deal flow

activity,
ong other
stock

lequidity

» Net interest income
*+ Fees and
COMMESSIons
- annuty
- deal
+ Dealing profits

Fees and commissiors
- annuity
- deal

risk appetite

Treasury and Specialised Finance

Financial Markets
Activities

* How well these businesses
are positioned to react to sudd
in market liquidity, volume and

+ Limitations imposed on tradin
opportunities as a result of ap
regulatory capital reguirement

Proprietary trading and actity
supporting client fow

Banking Activities
of the group's liguidity and interest
rate exposure and the provision of
a range of treasury and financial
progucts to the government and
inter-bank, corporate and
institutional markets

financial markets in which the
group operates

specialised structuring advice
» Ongaing develoament of the
finance initiative and pubiic pri
partnership markets
*« The group's credit rating and |
to attract lower cost funding

* The resulting demand for highl;

volatility

g
plicable

13

Activity related to the management + The degree of sophisucatior gf the

private
ate

ks ability

» Net interest inconie

en changes « Dealing profits

« Net interest income
* Fees and
commissions - deal




An overview of Investec’s key income drivers

Business
activity

Asset Management

Asset Management

Assurance

Key income
drivers

Fees levied as a percentage of
assets under management

+ Premiums earmed and benefits
paid for existing policies

* The investment perfarmance
of the assets' underlying policies

Income impacte
primarily by

* Movement in th
underlying asset

* The types of pof
* Economic facto
affect the perfon
supporting such
+ The underlying
actuarial valuatiq
= Ability to gain m
* Service levels

e value of the

Icies wiitten

mance cf the assels
policies

n of policy liabilities
arket share

Fs in South Africa that

ssumptions used in the

Ol
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Profit & loss account
- reflected as

Fees and cormmissions
- annuity

Income from leng-
terny assurance
business

Group Services and Other Activities

* International Trade
Finance business

= Worldwide Property

business
= US - continuing
activities

* UK Traded
Endowments
business

* These businesses earn a variety

of management and banking fees,

brokerage, comrmssions and
income on the sale of
investment and dealing
properties and second hand
traded endowments

» As this division is responsible
for the group's central funding

» Central costs
« Central funding

requirernents, this income is offset
by the cost of group funding {net

A variety of facto
* Property markg
in South Africa
*+ |nterest rate en
+ Rand/Dollar ex
the case of the
Trade Finance o
+ Traded endowl
(second hand)

of return on the group's centrat capital}

s. including:

ironment
hange rate, in
riternational
erations

ent market

t activity, particuiarly

All categories of
income other than
income from long-
terrn assurance
business




Risks relating to Investec's operations

Investec faces a number of risks that could affect its business operations. These risks are sunrn
For information pertaining to the management and monitaring of these risks, see the referen

Key risks

Market risk, conditions and fluctuations could adversely affect Investec's businesses in many wayd

rised briefly in the table beiow.
es provided.

Further information

See pages %0 1o 92

investec's risk management policies and procedures may leave it exposed to unidentified or
unanticipated risks

See pages 79 1o 83

Credit risk exposes Invastec to losses caused by financial or other problems
experienced by its clients or other third parties

See pages 83 to 89

Liquidity risk may impair tnvested’'s ability to fund its operations and adversely affect

its financial condiion !

See page 94

Investec's net_interest earnings may be adversely affected by interest rate risk

See pages |4 and 95

Investec may be unable 1o recruit retain and motivate key personnel

See the 2004
Sustainability Report

gmpioyee misconduct could harm Investec and is difficutt to detect

See pages 95 to 98, 100 to |0!

Operational risk may disrupt Investec’s business or result in regulatory actien

See pages 95 10 98

mvestec may be vuinerable 1o the failure of s systerns and breaches of #s security systems

See pages 9510 98

Investec may have insufficient capital in the future and may be unable to secure
additional financing when it is required

See pages 22 to 24

The finangial services industry in which Investec operates is intensely competitive

Legal and regulatory risks are substantial in Investec's businesses

See pages 98 1o 99

Additicnal risks and uncertainties not presently known to Investec or that Investec currently d

affected by any of these risk factors.

eems immatertal may in the future
a0 IMpair its business operations. Investec’s business, financial condition or results of operatigns could be materially adversely




Risks relating to the markets in which
Investec operates

Due to the nature of the group's businesses, it was and will
continue 1o be affected by changes in a number of macro-
econemic fundamentals, These include the condition of
worldwide financial markets, general economic cycles, levels
of exchange and interest rates, and inflation, in particular in
South Aliica, the UK and Australia. where the group derves
most of its profit as well as, to 2 lesser extent, the US and
Israel

Macro-economic data

The tables below set out macro-economic data for the
group's two principal geographies, South Africa and the UK,
as of and for the two vears ended 31 March 2004

Fluctuations in exchange rates

Since the end of July 2002, following the implementation of

South Africa

GODP {real growth) =

Consumer price index (% change over the period) ™"
1SE Al Share Index "

ISE All Share Index (% change over the period)

Per capita GDP (RQQQ) #

Per capita GDP {real growth) «

Notes:

(17 Source: SA Statistics and Investec Securities.

(2) Data for calendar year ending during the period.
(3) Data not yet available.

(1) Source: I-NET Bridge

(5) Source: SA Reserve Buank and Investec Secunties.

UK

UK GDP (% change over the period)

UK RPI {% change over the period)

FTSE All Share

FTSE All Share (% change over the peried)

UK GDOP per capita (£°000)

UK GDP per capita (% change over the period)

Source: Datostream.

013

Annual Repot 2004

the group'y Dual Listed Companies structure, lnvestec’s
reporting currency changed from South African Rands 1o
Pounds Sterling.

A substantial proportion of Investec's aperations are
conducted by Investec entities outside the UK. The resuits of
operations gnd the financial condition of Investec’s individual
companies are reporied in the local currendies in wiuch
they are damiciled, including Rands, Australian Dollars. US
Dollars and lsraeli Shekels. These results will then be
translated into Pounds Sterling at the applicabte foreign
currency exchange rates for inclusion in Investec's
consclidated financial statements. in the case of the profit
and loss acfounts, the weighted average rate for the relevant
period is applied and, in the case of the baiance sheels, the
relevant clgsing rate fs used.

In the past,|the exchange rates between local currencies and
Pounds Sterling fluctuated. The transiation effect of such
fluctuations| in the exchange rates of the currencies of those

31 March 31 March
2004 2003
1.4% 3.7%
13% 104%
106926 76739
39.0% (30.2%)
NA - 261
NA (0.1%:)
31 March 31 March
7004 1003
2.5% 22%
2% 30%
21970 1 7357
26.6% (32.1%)
| 7.1 i79
2.1% 3.0%




countries in which Investec operates against Pounds Sterling
may adversely/pasitively affect Investec's resulls of
operations and financial condition. This report notes where
the impact of depreciation/appreciation of these currencies
against Pounds Sterling is key to understanding the
perfarmance of the group’s businesses.

During the period under review, the Rand appreciated by
approximately 20% against the Pound Sterling. This had a
substantially positive impact on the group'’s consclidated
results, as the South African operations generated 58.6% of
the group's cperating profit before taxation, exceptional
iterns and amortisation of goodwill.

The table below sets out movernents in relevant exchange
rates against the Pound Sterling over the reporting period.
These rates ave indicative only and are not necessarily the
rates at which the relevant currencies were canverted inte
Pounds Slerfing, for the purposes of preparation of the
group's onsolidated financial statements.

Fluctuations in interest rates

The shape of the vield curve, the time lag between changes
in interest rates applicable to assets and liabilities, and the
volatilty of interest rates in each of Investec's principal
geographic markets can affect its net interest income, by
either positively o negatively affecting the spread belween

Exchange rates

Currency per £1.00

South African Rand
US Dollar
lsracli Shekel

Awustralian Dollar

Source: Reuters and Qonda.com.

Interest rates

Soulh African Prime QOverdraft
JIBAR - 3 month

UK Clearing Banks Base Rate
LIBOR - 3 month

Source: I-NET Bridge.

Period end  Average
.67 12.02
§.83 I.69
8.30 7.51
24| 245

interest paid and interest
group does not lake on U
positions.

During the peried under
South African nterest ra
greup's nel interest marg)

earned. As a matter of policy, the
nhedged, lorg-dated interest rate

review, the substantial decline in
ks had a negalive impact on the
n. as discussed on page |15 and 6!

to 62.The table below sefis out movements i certain
interest rates affecting the group’s businesses aver the

reporting period.

Basis of preparatic

financial statements

Investec's consolidated fi
financial information discy

n of the consolidated

ancial statements, from which the
ssed below is extracted, were

prepared in accordance with UK GAAR Investec has fully

consolidated the financial
campanies i which it ho
voting rights or over wh:
in which Investec owns b
outstanding voling stock

statements of all subsidiary

ds more than one-half of the

h il exercises contrel, Companies
etween 20% and 50% of the

hre accounted for using the equity

method of accounting. The minoarity interests of owners of

shares in nvestec's non-
reflected in the group's ¢

31| March 2004

holly owned subsidiaries are
bnsolidated financial statements.

3| March 2003

| Period end Average
12.54 504
157 155
743 744
262 275

31 March 2004

Period end  Average
i1.50 1381
805 9.86
4.00 371
438 3.83

31 March 2003

| Period end  Average

| 1700 16.33

| 1342 1270
375 395
252 315




Accounting policies and disclosures

The reparted results of the group are sensitive 1o the
accounting palicies, assumptions and estimates that underlie
the preparation of its consolidated financial statements. The
accounting policies used i the preparation of the
consolidsted financial statements are set out in the notes to
the consolidated financial staternents, During the year the
group adopted certain new UK accounting standards,
Furthermore, certain restatements were made to the prior
year's consclidated accounts. Information in this regard is set
out on pages |58 and 159,

Salient features of the group’s results in the
year under review

Profit and loss account analysis

Total operating income

Total operating income increased by 8.0% from

£519.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2003 to

£560.7 million for the year endad 31 March 2004.The
various components of Investec's total operating income are
analysed briefly below. In completing this analysis,
commentary 15 only provided on the group’s continuing
operations as the decline in the earnings of the discontinued
operations, in all cases, is reflective of the winding down and
closing down of the businesses in the US during 2003.
Further details on the key income drivers and significant
vartances in the various components of the group's
operating income can be found in the description of the
group's principal businesses on pages 45 to 78.

Net interest income

Net interest income represents interest earned net of
interest paid in connection with Investec's portfolie of bank
accounts, deposits, loans and financial structured praducts.
Net interest income declined by 4.6% ta £105.7 mitllion. The
group repacted saund growth in its Private Banking lending
portfolics and in its UK Treasury and Specalised Finance
banking and lending businesses. This, however, was partially
offset by an increase in interest paid on subordinated debt,
following the raising of approximately €85.7 million

(R} billion) of subordinated debt in South Africa towards
the end of the 2003 financial year and of a further

£200 niilion in the UK in February 2004, Furthermore, net
interest income was negatively affected by a significant
decline in interest rates that occurred in South Africa over
the penod.
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Net fees and commissions receivable

Net fees ajd commissions recevable consist of fees
receivable for the provision of fund marnagement, investrment
aavice, banking scrvices, retaincrs, institutional stockbroking
cornmissior]s and brokerage, and similar items that arc fikely
to recur due to the repetitive nature of these activitics {i.e,
"fees and commissions reccivable - annuity ncome™). Also
included arg facitity arrangement fecs, corporate finance fees
and similar jtems that are transactional in nature and
therefore generate more erratic income streams (i.c. "fees
and commissions receivable - deal income™), offsct by fees
and commipsions payable which predeminantly comprise
brokerage payable, banking fees and other simifar charges
(ie. "fees and commissions payable”).

Net fees arld commissions receivable increased by 15.3%
from £276,2 million for the year ended 31 March 2003 to
£318.4 miilion for the year ended 31 March 2004. This was
attributable) largely to increased lending turnover in the
Private Banging busincsses, the growth and strong
performance of the UK Treasury and Specialised Finance
banking ang advisory activities, and the turnarcund in the
group's Cofporate Finance operations in the UK
Furthermote, the appreciation of the Rand had a positive
impact ¢n this growth, particularly in the Asset Management
draision,

Dealing profits {trading income}

Dealing prafits comprise: trading income; the marking-to-
market of ifterest rate instruments, equitics and other
sccurities sych as foreign exchange nstruments; profit on the
disposal of Qealing properties; income generated by the
Traded Endowments operations; and the profitioss on
reafisation @f the group's trading investrents.

Dealing prafits increased by 57.8% to £91.0 million for the
year ended|31 March 2004.This was as a resutt of the
strong performances of the UK Treasury and Specialised
Finance trading activities and the South African property
business, and an improved serformance in the less making
UK Traded Endowments business. Furthermore, the trading
investmentq held in the [nvestmant Banking and Private
Equity portfolios and certain other nvestments held in the
group's corporate portfolio benefited from improved equity
market levels, This was partiaily offset by the poor trading
performance of the South African Treasury and Specizlised
Finance drvision.

Income from long-term assurance business

The group'y Scuth African life assurance activities, conducted
by investec Employee Benefits (IEB), did not have the benefit
of the substantial operational earnings from the restructuring
and rationalisation of its activities in the previous pericd.
Operating income declined by 81.7% to £5.1 millian.




Return on shareholders' funds in the long-term
assurance business

I he retwn on shareholders’ funds in the long-term
assurance business increased by 55.1% to £24.1 million. The
substantal growth is as a result of an increase n long-term
assurance assets attributable to shareholders - from

£108.5 million to £265.3 million. The large increase in net
asset value was as a result of retained profits {as no dividend
was paid out of IEB), together with a decrease in inter-
company loans between B and its holding company. [ his
return requires separate disciosure in line with life assurance
reporting. A natural consequence is a decline in the other
operating income generated by the Central Funding division,

Other operating income

Other operating income declined by 53.1% from

£27.8 miion for the year ended 31 March 2003 to

£130 milion for the year ended 31 March 2004, In addition
to the decline explained in the paragraph above. other
cperating income also declined because the Investment
Banking divisicn benefited from a significant realisation in the
UK Private Equity division in the prior yean

Total annuity type income

Investec defines annuity Income as net interest Income, net.
fees and commissions recevable - annuity income and the
return on shareholders’ funds in the long-term assurance
business. Annuity income as a percentage of total income
decreased frem 69.1% to 67.8% for the year ended

31 March 2004,

Administrative expenses

Crperating expenses cansist priratily of personnel costs
{including wages and salaries, social security and similar
pension related costs), business and equipment expenses.
and premises and marketing costs. Total administrative
expenses decreased by 1.4% from £400.8 million to

£395.2 millign. This was mainly due to the rationalisation of
the group's activities in the US and in its UK Investrment
Banking operations undertaken during the 2003 financial
year This was fargely offset by an increase in costs expressed
in Pounds Sterling, due to the apprecaation of the Rand and
angoing expansion of the group's Australian operations.

Investec Limited experiencad a 2.0% decline in expenses in
Rand terms, while the expenses of Investec plc declined by
11.8% 1n Pound Sterling terms.

The ratic of total operating expenses to total cperating
income decreased from 80.0% to 72.7% The cost-to-income
ratuo in South Africa increased from 62.3% to 63.5%.The
ratio in the prior period was positively affected by
substantial restructuring profits generated by the group’s
Assurance Activities. The cost-to-income rato for Investec
plc's operations decreased from 89 7% to 78.49%.This was as
a result of the rationalisation and restructuring of these

operations and the imprg

plc businesses.

Inciuded in the numbers
15 £44.3 million in costs r
operations, broken dowr

£24.0 mition; business ex
expenses £5.7 million: pre
rnavketing costs £0.2 avill

Further delail on the leve
the group's principal divs

78

vemnent in operating profit of the

for the year ended 3| March 2003,
elating o the discontinued

as follows: personnel costs

penses £1 1.4 million; equipment
mrises costs £3 million: and

K,

| of administrative expenses within
ons can be found on pages 45 Lo

Provision for bad and doubtful debts

The bad and dogbiful de

ts charge in the profit and loss

account increased by 14.9% to £209 million. The percentage

of gross non-performing |

advances increased from
coverage remaing conser

pans (NPLs) to core loans and
|.5% 1o |.7%. Total provision
ative both as a percentage of

gross NPLs and net NPLg {gross NPLs net of security), at
99.9% and 354.6% respedtively. [n addition, the group's

general provision coverag

E as a percentage of net loans and

advances decreased marglnally to 1.2%. Further information
on the group's asset quality is provided in the Risk
Managemen? section on pages 87 to 89.

Operating profit b

goodwill and exce

efore amortisation of
vtional items

As a result of the foregoing factors, lnvestec's operating

profit before taxation, am

ortisation of goodwill and

exceptional tems increased by 54.1% - from £85.8 milion in

2003 to £132.1 million in

A detailed description of
principal divisions as well

2004,

he performance of the group's
as its Group Services and Other

Activities division can be found on pages 73 to 78.

Furthermore, a detailed d

escription of the performance of

the group ir the various gecgraphies in wiich 1t operates ‘s

outlined on pages 6 to 7.

Goodwill amortisakion and impairments

The charge for goodwill a
decreased significantly fro

ortisation and impairment
m £122.3 milhon to £50.6 million.

The prior year figure included £49.6 million relating to

additicnal impairments of

Fedsure Holdings Limited

lthe business acquired from

Jincluded in the current period is

an armoeunt of £8.| million|relating t¢ an imparment of the

Traded Endowments busi

ness acquired through Fedsure.




The following table sets out information on Investec’s to

under review:
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tal operating income for the period

31 March % oftotal |31 March % of total year on year
UK GAAP £000 2004 income 2003 income % change
Met interest income 105 663 18.8% 110 701 213% 14.6%)
Dividend income 3450 0.6% 3597 0.8% {41%)
Fees and commissions recevable 318 373 56.8% 276 191 532% 15.3%
- Annuity (net of payabte) 250 563 44.7% 232 431 14.8% 7.8% ‘
- Deal L 67 810 12.19% i 43740 8.4% 55.0% k
Dealing profits 91 015 16.2% 57 668 11.1% 57.6%
Income from long-term assurance business 5082 0.9% 27779 5.3% (81.7%)
Return on shareholders' funds in the
long-term assurance business 24 122 4.3% 15551 30% 55.1%
Other operating income 13028 2.4% 27 780 5.3% {53.1%)
Total operating income 560 733 100.0% 519 267 100.0% 8.0%

The following table sets out information on Investec's to
for the period under review:

tal operating income by geography

3} March % of total |31 March % of total year on year
UK GAAP £000 2004 income 2003 income % change
South Africa and Other 258 224 46.1% 218 424 42.1% 18.2%
UK and Europe 244 114 43.5% 220016 42.4% 11.0%
Australia 26 08/ 4.7% 18 053 35% 44.5%
israel 27 506 40% 20 485 39% 93%
UISA @811 1.7% 13702 2.6% (28.4%)
Discontinued Operations 0.0% 28 587 5.5% >(100%}
Total operating income 560 733 100.0% 519 267 100.0% 8.0%

The following table sets out information on Investec's to

the pericd under review:

tal operating income by division for

31 March % of total |31 March % of total year on year
UK GAAP £000 2004 income 2003 income % change

Investrment Banking 87918 15.7% 64 184 12.4% 37.0%
Private Banking 148 774 26.5% 120 001 23.1% 24.0%
Private Client Portfolio Management

and Stockbroking 58 400 {0A% | ol 223 9% 110%
Treasury and Specialised Finance 113 842 20.3% ‘ 92 292 17.8% 233%
Asset Management 104 903 18.7% L 8% 707 17.3% |6.9%
Assurance Activities 5082 09% 7779 5.3% (81.7%)
Group Services and Other Activities 41 814 7.5% 45 494 8.7% (5.1%)
Discontinued Operations - 0.0% 28 587 5.5% >(100%)
Total operating incorme 560 733 100.0% 519 267 100.0% 8.0%




The following table sets out information on Investec’s net interest
the period under review:

income by division for

31 March 3| March
UK GAAP £'000 2004 2003 Variance % change
Investment Banking 6 484 4 548 1936 42.6%
Private Banking 78914 65 506 i3 408 20.5%
Private Client Portfolic Management and Stockbroking 4677 4 668 3 0.2%
Treasury and Specizalised Finance 41 405 31892 9513 29.8%
Assct Management 2900 2993 (93) (3.1%)
Group Services and Other Activities (28717 {2 965) (25 752} >{100%)
Discantinued Operations 4059 {4 05%) >{100%)
}\!et interast income 105 663 110 701 (5 038) {4.6%})

The following table sets out information on Investec’s net fees and

by division for the period under review:

commissions receivable

31 March 31 March
UK GAAP £000 2004 2003 Variance % change
Investrnent Banking 51 501 36 141 l 15 360 42.5%
Private Banking 62 180 46 449 15731 3359%
Private Ciient Portfolio Management and Stockbroking 52 456 45 569 6 887 [2.1%
Treasury and Specialised Finance 35 389 24 49| 10898 14.5%
Asset Managament |10C 129 85 976 4153 16.5%
Group Services and Other Activities 16718 Il 082 5836 50.9%
Discontinued Operations — 26 483 (26 483) >{100%)
Net fees and commissions receivable 318373 276 191 42 182 15.3%

The following table sets out information on Investec's dealing profi

period under review:

ts by division for the

31 March 31 March
UK GAAP £'000 2004 2003 Variance % change
Investment Banking 23721 9233 14 438 = [00%
Private Banking 6 380 782 (143N (18.3%)
Private Client Porticlic Management and Stockbroking {137 936 201 21.5%
Treasury and Specialised Firance 35 634 35 454 {80 0.5%
Asset Management 1736 722 1 014 >100%
Group Services and Other Activities 22 407 4 472 |7 935 > 100%
Discontinued Operations - (961) 261 > 00%
Dealing profits 91015 57 668 33 347 57.8%
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The following table sets out information on Investec's other operating income by division

for the period under review:

31 March 31 March
UK GAAP £000 2004 2003 Variance % change
Investment Banking 5904 12654 {6 750 (53.3%)
Private Banking 1213 234 579 =1 00%
Private Chent Portiolic Management and Stockbroking 130 50 80 >100%
Treasury and Specialised Finance (1458 341 (1799} >{100%)
Asset Management 138 16 122 > 00%
Group Services and Other Activities 710 1> 479 (8 378} (54.1%)
Discontinued Operations (594} 994 > 100%
Other operating income 13028 | 27780 (14 752) (53.1%)

The following table sets out information on Investec's ad

period under review:

ministrative expenses for the

31 March % of rotal |31 March % of total year on year
UK GAAP £000 2004 expenses 2003 expenses % change
Personnel costs (265 234 67.1% {265 437 £6.2% 0.1%
Busiress expenses (65 924) 16.7% (74 628} 18.6% 1.7%
Equipment {excluding depreciation) {22 838) 5.8% (25 569) 6.4% 10,79
Premises {excluding depreciation) {26 248) 6.6% (22 303) 5.6% (17.7%)
Marketing expenses (14 544) 3.8% (12 843) 3.2% {16.4%)
Total administrative expenses (395 188) 100.0% (400 780) 100.0% 1.4%

The following table sets out information on Investec's ad

for the period under review:

ministrative expenses by geography

3l March % of rotal 31 March % of votal  year on year
UK GAAP £'000 2004 expenses 2003 expenses % change
South Africa and Cther {158 149} 40.0% (130 863 32.7% (20.9%)
UK and Europe {197 079) 49.9% (187 599 46.8% (5.19)
Australia (15 824) 4.0% (115013 2.9% (37.6%)
tsrac! (14911 3.8% {14 5259 3.6% (27%)
LiSA (9 225) 2.3% (11 980) 2.9% 230%
Discontinuad Operations 0.0% (44 312) [11% > 100%
Total administrative expenses {395 188) 100.0% 400 780} 100.0% 1.4%




The following table sets out information on Investec's admlnlstrau+e expenses by division

for the period under review:

|

31 March % oftotal 3| March | % of total year on year

UK GAAP £'000 2004 expenses 2003 expenses % change
Iyvestment Barking (49 636) 1 2.6% (43 164 | 12.3% {1 0%)
Private Banking (86 176) 20.8% (75 290y | 18.8% (145%)
Private Cliert Portfolio Management |

and Stockbroking (48 899) 12.4% (45 487) \ 13% (7.5%)
Treasury and Specialised Finance {72 837) 18.4% (66 577} | | 6.6% {9.4%)
Asset Managermnent and Assurance Activities (79 794} 20.2% {71 896) ! 17.9% {(11.0%)
Group Services and Other Activities (57 B46) |4.6% (48 054) 12.0% {20.4%)
Discontinued Operaticns 0.0% (44 312 11.1% =1 00%
Total administrative expenses {395 188} 100.0% (400 780) 100.0% |.4%

The following table sets out information on Investec's operating pr

exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill by geography for tH

ofit before taxation,
e period under review:

31 March 31 March year on year
UK GAAP £000 2004 % of total 2003 % of total % change
South Africa and Other 77428 58.6% 69 479 81.0% 4%
UK and turope 38734 29.3% 22 562 26.3% 71.7%
Australia 9626 7.3% 5924 £.9% 62.5%
lsrael 5918 4.5% 3496 41% 69.3%
USA 433 0.3% 970 [.1% (55.4%)
Discontinued Operations - 0.0% (16 669) (19.4%) =1 00%
Total 132 139 100.0% 85762 100.0% 54.1%

The following table sets out information on Investec's operating pr

exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill by division for the

ofit before taxation,
beriod under review:

31 March 31 March year on year

UK GAAP £000 2004 % of total 2003 % of total % change
Irevestment Banking 37719 285% 13524 |5.8% >100%
Private Banking 45 397 34.4% 29 588 34.5% 53.4%
Private Client Portfolio Management

and Stockbroking 8 465 6.4% 4413 5% 91.8%
Treasury and Specialised Finance 35 805 27 1% 20 198 23.6% 773%
Asset Management 24611 18.6% 17715 207% 389%
Assurance Activities 4582 35% 26 830 31.3% (829%})
Group Services and Other Activities (24 440) (18.5%) (9 837) {11.6%) =(100%)
Discontinued Operations 0.0% {16 669) (19.4%) >100%
Total 132 139 100.0% 85 762 100.0% 54.1%




The following table sets out information on Investec's an
goodwill by geography for the period under review:
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nortisation and impairment of

31 March 31 March

UK GAAP £000 2004 2003 Varjance % change
South Africa and Other (31 673) (87 392} 55719 63.6%
UK and Europe 12919 (23979 It 060 46,19
Australia (5 052} (5 195) (857) (16.5%)
srael - (33 23 =1 00%
USA - -

Discontinued Operations - {5703) 5703 > 100%
Amortisation and impairment of goodwill (50 644) (122 302) 71 658 58.6%

The following table sets out information on Investec's eJceptionai items for the period

under review:

31 March |31 March
UK GAAP £000 2004 2003 Variance % change
Provision for losses on termination and
disposal of group operations - discontinued (5103) (3 437y 4334 > 00%
Impairment of goodwill on .
discortinued operations - | (19 047) 19 047 > 100%
Profit on termination and disposal of group
operations - continding 13632 5 800 7832 >100%
Fundamental reorgarisation and restructuring
costs - continuing {6 073) 6073 >100%
Exceptional items 8529 {28 757) 37 286 >100%

The following table sets out information on Investec's tax
period under review:

cation charge by geography for the

31 March 31 March
UK GAAP £000 2004 2003 Variance % change
South Africa and Other (16 2913 (S 967) (6 324) (63.4%)
UK and Europe {6 3000 13 684 (19 984} >(100%)
Australia (2 .833) (2452 (381} {15.5%)
Israel (3 474) {427 (3 047) >100%
Usa 399 399 >100%
DISCOHTIQUE@ Operations - {6 215) 6215 >{00% _
Taxation {28 499) (537h {23 122} >{100%)




Share of income of associated companies

The group's principat associate is Capital Alliance Limited
(CAL). An amount of &I 34 million {£11.2 million} was
accrued, representing Investec's share in CAL's estimated
operating earnings for the year ended 3| March 2004.

Exceptional items

During 2004, exceptional tems related to

*  Losses on terminztion of the group's operations in the
US, which amounted to £5.1 million. The group made a
final exceptional charge (including future run-off costs)
for the ¢losure of these operations. Any future costs
incurred in excess of this charge, will be treated as non-
exceptional operating expenses.

»  Aprofit of £13.7 million that was realised on dispasal of
group operations, largely relating to the sale of the
comzanies, |00 Graysion Drive Property (Pty) Limited
and Block E Power Station Properties (Pty) Limited, at
market value.

Taxation

The operational effective tax rate of the group {excluding the
tax effect on exceptional fems) ncreased from 6.3% to
21.1%. 1n 2003, the group's UK operation bocked an

£8 million corporation tax credit, as an adjustment to prior
years, and aiso reversed £8 million of deferred tax provisions.
This resulted in a net reduction of the effective tax rate in
the crior year. The effective tax rate in South Africa increased
from 14.3% to 21.0% as the group uses its assessed losses.
Furthermare, the effective tax rate in lsrael increased
significantly from 12.2% to 58.7% because taxaticn is paid on
inflation-adjusted earnings, which exceeded nominal earnings
during the year, given the negative nflation rate.

Minority interest

Minaity interest reflects that porticn of Investec's operating
profit after taxation that s contributed to the minordy
sharehclders of s subsidiarias.

Earnings/loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders

As a result of the foregoing factors, earnings attributable to
crdinary shareholders increased from a Joss of £62.6 million
in 2003 to a profit of £68.8 million in 2004

Earnings attributable to ordinary
shareholders before exceptional items and
amortisation of ggodwill

Earnings attributable to opdinary snarehciders before
exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill increased by
18.3% - from £8%.7 millign n 2003 to £106.1 million in
2004.

Further information is coptained on page 182,

Balance sheet ana!brsis

Capital resources

Total capital resowrces ingreased by 40,4% to £1.3 billion.

3! March 31 March
UK GAAP £'000 2004 2003

Subordinated liabiities

{including convertible deft) 497 858 179702
Minority intarests - equity 39 029 33 804
Calied up share capital 165 Isg |
Share premium account | 020 890 280 321
Treasury shares {52 102) (40 987y
Shares to be issued 2 666 2423
Perpetual preference shares 126 698 -
Revaluation reserves 43 142 29 160
Other reserves {168402) (166907}
Profit and loss account {le4088) (1642051
Sharehalders' funds 808 969 639 968

- Equity 682 271 6£3% 968

- Non-equity 126 698 -
Capital resources | 345 856 958 474

Total sharcholders' funds creased by £149.0 million during
the period under review 1o £809.0 million. This was mainly
as a result of the issue of R1.5 billion {£127.5 million} in
non-curnulative, non-redegﬂabie and non-participating
preference shares and 5.6{million ordinary shares

{£460 million) in Investec| Limited.

The return on average tangible equity shareholders' funags
increased from 26.0% to 37.5% and the return on average
total equity shareholders' ffunds, inclusive of goodwill,
increased from [ 3.1% to |6.0%.

Capiral adequacy

Investec plc and Investec llimited are well capitalised and
capital adequacy ratios comfortably exceed the minimum
regulatory requirermnents, The capital adequacy (appiying
South African Reserve Bask rules to Investec Limited's
capital base) is 15.1% (Maych 2003: 12.7%). The capital
adequacy {applying Financlal Services Authority rules to
Investec plc's capital base)|is 17.3% (March 2003: 14.2%).




Net tangible asset value per share

In caleulating the net tangible asset value per share, the
group assumes that all previously issued Comipulsory

Convertible Debentures (CCIs) are treated as equity.
Under UK GAAP however. a portion of these CCDs is

The table below sets out the calcutation of Investec's net

period under review:

UK GAAP £000

A Shareholders funds

B Less preference shares

C  Convertible debt ncluded

il

in subordinated liabilities

CCDs issued by
tnvestec Limited included in
in supordinated labilities

Less: Intangible fixed assets

Add: Final dividend acerued but not paid
Tangible net asset value

MNurmber of shares in issue
CCDs

CChs

Less: Treasury shares
Number of shares in issus

in this calculation (miflions)

Tangibie NAY per share {pence)
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treated as debt and not ncluded in shareholders' funds.

Furtherma
the group'y
funds {refe
believes thy

e, as discussed above, the consideration paid for

own shares are deducted from shareholders'

red to as treasury shares). As a result, the group
t certain adjustments should be made to more

appr’opriatﬁly reflect the net tangible asset value per share.

31 March 31 March
2004 2003
308 969 639 368
{126 698) -
38 258 51635
3447 4 189
(251 508) {29% 773}
30879 25 468
503 347 421 487
1186 1130
34 36
0. 02
(28 (4.3}
1165 1125
431.8 3749

The propos

Managing the group's capital resources

In line with Investec's objective to increase shareholder value
throush a group-wide discipline that links capital allocation
and structuring, performance measurement, investment
decisions and capital-based incentive compensation into one
integrated framevsork, the Capital Committee oversees the
various components contributing towards effective capital
management governandcea.

asset value per share for the

Notes
Per the balance shest,
Per the balance sheet,

Debt component of CCDs
{included in equity under SA
GAAP) relating to unsecured.
Class "A", Class “A" Series 1.
Class "B" and Class “C"
subordinated CCDs. Refer to a
more detailed explanation of the
difference between SA GAAP
and UK GAAP on page 227.

These CCDs {approximately
1.9 million shares) relate to the
group's stafl share schemes but

have largely remained unallocated.

Per the balance sheet.

Relates to C above.
Allocated in terms of D above.

Per page 206.

bd capital management framework seeks to

optimise the use of the group's capital by detcrminiag:
* The optimal amount of total capital commensurate with

the gro
o Sup
gro
o Meg
o Pro

the

opp

p's overall risk profile in order to:

bort business strategics, including any inhcrent
hth assumptions.

t targeted credit ratings and regulatory ratios.
cct against losses, maintain liquidity and buttress
group's capital requircments to cater for future
priunistic acquistions,




+ Capital allocation to activities with the most favourable
returns and highlighting those activities which are unduly
capial intensive,

+  The most efficient composition of the group's capital base.

Against this background, the Capital Committee manages
the capital structure of lnvestee Limited and Investec plc. The
Chief Executive Officer chairs the committee, and other
permznent members include certain executive and non-
executive directors, the Global Head of Group Finance and
the Global Head of Corporate Governance and
Compliarce. Managemeant from various disciplines is co-
opled onto the committee, where specific expertise is
required.

An assessment of economic capital utilised

In order Lo assess the return on economic capital utilised,
the group befieves that certain adjustments should be made

to the profit and loss analysis and balance sheet analysis as

reflected under UK GAAP

The group believes that these adjustments are necessary as
they reflect the actual utilisation of capitai and return
thereon, notwithstanding

The methodelogy applied

group's eLonomic capita
A notional return on|capital (net of the cost of

subordinated debt) v

accounting conventions,
in assessing the utifisation of the
15 as foliows:

hich is managed and borre in the

centre s allocated from "Group Services and Other

Activities" Lo the bus
capital utilisation.

ness segments based on their total

Shareholders' funds 4s shown under UK GAAP s
increased 1o reflect permanent capital which s refiected
under subordinated debt,

The final dividend is

dded back 1o shareholders' funds

which, under UK GAAFR reduces reserves.

The table below sets out the calculation of adjusted shareholders’

“economic capital utilised™

£'000

fquity sharcholders' funds {including minorities) per balance sheet

Add: Convertible debt included in subeordinated habilities
Final dvidend declaration

Adjusted shareholders' funds

Gaoodwill per balance sheet

Adjusted tangible shareholders' funds

Operating profit before amortisation of goodwill and
exceptional items

Share of associated companies before goodwill
Revised cperating profit
Tax on ordinary activities

Revised operating profic after tax

Pre-tax return on average adjusted shareholders’ funds
Pre-tax return on average adjusted tangible shareholders' funds
Post-tax return on average adjusted sharcholders' funds

Post-tax return on average adjusted tangible sharehoiders' funds

funds in terms of

31 March 2004 31|March 2003 Average
721 298 678 772 700 035
41 705 55 824 48 765
30 872 25 458 28 174
793 882 760 064 776 974
(251 5C8) (299 773 (275 640)
542 374 460 291 501 334
132 139 85 7627
[l 205 Il 350
143 344 97 112
(27 821 (5 377
115 523 31 735
18.4% I1.3%
28.6% 18.8%
14.9% 16.6%
23.0% 1 7.8%




The table below sets out Investec’s ROE by division for ¢

£000
Total operating profit™*

National return on
regulatory capital

Caost of subardinated debt

Absorbtion of additional
residual costs™

Adjusted earnings/{losses)
- 2004
Adjusted earnings/(iosses)
- 2003

Adjusted shareholders’ funds
- 2004

Adjusted shareholders' funds
- 2003

Adjusted average
shareholders’ funds

Adiusted tangible shareholders'
funds - 2004

Adjusted tangible sharehalders’
funds - 2003

Adjusted average tangible
shareholders' funds

Return on adiusted average
shareholders’ funds - 2004
Return on adjusted average
shareholders’ funds - 2003~
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he period under review:

Return on adjusted average tangible

shareholders’ funds - 2004

Return on adjusted average tangibie

shareholders’ funds - 2003~

*Where: 1B = lavestment Banking PB = Private Banking PCSB = Private Clien

Disc. Total

IB* PB*  PCSB* TSF* AME - ASLE GSO* Ops*  group
37719 45397 8465 35805 24611 4582 (1323%) - 143 344
2903 23182 693 26232 1433 173 (56 174) - -
(709) (12093)  (410) (13994} K823y (85L) 30880 - -
(1020} (2567) ®3) (3030) (11350)  (550) 11 600 - -
34893 52919 8665 45013 23 87| 4912 (26 929} — 143344
15409 41287 5052 35757 14817 24720 (25317} (16614 97112
12760 231 041 17862 215233 171694 16989 98303 - 793882
49503 218836 22788 206254 191|846 31759 36 85I 2227 760064
46 132 224939 20325 210744 81770 24374 67 577 I 113 776 974
23663 215533 6903 203934 9782 5353 77206 ~- 542 374
24 406 197 727 7577 92207 16057 16 575 3515 2227 460231
24 035 206 630 7 240 198 071 12920 10964 40 36! 113501 334
75.6% 235% 42.6% 214% IB.1% 02% (39.8%) - 18.4%
298%  196%  206%  181% 8%  7A9%  (226%) <(100%) 11.3%
=100% 256%  >100% 227% >100% 448%  (66.7%) - 8.6%
668%  221%  706%  197%  >I00%  >100%  (335%) <(100%)  |88%

TSF = Treasury and Specialised Finance AM = Asset Managerment  ASU = Assurance Activities
Dise. Ops = Discantnued Operations

GSO = Group Services and Other Activities
** Includes share of income of associated companies and is reflected before taxatio

~ This allocation represents a portion of the costs remaining in the centre which
they facilitate their operations but are excluded in calculating performance incenti

managements’ estimates of relative benefit derived.

" As disclosed in the prior year as 2002 figures were nat restated for changes t

N,

t Portfclio Management and Stockbroking

re indirectly allocated to operating divisions as
e remuneration. These allocations are based on

accounting policies and disclosures.




The table below sets out Investec’s ROE by geography for the peri

od under review:

Southern UK & Disc Total
£'000 Adrica Europe  Australia lsrael Usa Ops* group
Total operating profit 77 428 38 734 9626 5918 433 - 132139

Share of income of associated

companics i 381 - {300 (7 141 - |1 205

Tax on profit on ordinary activities™* (15 613) {6 300 {2 833) {3 471 399 (27 821}

Profit on ordinary activities

after taxation - 2004 73 196 32 434 6 493 2427 973 - 115523

Profit on ordinary activities

after taxation - 2003 70 845 36 246 3472 3034 - {21 862) 91735

Adiusted shareholders' funds

- 2004 302829 35770 49 854 43019 I 410 793 882

Adjusted shareholders' funds :

- 2003 283 140 381 358 12 243 51096 | 2227 760 064

Adjusted average

shareholders’ funds 293 485 388 564 46 049 47 058 705 1113 776 974

Adjusted tangible sharcholders'

funds - 2004 208 386 251 443 B 43019 P40 542 374

Adjusted tangible shareholders’

funds - 2003 le4 295 216 489 246 184 51096 - 2227 460291

Adijusted average tangible

shareholders' funds 186 341 233 967 32 150 47058 | 705 P13 561 334
[

Pre tax return on average tangible ‘

sharcholders’ funds - 2004 47.7% 16.6% 29.0% 12.5% B1.4% - 28.6%

Pre tax return on average tangibie \

shareholders' funds - 2003~ 41.8% 9.1% 24.2% 72% * <(100%) 18.8%

Pre tax return on average

sharchalders’ investment - 2004 30.3% 10.0% 20.3% 12.5% 81.4% - 18.4%

Pre tax return on average

sharcholders' investment - 2003 " 24.5% 5.2% i39% 7.2% * o =<{100%) [1.3%

Post tax return on average

tangible shareholders' funds - 2004 39.3% 13.9% 202% 5.2% >100% - 23.0%

Post tax return on average

tangible shareholders' funds - 2003~ 36.6% 14.8% [4.2% 6.3% * o <(100%) 17.8%

Post tax return on average

shareholders’ investment - 2004 24.9% 8.3% Y% 5.2% > 0% - [4.9%

Post tax return on average

snareholders' investment - 20037 21.4% 8.3% 8.2% 6.3% < 100%) 10.6%

*The calculations for the US for the year ended 31 March 2003 are based on the numbers Aor the continuing and

discontinued operations and the resultant returns are shown for the US operations as a wh

**Excluding taxation on exceptional items.

~n As disclosed in the prior year as 2002 figures were not restated for changes to accounting [

le.

olicies and disclosures.




Total assets

Total assets increased by 3.0% - from £14.9 billion at 31 March 2003 to £15.4 pillion at 31 March 2004
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31 March | 31 March
UK GAAP £ millions 2004 2003 Variance % change
Souzh Africa and Other 2138 8177 261 I'1.8%
UK and Eurape 4 987 5592 (605} (10.8%)
Ausiraha 180 300 180 £0.0%
Israel 728 813 (85) (10.5%)
USA 28 ) (4 (12,5%)
Total assets 1536l 14914 447 3.0%

*  The South African operations experienced solid growth in assets, largely ag

chents driven by strong book growth in the Private Banking and Structured
*  The assets of the UK operations declined, largaly as a result of the winding

a result of an increase in leans and agvances to
Finance businesses.
down of the interest rate business during 2003

*  The Australian operation continued to benefit from the expansion of its agtivities in all core areas of business.

Detailed geographical balance sheets can be found on pages 168 and 169.

Total assets under administration

Total assets under administration increased by 17.9% - from £40.6 billion to £47.8 billion, This was mainly attributable to growth

in assets under management of £6.8 billion across all ranges of third party fund
appreciation of the Rand against the Pound Sterfing.

The following table sets out information on Investec’s as
geography as at 31 March 2004:

k. largely due to improved equity values and the

sets under administration by

South Africa UK, Australia, Total

UK GAAP £ millions & Other Israel & USA group
Retail 2867 2762 5629
Institutional 7 865 5623 i3 558
Private clients 3738 7322 1 Q&
- Private clients-discretionary 456 4175 4631
- Private clients-nan-discretionary ‘ 3282 3147 & 429
Properties managed for third parties 950 16 966
Acceptances on behalf of clients - | |
Serip lending | 230 1230
Total third party assets 15 420 17 024 32 444
On balance sheet assets 9138 61223 15361
Total assets under administration 24 558 23 247 47 805




The following table sets out information on Investec’s assets under
geography as at 31 March 2003:

UK GAAP £ millions

Retal
Institutional
Private clients

- Private clients-discretionary

- Private clients-non-discretionary
Properties managed for third parties
Acceptances on behalf of clients
Scrip fending
Total third party assets
On balance sheet assets

Total assets under administracion
Additional information

Number of employees

The tables below set out information on the number of employees
geography over the four-year period to 31 March 2004:

As at

tnvestment Banking
South Africa and Cther
UK and Eurcpe
Australia

USA

Israel

Total

Private Banking

South Africa and Other
UK and Europe
Australia

USA

lsrael

Total

Private Client Portfolioc Management and Stockbroking

South Africa and Cther
UK and Europe
Awustralia

USA

Israel

Total

administration by

South Africa UK, Australia, Total
& Other Israel & USA group

1224 11994 4218

5 877 51630 11507

2 066 6306 87372

364 2|68 3015

| 702 3625 5327

423 14 437

2 2

11109 109

10590 15|055 25 645

§ 177 6737 14914

18 767 21(792 40 559

by division and by

March March March March
2004 2003 2002 2001
102 105 16 147
14 101 156 140
21 & 30 -

— 68 FIL 3

29 44 4% 54
276 336 462 344
675 628 571 542
334 329 293 319
43 55 43 74

54 73 51 97

1 108 1 Q85 358 1 032
7 144 |48 |64
346 400 415 402
292 430

463 544 855 995
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The tables below sets out information on the number ofl employees by division and by
geography over the four-year period to 3| March 2004:

March March March March
As at 2004 2003 2002 2001

Private Client Activities Total

South Africa and Other 792 772 719 7Cs
UK and Europe 680 729 708 721
Australia 43 55 43 74
USA - - 292 430
Israel 54 73 51 97
Total | 56% | 629 I 813 2028

Treasury and Specialised Finance

South Africa and Other 258 283 271 300
UK and Europe i34 156 166 128
Australia 8 10 I
USA 23 33 7 -
Israel 34 25 18 13
Total 477 507 503 44|

Asset Management

South Africa and Other ‘ 517 430 512 413
UK and Europe 257 267 245 252
Australia - - - -
USA - - ) 5
Israel X 1 14 - -
Total 784 771 763 670
Assurance Activities 156 490 576 -

Group Services and Other Activities

Sauth Africa and Other 802 757 215 678
UK and Europe 245 256 235 76
Australia 4 22 - -
USA 32 30 272 424
Israe! 76 76 0 78
Total 1196 1141 | 412 | 353
Total number of employees 4458 4 874 5529 4836

By Geography

South Africa and Other | 28677 2 897 3009 2 244
UK and Europe [ 431 I 509 510 I 417
Australia 12 103 84 74
UsSA 75 131 688 859
Israet 213 234 238 242

Total number of employees 4 458 4 874 5529 4 836




Performance and objectives

ROE and RONAV*

Investec objectives and targets

Investec's objective is to continue to focus
on increasing its ROE, as opposed to
nominal capital, thecugh the efficient
deployment of its capiial base. The group
intends to generate ROE in cxcess of its
cost of capital. All businesses which do not
possess the polential to generate the
required ROE over the long-term have
been placed under strategic review and the
aroup will consider its options with respect
10 these businesses,

Investec has set itself che following
targets over the medium to long-term:

Group ROE: 20% i Pound Sterling terms.
Investec Lmited ROE: 30% in Rand terms.
Investec plc ROE: 15%-20% in Pound
Sterhng terms.

Investec performance

The return on average tangible equity
shareholders' funds increased from 26.0%
to 27.5% and the return on average total
equity shareholders’ funds, inclusive of
goodwill increased from 13.1% ta 16.0%.

MNortes:

Total shareholders’ funds and capial
adequacy ratios (CAR)

Investec intends to maintain a sufficent
fevel of capital to satisfy regulatory
requirements, as well as take advantage of
opportunities that rmay arise in the financial
services industry focusing on increasing the
group’s return on equity n the medum to
long-term,

The group would like to maintain a capital
adequacy rato of batween

13% - 16% for Investec Limited and
Investec plc.

Total shareholders’ funds increased by
£169.0 million during the period under
review mainly as a result of the issue of
RIS billion (£127.5 milion} in non-
cumulative, nen-redeemable and non-
participating preference shares and

5.6 mifien ordinary shares (£460 millien)
in Investec Limited,

Investec ple and Investec Limited are well
capitalised and capitai adequacy ratios
comiortably exceed the minimum
regulatory requiremnents. The capital
adequacy (applying Sauth African Reserve
Bank rules 1o Investec Limited's capital
base} is 15.1% (March 2003 122%). The
capital adequacy (applying Fimancial
Services Authority rules to Investec plc's
capital base) is 17.3% (March 2003: 14.2%)

Spedific provisions as 2 % of net non-
performing loans

Setting a target in this area is susceptible to
economic and market conditions. The
sroup however strives to achieve a
coverage of 100% of spealic provisions to
net non-performing loans, Furthermore. the
group aims to achieve a ratie of general
provisions o net loans and advances in
exceps of 1%.

Provision levels exceed regulatory
requirermnents. The percentage of gross non-
perfgrming loans {NPLs) to core loans and
advances increased from |.5% to 1.7%.
Total| provision coverage remains
conservative both as a percentage of gross
NPLg and net. NPLs {grass NPLs net of
secutity), at 92.9% and 354.6% respactively,
In addition, the group's general provision
coverage as a percentage of net loans and
advances decreased marginally ta 1.2%

*Where ROE 15 return on equity shareholders' funds and RONAY is return on net tangible equity shareholders’ funds.

**Where earnings and EPS are shown before exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill,

.




Annuity income as a % of
operating income

The extreme volatility
expenenced in international
markets highirghts the
importance of the group's
diverse portfolic of inlegrated
businesses and profit streams,
The group aims Lo increase 1ts
focus on its annuity income base
thereby improving its ability to
perform in volatile financial
markets.

Investec has set itself the
following target over the
medium to long-term:

70% - 75% annuity/recurring
income as a percentage of
operating mcome.

Orerall, annuity incormne as a
percentage of total operating
incame declined from 64.1% to
67 8%.The rmovement in the
camparents of the group's
operating income is discussed
on pages 15 and |6

Cost to income ratio

The cost 1o income {COI) ratio
15 stilf considared 1o be high
against group objectives. The
group has significantly
raticnalised and restructured its
operalions over the past two
years in an effort 1o reduce its
overall cost base. Increased
emphasis has now been placed
on enhancing income growth
while at the same time ensuring
effective constraint of costs.

Investec has set itself the
following targets over the
medium to long-term:

Group COl ratic: less than 65%
in Pound Sterling terms.
Investec Limited COI ratio: 50%
in Rand terms.

Imvestec ple COF ratio: 65% -
75% in Pound Stering terms.

Total administrative expenses
decreased by 1.4% from

£400.8 million to £395.2 million
principally due to the
ratanalisation of the graup's
activities in the US and in its UK
Investment Banking operations
undertaken during the 2003
financial year This was largely
offset by an increase in costs
expressed in Pounds Sterling
due 1o the apprediation of the
Rand and the continuea
expansion of the group's
Australian operations.

Group COi ratio: 72.7%
(2003: 800%).

Investec Limited COI ratio:
56.8% (2003: 54.6%).
Investec plc COI ratio: 80.5%
(2003: 92.6%).

Earnings and

In the mecium to long-term the

roup aims to
10% in excess

Pound Sterling terms). The group

continually str
maintain a sus
madel.

The firancial v
characterised

favourable mat

benefiting the
graup with ba
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EPS* Dividends

investec Intends to maintain a
dividend cover of batween |7
and 2.3 times based on earnings
per sharc before exceptional
iterns and amortisation of
goadwill, denominaled in Pounds
Sterling, Interim and firal
dividends will be dedared and
proposed In accordance with

the above policy

achieve growth of
of inflation {in

es 1o build and
Alnable business

ear was

y @ more

ket environment
pctivities of the
iC earnings per

For the current year the board
has proposed a dividend of
58.0 pence per share equating
to a dividend caver of .79,

share befare exceptional items

and goodwill
increasing 7.9%
1037 pence fi

mortisation
(s}
om 96.1 pence.




Five year review - summarised consolidated balance sheets
UK GAAP £'000
For the year ended 31 March'’ 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 363 862 348 343 W57 222 477 646 589 939
Treasury bills and other eligible bills 332208 243019 197 767 254 £55 247 389
Loans and acvarces to banks 1704715 2758797 2p83205 2341300 3635295
Loans and advances to customers 6345 818 4883903 4[/B0480 4 741 682 4853 137
Debt securities I 466437 1 931 265 4QR?7877 SH17962 4106735
Equity shares 418 254 147 638 204 352 265013 168 063
Interests in asseciated undertakings 70 006 02 122 15 026 3272 i5 677
Other participating interests 9135 - - 55051 33847
Intangible fixed assets 251 508 299 773 384 900 242 891 226 414
Tangible fixed assets I46 326 205 982 186 75l 165 241 144 717
Own shares 43 780 52 223 42 130 39 133 59 974
Other assels FOBI I3V 1200441 | (177 727 865250 1 195420
Prepayments and deferred income 8l 511 124 390 97 968 - -
Long-term assurance business attributable to the shareholder 265 315 108 528 67 116 - -
12580036 12377724 14602531 14 849 Q% 15277 107
Long-term assurance assets atiributable to policyholders 2781335 2536319 2354401 1 il4 666 752 987
15361371 14914043 16956 932 15983 762 16 030 094
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 233609 21297292 3645308 4063422 4 304 382
Customer accounts 7201292 6354867 7068220 BO7S74D0 8689252
Delyt securities in issue 821 857 |1 089 7586 506 246 - -
Cther labilities | 969 855 1580881 2106191 1623913 | 387723
Accruals and deferred income 185 600 254 413 ‘218 132 264 263 357 014
Pension fung liability Il 967 10 041 [ - - -
1234180 11419250 13644 097 14027 338 !4 638 373
Long-term assurance hiabilities attributable to policyholders 2781 335 2536319 23544001 | 114666 752 987
14015515 13955569 15998 498 |5 142 004 15 3% 360

Capital resources

Subordinated liabilities{including convertible detit} 197 858 279 702 190 65% 239 129 83977
Minority interests equity 39 02% 38 804 33473 23 459 26 815
Called up share capital [ 165 158 7 530 6 701 é 566 |
Share premium account 1 020 8%0 980 321 814 089 563 547 515 333
Treasury shares (52 10y (40 987) - - -
Shares to be issued 2 666 2428 41 148 35 285 35285
Perpetual preference shares 126 698 - - .
Revaluztion reserves 43 142 29 160 1202 832 (284}
Other reserves (168 402) (166907) (|76 833) (110404) (88 928)
Profit and less account (1641 088) (164 205) 37 166 33189 59870
Shareholders’ funds 808 969 £39 968 V34 302 579 170 527 942
- equity 582 271 439 968 591 201 536 06% 527 942}
- nen-equity 126 698 - 43 101 43 101 |

| 345 856 G958 474 258 434 841 758 638 734

[5 361371 14914043 16956932 15983762 16030094

Note:

" The numbers for the year ended 31 March 2002, 2001 and 2000 have not been restated for thanges 1o accounting policies and
disclosures

.



Five year review - summarised consolidated profit and ldss accounts

UK GAAP £'000

For the year ended 31 March'

Net interest income

Dividend income

Fees and commissions receivable

- annuity

- deal

Fees and commission payable

Dealing profits

Income from long-term assurance business

Return on shareholders' funds in the long-term

assurance business
Other operating income

QOther income

Total operating income
Administrative expenses
Staff costs

Premises {excluding depreciation)
QOperating rental expenses

Equipment (excluding deprecation and
operating rental expenses)

Businass expenses

Marketing expenses

Deprecation of tangible fixed assets
Provision for bad and doubiful debts

Cperating profit before exceptional items and

amortisation of goodwill

Operating profit from continuing aperations

Operating loss from discontinued operations

Share of income/{loss) of associated companies {net of goodwill)

Amnoriisation and imparment of goodedill

Other exceptional items

Profit/{loss) on ordinary activities before taxation
Taxation on profit on ardinary activities
Prefit/(loss) on ordinary activities after taxation
Minority wtterests - equity

Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders

Earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders before
exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill

Note:
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2004 | 2003 2002 2000 2000
105663 | 110701 163830 159087  |(8 488

3 450 3 597 2 08l 5 23 8567
340528 330959 415918 390577 337 044
272718 | 287 199 335845 302623 263 79i

67810 | 43760 80073 87954 £8 153
(22155) | (54768 (74 671) (51444} (47 388)

91015 | 57668 49485 36179 2559

5082 | 77779 31079 - -

24122 | 1558 - -

13028 | 27780 30949 11264 44720
455070 |408 566 454 841 391 807 362 962
560733 |519267 618671 550894 48] 450
(395 188) (400 780) (428 51C) (385 758) (324 409)
(765 234) [(265 437y (275 231) (250791) (210 134)

(8885 | (5058  (9221)  (BOSQ) (6393

(17363 1 07245 (16639  (14059) (14 247
(22838) | (255690 (31 980) (30386) (20 663)
(639240 | (74628)  (79TITY  (B3713) (5% 206)
(14944) | (12843) (15727 (1R754) (13971
(12448) | (14417)  (16926) (13925) (13 142)
(20958) | (18308) (14668) (18015 (20225
132139 | 85762 158567 133196 123 474
132 135 |102431 158862 133196 123 474
(16 669) (295) - : —;
9073 9 706 3083 (143) |48
(50 644} {122307)  (98435) (20 885) (4 281
8529 | (28757 (17529)
99097 | (55391) 45686 112168 109 341
(28499 | (5377) (28540  (30044) (36091

70598 | (60 968)  [7146 82124 73150

(1813) | (1646) (1586 (1 170) (1 668)

68785 | (62614} 15560 80954 7| 582
106082 | 89668 127613 100906 87 246

The numbers for the year ended 31 March 2002, 2001 and 2000 have not bee*a restated for changes to accounting policies and

disciosures |




Five year review - salient features

UK GAAP!
For the year ended 31 March?

Profit and Loss Account and Selected Returns
Earrings ativibutable 1o ordinary shareholders before
exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill (£'000%
Headline earnings (£'000)

Operating profit befare taxation, exceptional items and
amortisation of goodwill (£'000)

Investment Banking

Private Client Activities

Treasury and Specialsed Finance

Asset Management

Assurance Activities

Group Services and Other Activities

Dhiscontinued operations

Qperating profit: Southern Africa and Other (% of total)
Operating profit Non-Southern Africa and Other (% of total)
Cost to incorme ratio (%)

Staff compensation to operating income ratio (%)

Retun on average equity sharehoiders’ funds (%)

Return on average tangible net asset value (%)

Annuity income as a percentage of operating income (%}
Net-interest income as a percentage of operating income (%6}
Non-interest income as a percentage of operating income (%)

Iz

Effective tax rate (%)

Balance Sheet

Total capital resources (£ millions)

Total shareholders' funds (£ milions)

Total assets (£ millions)

Core loans and advances (£ millions)

Core loans and advances as a percentage of total assets (%)
lotal assets under administration {£. millions)

Salient Financiai Features and Key Statistics
karnings per share before exceptional 1tems and
amortisation of goodwill (pence)

Headiine earnings per share {pence)

Basic earnings per share {pence)

Diluted earnings per share (pence}

Owidencs declared per share {pence)

Dividend cover (times)

Net tangible asset value per share (pence)
Weighted number of ordinary shares in issue {million)
Total number of shares in issue {million)

Closing share price (pence)

Market capitalisation (£ millions)

Number of employees in the group

Notes:
' Refer to definitions on pages 229 and 230.

:  The numbers for the year ended 31 March 2002, 2007 and 2000 have not been restated

and disclosures.

The numbers for the operating divisions are shown pre allocation of central costs, as the

allocating these costs to the operating divisions in 2003,
Caiculation not comparable.

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
|

106 082 8% 668 127613 100906 87 246
105 752 83595 115777 100906 87 246
132139 85 762 158567 133 196 123474
42078 17294 46 293 47 953 56 135
62 136 40 911 42 489 36 246 29 132
44 298 27 951 51784 52 301 40 871
26 865 15 479 20911 21 252 17 942
5082 27779 31079 - -
(48 320y (30 983) {33 694) (24 556) (20 608}
- (16 6£9) {295) - -
58.6% 81.0% 516% 25.6% 15.4%
41.4% 19.0% | 48.4% 74.4% 84.6%
72.7% 80.0% . 72.0% 726% 70.2%
47.3% S11% | 44.5% 45.5% 43.6%
16.0% 13.1% [ 19.4% 18.2% 169%
175% 260% 372% 316% 290%
67.8% 69.1% 68.7% 74.5% 63.6%
18.8% 21.3% 265% 289% 24.6%
81.2% 78.7% 735% 71.1% 75.4%
71.6% 6.3% 18.0% 226% 29.2%

| 346 958 958 842 639
809 640 734 579 528

15 381 14914 I6 957 15 984 16 030
5060 3909 3314 3299 3083
33.0% 26.2% 19.5% 20.6% 19.2%
47 805 40 559 44 219 43 977 45 853
10317 96.1 1398 1252 1093
1034 896 1268 125% 109.9
599 (67.6) 148 992 90.2
59.5 (67.6) 139 F64 8%.6
58.0 540 53.8 687 514
1.7% 1.78 260 1.83 1.7
4318 3749 373.8 = -
1a23 933 913 80.2 794
1186 130 922 1.0 80.6

i 089 &5 805 | 729 2487
1292 695 742 I 400 2005
4458 4 874 5529 4 836 4 44|

for changes to accounting policies
group only adopted a policy of




Investec in perspective

An essential pillar of Invested’s operating philosophy is that it does not seek 10|
philosophy has bean to build well-defined. value-added businesses focused on s
the group can compete effectively. Investec's strategic goals and objectives are
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be all things to all people. The group’s core
erving the needs of select market niches where
hotivated by the desire to develop an effcient

and ntegrated business on an international scale through the active pursuit of Llearly estabiished core competencies in the

group’s four pringipal business arcas, namely:
+ Investment Banking

Private Client Activities

Treasury and Specilised Finance

Asset Management

In addition, tnvested’s head office provides certain group-wide integrating functi
Technology, Finance, Investor Relations, Marketing, Human Resources and Orga
the group's central funding as welf as other activities, such as its Property busin
operations.

The business divisions are effectively managed as autonomaous international bug
on trends and dynamics within their particular industries. Notwithstanding, as a
markels and activities, a degree of interaction {akes place between each busine
broader Investec group. The group’s services are supplemented by a common 4]
and philosophies. This helps the business segments acrass the jurisdictions (o of

cns including Risk Management, Information

isational Development. it is alse responsible for

tss, Trade Finance and Traded Erdowments

iness segments, enabling them to remain focused
result of the inter-related nature of thair target
s to ensure clients benefit from dealing with the

hrust consisting of the group’s culture, mission

erate as an integrated network.




History of significant events

Since Investec was founded in South Africa in 1974, it has expanded}through a combination of

substantial organic growth and a series of strategic acquisiticns in So

ather geagraphies in which investec operates.

1980 - 1990

Develop
business in
South Africa

1992

Embark on
international
strategy

2002

London
listing

Jth Africa, the UK and

2003

Empowerment
transaction

* Investec secures a banking

licence in 1980,

* Investec lists on the |SE in

1586.

» Growth is driven organically

and via acquisitions.

* Investec focuses on building a
strang base from which to

intcrrnationalise.

« Investec acquires London-
based Allied Trust Bank Ltd -

first international acguisition.

* Investec embarks on an
intarnational drive to boost
capability and enhance critical
mass in select geographical

markets.

* July 2002 - Investe
implermments a DL
with hstings on th
and |SE.

C « Empowerment partrers
L Structure
= 15E

acquire a 25.1% stake in

Irvestec Lirnited.

For a surmmary of of the group’s history and acquisitions made in each geography and core a

website at www. investec.com/grouplinksfinvestorrelations,

ea of activity please see the group's




An overview of Investec's

companies structure

Introduction

During July 2002 Investec Group Limited (since renamed lnvestec Limited), wh
a Dual Listed Companies {(DLC) structure and listed its offshore businesses on

A circular regarding the establishment of a DLC structure was issued on 20 Ju

A simplified illustration of the DLC structure

SA resident
shareholders

!

Investec plc

!

Non-SA operations

Non-SA resident
shareholders

[l

l

«—————»  Sharing agreement

LSE primary listing
JSE secondary listing

Futher information on the group’s DLC structure can be found in the circular

i 2l

037

Annual Report 2004

dual listed

ch is headquartered in South Africa, implemented
the Londen Stock Exchange.

c 2002

Non-SA resident
shareholders

|

Investec Limited

¢

SA operations

A resident

hareholders

\ —

JSE primary listing

mentioned above as well as :n the preliminary

offering circular issued on 8 July 2002 A copy of these circulars can be found on the group's website at

www.investec.com/grouplinks/investorrelations.




- as at 31

Geographic representation

United States

New York

Investec (LS} Incorporated
Gerber Trade Finance Inc

British Virgin Islands
Tortola

Irvestec Overseas Finance
(8v)) Ltd

Namibia

Windhoek

Investec Asset Management
Namidia (Poyy Lid

Irvestec Fund Managers Namibia
(Piy) Ltd

Botswana

Gaborone

Investec Asset Management
Botswana (Pty) Ltd
Investec Fund Managers
Botswana (Pty) Ltd

Swaziland
Mbabane
Swaziland Portfolic Managers
(Ply} Ltd

South Africa

Cape Town, Durban,
johannesburg, Port Elizabeth,
Pretoria,

Investec Bark Ltd

Investec Securities Ltd
Investec Property Group Ltd
Investec Employee Benefits Lid

March 2004

Investec Asset Managemen: 10
Haoldings (Pty) Ltd

Investec Personal investrents

{Pty) Ltd

Investec Asset Management (Pty) Ltd 11
Reichmans Ltd

Investec Analytics (Pty) Ltd

Investec Assurance Lid

Silica Heldings {Pty) Ltd

Ireland i
Dublin

Investec Private Equity

Managment {lrefand) Lid

Investee Bank (UK) Ltd - 13
Irish Branch

Investec Ganden Ltd

Investec Asset Managment

Irelangd Ltd 14

Channel Islands

St Peter Port, St Helier

Investec Asset Management 15
Guernsey Ltd

Investec Personal Portfolio

Managment Ltd

Investec Bank {Channel tslands) Ltd
Invastee Trust {Jersey) Limited

United Kingdom

Lendon

Investec Bank {UK) Ltd

Carr Sheppards Crosthwaite Lid
Investec Asset Management Ltd
Traded Endowment Pelicies Limited
Investec Investment Management Ltd
Investec Fund Managers Ltd

Luxembourg
Investec SA
investec Finance SA

Switzerland

Geneva

Reichmans SA

Investec Bank (Switzerland) AG
Radclifles Trustee Campany SA

Israet
Jerusalem, Tel Aviv
Investec Bank {Israel) Ltd

Mauritius
Port Louis
Invester Bank {Mauritius} Ltd

Hong Keng
Investec Hong Kong (Pty) Ltd
investec Asset Managment Asia Lid

Australia

Brisbane., Melbourne, Sydney
Investec Wentworth Private Equity
(Pty) Ltd

fnvestec Private Adwisors (Pry) Ltd
investec Bank (Australia) Ltd
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Investec in perspective: by geography

Scope of activity*

% of operating profit**
Investec total £132.1.mn

% of attributable earnings™
Investec total £103.4.mn

South Africa
and Other

{including Botswana and
Mauritius)

Asset Management, Assurance
Activities, Investment Banking,
Private Client Activities,
Property Activities, Reichmans
International Trade Finance,
Traded Endowments®,
Treasury and Specialised
Finance

55.6% 5% 6%

Profit: 477.5mn Earnings: £61.6mn

UK and Europe
(including Guernsey,
[reland, Jersey,
Switzerland)

Asset Management,
Investment Banking, Private
Chent Activities, Property
Activities, Reichmans
International Trade Finance.
Treasury and Specialised
Finance

Profit: 438.7mn Earnings: £32.4mn

Australia

Investment Banking.
Private Client Activites,
Treasury and Specialised
Finance

7.3% 6.3%

Profit: £1%.émn Earnings: £6.3mn

Israel

Asset Management,
Investment Barking,
Private Client Activities,
Treasury and Specialised
Finance

4.5% ]

@

Profit: £5,9mn Earnings: £1.9mn

United States

The stage of development of these activities varies between each geographic region. Refar to pages 45 to 78 for a detalled description and
operating review of the group's activities. The Traded Endowments business resides in the UK but is still owned by Investec Limited and is

Fixed Income Trading, LS
Equities Trading, Israeli
Nasdaq Trading

thus reflected as such for segmental reporting purposes.

<x
s
s
f=3
T
&

Profit: £8.4mn Earnings: £1.0mn

.
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% of assets** % of NAV** Number of employees/™ COI/ROE** Global
Investec total £15 36Fmn Investec total £542.3mn Investec total 4 458 management
T I t [ |
COl 63.5% SA Joint MDs:
ROE: 24.9% Andy Leith and
Giynn Burger
SA Deputy
N to s o Chairman: David
5% 5% 28.4% 589% Lawrence
Assets: £7 138mn MNAY: £208 4mn Employees: 2 627
COI: 829% Bracdley Fried
ROE: 8.3%
325% 46.4% 32.0%
Assets: £4 987mn NAV: £25] 4mn Emplayees: | 433
COlL61.7% Geoff Lewy
ROE: 14.1%
3% 7.0% 2.5%
Assets: £48Gmn NAY, £38.1mn Employees: 112
COl70.4% Alan Tapnack
ROE: 5.2%
475 75% 4.8%
Assets: £728mn NAV: £43.0mn Employees: 213
COl95.6% john Murabito
ROE = 100%
0 2% 0.3% [
Assets: £28mn NAV: £1.4mn Employees: 75
#*  Operating profit represents profit before taxation. exceptional items and amortisation of poodwill. Attributable earnings is shown after
taxation znd minority interest but before exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill [COI is cost 1o income ratio. Operating profit,

attributable garnings, total assets and COI have been calculated in accordance with UK G

funds and ROE is return on adjusted average shareholders’ funds as calculated on pages 2

segmental infermation. including comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2003

PAR NAV is net adjusted tangible shareholders’

4 to 26. Refer to pages 166 to |71 for detailed




Investec in perspective: by div

Scope of activity™

Geographic

Ision

representation Core client base

Investment
Banking

« Carporate Finance

« Institutional Research,
Sales and Trading

* Private Equity

« Direct Investments

* Principal ma

South Africa.

e Other: Irelal

kets: Australia, Mid to farge capitalisation

UK campanies, unisted corporatians,

d, Israel fund managers, government and
parastatals

Private Client
Activities

Private Banking

Private Client Portfolio
Management and
Stockbroking

* Principal mar|
Africa, LK

«ets: Austraha, South Hign income and high net worth
individuals

* Other: Charpe! Islands, lsraet,

Switzerland

* Principal ma
UK

kets: South Africa, Mamly high net worth individuals
{includes charities in the UK)

Treasury and
Specialised Finance

» Deposit taking, lending,
acdvisary services,
structuring and
proprietary trading

* Principal ma
UK

+ Other: Aust
Mauritius

rkets: South Africa. Select corparate clients, public
sactor bodies, financial instrutions,

alia, Ireland, lsrael, banks, financal brokers

Asset
Management

Asset Managernent:
Instituticnal, Retail

Assurance Adtivities:
Investec Employee Benedits

* Principal mral
Africa, UK
* Other: Euroq

* Principal ma

kets: Southern Retirernert savers via pension furd
censuftants (instriuticnal) and
e Hong Kong, US  independent financial advisers (retai)
Individuals, corparates and

rket: South Africa  institutions

Group Services and
Other Activities

The stage of development of these activities varies between each geographic region. Re

Central Costs

« Central Funding

v QOther Activities:
Property Worldwide,
International Trade
Finance, UK Traded
Endowments

and operating review of the group’s activities,

#* Operating profit represents profit before taxation, exceptional items and amortisation ©

* Principal ma
UK
¢« Other: Austy

feats: South Africa,

atia, lsraet, LS

br to pages 45 to 78 for a detaled description

goodwill as determined in accordance with UK

GAAP Refer to pages 166 Lo |71 for delailed segmental information, including comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2003




% of operating profic*™*
Investec total £132.1mn

Number of employees™*
Investec total 4 458

Safient features
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Global

management

* SA

o. IM&A house

(Deglmakers Survey

Andy Leith and
Bradley Fried

« UK recagnised market
positioning
28.5%
Profit: £37.7mn Employees: 276
+ SAYoted as the best private Sam Hackner and
bank (PWC SU"W‘/)_ Steven Heilbron
« Global loan pertfclio:
1993: £0.6bn = 2004 £3.4bn
o | SA: Henry Blumenthal
» SA: largest player ) .
40 8 » UK Jong standing reputation UK: Steve Elliott
Profic Pvt Bank: £45.4mn*** Employees Pvt Bank: | [06++F ' Tgtq%%‘f?gisb:nieggaiﬁaffrfgg
Profic PCSB: £8 Spapytte Employees PCSB: 4635 R B
* Strohg position in SA Richard Forlee
= Building international capability
270%
Profic. £35 8mn Employees: 477
* SA: market feading position Hendrik du Torit
* UK: puilding recognised platform
* Totd funds under management:
199]: £41 8mn <> 2004: £70.6bn
+ Acglired from Fedsure and Ade Animashabun
1230 significantly rationalised
Profic |IAM: £24.6mn Employees IAM: 784
Profit Assurance: £4.5mn Employees Assurance: 156
Geagrashic
[12.56 V6B

Loss: £24.4mn

Employees: | 196

FEEWhere Pyt Bank refers 1o the group's Private Banking business and PCSB refers to the

Stocibroking business.

group's Private Client Portfclio Managerrent and




Integrated global management

structure

Investec’s management structure, reporting lines and responsibilities have been built around |gecgraphic, product and functional
roles. It 15 structured arcund global divisional leaders, global rofes and geograpnic business lgaders. This management structure
enables the group to meet the challenge of regional responsiveness and globa competence]The integrated global moded
enables the group to take advantage of best economies of scale, ieverage resources and cone competencies. and exploit

synergies across all regions in which the group operates.

The directors believe that the links between its overlapping parts. and the degree of effectie integration, make the structure
an effecive model The quality of the links is a result of values-based behaviour and practicel which are key drivers of Investec’s

cuiture.
]
Global Roles
Chairman  Hugh Herman Managing Director Bernard Kamtor
Chief Executive Officer Stephen Koseff Group Risk and Finance Directon  Glynn Burger

Geographic Business Leaders

South United Israel USA
Adrica Kingdom

Ancy Le th Bradley Fried Aian Tapnack Jehn Muratsio
alynn Burger

Davrd | awrerce

Private Banking

Sam Mackner anc S S
Stever Meitbran Uppor‘t tructures

i anking, Institutions and Corporate Relations
Private Client 8 g, Insuitu and Corp e

Stockbroking
Geographic

Treasury and
Specialised Finance Finance - Rayanne Jacobsen
R.charg Forlee

Investment Banking
Ardy Letn and
Bracley Fred

IT - Simon Shapiro

Divisional Business Leaders

Australia SE Asia

Geolf Levy Rizhard Foree

- David Lawrence

Chief Integrating Officer - AllenjZimbler

Coporate Governance and Compliance { Bradley Tapnack

Human Resources - Patsy MiCue

Marketing - Raymond van Nigkerk

Asset Management Risk Management - Ciaran VWhelan

Hendak du Tont A
Organisational Development - Caryn

Solomon
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Investment Banking

Includes: Corporate Finance, Institutional Research, Sales|and Trading, Private Equity, Direct
Investments

31 March 31 March %
UK GAAP £000 2004 2003 change
Net interest income 6 484 4 548 12.6%
Other income g1 434 59 636 36.6%
Provision for bad and doubtful debits - {589 > 00%
Adrain expenses and depreciation | (50 199} (50071 {0.375)
Operating profit* [ 37719 13 524 >100%
Corporate Finance 8§ 206 464 >100%
Institutional Research, Sales and Trading 4129 (3 176) >100%
Private Equity 6 749 11 868 (43.1%)
Direct Investments 18 635 4 368 >100%
Operating profit* 37719 13 524 > 100%
South Africa and Other 27 147 4 598 > 00%
UK and Furope 2939 4297 (31.6%)
Australia 4312 2532 F0.3%
isracl 3066 | 797 70.6%
USA, 255 - > 100%
Operating profit * 37719 13524 >160%
Cost to income ratio {%) S7 1% 78.0%
Number of employees 276 336 (17.9%)
*Before 1axation, exceptional items and arnortisation of goodwill.




Scape of activities

The Investment Banking division engages in a range of investment banking activities. The busiress positions itself as a "super

boutique”, focusing on specific market niches, It targets clients seeking highly customised sery]

ce. which investec offers through a

combination of domestic depth and expertise within cach geography and a client centric apgroach.

The client base of the division includes:

= Major listed and unlisted corporations, fund managers, government and parastatals.

Preduct

Corporate Finance

Institutional
Research, Sales and
Trading

Private Equity

Direct Investments

Geography

Awustralia,
South Africa, UK

Israel,
South Africa, UK

Australia,
South Africa, UK

Australia,
South Africa, UK

Description

Domestic businesses benefiting from access to an international
network.
Mid-market focus in the UK and Aystralia with a penetration intc
larger clients, specifically in South Africa

Research operated on an intermatignal platform.
Blue chip domestic institutional clight base.

Portfolio of third party investmentq acquired through UK acquisiton
of Hambros PLC.
Small but growing private equity businesses in South Africa and
Australia.

Largely a business leveraging off Carperate Finance's market
knowledge and deal fow.

Focus on quoted companics,
Selective, opportunistic approach.




Management structure

Joint Global Heads of Investment Banking
Bradley Fried
Andy Leith

Australia
Corporate Achvisory
Geoff Levy

Private Equity
John Murphy

Ireland
Michael Cullen

Israel

Yoel Berger

South Africa
Corporate Finance
Kevin Kerr
Khumo Shuenyane
Huge Steyn

Prvate Equity
Thomas Prins

Investec Se
Carole Ma
Kevin Brad
Craig Tate

Manageme
Kevin McK

UK
Investec In
Erik Ander
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Overview of performance

The Investment Banking division benefited from a better
market environment, recording an improved operating profit
belore exceptional iterns and amartisation of goodwill. Profit
increased from £13.5 mition to £37.7 million.

The variance in operating profit of the Corporate
Finance, Insticucional Research, Sales and Trading
divisions over the period can be explained as follows:

+  Net interest income decreased mainly as a result of the
deciine in the return on inflation-lnked instrurnents n
the division’s lsraeli business.

= The Corporate Finance operations in South Africa, UK
and Australa performed well. The solid growth in net
fees and commissions receivable is largely attributable to
the significant turmaround in the group's UK operations,
which benefited from an increase in commissions on
market making stocks and witnessed a strong increase in
advisory fees receved.

v Dealng profits largely relate to the market making

activities of the UK gperations and the proprietary
activities of the Instittitional Stockbroking division in
South Africa.
The reduction in axpenses largely reflects the
restructuring of the division's UK operations, which taok
place towards the erld of the 2003 financial year-end.

The variance in operating profit of the Private Equity
and Direct Investments divisions over the period can

be explained as follows:

Net interest income increased as the propertion of
interes: bearing assets to overall assets increased.

Net fees and commissions receivable reflect private
equity management and success fees earned,

Drealing profits represent the year te date cumulative
increase in the value [of the trading investments held in
the div'sion's direct ibvesiments and private equily
portfolios. Furthermaore, dealing profits includes the
profit/loss on realisation of these investments, which
were previousty reflected as part of "other cperating
income”.

Operating profit* - Corporate Finance and Institutional Research, $ales and Trading

31 March 31 March %
UK GAAP £'000 2004 2003 Variance change
MNet interest mcome | 947 5722 (3775} {66.0%)
Net fees and commissions receivable 49 075 34 766 14 309 41.2%
Dealing profits 3172 4836 (I 664 (34.4%)
Cther gperating income and dividends received 1922 152 I 770 >100%
Admin expenses and depreciation (43781 (47 599) 21818 8.0%
Provision for bad and doubtful debts - (589) 589 >100%
Operating profic* 12 335 {2 712} |5 047 >100%

*Before taxation, excepticnal items and armortisation of goodwill

Operating profit® - Private Equity and Direct Investments

31 March 31 March %
UK GAAP £'000 2004 2003 Variance change
Met interest income 4 537 (1174 ST >100%
MNet fees and commissions receivable 2426 I 375 | 05t 76.4%
Cealing profits 20 515 4397 16 152 > 00%
Other operating ncome and dividends received 4290 4110 {9 820 (69.6%)
Admin expenses and depreciation (6418 (2 472y (3 946) >(100%)
Pravision for bad and doubtful debts > 00%
Operating profic® 25 384 16 236 9 148 56.3%

*Before taxation, exceptional items and amortisation of goodwil.




o Realised gains amounted to approximately
£10 million {e.g. Growthpoint, AAV {Abacus), NAIL,
PG Bison).
o Unrealised gains amounted Lo approximately
£10 million (e.g AMB. Cadiz, Growthpoint,
Metboard, Chiorchem}.
Olher operating income for the year largely comprises
dividends received and profits generated on the further
realisation of certain investments, which were regarded
as longer term in nature. In the prior year, the UK
Private Equity division benefited from the partial sale of
Focus.

Developments

Key business deveiopments over the past year are outlined
below.

Corporate Finance

UK and Europe

More favourable stock market conditions and a reduced
cost base in the Investment Banking division in the UK
enabled #t to achieve a major turnaround in
performance.

The division concluded two initial public offerings (IPOs)

during the second half of the financial year.

Statistics:

o The number of merger and acquisition (M&A)
transactions completed during the period increased
to 18 (2003: 13), with the value rising to
£960 millien (2003: £826 million).

o The number of fund-raising transactions completed
during the period increased to |3 (2003: 10), with
the value decreasing to £173.6 million (2003
£44%2.0 mitlion - included the Telkom capital raising
10 the value of £323 milion).

The division continuas 1o build both the quality and size

of its corporate dient list, with the addition of |5 clients

during the period versus the loss of 15 ¢lients (nine of
these were takeovers, where a fee was earned for the
sale or management buyout of the company).

South Africa

The Corporate Finance division maintained its strong

positioning with a steady tevel of activity.

The division focused on corporate restructuring

aclivities, black economic empowerment {BEE)

tranzactions, de-listings, and two high profile investment

panking deals, namely NAIL and AMB.

All of the division's major clients were retained and

several new mandates were gained during the period,

particularly for BEE transactions.

Statistics:

o The nurmber of corporate finance transactions
completed during the period increased to 93
{2003: 55), with the value decreasing to R20 billion

049

Annual Report 2004

(2003: R56.0 billion).

o The number of sponsor broker deals completed
durling the period increased to 82 (2002: 45), with the
valye decreasing to R17.5 biion (2003:R57.8 billion).

*  The division was ranked first in the velume of M8A
transactions and second in general corperate finance by
volume and value in the Dealmakers Magazine Survey for

Corporate Finance (March 2004). Tt was also lead

adviser|on four of the lop 10 deals of the year

*  The dwision was also ranked first for advising on the
highest|value of M&A transactions and second for
advising on the highest volume, in the Emst & Young

Survey [March 2004),

Australia

»  The corporate advisory business benefited from an
uptura|in M&A activity, with a strong deal pipeline.

+  The diision advised on |5 {2003: 20) deals valued at
A$2.7 billion (2003: A$2.5 billion) during the financial
year.

US and lgrael

+  dnvestnpent banking activities in the US ceased at the
end of|May 2003,

* In Israg!, domeslic market conditions iImproved during
the period, with the division participating in three
underwriting deals since January 2004

Institutional Research, Sales and Trading

UK and Burope

+  The diyision’s secondary commissions benefited from
higher equity market levels,

+ The proportion of revenue from the small and mid-cap
stocks fmproved as a result of increased actyvity in the
small aphd mid-cap space, in addition to greater
facilitation in the division's market-making stocks.

+ Furthermore, the commissions from large cap stocks

also ingreased during the period.

Rankings of Investec in the UK Small Mid-Cap Survey

{2003)| were encouraging:

o Ranked first for "Most improved product and
sefvice”.

o Rapked third for "Aggrepated research team”.

o Individual analysts received top three rankings in five
of the sectors coverad and top five in nine sectars,

South Africa

+  The lojver average volumes traded on the JSE Securities
Excharjge South Africa (JSE) continued to have a
negative impact on the agency business of Investec
Securities.

+  The Structured Equity Desk also struggled as a result of
Rand volatility and uncertain market trends,

+  The diyision's league table recognition was not
accompanied by any commensurale Increase In revenue
because of an ongoing lack of market volumes.

¢ As a result, the division underwent a restructuring and




realignment in the second half of the financial year, with
the team downsized and the research focus streamlined.
Noteworthy client rankings indicate that Investec
Securities Limited is well positioned to leverage off the
credible platform that was created.

BEE is an important weighting in allocation and Investec
Secvrities Limited s regarded as the only black
empowered firm with a credible full service value
propuosition,

Israel

*

The broking business benefited from ongoing growth in
domestic market volumes,

During the period, a new securities platform was
launched to support the feoreign securities business and
provide greater functionality for clients.

Private Equity and Direct Investments

UK and Europe

The Private Equity division did not perform as well as it
did in the previous year when it benefited from a
significant realisation in one of the underlying funds,

The aggregate book value of the Private Equity portfelio
was £22.4 million (2003: £234 million).

South Africa

Improved equity market levels during the financial year
benefited the values of the Private Equity and Direct
Investments portfolics.

The aggregate book value of Lhe trading investments
held in the division's Private Equity portfolic was
R207.0 milion (2003: R134.0 million).

Qutlook

The cutlock for the Investment Banking division is naturally
geared towards Lhe state of global equity markets, The
restructuring and rationalisation exercise underiaken in the
2003 firancial year benefited the division, which is now in a
better position to deal with external market and economic
cenditicns.

Strategic focus

Mission: To be a premier international investment
bank distinguished by our leadership in chosen
niches; our people and their approach; and our bond
with our clients.

The primary objective of
posttions and continue to
markets in which it operates. with a strong focus on
enhancing overall prefitability.

UK and Europe

* Investment Banking and Securities
Perpetuate full service offering.

the division is to secure its current
build its operations in each of the

in mid cap space.
independent large cap securites

on gaining clients and providing

Improve institutignal rankings via a systematic
account management programme.

o
o Maintain position
o Continue lo gro
franchise,
o Focus externally
superior service,
©
South Africa

+ Corporate Finance

o}

o

Leverage leading
traditional corpo
and government
Improve size and
Identify appropri
to leverage struc
Build on group's

position in local market with

rates to increase share of parastatal
rdvisory mandates.

profile of client base.

ate investment banking transactions
turing skills and market knowledge.
increasingly strong international

banking presence to participate in cross-border

transactions with
Continue with st

* Institutional Resea

Q

Establish niche a

South African corporates.

rategy velating to BEE.

rch, Sales and Trading

unigquely South African house, with

selective international capability.

Research-centric
depth, msightful,

African covarage.

Leverage off cur
Centinue to be
ideasiransaction

*  Private Equity

characterised by the most in-
rnovative and independent South

ent client base.
L significant contributor of
E within the group.

Investec brand and network.
not quantity in selected industries.
closer co-operation with

w miarket share.
and continue 1o leverage off

t Private Equity portfolic.
anced brand awareness.

o Leverage off the

o Focus on quality

o Concentrate on
Srmpowermeant gariners,

Awustralia

o Maintain and gro

o Expand network
reputation.

o Build a solid deal pipeline.

o Continue to bull

o Leverage off enh

o Further integrats

international net

operations into Investec's
ork.
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Private Client Activities

Includes: Private Banking and Private Client Portfolio Mapagement and Stockbroking

31 March 31 March %

UK GAAP £000 2004 2003 change
Net interest income 83 591 70 174 19.:%
Other income 123 583 101 050 223%
Provision for bad and doubttful debts (142033 (126113 {12.6%)
Admin expenses and depreciation {139 109) (124 612) {1 1.6%)
Operating profit* 53 862 34 001 58.4%
Private Banking 45 397 29 588 53.4%
Private Client Por(folio Management and Stockbroking 8 465 4413 1.8%
Operating profit™ 53 862 34 001 58.4%
South Africa and Other 19610 12722 54.1%
UK and Europe 30 627 18 854 §2.2%
Australia 3025 230 > Q0%
fsrael &00 | 465 {59.0%)
Operating profit * 53 862 34 001 58.4%
Cost to income ratio: overall (36} 67.1% 72.8%

Private Banking 59.5% 64.8%

Private Client Portfolio Management and Stackbroking 85.5% i 4%
Number of employees | 569 | 629 (37%)

Private Banking i 106 {085 1.5%

Private Client Portfolic Management and Stockbroking 463 544 (14.9%)

*Before taxation, exceptional items and armortisation of goadwill.




Scope of activities

Private Client Activities comprises two businesses: Private

Banking and Private Client Portfolic Management and
Stockbroking. The group conducts these activities in two

Private Banking

Structured property finance
Investment management
Treasury and banking

Private clent investment banking
Specialised iending

Trust ang fiduciary

Private Client Portfolio
Management and Stockbroking
Investment management

and stockbroking

South
Africa

UK  Australia

L J L }
. .
. .
[ ] L ]
. .
.

.

principal markets, South Africa and the UK, and has a
fimited service offering in Australia, the Channel Islands,
Irefand, Israel. Mauritius and Switzerland,

Channel
Islands

Ireland

Israel Mauritius  Switzerland
[ ]
.
o .
. .
. .

Private Banking - target market

= South Africa: High net worth individuals {net asset
value R50 million+ and investable assets Ri5 million+},
private clients {net asset value RS million+ and earnings
RI million+) and professionals (earnings RO.5 miliion+).

+  UK:Targeted at individuals with a netl asset value of
£5 mifliont and investatble assets of £3 million+.

* Australia: Targeted at individuals with net investable
assets of greater than AUD$2 million.

Private Client Por

tfolic Management and

Stockbroking - target market

* Investec Securities Limited, South Africa: Targeted at
mass afluent and high-income sector and above with

R million+ to invest.

»  Carr Sheppards Crosthwaite, UK: Targeted at
individuals with investable assets of £0,5 million—, and

smaller charities (<£

2O million}.




Management structure
Private Banking

Joint Global Heads of Private Banking
Sam Hackner
Steven Heilbron

Australia

Mark Joffe

Tirm Johansen

van Katz

Robert Lipman
Tim Macphillary
Brendan O'Sullivan
Michael Sack

Israel
Yossi Zelnick

South Africa
Steven Heilbron
Paul Hanley
Michae! Barr
David de Villiers
Lianne F'Agnese
Colin Franks
Warren King
Michael Leisegang
Wayne Preston
Wessel Qosthysen
Les Scott

Tim Till

Carcl-Ann van der Merwe
Andy Vogel

UK and Europe
Steven Heilbron
Leon Blitz

Alan Blecher
Robert Clifford
Robert Cohen
Chris Forsyth

Kim Hillier

Paul Hunt

Colin Jensen
Antonia Kerr
Linda McBain
Mort Mirghavameddin
Ciaran McNamara
Walter Steinberg
Paul Stevens
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Private Client Portfolioc Management and
Stockbroking

Investec Securities Limited, South Africa
Henry Blumenthal

Jonathan Bloch

Peter Clucas
Paul Deucha
Donald Giyn
Raymand Goss
Fairfax Gra
Craig Hudson
Cy lacobs
Steve Liptz
Alistair Mantin
Etienne Nel
Angus Rebertson
Andy Vogel

jat

Carr Sheppards Crosthwaite, UK
Steve Elliott
Mick Bagshawe
Clive Brangwin
Lavid Bultee
Adam Burr]
fred Carr
Alun Evans
Chris Hilis
Robert Leach

lan Maxwejl Scott
Grant Nowell-Mitchell
Mark Redmayne

Tony Richards




Private Banking

Overview of performance

The Private Banking division performed well, increasing
aperating profit before exceptional items and amortisation

of gocdwill by 53.4%, to £45.4 miliion.

The Private Banking lending book growth since 31 March

2003 was as follows:

UK grew by 14.7% in Pound Sterling terms to
£1 062 miltion.

South Africa grew by 26.4% in Rand terms to
R22.5 billion (£1 906 million).

Awustralia grew by 28.7% in Australian Dollar terms to

A$543 million (£225 rallion).
Israel remained relatively stable at NIS{.4 bittion
(£169 million).

The variance in operating profit over the period can be

explained as follows:

* A strong increase in nel interest income in Scuth Africa,
the UK and Australiz was driven by a healthy growth in

advances.

+ Solid growth in net fees and commissions receivable is
attributable lo increased lending turnover in ail
operaticns. Furthermore. the division continued Lo
benefit from its diverse activities, with structured and

Salient features of the loan portfolio

£ millions
For the year ended 31 March

Residential

Commercial

Other sectors

Cash-backed lending

(Other private bank loans

Total gross core loans and advances
Speaific provisions

General provisions

Net core loans and advances

Gross non-performing foans (NPLs)

Asset quality

Grass NPLs as 2 % of core loans and advances
Specific provisions as a % of gross NPLs

Total provisions as a % of gross NPLs

General provisions as a % of performing loans

Deposit book

# Comparative information not available.

transactional banking
lending and fiduciary
growth over the peri
Dealing profits were
and increase in value

fees in South Adrica, and specialised
ees in the UK. experiencing strong
Bd.

positively influenced by the szle of

of certain investments, respectively.

held by the division, which arcse out of the provision of
imvestment banking sgrvices to private clients, The
activities of the private client investrment banking
businass are positiongd well below the radar screen of

the traditional corpa|
haouses, and focus on
Furthermere, the div
tc medium size busin

ate finance and private equity

the active weaithy entrepreneur.
sion 1s well equipped to offer small
esses the service of partnering

their personal and business requirements by providing
advisory and asset acquisition services. As a resuit, the

division took certain
of these private clien
An increase in admin
is mainly attributable
which experienced a
terms. This was largel

equity positions in the businesses
fs.

stration expenses and depreciation
[fo the South African operations,
I50% increase in costs in Rand

as a result of an increase in

personnel costs (given an increase in headcount) and &
rise in incentive-basef remuneration in line with strong
growth in profitability. Furthermore, the divisign's

marketing costs grew
campaign faunched in
Anvincrease in provig|
mainly as a resuit of

as a result of a new tranding
South Africa.

on for bad and doubtful debts was
olid boolk growth and appreciation

of the Rand against tne Pound Sterling aver the period.

UK South Africa
2004 2003 2004 2003
623 * 675 462
277 # 631 447
52 #* - -
27 # -
97 * 624 510
| 076 937 1 930 | 419
(3) (2 {13 (%
(1 %) {1 (8)
1 082 926 | 906 | 402
13 I | 33 16
1.2% 1.2% 7% 1%
23.1% 18.2% 39.4% 56.2%

|

107.7% 1000% | 727% 106.3%
t 0% 1.0% 0.6% 06%
t 520 | 387 887 598




Operating profit* - Private Bank
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31 March 31 March %
UK GAAP £'000 2004 2003 Variance change
Net interest income 78 914 £5 506 13408 205%
Net fees and commissions receivable 62 180 ‘ 46 449 15731 339%
Dealing profits 5 380 7812 (1 432) (18.3%)
Other operating income and dividends received 1 300 234 | 0k6 = 00%
Admin expenses and depreciation (89 174) (77 802) (11375 {14.6%2)
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (14 203) (126410 (1 592) {(12.6%)
Operating profit* 45 397 29 588 15 809 53.4%

* Before taxation, exceptional itermns and amortisation of goodwill.

Developments

Key

business developments over the past year are outlined

below.

UK

and Europe

Strong performances were recorded across all of the
Private Banking businesses.

The property fending business continued its sound
performance against a backdrop of & somewhat loss
buovant property market, with a diversified loan
portfolio.

The property book is well secured and the group
belicves that loan-to-value ratios of between 65% to
70% are conservative, Stress testing a fall of 30% in
property values could result in a total naked exposure
of approximately £18 million. Specifically, a fall of 30% in
residential property values could result in a naked
exposure of approximately £7 million.

The division experienced goad growth in private client
investrent banking transactions.

The specialised lending and investment management
teams produced significant vear-con-year growth through
focusing on identified niche opportunities,

The migraticn of the banking call centre to South Africa
was bedded down during the year and the concomitant
cost savings were realised.

South Africa

The Private Bank in South Africa produced strong

performance despite a decline in interest rates during

the period.

The private client investment banking portfolio had a

particularly goed performance, after benefiting from the

sale of certainy investments held by the division and an

increase in the value of others,

The developrents during the period include the

fotlowing:

o In December 2003, R1.4 billion (£120 million) of
residential mortgage loans were securitised to
cnhance the effective use of capital.

Australia

Qutlook

o A gpecialist adwvisory team was established to focus
an|advice for high net worth individuals applying for
amnesty in excess of $1 million.

o The division focused on black economic
empowerrnent ransactions as it leverages off the
group's empowerment transaction,

The division was rated the number one private bank for

the fodrth consecutive year in the

PriceWoterhouseCoopers 5A Banxng Survey (2003).

The piiivate ciient further business performed
particilarly welt as it continues to further leverage off
the Wentworth brand and client base,

The division's performance was enhanced by strong
growth within the property investment banking team.
Develgpments during the pericd included a focus on
establizhing a private client investment banking unit.
The pgsitive Moody's rating recetved, improved the
ability to raise non-institutional high net worth deposits.

The Private Bank comprises of a range of diversified, niched
business units and geographies. The property activities in
South Africa, the UK and Austraiia remain core to the

private ba

k aperations as a critical asset class for the high

net worth| community, These activities are balanced by the
continued [growth and development of the alternate
business sfreams, In this light, private client investment

banking, n
activities 3

estrnent management and specialised lending
& beginning to achieve varying scale as we further

penetrate the identified target markets,

Strategic focus

Mission: Tg

be the specialist banking partner of choice in the

creation of distinctive value for our targeted clientele.




Core to this mission, the Private Bank identifies specialised
areas of differentiation. These vary according to the

demographics and maturity of each business unit within each

geography. The seiected competitive space, is therefore
niched and looks to explore opportunities which are often
less crowded and more value add in nature. The target
market . talent pool and infrastructure are developed in sink
with this strategy.

UK and Europe

Continued penetration of chosen target market.
Product and service innovation rema:ns core.

Focus on identifying opportunities within specialised
lending and investment management.

Leveraging private client investment banking.
Ongoing property focus with an emphasis on further
balancing the revenue line.

South Africa

Suitably positioned through its established experience,
extensive network and distinctive approach

Ongoing product innavation and enhancement.

Focus on black economic empowerment initiatives -
finding empowerment partners for high net worth
clients and providing funding.

Continue 1o build the private client investment banking
portfolio.

Structured fending transactions continue to be a focus
as they gather momentum.

Australia

Continue to expand diversity of revenue base.
Further growth of the private client funding base.
Product innovation.

Maintain a focus on the quality of client base.
Ongaing growth of property investment banking.
Further establishment of a private client investment
ban«ng unit.

Creating and distributing special opooriunities forr
sophisticated nvestors.

Private Client
Portfolio
Managen

Stockbroking

Overview of perfarmance

The Private Client Portfo
division recorded a stron
excepltional items and am
£8.5 million, increasing b

Developments

Key business developmen
below.

UK and Europe

.

Carr Sheppards Cro
operating environme
activity than in the p
Funds under manage

£5.9 bilion from £4.]
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L movemeni,
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ht more conducive Lo investment
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r management of £360 million
were generated in discretiorary

ly Fund experenced ancther
h. increasing £65 million to

Operating profit* - Private Client Portfolio Management and Stockbroking
31 March 31 March %

UK GAAFP £'000 2004 2003 Variance change
Net interest income 4 677 4 668 9 0.2%
MNet fees and commissions receivable 52 456 45 569 6 B87 15.1%
Dealing profits 1137 936 201 21.5%
Other operating income and dividends received 130 50 80 > 100%
Admin expenses and depreciation (49 935) (46 810y (2125} (6.7%)
Provision for bad and doubtfui debts -

Cperating profit® 8 465 4413 4052 91.8%

~ Before taxation, exceptional items and amortisation

of goodwill




Costs increased fargely as a result of an increase in
incentive-based remuneration in ne with improved
profitability.

South Africa

.

Poor stock market volumes in South Africa restricted
the performance of Investec Securities.

Total funds under management grew by 17.2% to
R30.0 billien (£2.5 billion) from R25.6 billion

{£2.0 biltion} in 2003.

Of the R30.0 billion, R24.76illion {£2.1 tillion} and
R5.3 billion {£454 million) were managed on 2
discretionary and non-discretionary basis, respectively.
Many efforts were taken to reduce costs during the
period, with headcount declining from 144 to t17 at
yearand. Costs declined by 8.8% in Rand terms.
During the period, a campaign cammenced to increase
the awareness of Investec Securities Qnline. with the
overall objective to mave clients onto the electronic
platform as 2 means of communicating with clients. to
provide further cost savings.

Qutlook

The outlook for the Private Client Portfolio Management
and Stockbroking businesses is susceptible to the averall
performance of global equity markets and the division 1s

poised to take advantage of any prck-up in market volumes.
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Strategic focus

The group [continues to tvestigate cpportunities to enhance
its competitive positioning and profitability.

UK and Europe

Mairtaln high levels of service and attract appropriate

high ngt worth clients.

Concehtrate on core activities where the divisicn has

critical [mass.

Furthet develop the smalier charities niche market.
Resume the push of investment related services.

Migratg into collective investment schames, particularly
unit triists. to achieve diversity in portfolios.

Increase the marketing of investment related services.
Restructure the London fund manager teams to create
more efficient and balanced units.

Shift fdcus from stogkbroking business to private client
segregated fund management business.

Facus n self-investment pension plans as a growth area.

South Africa

Mission:Td entrench Investec as the premier South African
wealth creation and management stockbroking bouse.

Achieve revenue diversification through alterrative
produgts and services.

Focus bn revenue generation by extracting more value
from dxisting clients and attracting new dlients

Drive towards annuity income.

Enhange cross-divisional relationships.




Treasury and Specialised Finance

Includes: deposit taking, lending, advisory services, structuring and proprietary trading in the
corporate, project, public sector and institutional markets

31 March 31 March %

UK GAAP £000 2004 2003 change
Net interest income 4] 405 31892 29.8%
Net fees and commissions recaivable 35 389 24 491 44.5%
Dealing profits 35 634 35 454 0.5%
Other operating income and dividends received | 414 455 > 00%
Admin expenses and depreciation (74 095) | (67 836) (9.2%)
Provision for bad and doubtful debts {3 942} (4 258) 7.4%
Operating profit® 35 805 20 198 77.3%
Banking Activities 33104 23 242 42.4%
Frnancial Markets Activities 2 701 (3 049 >100%
Operating profit* 35 805 20 198 77.3%
South Africa and Other I8 887 26 604 {29.0%)
UK and Eurcpe 14015 {5 659) >100%
Australia 436 (865) >100%
Israel 2467 L >100%
Operating profic* 35 805 20 198 77.3%
Cost to income ratio 65.1% 73.5%

Number of emplioyees 477 507 {(5.9%)

* Before taxation, exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill.




Scope of activities

Investe<'s Treasury and Specialised Finance division provides a
wide range of products, services and solutions to select
corporate chients, public sectar bodies and finandial
nstitytions. The division undertakes the bulk of Investec's
proprietary trading activities, Furthermore, all non-private
lient deposit taking, corporate and public sector lending,
project finance, advisory and structuring activities arc
transacted through the division.

The division has eight preduct areas that are divided equally
between Banking Actwvities and Financial Markets Activities, as
set out below.

The division's breadth of operations represents a portfolic of
diversified business units, The Banking Activities are
characterised by rmore predictable revenues, while the
Financial Markets Activities tend to be more volatile.

Banking Activities

Treasury - corporate treasury and asset and liabilicy
management

Provides Rand, Sterfing. Euro and US Dollar funding to the
group, and manages liquidity and interest rate risk on behalf of
the group. Provides a broad range of treasury products and
services to the corporate and public sector markets,

Financial Products

Involved in commercial paper, bond crigination, securitisation,
financial engineering, preference share investments and
structures, equities scrip lending, credit structuring, credit
dervatives and the development of investment products.
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Structured and Assert Finance

Involved i structured and conventional lending and advice.
asset leasing land finance, preference share finance, mezzanine
debt financing, leveragad Luy-out funding, executive share
schemes and financing solutions for carporate, governmens
and public sgctor clients.

Project and Resource Finance

Advisory serivices, debt arranging and underwriting and equity
raising in the| mining and resources, enargy, infrastructure and
industrial sectors.

Financial Markets Activities

Interest Ratgs

Imvalved witf) interest rate products, forward rate agreements,
interest rate swaps. money market instruments, government
and certain public sector bonds, interest rate options and
repurchase agreements.

Foreign ExclJange

Participant in the spot, forward exchange. currency swaps and
currency derjvatives markets, principally in ZAR and G7
currencies ard certain emerging markets currencies.

Equity Derivptives

Invoived with major equity mdex options, certam single stock
options, equily structured products, futures index arbitrage
and equity warrants. Provides hadging and structuring services
to financial imtermediaries. institutions and campanies.

Commaodities
Participant in|precious and base metals. Provides hedging and
structured trades for clients in the spot and derivatives

markets.
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Management structure

Regional Management
Richard Forlee

Michae! Cullen

Craig McKenzie

Ruchard Wainwright

David van der Walt

Financial Markets Acti
Interest Rates

Brett Hopkins

John Barbour

Foreign Exchange
Grant Barrow
Philip Wells

Equity Derivatives
Milton Samios
Peter Alderson
Lorman Gallagher

Commedities
Paul Plewman

Banking Activities
Treasury - Balance Sheet
Clive Sindelrman

John Barbour

Peter Binetter

Treasury - Corporate
Aisling Dodgson

Gary Gorman

Carol Grainger

Financial Products
Richard Wainwright
Mark Currie

Ruth Lease

Michael Schewitz

International
Ireland
Mauritius
South Africa
UK

vities

South Africa
UK

South Africa
UK/international

International co-head/South Africa
International co-head/\UK
Ireland

UK/Internaticnal

South Africa
UK
Australia

Ireland
South Africa
UK

International
South Africa
Co-head/UK
Co-head/UK

Structured and Asset Finance

David van der Walt
Anton Mitlar
Vusumuzi Mahlangu
David Kuming
Alistair Crowther
Paul Unswerth

Project and Resource Fin
José de Nobrega

Michael Meeser

Maurice Hochschild
Richard Longes

Operations
Kevin McKenna
jodi joseph

Divisional Compliance an
Pauline Trollip

Information Technology
Mylene Walker
Tanis Jardin

Financial Control
Alan Byrne

Stuart Spencer
Melanie Abromowitz

Financial Institutions Group

Helmut Bahrs
Michael jameson-Till

Settlements
Christa Hefer
Vanessa Clark

nternational

LA Structured Finance
A Public Sector Finance

EA Mezzanine Debt

LK Structured Finance

‘bK Asset Finance

nce

nternational/Rescurce Finance
5A Project Finance

LK Project Finance

Austraiia Project Finance

InternationalfSouth Africa
lJK

d Legal
ntermational

nternational/Sauth Africa
LK

\‘reiand
Louth Africa
UK

[lnter-nationaIISouth Africa
DK

outh Africa
LK




Overview of performance

The Treasury and Spediahsed Firance division posted
operating profit before exceptional items and amartisation
of goodwill of £35.8 miltion, an increase of 77.3% from
£20.2 million. The UK Treasury and Specialised Finance
dwision achieved & considerable turnaround. with operating
profit before exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill
ncreasing to £14.0 million from a loss of £5.7 miilon. Fer
the South African Treasury and Specialised Finance division,
however, aperating profit before exceptional items and
amortisation of goodwill declkned from £26.4 million to
£189 mullion.

The variance in operating profit over the period can be

explained as follows:

+  Net interest income in the UK operations banefited
from the growth in the division's banking and lending
businesses, albeit off a low base. Furthermore, in Israel,
the declining rate envirenment was conducive for both
bond and equity markets and the division benefited
from effective managemaent of its bond portfolio. On the
other hand. net interest income in South Africa
decreased by 127% in Rand terms, as a consequence of
the declining interest rate environment, in which this
division expertenced a margin squeeze resulting from its
assets repricing quicker than s liabilities.

+ A substantial increase in net fees and commissions
receivable :s attributable to the rapid growth and
successful performance of the relatively new banking
and advisary teams in the UK (acquired Project Finance
team in Decerber 2001 and Structured Finance team in
July 2002). Following the restructuring of the Treasury
and Specialised Finance businesses in the UK, the group
made a concerted effort to grow the banking and
advisory businesses. In South Africa, the division
experienced good growth in structured finance fees
received, although deal fees within the Project Finance
division declined over the prior period,

+  The UK dwision reported solid growth in dealing profits,
which was offset by a poor trading performance in the
South African operations. In South Africa, the trading
books were posilioned for interest rale cuts that
occurred over the period, but not aggressively enough
1o cover the margin squeeze that emanated from the
decline. The currency trading desk was affected
negatively by significant steepening of the US Dollar
interest rate curve. In the UK, the division benefited
from restructuring of ils trading activities undertaken in
the prior year and from an improved performance from
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the equity derivatives and commodities trading desks.
The equity derivatives division benefited from newly
commenced trading in total return equity swaps and
from convertible bond arbitrage, white the commadities
desk posted solid results as a result of a growtn in the
number |of aluminium, copper. nickel and gold trades off
the back of increased levels of client business.

*  Adminisfrative expenses grew largely as a result of the
apprecigtion of the Rand against the Pound Sterling over
the peripd.

Developlnents

Key businesq developments over the past year are outlined
below.

Banking Activities

In the UK the Banking Activities performed particufarly well,
with the nurmber of successfully condluded transactions
increasing significantly over the previous financial year In
South Afirical however, a general slowdown in infrastructural
finance subdbed the performance of the division's Banking
Activities.

Treasury

+ Asset crpation opportunties in the UK were limited,
althoughl treasury actvity increased due 1o the overall
level of activity in the markets.

*  The performance of the South African treasury desk
was negatively impacted by unprecedented interest rate
cuts of §.5% from July 2003 to December 2003.The
desk exgerienced a margin squeeze resulting fiom its
assets repricing quicker than its liabilities.

Financial Products

= The UK pperations performed well due 1o good fee
income earned from credit structuring and a healthy
performance on the credit default swap trading book.

+ Performance from the South African business was
commendable, with reasonabte activity in all areas,
including securities origination, financial engineering and
preferente share invesiment and the second successful
securitisgtion of the Private Bank loan bock.




Structured and Asset Finance

«  The structured finance division in the UK performed
strongly, with several large transactions concluded during
the financial year resulting in significant fee income. Most
notable was the joint lead arranger rofe in a £1.4 billion
asset-tacked fease deal.

* In South Africa, structured finance increased the size of
its core advances book fram R7.4 billien 1o R3.1 hillion
(£780 million).The division concluded approximately 80
new deals during the period. with particularly strong
resuts from the mezzamne debt 1earn,

Project and Resource Finance

*  The project finance division in the UK focused on
building a strong deal pipeline and is well established in
the market.

+ UK Project Finance rankings:

o Project Finance (2004):

- Recewved the PPP/Healthcare Deal of the Year
Eurcpe for the Southern Derbyshire Acute
Haospitals £400 rullion PRl project.

o Infrastructure journal League Tabie ratings {2003):

- Ranked second in healthcare by value of deals
closed and third by number of mandates won.

- Ranked third by number of deals closed in
defence.

- Ranked fifth as financial advisor in Western
Europe by number of mandates won.

Ranked fifth as arrangers in Africa and Middle
East and in Asia

* In South Africa. the strong Rand and a slowdown in
government spending had a negative impact ¢n the
perfornance of the division,

+ In Australia a specialist clean energy fund,Vindis, is being
further established.

Trading Activities

In the UK the Trading Activities performed considerably
better due to an improved market environment for
commodities and equities and the division's focus on client
directed fows and not speculative views. In South Africa, 2
number of strategic and structural changes were made
during the period, with a substantial reduction in proprietary
trading and increased focus on client flow transactions and
sructured trade opportunities. The group’s overall value at
risk declined cansiderably over the period. For further
informmation see page 21.

Interest Rates

Foreign Exchange

In the UK, trading and
limited.

In South Africa, the tr
interest rate cuts that
aggressively cnough tg
emanated from the d

In the UK, the strateg

hedging opportunities were

2ding books were positioned for
occurred over the period, but not
cover the margin squeeze that
cline.

of the desk was revisited during

the period and the delsk is now focused on servicing
mid tier banks and corporate chent flows.

The division in South
performance as a res

*—\T’I‘IC& posted a disappointing

It of trading fosses incurred in the

first half of the vear. Speculative interest rate position

taking on this desk wa

& reduced significantly as the

busness is more focuged on client business. investec was

rated the leading fore
banks category in Sou

service pravider in the niche
th Afmca for the fourth year

running (PMR Golden arrow Avsards, 2004).

Equities Derivatives

.

The UK business cont
to the goad performa

inued to perform well, largely dus
H:e of canvertible bend trading

and other structured trades, The desk began the

distribution of derivats
2003 through 2 joint

es in Heng Kong in December
enture there. While madest

volumes continue to rse.
Activity continued to Te subdued in the Scuth African

market, reflected in th
warrants. A reduction

P decling in the volume of
n market valatility resulted i a

decrease in institutiondl business, which impacted

performance negativel

Commodities

in the UK, the division
speculative trading act
required to facifitate ¢

)3

significantly curtailed its
ivities, limiting trading to levels
flent business. The comrnodities

desk performed well a5 a result of an increase in the

number of aluminium,
the back of increased

copper, nickel and gold trades of?
levels of cliemt business.

The strategy of the cofnmodities division was revised
with the closure of the sales desk in South Africa in

January 2004.
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Outlook Strategic focus

The Scuthern African operations did not perform as well as The division’s objectives Include:

expected in the past financial year Major changes were *  Remaining specialised pnd competing only in areas

made through cost-cutting initiatives, staff changes and where it can be distingtive and competitive.

scaling down of certain activities. The divisicn expects better +  Ensuring ntense management of capital usage and

performance this year related return, balancing growth with return on capital.
*  Pursuing diverstfication in order to reduce the risks

In the UK, a solid platform has been created, particularly in inherent in operating a3 principal. through product

the Banking Actiities. The division will continue expanding in breadth, skills depth and geographic spread.

areas where it sees long-term profit and growth potential. +  Targeting business areas which show patential far

significant and sustaingble growth.
* Improving distribution|capabilities, with particular focus
on the Hong Kong jomt venture.




Asset Management |

Includes: Asset Management and Assurance Activities |
31 March 31 March %

UK GAAP £000 2004 2003 change
Asset Management

Net interest income 2960 2593 (3.1%)
MNet fees and commissions recevable 100 129 85 97¢ 16.5%
Other income | 874 738 >100%
Provision for bad and doubtful debts - {40y >10C%
Admin expenses and depreciation (80 292 (71 952) {11.6%)
Operating profit* 24 611 17715 38.9%
South Africa and Other 22 740 16 171 40.6%
UK and furope I 614 | 476 13.2%
Is-ael 257 18 >100%
Operating profit* 24 611 t7 715 38.9%
Cost to income ratio (%) 76.5% 80.2%

MNumber of empioyces 784 771 |.7%
Funds under management (£ millions) 20 548 16 828 222%
Assurance Activities
Operational earnings 5082 27779 (B1.7%)
Allocanion of group central charges (=00} {949) 47.3%
QOperating profic* 4582 26 830 (82.9%)
Nurber of ermployees 156 490 (68.2%)
“Before taxation, exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill,




Asset Management

Market positioning
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Area Position
South Africa Institutional segregated Market leader
Retail and portfolio products Market leader
UK Public sector fixed income Market jeader
Retail

Institutional (pension)

Scope of activities

Southern Africa

Successlul contender aspiring to feadership
Recognised competitor

+  One of the largest managers of third party institutional assets in South Africd, and a market leader in specialist equily. fixed
imerest, balanced and absolute return funds. It is also a key player in the instfitutional funds market in Botswana anc

Namibia.

+  Aleading plaver in the Scuth African retail funds markel via the unit trust and portfolio product offerings.

UK

+  Provides pertfolio management services to the UK institutional market, and i a leading provider of liquidity management to
the public sector. Products offered include equity, fixed income and balanced porticlios.

+  Has a rapidly growing retail funds business which cffers a comprehersive range of investment options, covering both bonds
and equities with a diverse gecgraphic spread, to the upper end of the UK retail funds market.

< Offshore fund ranges are distributed in Investec's two core markets. namely South Africa and the UK, as well as via select

channels into the offshore tervitories of Asia, Eurcpe and the US.




Management structure

Executive committee

Hendrik du Tort Chief Executive Officer

Kirn McFzriand Chief Operating Officer

fohr Graen Maraging Director, SA
Domenico Ferrini Deputy Managing Dwectar: SA
|okn McNab Chief Investrnent Officer, SA
Gail Daniel Head of Equities, SA

André Roux
Mark Samue’son
Andy Sowerby
David Aird

Nick Mottram

John Stepford

Head of Fixed Income. SA

Head of Institutional, UK

oint Managing Director, UK Retail
oint Managing Director. UK Retail
Head of Equities, UK

Head of Fixed Income, UK




Overview of performance

Investec Asset Management delivered operating profit before
exceptional iters and amortisation of goodwill of £24.4
million, which represented growth of 38.9% in Pound
Sterfing terms and ! 1.1% in Rand terms, Assets under
management increased by 22.2% in Pound Sterling terms to
£20.6 billion and by 14.0% in Rand terms to R240.0 billion
aver the year. The key features of the year were ongoing
penetration of the UK pension and independent financial
advisory channels and strong investment performance across
the product range.

Noteworthy developments over the year include:

+  Solid investment performance.

*  Strengthened presence in core markets.

= Aggressive promotion of South African spedialist
products an the back of good performance.,

+  Combining the need to outsource more administrative
functions with the low cost advantages of South Africa.

Market recognition:

* Global Investor's Firm to Watch 2004,

+  Runner-up, Curopean specialist manager of the year,
Fingncial News.

+  Best all rounder over the last three years. Professiona!
Achviser.

* Financial Adviser/LIA five-star service award.

*  South Alrican fund manager of the year, Plexus

¢+ Best large manager over one, three and five vears,
Standord & Poor's (South Africa).

* Al and Personal Finance Roging Bull awards management
company of the year (South Africa).
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The varianre in operating profit over the period can

be explained as follows:

South Afriga

= Operating profit of the South African operation in
Rands (approximately R273 million) is 12.4% higher than
the previous year

*  The Soyth African institulional business recorded inflows

UK and ot

from thi
although
outflow
(£454

in dome
relativel
revenue

d party clients of R3.9 billion {£334 million),
this was once again negatively impacted by
from former Fedsure clients of RS.3 biflion

nilion). While the year saw a positive turnaround

stic and international markets, this was off a
low base and, therefore. the market impact on
was only slightly positive in comparison to the

2003 financial year. A decrease in former Fedsure
related revenue (due to the outflows) was partly offsel
by an ingraase in performance fee incorme. Strict cost

controls
The Sou
the y=a
for the 1
result, th
initiative
May bo
resulting
(£23 mi

were applied over the period.

th African Personal Investments business started
in a tough market envirenment. not conducive
aising of individual investrment products.. As a

e business embarked on immed ate cost saving
.The more favourable market conditions from
sted both flows and funds under management,
in net inflows for the year of R273 million
lior}.

er international operations

Crperating profil for the UK operations in Pound Sterling

{approx
previouy

mately £1.6 million) is 13.2% higher than the
year. Revenue increased mainly due to the

strong net inflows on the onshore (£284 million) and

offshore
strength
book sh
the boo
the high
generatg
rermaine

(£236 million) retal book and the

ening of the market. Although the institutional
pwed net outflows of £50 million, the mix of
shified, in line with stated strategy. in favour of
er fee paying penston fund business. which

d new business of £480 million. Cost controls
d tight over the period.




Movements in funds under management

£ millions Total Institutional Retall UK & Other SA SA (R’mn}
31 March 2003 I6 828 12 478 4 350 7 498 9330 116 744
New clients and funds 2581 2487 G4 I 402 I 179 {4 245
Disinvestnents and funds closed (2 069} (2 004} (65} (116 (903) (10777
Existing client movements {146) (666) 520 218 (364 (4353
Market/forex movament 3374 2635 739 361 3013 27 129
31 March 2004 20 568 14 930 5 638 8 313[ 12 255 142 988

Developments

Key business developments over the past year are outlined
below.

South Africa

.

.

Solid perforrmance from a resilient business.

Excellent specialist investment performance, with Value,
Growth and Equity prominent over all periods.

Unit trust investmeant parformance was particularly good
(Plexus and S&P gwards).

Significant new institutional mandates of R3.9 billion
{£334 million) affected by former Fedsure outflows of
R5.3 billion {£454 million).

Successful strengthening of key [FA/fund distributer
relationsmps.

Qutsourced investment administration.,

Excellent South African specialist investment
performance (Plexus award for best mutual fund
company and dominating specialist surveys).

Investec in the South African unit trust industry

Investec Asset Management

funds under management (R millions)

*  South African balanced investment performance:
o Long-term (13 years) Excellent, second since

inception

o Medum-term (3-% years)  Not yet out of the
woods

o Short-tere (| year) Imptaving {above
median)

UK and other international aperations

I
UK Institutional

*  Solid performance and progress conlinues.

< Shift of book in favour of higher margin pension fund
business - away from short-term fixed income preducts
offered Lo insurance companies and local authorities.

¢ Outflows from cash clken'ts mask. £1.2 tillion of new
business won {includes £252 million committed
business).

»  Ongoing progress with top tier investment consultants,

Total industry size (R millions)
Market share (%)
Size ranking in industry

Industry gross sales (R millions)

Investec Assel Management % of gross industry sales

Source: Assaciation of Collective Investment statistics.

3| March 31 March 31 March

2004 2003 2002
i

23 542 18 484 19 965
2435839 | 17407 174 338
7% \ 10.6% 11.3%
ath of 28 ‘ 4th of 29 2nd of 29
205 559 142 793 133 908
12.2% 12.6% 10.1%




«  Global Investor's "Firm 1o Watch 2004” award is evidence
of evolulion from entrant to competitor in the market.
+  Strong three-year investment performance:
o UK equities I'st quartile over 3 years

o Global equities I'st quartile over 3 years

o Global fixed income I'st quartile over 3 years

o UK baianced Ist quartile over 3 years
UK Retail

+  Particutarly strong performance,

+  Onshore funds under management exceeded £! billion
for the first time (from £275 million in 1998).

« Net sales of £284 millian into onshore range.

+ Ongoing growth of UK market share.

¢ Financial AdviserilLIA five-star service award {ranked
seventh out of 129).

Offshore

- Strong nel sales of £236 million as a result of good sales
from Europe and Asia. South Africa sales subdued due
to the strength of the Rand.

Investec in the UK retail funds industry

Investec Asset Management
funds under management (£ millions)

Total industry size (£ miflions)

Size ranking in industry

industry net retail sales (£ millions}

Investec Assct Management % of net industry sales
Industry gross retail sales {£ millions)

Investec Asset Management % of gross industry sales

Source: Investrment Managerrent Association statistics.
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Qutlook

The business has developed in fine with maragement
expectationt over the past year. In the UK, the brand is well
established and it is now time to leverage the sclid platform
that was bullt over the last five years. In South Africa,
Investec Asset Management's position as the feading multi-
specialist indestment business must be further enhanced. It 1s
important for the brand position of Investec Asset
Management in South Africa that the restoration of the
balanced product range continues. The challenges of
transformation in this rarket and the onus on Investec to
contribute 1o this process will be pursued with vigour. Gn
the offshorg side, the expansion of the newly established
bridgehead ]:Tauwan and the development of the market
for internatipnal investrnent product in Southerm Africa will
be the major objectives. Talent management will be a key
area of focus in the coming yeaw Finaliy. the smplementation
of the outsaurcing of the back offices 15 another important
abjectve.

The Investeq Asset Management team locks forwarg with
confidence fo meeting the competitve challenges of the
coming year

31 March 31 March 31 March
2004 2003 2002

| 128 666 649
246 040 188 267 242 281
92nd of 127 58th of 129 é2nd of 136
8 855 6 842 8 206
3.2% 2.7% 2.2%
29 766 26 839 27 475
1.5% 1.2% 0.5%




Assurance Activities

Head of Assurance Activities
Ade Animashahun

Scope of activities

The group's South African life assurance activities are
conducted by Investec Employee Benefits (IEB).

IEB mainly comprises:
+ A Risk Only business.
»  An Investment Only business.

The Risk Cnly business provides death and disability benefits
on a standalone basis, where another corpany is
responsible for member administration. The business alsc
manages disability claims and provides various disability and
underwriting services,

[t 15 [EB's intention to aggressively grow this tine of business
and to become a significant player in the market without the
legacy of huge administration systems. Investec is confident
that this line of business will be successfully integrated into
the group as the nature of the business fits into the group's
core competencies of risk management. The division finalised
its strategy for the Risk Only business and is revising its
preducts and operating procedures, in fine with client
feedback.

The Investment Cnly business designs and manufactures
specialised investment preducts, together with other

divisions within the group)

products to their clients. |

Overview of perfo

Far the year ended 31 M:

assurance activities report;

exceptional tems and am
£4.6 million - a decline aof|
the previous year |EB gen
operational earnings from

rationalisation of its actlvltres,

Developments and

+  There are still opport
division does not link
does not compete di

*  The objective is to m

which then distribute these

rmance

rch 2004, the group's life

ed operating prefit before
priisation of goodwill of

82.9%. In the comparative period
srated substantial non-recurring
the restructuring and

outlook

bnities for [EB in the market as the
product to administration and thus
ectly with specialist administratars
inage and wind down the

following discontinueq businesses, 1o protect the
maximum value for shareholders and policyholders:

o Industrial Business,
o Guaranteed Funds.

o Linked Funds - th

Investec Asset Ma)

* The headeount was si
end of the year, from

e majority are to be transferred to
nagement.

enificantly reduced te 156 at the
A90 in the previous year




Long-term assurance business attributable to the sharehdlder
UK GAAP £'000

Investec Employee Benefits Limited

The embedded value comprises:

MNet tangible assets of lfe company Including surplus
Reallorated to investments in assaciated undertakings
Elimination of intercompany balances

Value of in-foree business

s
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Movements in embedded value

At beginning of year

Profit after tax per profit and loss account
Return on shareholders’ funds

Exchange adjustments

(Gain on revaluation of investment properties

Reclassification of shareholder assets

At end of year

Income from long-term assurance business comprises
Premium income

Investment income

Total income

Operating expenses
Policyholder's benefits paid
Decrease in technical provisions

Re-insurance premium expense

Operating profit

Tax charged to technical account

Surplus attributable to shareholders

Value of in-farce business

Income from long-term assurance business

31 March 31 March
2004 2003
343 590 273072
(58 832) (50 824}
(27 842) (120 833)

8 399 7113
265 315 108 528
108 528 87 118
5082 27779
24122 15 551
12 244 (i 314)
4 327 |4 942
1oz (15551
265 315 fCg 528
264 423 306 110
157 717 13920
422 140 320030
(19 029) (21 003)
(416 556) (419 310)
139 280 457 680
(15 972) (277 387)
9 863 60 C1D
(5 564) (8 296)

4 299 Si 714
783 (23 935)

5 082 27 779

No current taxation has been provided on the surplus attributable to shareholders due to the availability of brought forward
taxation iosses, A deferred tax charge of £5.25 million has been raised representing a reduction to deferred tax asset

atiributable to shareholders in respect of the ameount of taxation losses wiilised during the current yoar.




Long-term assurance business attributable to the shareholder

31 March 31 March
UK GAAP 2004 2003
Assumptions
The ecanomic assumptuions are based upon a long-term view of economic
activity and are therefore not adjusted for market movements which are
considered 1o be short-term. This approach is considered to be the most
apprapriate given the long-term nature of the portioho of products. The
eCoONOMIC assumptions are der%ved by adding arppr‘*oprla'te Iong_fterm risk{equlty ‘
rmarging 1o the benchmark gitt Le. RI53. The principal economic assumptions
(relating to the South African economy) which have been used for the pericds ‘
undcer review are as follows: ‘
Risk-adjusted discount rate (%) 128 134
Return on equities {gross of tax) (%) ] 124
Return on fixed interest securities {gross of tax) (%) i 9.8 10.4
Return on property investments (gross of tax) (%) 10.8 1.4
Return on cash held (gross of tax) (%) 7.3 74
Inflation rate {%) ! 63 64
\
Balance sheet ‘000 £'000
The assets of the long-term assurance fund actributable T
to the shareholder are detailed below: ‘
Investments 326 264 |76 858
Intercompany loans due 27 842 120 833
Other assets &| 207 54 176
Assets of long-term assurance fund attributable to sharehclder 415313 361 867
Current labilities (7] 723) (88 795}
Net asset value 343 590 273 072
Investments shown above comprise:-
Fixed interest securities 40 118 14 034
Stocks, shares and unit trusts 4 448 14259
Investment properties 76 484 51 468
Assocate 58 832 50 824
Deposits 54 382 46 273
324 264 176 858
Qualifying capital {net of inadmiss:ble assets) (£ millions} 3r8.07 276.50
Statutory capital adequacy requircment (CAR) {£ millions) 8.83 2360
CAR cover (times) 39.44 172
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Group Services and Other Activities

Includes: Other Activities, Central Funding of Investec and Central Costs

31 March 31 March %
UK GAAP £'000 | 2004 2003 change
|

Internationa! Trade Finance | 2725 978 >|00%
Proparty Worldwide 10125 5413 87.0%
USA continuing businesses 178 970 (81.6%)

UK Traded Endowments {3279) (8 945) 63.3%

9 749 (1 584) >100%
Central Funding (8 463 7161 >{100%)
Central Costs (25 726) (15 414) (66.5%)
Operating loss*® {24 440) (9 837) >(100%)
Southern UK & Total

UK GAAP £'000 Africa Europe| Australia  Israel USA  group
31 March 2004

International Trade Finance | 038 | 687 - - 2725
Property Worldwide 8 604 1521 - - - 10125
USA continuing businesses - - 178 178
UK Traded Endowments (3 279) - - - - (3 279)
Central Funding (10 680} (1 615) 4 304 (472) (B 463)
Central Costs (11221)  {12054) | (2 451 L (25 728)
Cperating {loss)/profit* (15538) (10 461) | 853 (472} 178 (24 440)
31 March 2003

International Trade Finance 211 767 978
Property Worldwide 4142 I 271 - - - 5413
USA continuing businesses - 970 870
UK Traded Endowments (8 945) - - - - {8 945)
Central Funding (4 €77) 8034 3 806 (2 : 7141
Centrat Costs {8477 (6 458) (47%) - -~ (1549
Operating {loss)/profit* (17 746) 3614 3327 {2) 970 {9 837)

* Before taxation, exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill.
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Other Activities

Other Activities comprise two types of operations:

+  Those that are better managed separately due 1o the
specific expertise that would be diluted if incorporated
and split across the business operations,

+ Those that do not vet fall into one of Investec's four
principal business divisions and have been grown
crganically by Investec or retained following acquisition.
These operations include Property Worldwide {in South
Africa and the UK}, International Trade Finance and
Irvestec’s LUK Traded Endowments business.

Property Worldwide

The services provided by the Property division in South
Africa include management of property investrnent funds
{listed and uniisied), property trading and developenent,
property administration and listed property portfolio
managernent.

The Property division in the UK manages a portfolio of
commercial properties inherited from the acquisition of
Berkeley Hambro in 1998,

The worldwide Property dwisions continued to perform
well, posting an operating profit before exceptional tems
and amartisation of goodwill of £10.1 million

(2003 £5.4 million).

The variance in operating profit can be explained as

follows:

+  The Sauth African Property division experienced a
strong growth in net fees and commissions receivable,
largety as a result of the significant increase in total
assets under management, Furthermaore, the division
continued to benefit from high levels of activity, with
dealing revenue increasing from £2.2 millicn to
£4.8 million.

+  For the Property division in South Africa, costs grew by

Operating profit® - Property Worldwide
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38.2% in Rand terms, largely as a result of an increase in
headcoynt required to deal with greater business activity
and expanded portfolios,

Developments

UK

As at 3] March 2004, the UK property portfolio had a
bock value of £25.0 million (2003: £29.6 million),
Increasgs i interest rates in the UK during the period
appear 1o have had minimal effect on market activity.
irvestmbrt in cornmercial property rermains popular for
private [nvestors diversifying longer-term pension
arrangements and institutions are starting to return to
the market.

The Praperty division is beceming increasingly invoived
in mezanme finance for the commercial property
lending of the Private Bank. with the intention to replace
the direjct property book with mezzznine finance deals
within the next three years.

South Africa

The Prgperty division in South Africa continued to
perforn) well, with total assets under management
increasipg by 43.8% to R1Z.5 bilhon (£1 billien).
Developments during the period include:

o Primegro and Growthpoint merger.

o Acquisition and successful integraticn of Provest.

o Growthpoint's acquisition of Investec’s Sandton and
Cape Town properties, which was facilitated by
Investec Property Group .

For the |Praperty Trading and Development divisian,

opportLLmties for structured transactions declined during

the perjod but it was successful in developing vacant
fand on|behalf of the funds managed by Investec

Property Group.

The Prgperty division will continue to focus on

increasing the size of existing funds through strategic

acquisitions and, consequently, grow properties under
administration and enhance the quality of the fund
portfolips.

31 March 31 March %
UK GAAP £'000 2004 2003 Variance change
Net interest income (378) {1170 793 67.7%
Other income 2] 134 12 964 8170 6£3.0%
Adm:n expenses and depreciation {10 585) (6 380) (4 205) (65.9%)
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (46) (46) >(100%)
Operating profit* 10 125 5413 4712 87.0%

*Before taxation, cxceptional items and amortisation of gocdwill.




International Trade Finance

The international Trade Finance business, knawn as
ReichmansCapital. offers trade, asset and debtor finance to
snall and medium sized owner managed businesses. The
division provides clients with working capital, to fund the
acquisition of assets and facilitate growth.

Developments

+  ReichmansCapital produced commendable results, with
good growth in the division's book of |1.8% to
RE04 million {£50 million).

¢ All three areas of business, particularly Trade Finance
which benrefited from lower interest rates and the
strong Rand, reported good performances,

« The division will continue its strategy of pursuing organic
growth and exploiting opportunities in existing target
markets.

Traded Endowments

Investec's Traded Endowments business, which operates in

These policies are then sald to investors who want to
diversify their investment portfolios with an insurance
product. :

Developments

«  The negative pub\icityi surrounding endowment poficies
n the UK market continued during the year and the
narrawly based IFA intermediary network remains price
sensitive,

* There was an improvement in the retail market for
traded endowment polices during the pericd and retail
sales picked up as a result of improved activity in the
second half of the financial year

+  Nevertheless, the trading environment continues to be
uncertain and the division remains under strategic review.

|

US continuing busirfuesses

The heavily reduced Or\gclmg operations in the US, consisting
of several fixed income trading operations and a small US
equities trading desk, posted a modest operating prafit
before excepticnal items %md amaortisation of goodwill of

the UK. was acquired in June 2001 as part of the acquisition £0.4 milicn
from Fedsure. This business involves the purchase of with-
profit endowment policies in the secondary market at a |
price above their surrender value yet below the asset value. }
\
Operating profit* - International Trade Finance |
31 March 31 March | %

UK GAAP £000 2004 2003 Variance change
Net interest income 6216 3258 ‘ 2958 90.8%
Cther income 373 3 370 > Q0%
Admin expenses and depreciation (2 865) (1 977) (888) {44.9%8
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (399 (306) {623) >(100%)
Qperating profic® 2725 978 | 747 > 00%
Operating loss* - UK Traded Endowments

31 March 31 March %

UK GAAP £000 2004 2003 Variance change
Net interest income 163 837y . E 020 =>|G0%
Other income | 884 (763) | 647 > 100%
Admin expenses and depreciation (5 326) {7 325) ‘ 1 999 27.3%
Provision for bad and doubtful debts -
Operating loss™® (3 279) {8 945) 5 666 >100%
*Belore taxatron, oxceptional items and amortisation of goodwill.




Operating profit* - US continuing businesses
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31 March 31 March %

UK GAAP £'000 2004 2003 Variance change
Net interest income 310 (t37) 447 >100%

ther income 9 241 13838 (4 597) (33.2%)
Admin expenses and depreciation (9 373} (12731 3358 264%
Provisicn for bad and doubtful debts - - - -
Operating profit* 178 970 (792) {81.6%)
*Before taxation, exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill
Central Funding The variange in earnings over the period can be explained

as follows:
Investec has a business model of maintaining a central pool * The revenue generated by the Central Funding division
of capital. 5o as to ensure that economies of scale with is derived from the paol of assets not allocated to any
respect to corporate investments, funding and overall specific|division, including shareholder assets in the life
management are obtained, company. Analysis of the performance of this division
requires consideration of all three classes of revenue

Investec uses various sources of funding, the determination t083t_h5'7 ) )
of which depends on the specific financial and strategic *  Net interest income declined for the folowing reasons:
requirements it faces at that time. The funds raised are o A gignificant increase in shareholders' funds for the
applied towards making acquisitions, funding central services lfe|assurance company. Investec Emp\gyee Benefits
and debt obligations, and purchasing corporate assets and (IEB). This accurred as a result of retained profits {as
investments not allocated to the four operating divisions. no |dividend has been paid out of I8}, together with

Investec's Capital Committee manages tha group's central
capital pool i order 1o asuist in effective caprtal

a decrease in inter-company loans between |EB and

185

halding company. In terms of life assurance

acdounting, the increased return generated cn these

management governance. further information on the Capital assets has to be reflected as an increase in the
Committee is provided on pages 23 and 24. relrn on shareholders’ funds.
o A switch in funding in the UK. at the time of the
The Central Funding division posted an operating loss of Lofdon listing, from Dgl\ar' debt to more expensive
£8.5 million (2003: profit of £7.2 million). Pound Sterling borrowings. to more appropriately
match assets and liabilities.
Operating {loss)/profit* - Central Funding
31 March | 31 March %
UK GAAP £'000 2004 2003 Variance change
Net interest income
(excluding interest on sub-debt and debentures) 1G 289 21749 (10 760 (19.5%)
Return on sharenolders’ funds in the
long-term assurance business 24122 15 551 8 571 55.1%
Cther income 13276 6558 6718 > 100%
48 387 43 858 4529 10.3%
Interest paid an sub-debt and debentures (45 10%) (25 090y {(20015) >{100%)
Admin expenses and depreciaticn (8 828) (11103 2275 20.5%
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (2917 {504} {2413) >{100%)
Cperating {loss)/profit* {8 463) 7 16| (15 624) >{100%)

*Before taxation. exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill.




o A reduction in inierest earned on surplus assets in
Seuth Africa as a consequence of a significant
decline in interest rates over the peried

+  Other income comprises approximatery £3 milion profit
earned from the share buy-back undertaken by Insingen,
in which the group held approximately 8%. The
remainder of the income earned is principally
attributable to the recovery in market values in
investments held by the group.

*  Interest on subordinated debt increased by £16.2 million
to £36.6 nuillion. This was as a result of the raising of
subordinated debt of approximately £85.7 milion
(R billion} towards the end of the 2003 financial year
and one month's cost of the UK £200 million
subordinated debt raised in February 2004,

+  Expenses largely include: legal costs associated with
transactions relating to corporate assets, capital raisings,
personnel and cther costs relating to the teams which
manage the group's central pocl of capital,

+  Provisions relate 1o the additional regulatory provisions
the group 15 required to hold on its shareholder assets
across all jurisdictions.

Central Costs

Central Costs is made up of functional areas that provide
services centrally across all of the group's business
operations. Congistent with Investec's philosophy of
operating as a single organisation, Central Costs provides
integrating mechanisms between the business operations,
These services do not form part of the four operating
divisions, however the group has recently adopted a policy
of allocating a portion of these costs to the divisions.

Investec's principal Central Costs, relating to the aperations
and control of its business, are Group Risk Management.
Group Information Technology. Group Finance, Investor
Relations, Group Marketing and Organisational
Development. Other group support services include: Head

Clice, Internal Audit and

Secretarial, Tax, Informatigl

There are certan costs a
(2003: £15.4 mitlion) that

‘Comphance, Legal Company
Centre, Regulatory and Facilities.

nounting to £25.7 million
are strategic in nature and which

have not been allocated to the operating divisions:
« South Africa: £1 1.2 mijllion (2003: £8.5 miliion).

o UK £12.0 million (20
= Australias £2.5 mitlion

The increase in these un
can be explained as follo
»  Costs increased for t

D3: £6.4 million).
(2002: £0.5 million).
|
allocated costs over the period
WS

e South African operations mainly

as a result of a growth in insurance, professional and
audit fees and in rental charges following the sale of the

assets and liabilities o

100 Grayston Drive Property

(Pty) Limited and Block £ Power Station Properties

(Pty) Limited. This ac

ounts for approximately

£1.3 million of the variance. Furthermore, the

appreciation of the R

accounts for approxi
«  Aspart of the group

end against the Pound Sterling
nately £1.4 million of the varance.
< ongoing rationalisation and

restructuring exercisg, coupted with an effort to retain
key employees, the UK operations incurred additional

expenses during the
mainly in relation to

sacond half of the vear. This was
etrenchment costs and additional

incentive-based remuneration provided. This accounts

for approximately £3

+  For the UK operation

result of an increase
against the loss of re
renegatiation of the
£1 millon of the var
+  Anincrease in gener
operations related tg
and marketing spend
£900 000 of the vari
+ The Austraiian qperd
as a result of expans
for £2 million of the

6 miilon of the variance.

s, premises expenses rose as a

n municipal rates and a provision
nt from a sub-tenant, foliowing the
ease contract. This accounts for
ance.

3l expenses within the UK
insurance, business recovery costs
This accounts for approximately
pnce.

tions experienced a growth in costs
on of the business. This accounts
variance.




Risk management

Introduction

Effective risk management is critical to Investec’s operations.
Taking international best practice into account, the group
follows a comprehensive risk management process, which
involves identifying, understanding and managing the risks
asseciated with each of s businesses,

Investec monitors and controls risk exposure through
focused, yet complementary, market, credit, liquidity,
aperational and legal risk reparting teams. This approach s
core for assuming a tolerable risk and reward profile, helping
lnvestes 10 pursue growth across its business.

In addition, a culture of rick awareness, control and
compliance is embedded in Investecs day-to-day activities.

While each business unit retains primary responsibility for
managing the risks that come with 1s business. 2 centralised
division, Group Risk Managerent (part of Group Services).
independently monitors, manages and reporis on investecs
risk, as mandated by the Board of Directors. Group Risk
Managernent has estattished operational divisions m South
Africa and the UK. and smaller risi divisions in other regions.

Group Risk Management’s key objectives are to:

Be the custodian of Inveslec's risk management culture.
+  Set and approve risk parameters and fimits across the
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group and ensure they are implemented and adhered to
consistently.
. Aggreg:[;z and monitor Investec’s exposure across risk
classes.
¢+ Co-ordipate risk management activities across the
arganisation, covering all legal entities and jurisdictions.
»  Give the boards reasonable assurance that the risks
Investec|is exposed to are identified and, to the best
extent gdossible, managed and controlled.
+  Facilitate various risk committees, as mandated by the
Board of Directors.

Group Risk [Management operates within an integrated
geagraphicall and divisional structure, in line with Investec's
management approach, ensuring that the appropriate
processes are used to address all risks across the group.
Group Risk Management divisions with mternational
responsibility are locally responsive vet globaliy aware This
helps tc enslre that all initiatives and businesses operate
within Invest}t:c's defined risk paramaters and objectives.

As a function that aims to meet Investec’s international
needs, Group Risk Managemant continually seeks new ways
to enhance ifs risk management techniques. An important
consideration, however, is that the effectiveness of any bank's
policies and procedures for managing risk can never be
completely o accurately predicted or fully assured.




Risk management framework

Investec Limited and [nvestec plc — Board of Directors

}

Board Risk Review

Committea

Group Risk Management

{consolidation of information)

A

Credit Risk

team

Market Risk
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Legal/
Documentary Risk
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Audic Sutr-Committees
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-

ope, LISA
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Risk management committees and forums
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A numbar of committees and forums identify and manage risk at 2oth a businets unit level in various locations and at a group

level, as shown in the diagram and described more
Management.

fully below. These committees and forums cperate together with Group Risk

Investec Limited and Investec ple — Board of Directors

{

Baard Risk Review

Group Audit and
Audit Sub-Committees

Audit and Compliance

Committee
M i E ive Risk
Group Market Risk xe—cutwe is Group Deal Forum
Forum Review Forum
Y Y

Group Credit Legal Risk Forum

Implementation Forum Committeé
1} ‘}
Group ALCO Country Risk
Committee Farum
Committee Function

Board Risk Review Committee
Members: executive and non-executive directors;
senior management

Chairman:; Stephen Koseff (CEQ)

Frequency: monthly

Executive Risk Review Forum

Members: executive directors and senior management
Chairman: Stephen Koseff (CEQ)

Frequency: weekly

* Acts as agent of the board to ensure ali decisions of the Board
on risk management. policies and procedures are implementad and
monitored throughout Investec.

Ensures that the risk management structure is adequate with sufficient
resource and budgat and would report exceptions to the board.

Ratifies exposure lirhits for market and credit risk.

-

Ensures that there Ik an ongoing process of risk and controt
identification, particlarly regarding changes to business objectives and
the bases of measufing risk.

+ Reviews and evaluates the most significant risks Investec faces in
the ordirary coursg of business (credit. market, iquicity, operational,
tegal and reputational).

Ensures that limits dre adhered to and agreed recommendations to
mitigate risks are implemented.

* Receives a weekly report from Group Risk Management 1o assist it in
the review and recgmmendation process,

T ]



Committee

Group Credit Committee

Members: executive and non-executive directors;
senior management

Chairman: Glynn Burger (Risk Director)
Frequency: weekly

Country Risk Forum

Members: executive and non-executive
directors; senior management
Chairman: Glynn Burger (Risk Director)
Frequency: ad hoc

Group Market Risk Forum

Members; Global Headls of Risk, Market Risk and
the troding desks; senior management; members of
the market risk teams; other members from

Graup Risk Management

Chairman: Glynn Burger (Risk Director)

Frequency: monthly {or ad hoc if required)

Group Asset and Liability Committee
Members; executive and non-executive directors;
senior management, financial officers; Global Treasurer;
Global Head of Asset Liability Managernment

Chairman: Glynn Burger (Risk Director)

Frequency: Monthly (or ad hoc if required)

Group Legal Forum

Members: executive and non-executive directors;
senior management; divisicn legal managers
Chairman: David Nurek {Global Head of Legal Risk}
Frequency: half vearly (or adhoc if required)

Group Deal Forum

Members: executive and non-executive directors;
senior mgnagement

Chairman; Glynn Burger (Risk Director)
Frequency: weekly

Group Audit and Audit Sub-Comrmittees and
Audit and Compliance Implementation Ferum

Members: non-executive directors
Chairman: Donn Jowell (nan-executive director)
Frequency: at least four times per year

Function

Considers and approves the gran
in excess of the mandates grante
credit on a global basis.

Sets Investac's maximum countery

Considers and manages risks assG
Investec assumes expasure. New
when required.

Manages market risk by identifyin
basis of current and future expec

occurs within defined parameters

|

ing of credit to counterparties
1 to divisional and otherforums

arty exposures.
ciated with the country i which

countries are reviewed as and

g and quantifying risks, on the
tations and ensuring that trading

Sets and reviews Investec’s funding and liquidity framework and

policies and ensures compliance v

vith these,

Mandates the regional Asset and Liability Committees to manage

liquidity risk in line with Invested’s
Management of interest rate risk
Further detail s provided on pagy

Constders and manages legal risk

Considars, approves and mitigates

parametars,
ismatch,
5 %3 anc 94.

thiroughout the group.

the risks inherert in any acquisition,

dispasal or other non-standard trapsaction that Investec is considering,

The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are

described on page [ 10.
The Internal Audit, Compliance a
report to the Audit Committees,

d Operational Risk departments




Risk management information and the
board

The executive and non-executive directors are widely
represented on the group'’s risk management committees
and forums (see above). Directars’ involvement in these
committees and forums shows a “hands on" style, which
facilitates a detailed understanding of Investec’s day-to-day
activities.

Management provides detailed risk information reports to
the Board of Directars in South Africa and the UK. Reports
contain a balanced assessment of significant risks and the
effectiveness of the risk management procedures and
systems in managing these risks. The risk management
reporcs genarally include:

+  Balance sheet management review, including the group’s
liquidity position. The analysis is presented by region and
includes a high level summary and detalled supporting
schedules,

+ Market risk review, including a desk-by-desk analysis of
the positions on baok, value at risk and expected tail
losses.

+  Credit exposure reports, including large exposures, level
of arrears, sector analysis, draw downs, provisions and
recoveries,

+ New credit facilities approved during the period.

+  Property investments, corporate finance informatron
{underwriting commitments) and group investments,

+  Operational risk information.

Risk, policies and procedures

Investec, in its ordinary course of business, 15 exposed to
various risks, including credit, market, asset and liability
management. operational, legal and reputational risk. The
processes that measure. moniter and mitigate these risks
(ollow.

The information below prowdes an averview of the types of
risks the group is exposed to and developments that
accurred over the periad under review,

Credit risk management framework

Credit risk represents the potential loss to the group as a
result of a counterparty being unable or unwilling to meet
its obligations. Credit risk arises from two types of
transactions:

«  Lending transactions. giving rise to counterparty risk -
the risk that a counterparty would be unable or
unwilling to repay capital and interest on advances and
loars made 1o 1t

+  Trading transactions, giving nse to issuer, settlement and
replacement risk. lssuer risk is the risk that payments
due from the issuer of a financial instrument will not be
received. Settlernent risk is the risk that the settlement
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of a trapsaction does not take place as expecled, with
one panty making a payment without the othern
Replacement risk is the risk that an in-the-money
deriatiye instrumnent reeds to be replaced following
default py the original counterparty.

The group has credit risk exposure in the geographies in
which it opgrates. The nature and degree of credit risk vary
depending on the type of business transacted within each
geography, Information in this regard is provided below.

Management and measurement of credit risk

To manage, measure and mitigate oredit risk, independent
credit funcdons exist in each geography where the group
assumes credit risk. These operate under board approved
delegated dlscretionary imits, polices and procedures.
Cutside local imits, transaclions are presented to the Group
Credit Committee. Al decisions to transact ace unanimous,

The fundamental principies Investec uses to manage credit

risk include

* A clear [definition of the group’s target market.

+ A quanttative and qualitative assessment of the
creditworthiness of the group’s counterparties.

+ Appropliate credit granting criteria

«  An analysis of all related risks. including concentration.

+  Prudential limits.

+ Regular|monitoring of existing and potential exposures
once fatilities have been approved.

= A high tevel of executive and non-executive involvement
in decisfon-rnaking and review.

In addition o the Group Credit Commitlee, the following
specialist forums exist to assist in measuring and moniloring
credit risk:

+  Intensive Care Commitiee, which manages assets at risk.

* Watch List Committee, which oversees and manages
expasuries in arrears that require add:tional attention
and supervision.

» Country Risk Forum, which considers and manages risk
associatpd with the countries in which Investec assumes
exposure.

* A dedichted team ensures the implemertation of
necessaly systems and models to meet the forthcoming
requirements relative to Basel Il An initial calculation of
the changes to regulatery capital show tnat this will
bring abjout mainly a neutral position, with some
business streams absorbing more capital and others less.

Regular reperting of the credit risk within the group's
activities is rpade to management, the executive and the
board. The Board regularly reviews the appelite for credit
risk, which i3 documented in policy statements and
implemented by the group credit function.




Credit risk in South Africa

Credit risk is assumed mainly through Investec's Treasury and
Spedialised Finance and Private Banking activities,

Treasury and Specialised Finance

Investec Corporate Treasury provides a broad range of
maney market and foreign exchange products to corporates
and investors. Investec is an active market maker in the spot
and forward US Doliar/Rand inter-bank markets, Trading
transactions giving rise to issuer, settlement and replacement
risk in a volatile interest rate and currency environment
were amang the primary areas of potential credit risk in the
year under review.

The Specialised Finance, Project Finance and Rescurce
Finance businesses involve lending money on a structured
basis, with full recourse, to either a suitable asset or to an
entity's balance sheet to which the funds are advanced. The
Resource business is increasingly exposed to countries
presenting complex legal and political risks. Extensive
knowledge of Africa, good technical and financial skills and
strong adherence to prudent country risk limits ensure that
concentration risks are well managed. Exposures are
monitored continuously and assets provided as security in
support of borrowing facilities are generally easily realisable.

Typical asset classes that are funded will include property,
plant and equipment, infrastructure and aircraft,

Specific credit limits are set for each counterparty and
monitored daily to ensure failure risk is mitigated. The credit
appetite for each counterparty is based on the financial
strength of the principal borrower, underlying security, cash
flow and in the case of trading products the nature of the
underlying security traded.

Private Bank

The Private Bank provides an extensive range of banking
services and products, foreign exchange, daily transactional
banking. deposits, treasury and cash investments, and lending
products. to high net worth individuals, privately owned
corporates and other client entities (e.g. family trusts).

A range of lending products are offered to support the
needs of a chosen target market, Residential mortgages and
commercial property make up the bulk of the Private Bank
lending exposures. The residential property portfolio reflects
good quality residantial properties at fairly conservative loan
to value ratios in desirable areas, in keeping with the
lifestyles of Private Banking clients.

Exposure to commercial, retail and industrial properties
are at conservative loan to security values. Income
producing assets are generally let to good quality ancher
tenants.

There is an element of concentration risk to the South

African property market as a result of the nature of private
client borrowing activities. This riske is mitigated by reviewing
a!l properties offered as security prior to advancing funds. In

addition, Invastec’s internal valuers or a bank approved panel

of external valuers regula
values. Furthermore, servi
property is a primary con

ly review commercial property
reability of a loan advanced against
sideration in the credit assessment

process and not only assel value, Extensive use of fixed rale
funding has served to mitigate much of the inlerest rate
volatility experienced recgntly.

investec corstantly monit

I's property exposures by stress

testing the property portfolio. This is undertaken by
assuming a sharp fall in property values, the inability of the
borrower to service or repay from independent means and

interest rate shocks result
interest expenses.

Year in review
Over the past financial ye
market trends had an imp;

ng in rental income falling below

an 2 number of notable financial
acl on the assessment of credit

risk for Investec, These trands include:

+  Increased volatility
strengthening Rand (¢
Increased volatility
parallel shifts in key R
downward shift was

of Rand exchange rates and a
ontrary to market expectations),
of interest rates and downward
and yield curves (the extent of the
so not anticipated by the market).

*  The unanticipated changes in currency and interest rate
movements have swgrj‘ﬂcant credit risk implications. The
reason for this is ihal‘counterparties may not have fully
anticipated and provided for the liquidity and profit and
loss implications of derivative transactions associated
with the hedging of their foreign exchange and interest
rate risk, It is also implortant to note that foreign
exchange and interes| rate products make up a
significant proportion of the total treasury operations in
the banking sector, bath from a volume of trading 2nd

profit and loss commt{

ution perspective.

For both interest rate ang foreign exchange products,
Investec implernented advanced exposure simuiation

methadologies, which ena
the level of exposures to
activities. These simulation
of irading, volatility of pro
mitigants in deriving gran

led it to rrore accurately identify
rounterparties for these trading
methodologies recognise volume
Hucts traded, deal tenor and credit
lar counterparty exposure profiles

(and in so doing allow for| roll-off risk assessments).

In keeping with worldwicg barking wends and following the

criteria set out in Basel |
applied In quanlifying fore

. the internal methodologies
gn exchange and interest rate

exposures comply with paragraph 438 of the New Base!

Capital Accord (Aprit 200

). The accord specifies that:

“The criteria by which estintates of Exposure ot Defoull (FAD}
are derived must be plausiple and intuitive, and represent what

the bank beheves to be mc
must be supnorted by cred
The bank must be abie to

expentence by the foctors 1)
must use alf relevant inforn
estinrates. Across facility tyr

ertal drivers of EAD. The choices
ble internal analysis by the bank.
provide a breckdown of its EAD
sees as the drivers of FAD. A bank
atior in its derivation of EAD

es, @ bank must review il estirmaies




of EAD when material new informotion comes to light and at
least on an annual basis.”

With regard to the new Basel Accord, investec beliaves that
the Foundation Internal Ratings Based Approach is now the
most appropriate option available. This will provide capital
recognition for pertfolios of high credit quality and hence
Investec’s target market, A Basel Il compliant corporate
borrower rating model has operated for a number of years,
with a bank rating model implemented recently Various Basel
It projects. leading 1o implementation within the proposed
Basel Il time frames, are currently under way.

These methodologies were implemented during the 2004
financial year and resulted in an early warning system for
managernent to take proaclive steps to reduce or mitigate
increased credit risks. As a result of sound proactive credit
risk methodologies, the inlerest rate and currency volatility
over the year under review did not result in significant
exposures that excesded approved credit limits.

Credit risk in Mauritius

Investec Bank (Mauritius) Limited offers a range of banking
services and its primary business activities are corporate
lending, property finance and structured finance to
carporate and private clients. Limits are monitored daiiy to
ensure that excesses are identified timeously and remedial
action is taken immediately, if necessary.

Credit risk in the UK, Channel Islands, |reland and
Switzerland

Credit risk arises mainly through the group’s banking
business, Investec Bank (UK) Limited, and its Dublin branch,
Investec Bank {Channel Islands) Limited and Investec Bank
(Switzerland) AG.

There are also some counterparty expasures wilhin Investec
Asset Management Limited and Carr Sheppards Crosthwaite
Limited, where group funds are placed on a short-term basis
with other UK banks.

Investec Bank (UK) Limiced, Investec Bank
{Channel Islands) Limited and Investec Bank
(Switzerland) AG

The main credit exposures are in Investec Banking and
Securities, Treasury and Specialised Finance and the Private
Bank.

{nvestec Banking and Securities

The division buys and sells certain exchange traded
securities, with sales and purchases on a delivery against
payment basis to exchange approved counterparties. Some
credil risk. arises shouid a market counterparty fail and the
trade has to be replaced at current market prices, which
may be different 1o those originally executed. Limils are set
for each counterparty and monitored intra-day to ensure
fallure rigk is mitigated. Limits are based an the financiat
standing of the counterparty and the underlying security
traded.
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Treasury and Specizlised Finance

The Treasur
daily manag;
other financ
non-rated ¢

and Specialised Finance division, as part of the
=ment of liquidity, places funds with banks and

al institutions. It alsa has exposures to rated and
prporates.

Banks and financial institutions are highly rated and usually of
a systemic rjature. Corporate exposures. if not highly rated,

re secured
self fiquidati

A well spreg
placements

on assels either with regular amortisation or are
ng from the charged assets.

d portfolio is ensured and, other than
hith highly rated systemic banks, the maximum

individual exposure to a counterparty or counlerparty
group is argund £15 million.

There is Iittie exposure Lo emerging markets and hard limits
are placed on inter-group exposures and te South Africa.

Privace Ban
The Private
privately ©

k
Bank provides secured lending to individuals,
ned corporates and other client entriies.

Facilities ard secured on property or easily realised liquid
security. Repayment is from clearly identifiable income

streams or,

or property development oans, from the sale of

the developed asset.

Typical of p
risik within 4|
residential g

ivate banking, there is some concentration of
he UK property sector, which comprises
nd commercial properties. Conservative loan to

security valdes are adopted and income producing assets are

ganarally le

Residential

to good quality tenants.

roperties are located in quality locations for

which there| is international demand. Commercial properties
are driven By the calibre of location and tenant. There is
little speculgtive commercial property development unless
this is pre-lgt or against clients’ surety. Development
comprises gredominantly residential properties, with an

aversion to

All facilities

high value single unit developments.

are reviewed regularly and property values are

monitored by Investec’s appointed panel of valuers, This

information

is used to stress lest the property portfolic,

assuming bath a sharp fall in property values and the

inabitity of 1
independen
property va

[e barrower 1o service or repay the loan from
- means, On an extreme basis, assuming
ues fell by 30% and no dient could service their

debt, the exposure not covered by the realised property
value woulg be approximately £18 million. (£11 million in

relation to
relation to

Credit ris

The main b

ommercial property exposure and £7 million in
esidential property exposure}.

k in Australia

Lsiness of Investec Bank (Australia) Limited is to

target private clients and their related entities. Advances are

secured pre

dominantly on property securities.




Al present. the loan portfolio is dominated by property .
related transactians, which reflecls the growth and maturity
of the respective business units that operate in this
geography. Property market risk is minimised by: .
= Confining activity to major metropolitan areas.
»  Enswring that lending is against secure income streams
and demonstrabie exit strategies, which can both service
and extinguish the borrower's obligations.
+  Obtaining recourse to individual and corporate .
borrowers aver and above collateral security.
«  Avoiding speculative transactions.

in addition, specialised asset finance to corporates and
project finance are undertaken on a limited basis.

Surplus liquidity is placed with highly rated domestic banks
and financial institutions.

Credit risk in lsrael

Investec Bank (Isragl) Limited maintains a conservative and
cautious credit policy, designed to improve the guality of the
credit portfolic and develop it in accordance with the
economic conditions prevalent in the region. The bank
operates a ¢redit risk management and contrel system at
both an individual client and overall managernent level,
including routine control of expesures to clients active in the
capital market,

Credit risk in each of the bank's divisions follows below,

Securities division

Credit is previded mainly to leading institutional
organisations, mutual funds managers and portfolic
managers, secured primarily by liquid financial assets
(deposits and securities).

Specialised Finance

The division provides specialised finance services to listed
and private companies, by way of domeslic and international
facloring, corporate finance and trade related finance,
Exposure is securitised through various collateral, including
credit risk insurance policies, facloring agreements and
account receivables assignments.

Private Bank

Credit is provided to individual clients and companies
owned and usually guaranteed by them. Credit is secured
mainly by liquid financial assets and mortgages on real estate
properties.

Credit risk classification system and provisioning
policy

Investec's credit risk policy incorporates the

following:

« Al borrowing accounts are reviewed daily and action is
taker to remedy any excesses.

Further details of the qual
are shown on subsequent

The group has a very
arnount over £2,000 ¢
30 days overdue being

strict arrears policy, where any
- currency eguivalent more than
classified as an arrears position.

An exposure is classified as non-performing when

there is a prospect of

non-recovery of interest or capital

or it is deemed imprudent to bring interest to account.
This definition is in acgordance with regulatory

requirements.

Exposures in arrears g
on this scrutiny, if it be
requires additional sug
included in the manag
Watchtist Committee,

re continually scrutinised. Based
comes evident that the account
ervision and attention, it will be
ed book and falf under the
comprising mernbers of the

Group Credit Committee and the Credit Risk team,

Unless there are reas
interest and capital in
nor-performing. Each
arrears 's assessed on
accordirgly.

The Watchlist Cormuni
deterioration of a cou
"watchlist” is managed

nable prospects of recovering
full, the aceounts are classified as
individual exposure that is in

its merits and classified

tee assesses perceived and actual
nterparty’s credit risk profile The
and rmenitored on an cngoing

basis, with review by the relevant boards and the Board
Risk Review Committee.

Interest is charged on
corresponding amoun
credited to a suspend
A specific bad debt

non-performing accounts. The

is not brought to income but,
ed interest provision.

provision is made when there is

a probability that Investec will not be able 1o collect the

full amount of capital
The amount of the p
into account:
o The value of the
the debt,
o The value of othe
after considenng
o The value of any
the debt,
o The amount. if an
suspended wieres
General provisions
provide cover for loan
sheet date but which
some time in the futu
o The group’s genet
Laking into accoun
characteristics of
Management collectiv
complex and changing
adequacy of provision
managernent’s view of
loan portfolio and pre

and interest due.
ovision is delermined after taking

ssel or olher collateral securing

r assets owned by the debtor
ecured and unsecured liabilities,
ureties or guarantees given for

. already raised as a provision for
1
augment specific orovisions and

s that are impaired at the balance
will not be identified as such untif
=3

al provision has been determined
t the structure and risk

he group's loan portiolio.

bly weighs up & number of

factors in determining the

8. These factors include

the extent of existing risks in the
vailing economic conditions.

Quality of the group’s loan portfolio and
provision {evels

ty of the group's loan portfolio
pages.




Other loans and advances

Lease and instalment debtors
Residential mortages

Other secyred private bank lending
Commercial property

Corporate and public sector

Loans and advances to customers by loan
type: 31 March 2004

2.3%
1.0%
13.2%
15.6%
25.6%
40.3%

Loan

type

Gther loans and advances

Lease and instalment debtors
Residential mortages

Orther secured privace bank iending
Commarcial property

Corporate and public sector
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s and advances to customers by loan
31 March 2003

6%
3.9%
10.9%
12.4%
24.2%
45.0%



Asset quality, specific and general provisions

UK GAAP £000 31 Majrch 2004 31 March 2003
Total loans and advances to customers € 436 077 4 966 887
Less : cash equwvalent debtors 11286 357 975 233
Core loans and advances to customers 5 149 720 3991 649
Managed book* {134 351} (107 481)
Net loans and advances to customers 5015 369 3 884 148
Average net loans and advancas to customers 4449 768 3562515
Consolidated profit and loss provision charge 20958 18 308
Spectfic provisions 29 870 30813
General provisions &0 359 52 171
Total provisions 90 229 82 984
Gross non-performing loans® 90 347 60 677
Security (64 904 {36 132)
Net non-perferming loans 25 443 24 545

Adequacy of provisions

Consolidated profit and loss provision charge as a % of average loans

and advances to customers 0.47% 0.51%
Specific provisions as a % of core loans and advances to customers 0.58% 0.77%
General provisions as a % of net loans and advances to customers [.20% 1.34%
Total provisions as a % of core loans and advances to customers [.75% 2.08%
Total provisions as a % of gross non-performing loans 9%.87% 136.76%
Total provisions as a % of net non-performing loans 354.63% 338.09%
Gross non-performing foans as a % of core loans and advances to customers 1.75% 1.52%

* As defined on page 86.

The table below presents the group’s loans and advances to customers by loan type:
UK GAAP £000 31 March 2004 31 March 2003

Category anaiysis

RS

Corporate and public sector 584 876 2 233 061
Commerdiat property 11650 590 | 203 448
Residential mortgages 852 653 618 020
Other secured private bank lending f 006 997 541 362
Lease and instalment debtors 195 748 194 946
Other loans and advances 145 213 176 050
6436 077 4 966 887
Problem country expasure
Total advances to problem countries 19 171 42 493

Probiem country risk provisions - -

The advances are secured by 100% pledge over the assets with additional
risk cover in the form of Credit Guarantee Insurance Corporation
{CGIC) commercial CGIC political cover and cash collateral,




Asset quality information by geography

31 March 2004
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Core loans General Specific Total Gross Security held Net
UK GAAP £000 and advances provisions provisions provis‘lf.lnns NPLs against NPLs NPLs
Sauth Africa and Other 3 036 465 37 476 19 111 56 587 67 5%0 47 265 20 325
UK and Europe | 657 655 {8821 4 295 PERHE |4 292 8 946 5346
Australia 256 045 2545 585 3130 584 950 (366)
lsrael 199 555 L 517 5 879 7 304 7 851 7743 138
Total group 5 149 720 60 359 29 870 90 229 90 347 64 904 25 443
31 March 2003

|

Core loans General Specific Total Gross Security held Net
UK GAAP £'000 and advances provisions  provisions  provisigns NPLs against NPLs NPLs
South Africa and Cther 2 231 178 30212 19 661 49 873 30 266 9 980 20 284
UK and Europe | 339 996 18 254 3572 21 826 17 223 13636 3587
Australia 176 304 2046 692 2738 4 996 6 208 (121
lsrael 244 174 | 659 6 888 8 547 8192 6 308 1 884
Total group 3 991 649 52 171 30813 82 984 60 677 36 132 24 545

Where: NPLs is non-performing loans,

Core loans and advances to customers by
geography: 31 March 2004

Israel 3.9%
Australia 4.9%
UK and Eurape 32.2%
South Africa and Other 59.0%

Core loans and advances to customers by
geography: 31 March 2003

Israe
Australia
UK 23d Europe

South Africa and Other

61%
4.4%
33.6%
55.9%



Market risk management framework

Market risk management encompasses the quantification and
management of the risks of financial loss relating to the
group’s trading activities. Trading activities include
transacbions where Investec acts as principal with clients or
the market. Market risk, therefore, exists where the group
has taken on principal positions, resulting from proprietary
trading, market making, arbitrage, underwriting and
investments in the commaodity, foreign exchange, equity,
capital and money markets. The market value of these
positions (including derivatives) has the potential to change,
caused by adverse movements in market factors such as
interest and foreign exchange rates; equity, bond and
commoadity prices; volatility: and credit spreads. The Market
Risk Management team's role 1s to independently identify,
quantify, moniter and manage these risks,

Group policy is to manage the risks in each jurisdiction
where the risk is assumed. As such, local risk management
teams exist in the various locations. Lacal limits have been
set to contain potential losses to within acceptable risk
tolerance fevels. A Global Market Risk Forum (mandated by
the various boards of directors) manages the market risks
on a basis consistent with pre-approved principles and
policies, Investec’s market risk position is further reported to
the Executive Risk Review Forum, the group executive, the
Board Risk Review Committee and the Board of Directors.

Role of the Market Risk Forum and Market Risk
Management team

The Market Risk Forum performs the following functions:

+  Sets the policy for the Market Risk Managerrent team
and ensures compliance with this policy.

*  Sets and changes risk limits. This involves:

o Preparing an in-depth analysis of the various risks
considering both normal market conditions and
extreme or infrequent events.

o Deciding on appropriate methodology and manner
in which to set a limut.

o Determining an appropriate level at which the risks
should be set.

*  Reviews and approves pricing and other risk models,

The Market Risk Management team performs the following

key functions:

*  Monitors risk limits and the nature of market risks on a
daily asis, including reviewing concentrated pasitions.

+  Caleulates and analyses Value at Risk (VaR) daily.

*  Performs a profit attribution, where the daily traded
income of the bank is attributed to the various
underlying risk facters on a day-to-day basis. An
understanding of the sources of profit and ioss is
essential to understanding the risks of the businass.

+  Reviews the market risks on Investec's books and
ensures that it 15 prudently pesitioned, taking inte
account agreed policias, prevailing markets and liguidity,
hedging strategies and the relationship between risk and
reward.

+  Provides temporary pre-approval of any excasses to risk
lirryits,

Measurement of market risk

A variety of measurement]

techniques are used to quantify

the market risk arising from the group's trading activities.

These include sensitivity 4

nalysis and VaR, Stress testing and

scenario analysis are also jused to simulate extreme
conditions to supplement fthese core measures,

VaR is a technigue for esti

nating future potential losses, due

ta price movements over a given time horizon, at a stated
level of confidence. The group uses historically simulated VaR
based on historical prices over a 250-day period, a 95%
confidence level and a one-day holding period. The table

below represents the groy

p's VaR on trading portfolios as at

the year ended 31 March 2004, for 2 95% confidence level

and a one-day holding pe
is taken. This means that tf
dally losses wilt be at |easy
amount.VaR, however, dog
Zroup can expect 1o lose

iod, assuming no mitigating action
ere is a one in 20 chance that
as large as the reported VaR

s not indicate how much the

n these cases. Expected Tail Lass

(ETL) quantifies the amount the group can expect to lose

when the VaR threshold is

Year in review

exceeded.

The followsng major external events occurred during the

pericd under review:

* The Rand exchange rate strengthened considerabiy

against the US Dollar
appreciation of the cu
foreign exchange trad)

rom 793 to 6.37.The
rency had litte effect on the
ng portfolios.

*  The trading books were pasitioned for the 550 basis
point interest rate cuts that occurred in Scuth Africa
over the period, but not aggressively enough to covar
the margin squeeze that emanated from such a decline.

+  The US Dollar interes
significantly during mid

L rate curve steepened
-2003 - up to 70 basis points. This

movement had a substantial unfavourable effect on the
foreign interest rate trading portfolio.

*  Liguidity in both the R
equity derivative marky
speculators withdrew

+ Tthere were no specif
group's hon-Southern

Trading risk appetite
Following a strategic revie
UK in the prior year, the S

and interest rate derivative and
ets continued to reduce as

rom these markets.

¢ events to report on affecting the
Wfrican operations,

of the trading operations in the
outh African Treasury and

Specialised Finance division undertcok a similar review in
the current year As a consequence, proprietary risk taking

activities have been curta
periods), and an increased
supporting client activity. T
trading should largely be ¢
clents in deal execution.T

led {in comparison 1o previous
focus has been placed on

he group's philasophy is that
onducted to facilitate primary
e effects of this are clearly

reflected in the VaR figures below. A comparison of the

consolidated highest VaR fi

gures for Investec Limited during

the year, 1o the figure at the end of the pericd, highlights

that the risk exposure is ¢
peak.

brrently 55% less than the year's




VaR 95% (one-day) |
31 March 2004 |
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£000 Investec Limited Investec plc Censolidated
Interest rates ?183 4 282
Equity "z 358 378
Foreign exchange 247 20 238
Commodities - 125 125
Consolidated™ 4‘53 424 599
I
Limits (aggregated) 21143 3050 5193
Highest g3 462 156
Lowest 73 214 315
Awerage g37 330 623
|

VaR 95% {one-day)

31 March 2003

£'000 investec Limited Investec plc Consolidated
Interest rates |64 9 163
Equity 73 282 176
Foreign exchange 952 3% 236
Cormmodities - 57 57
Consolidated*® 495 299 840
Limits {aggregated) 2997 2700 2697
Highest I 100 870 | 370
Lowest 660 240 F20
Average 460 450 I 300

* The consolidated VaR is significantly lower than the sum of the VAR figures for]
take place as a result of the correlation between the various asset classes.

each traded market. This is due to offsets which




ETL 95% (one-day)

3| March 2004
£000

interest rates
Equity

Foreign exchange
Commodities
Consolidated

31 March 2003

£000

Interest rates
Equity

Foreign exchange
Commaodities
Consolidated

Stress testing

The portfolio stress tested under extreme market conditions (15 standard deviattons) will res
Investec Limited, £3.9 million in Investec plc and £8.8 million on a consolidated group basis (i

period).
3t March 2004
£'000

Interest rates
Equity

Foreign exchange
Commugdities
Consolidated

3| March 2003

£000

Interest rates
Equity

Foregn exchange
Commodities
Consolidated

Investec Lirnited leestec pic Consolidated
|
461 ' 6 162
148 503 512
106 . 84 377
- I 143 143
633 | 554 871
|
|
|
Investec Limited I}westec plc Consolidated
|
\
221 | 14 221
355 L 433
712 Y 730
- 69 49
856 346 968

ult in a loss of £4.9 million in
ased on a one-day holding

investec Limited nvestec plc Consclidated
2163 ! 29 2192
€58 ‘ 2743 3 €01
| 887 151 2038
- 959 559
4908 3883 8 791
Investec Limited nvestec plc Consolidated
230 68 | 298
2 048 2115 4163
4140 270 4410
— 428 428
7418 2 880 10 298




Market risk -~ derivatives

The group enters various derivatives contracts, both as
principal for trading purposes and as customer for hedging
foreign exchange. commaodity, equity and interest rate
exposures. These include financial futures, options, swaps and
ferward rate agreements. The risks associated with derivative
instruments are monitored in the same manner as for the
underlying instruments. Risks are also measured across the
product range in order to take into account possible
correlations.

The tables below reflact the groups derivative trading
portfolio at the end of the financial year on the basis of the
notional principal and the fair value of all derivatives.

The notional principal indicates Investec’s activity in the
derivatives market and represents the aggregate size of total
outstanding contracts at year-end. The fair value of a
dertvative financial instrument represants the present value
of the positive or negative cash flows which would have
occurred had the rights and obligations arising from that
instrument been closed out by the group in an orderly
market transaction at year-end. Both these amounts reflect
only derivatives exposure and exclude the value of the
physical inancial instruments used to hedge these postions.

Notional principal

31 March 2004 £'mn
Fareign exchange derivatives 8 055
Interest rate derivatives 98 789
Equity and stock index derivatives I4 705
Commaodity derivatives 6 329
Credit derivatives 59
Fair value

Positive  Negative
31 March 2004 £'mn £'mn
Foreign exchange derivatives 481 315
Interest rate derivatives 473 394
Equity and stock index derivatives 209 189
Commadity derivatives 296 233
Credit derivatives - -
Effect of netting (236) (936)
Net fair values 523 195

Further information in this regard can be found on pages
21610 218
Balance sheet risk management framework

Balance sheet risk management encompasses the financial
risks relating to the group’s assets and liabilities, comprising

; 093
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liquidity, furdling, concentration and non-trading interest rate
risks on baignce sheet.

The Treasury and Specialised Finance division centraily
manages the rassing of liabilities and sowrcing of assets and
alse managds the mismatch between these assets and
liabifities. In this regard, the Treasury division s required to
minimise gafnings volatifity within the group's overall funding,
liquidity andl concentration parameters.

The cbjective set for the Balance Sheet Risk Management
tearn is to independently identify, quantify and monitor risks,
which are mitigated by the central Treasury through the
implementation of appropriate on- and off- talance sheet
strategies, dynamically adjusting to changing economic
cenditions. Thus, the team provides governance and
oversight of the Treasury division’s activities.

Group policy is o centralise asset and liability management
within each jurisdiction, Regional Asset Liability Management
Committeeg (ALCOs) are mandaled by their respective
boards of directors and group ALCO to manage the balance
sheet risks ¢n a consistent basis with pre-approved
principles and policies. Detailed policies cover both domestic
and foreign turrency funds and set out sources and amounts
of funds negessary to ensure the continuation of Investec's
operations without undue interruption. Investec hedges any
currency exchange risk arising from deposit and loan
banking activities. The size, materialily, complexity, maturity
and depth af the market as well as access 1o stable funds
will determine the risk appetite for the region. In addition,
the specific applicable statutory requirements further dictate
what policies are adopted in each region.

Investec’s overall group liquidity policy requires each
jurisdiction {o be self-funding so that there is no reliance on
inter-group jines either from or to other group entities.

The techniques employed by the Balance Sheet Risk
Maragement team combine traditional gap aralysis and
simulation. These include quantitative models and stress tests
designed to|measure the range of possible future liquidity
needs and pjotential distribution of net interest income over
a range of stenarios. The modelling process is supported by
angoing lectnical and economic analysis.

lnvestec's balance sheet position is repoarted to
management. the Executive Risk Review Forum, the Board
Risk Review| Commitlee and the Board of Directors.

Role of the Asset Liability Management
Committee

The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
performs the following functions:

* Sets the policy for liquidity, interest rate mismatch/risk
and fundling concentration and ensures compliance with
this polify. The policy transhates into limits pertaining to




the liquidity gap ratios, amount of liquefiable assets,
depositor concentration and interest rate exposure
regarding the structural / commercial banking book.

* Implements the methodology, techniques and processes
used Lo measure liquidity and interest rate exposure and
further directs the development of scenarios covering
risk factors and assumpiions in view of expected
economic conditions and market circumstances and
stress tests.

* Reviews the structure of Investec's balance sheet and
ensures that it is prudently positioned, taking into
account agreed policies, prevailing markets, book runoff
and business growth projections.

* Sets inwvestrment, funding and hedging strategies and
funding targets to be implemented by Treasury. in line
with cash flow projections. In this way, it manages the
risk/reward relationship that exists between liquidity and
interest rate risk on an ongoing basis,

* Maintains fiquidity conlingency plans and identifies
allernative sources of domestic and foreign currency
funds necessary 1o ensure continuation of Investec's
operations without undue interruption, This is dene in
accordance with the regulatory requirements pertaining
to the jurisdiclion, under a range of adverse general,
business, and economic scenarios.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the bank does not have
sufficient cash to meet its financial obligations, especially in
the short term, at acceptable costs.

Sourees of liquidity risk include unforeseen withdrawal of
demand deposits, restricted access 1o new funding with
approprizte maturily and interest rate characteristics,
inabllity to liquidate a marketable asset timeously with
minimal risk of capital loss, unpredicted customer non-
payment of a loan obligation and a sudden increased
demand for loans.

The group has always recognised the importance of
liquidicy risk management. (This was highlighted by the
small bank crisis in South Africa, which placed liquidity risk
management at the forefront). Liquidity management is vital
to preserving market confidence and safeguarding the
group’s reputation,

Investec bases its liquidity management processes on four

essential elements:

+  Maintenance of a stock of readily available, high quality
liquid assets and near cash in excess of its statutory
requirements as well as strong balance sheet liquidity
ratios.

Investec further acknowle
and private client base as
well-diversifiad funding fo

Preparazion of cash fl
Labilities} and funding
the forecasted cash fl

w projections {assets and
requirements corresponding to
womismatch, which are translated

inlo short- and long-term funding strategies within each

legal entity and globally.

Management of conce
on any single deposity
sector and mnstrument]
Diversification is achie
counterparty, instrumsg

niration risk, baing undue reliance
r. grouping of depositors, market
. maturing at any one time.

ed by variation of the

nt and term.

Maintenance of liquidity conlingency plans and the
identification of alternptive sources of funds in the
market 50 as to ensure that cash flow estimates and
commitments can be met under a range of adverse
general, business and economic scenarios.
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Non-trading interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the impact en the net interest
earnings, as a result of increases or decreases in the levels of
interest rates, volatility and changes in the shape of the term
structure of interest rates, when these changes are applied
to Investec's rate sensitive assets and liabilities,

Interest rate risk management compriseés mitigating
undesarable risk and enhancing margin/maximising net
interest income, during changing interest rate cycles, within
the predefined risk appetite of the group. Interest rate risk
arising from fixed interest loans and deposits with a term of
more than one year is materially hedged through the
purchase and sale of interest rate swaps.

Investec bases its interest rate risk management processes

on four fundamental steps:

«  Measurement and analysis of traditional interest rate
mismatch gaps detaling the sources of interest rate
expasure.

+  Earnings-at-Risk simulation on & forecasted balance sheet
covering a wide range of scenarios within the following
categones:

o Investecs interest rate forecasts and “house” view,

o Imposed yield curve stress tests on the observed
interest rate profile.

o Stochastic interest rate scenarios geing rise 1o a
distribution of possible earnings.

+  Technical interest rate analysis and economic review of
fundamental developments and trends.

«  Management of interest rate risk by ALCO, having been
alerted to both the structural causes and yieid curve
scenarios that give rise 10 undesirable risks, which is
raitigated through the implementation of appropriate on
and off balance sheet strategies.

Year in review

Significant market events within the last year include the

followang:

+  Geopolitical developments and further corporate
scandals continued to give rise to a degree of economic
uncertaimiy As a result of the increased volatility, a
number of depositors preferred to keep ther cash in
short-term products. The group's interest rate risk
profile reduced as a result.

+  With global interest rates at a near historic Jow, South
Africa entered a downward interest rate cycle. The
frequency of Monetary Policy Committee meetings was
changed from quarterly to bi-monthly in order to keep
pace with the economic reality. During the year the
South African Reserve Bank lowered the repo rate by
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550 basis points. In line with market expectations,
Investec| shortened the duration of its liabilities bath on
balance sheet and through off balance sheet hedging
activitieq,

Operatignal risk

Operational|risk is defined as the risk of losses or earmings
volatility arising from failed or inadequate internal processes,
people, technology or from external events,

The group recognises operational risk as a significant rigk
category andl seeks 1o manage this risk within acceptable
levels, The gloup continues to embed a consistent
enterprise-wide aperational risk conscious environment that
aims to better understand scund operationa: risk
management practices, promaote such sound practices, and
analyse operational risk incidents, both internal and externai,

Scund operational risk management practices at Investec

include:

+  Senior management responsibility for implementation
and managerment of such risk.

+ An inde%endent specialist Operational Risk Management
function| that monitors and facilitates consistent practices
and professes across the group.

*  Board réview and momitoring through Board Risk
Commifteas and Audit Committees.

The group Operational Risk Management function focuses
on:
+ Sound gperational risk management practices:
o Identification and assessment of operational risks.
o Indicator development,
o Incdent and loss event data gathering,
*  Enterprise risk programmes.
o Business continuity risk.
o Information security risk.
o Change managernent risk.
*  Financial ¢rime.




Sound operational risk management practices, as identified by the Bank of International Settlements (BIS), are set out below

and key Investec practices are highlighted:
Principle'
Board and senior management responsibility

» Framework
* Strategy

Key Investec practices

-

Approach identified

Framework and process described and communicated

Reporting to Board Risk Review (fommittee and Audit Cormmuttee

Senior management implement
» Consistent in organisation
* Policies, processes, products

Core policies in place

-

Independent specialist risk managgment function

Core practices continue to be em‘bedded and assessed

Reporting
= Information
+ Escalation
* Framework effecliveness
* Management performance

Data collecled
Key issue reporting
Reporting line to Board Risk Comn

-

rittees

Risk igentification
+ Inherent risk

Risk identification and assessment
Risks are assessed and scored bas
place and the consequant residua

.

o At business unit level .

a At group level

in place for three vears
bd on inherent risk, contreis tn
risk

Risk assessment
+ Processes

Continucus enhancing of docume
Action plans are developed to adg

nted processes
ress high residual risk

Systems implemented
* To monitor
o Operational risk exposures

Core processes and technology g
Risk scoring

ols in place

* Incident and loss event data gatheying
o Loss events * Integrated technology being assesjed
+ By major business line
Control or mitigate operational risk * Risk and conlrol assessment
* Policies, processes, procedures + Scoring and action plans
= Risk mitigation + internal audit reviews
o Limitation *+ Enterprise risk prograrmes
o Control *+ Insurance
Supervisor requires an effective system * Risic assessment and loss event todls

« [dentify

+ Measure
» Monitor
+ Control

Integrated processes i
Reparting to Board Risk Review C%ommiuee

Independent supervisory evaluations
« Direct or indirect
+ Evaluate principles
« Reporting practices

SARB Accord lmplermentation Forum Risk Comrnittee participation
Board Risk Review Committee reporting and review

Public disclosure
* Risk exposure
+ Quality of risk management

Basel |l Pillar Three requirements

ssessed

+ Early adoption where considered meaningful

'As set out by the BIS Sound Practices for the Management and Supervision of Operational R

isk - February 2003,




Year in review
Sound operational risk management practices

Operational risk management in the group continues 1o
develap. Industry practices are monitored 1o assess the
appropriateness of the group’s approach and framework as
well as ensure that stakeholder expectations are met.

During the year, operational risk forums were established
to share information and assist with process and practice
implementation initiatives,

A detalled understanding of process and practice needs was
completed and an assessment of available integrated
technology solutions was undertaken. Technology solutions
were found to be at varying stages of development and
sophistication, confirming the developing nature of
operational risk in the industry.

Enterprise risk assessment and identification continued to
be embedded at business unit level. These support the
operational risk identification process and the regulatory
expectations (as set out in the "Turnbull Guidance of the UK
Combined Code” and the South African King 1 "Cade of
Corporate Practices and Conduct”™) for the board review of
the risk and control environment. These assessments are
reported to and reviewed by the Board Risk Review
Committee. They also support the South African Banks Act
reporting requirements.

An incident and loss event database was designed and
developed to supplement the existing specialist pockets of
data. Progress was made in gathering internal data and
further refinements will be made over the next year,

During the year, the Operational Risk Managerment team
facilitated, with the group Facilities function, a health and
safety risk assessment across the South African operations,
The risk assessment was designed to proactively assess the
practices in operation at each location at which the group
operates, 1o evaluate whethar the group was providing a
safe and secure operating environment for all staff. No
significant remediation activities were identified.

The groups UK operations identified and reviewed all
outsourcing arrangements in line with the Financial
Services Authority guidance on outsourcing. A register was
established and & process initiated for review and approval
of new acutsourcing arrangements as well as reviews and
renewals.

The group assessed the Basel Il expectations and will in
principle adopt the Standardised Approach, including the
Alternate Standardised Approach, to determining
operational risk capital. Where possible, partial
implementation will be adoptad and consideration will be
given to migrating to the Advanced Measurerment Approach.
The various qualifying criteria, as set out in Consultation
Paper Three of the Basel Capital Accord and Financial
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Service Authority near final supervisory requirements were

reviewed,

Enterpris% risk programmes

Technology risk rmanagement continued to receive attention.

Business continuity risk

Business continuity risk remains a significant focus of
operatiqnal risk management. The availability of systems
and the ability to successfully restore lechnology
platforms, resume operations and continue operating
core buginess processes are essential for the group in
the event of disruplion to operations.

The group cantinues o enhance its capability through
the business continuity community by embedding Lhe
necessary disciplines via a programme of praclice.
review, assessment and aligniment.

There were no significant disruptions o operations
during the year.

Various aspects of Investec's business continuity
programme are formally measured. These include test
results, notification exercises, assessment of the group's
contmui‘Ly capability and conducting relevant
benchmiarks.

During the year, the board adopted a group-wide policy
selting out the practices and standards expected with
regard o this risk.

Further|refinements and focus on building resilience in
operatians will be undertaken in 2005

Risk assessments Lo identify potential threats to
availability angd continuily of operaticns were initiated.

Information| security risk

The lasy year saw a dramatic increase in malicious
attacks from the inlernet, designed to both compromise
and disrupt the operation of the group.

The group established a dedicated Information Security
Team, headed by the group Information Security Officer
and supported by specialist operational risk resources.
This sugcessfully protected the group and the
informati:an assets against the onslaught of computer
viruses, worms and hackers.

The group’s information security process is based on the
international standard 15O 17799, ensuring common
processes and standards are implemented across all
Businesg units and counlry operations. A global
approadh 15 also taken to monitoring Investec's systems
and networks, 1o ensure that even its weakest link is
stronger than necessary.

Ongoing vigilance is essential to ensure that the group’s
information remains confidential, has integrity and is
availablg.

Change management risk

Change|management indudes the maragement of all
system changes Lo live and business continuity
environments, Changes introduce risk to the
organisgtion and, as such, need to be effectively
managed. This necessitates that a robust. standardised




precess is followed Lo ensure @ smooth transition during

implementation and 1o minimise disruption resulting

from the changes.

+ The change management process is implemented and
managed at the business unit Jevel in accordance with
the global policy, The Operational Risk Management
team oversees the process in the business units and
provides assurance to various stakeholders that the
process is followed and risks are mitigated.

»  During the year, the group’s change management
aclivities were enhanced as follows:
¢ A group-wide change management policy was

defined,

o The definition was facilitated and robust.
slandardised change management processes were
implemented in the business units.

o Independent oversight, by the Operational Risk
Management team, of the process in the business
units was introduced. ensuring that the process is
followed and risks are mitigated.

o Issue resolution and appropriate escalation were
faciliated.

o Information technology incidents were assessed in
relation to change management, giving input back
into the change rmanagement process.

»  There were no significant incidents that caused material
disruption to the operations of the group.

Processes
»  Documentation,
o The documentation of key processes and associated
risks continues to receive attention,

+ New business.

o A new business policy was developed and
integrated into the existing risk processes.

o Significant new business initiatives are subject to risk
assessments to identify potenlial risks and the
appropriate mitigation activities, in¢luding internal
controls, insurance, regulatory approval, risk
measuring and reporting.

Financial crime

«  Finarcial erime and fraud risk is considered a key
operational risk.

+  The focus is on risk identification, loss investigation,
recovery and proseculion and recommending enhanced
practices to mitigate this risk.

+  Organised crime remains a key concern of the group.
including terrorist financing.

* Incidents of fraud are investigated, recovery initiated and
legal action implemented. It is the group's policy to take
conciusive action on all financial crime that 15 identified
as being perpetrated against the group. Case information
15 collected and compiled by the specialists in the
correct manner, to facilitale the legal process and oblain
the recessary conwiclions,

*  Regular reviews of the client database are conducted
with comparisons to an intermational database of
"undesirable persons’, to assess client quality.

+  Suspicious, unusual and threshold transactions are

monitored, assessed, iﬁvestigated and reported to the
Financial Intelligance Genlre, as required by the South
African Financial Mtellihence Centre Act. A number of
reports were made diring the year The group's Legal
division reviews all preposed reports.

+  The Group Informatign Officer deals with all requests
for information received in accordance with the South
Alrican Promotion of ficcess to Information Act and
from regulatory and investigatory agencies.

*  Emerging trends expefienced include:

o Increased syndicate activity and organised crime.

o lIdentity thefl. |

o Increased regulatdry expectation e.g. money
laundering and "know your client” reguirements.

*  During the year, the following cases were investigated:

Industry issues

The group participates in tertain industry forums and in the
South African Reserve Baics Accord Implementation Forum

|
processes. i

Alignment with internal addit processes is encouraged, to
facilitale re-use of information and knowledge and an

integration of the risk and|contrel activities of the group's
risk control ‘ramework.

Legal risk management

Legat risk is the risk of loss resutting from any of Investec's
rights not being fully enfor‘ceable or from the group's
obligations not being properly performed. This includes
Investec’s rights and obligations under contracts entered
with counterparties. Such fisk is especially applicable io the
group In circumstances where a counterparty defaults and
the relevant docurnentatign may not give rise to the rights
and rernedies anticipaled when the transaction was entered.

Investec's policy is to identify, manage, monitor and mitigate
legal risks throughout the group. It seeks to actively mitigate
these risks by idenlifying them, setting minimum standards
for their management and allocating clear responsibilizy for
such management Lo legal| visk managers, as well as ensurirg
comnpliance through proadlive monitoring procedures.

The overall responsibility for this policy rests with the Board
of Directors. The boards delegate responsibility for
implementation of the policy to the Global Head of Legal
Risk whe, in turn, assigns responsibilily for controlling these
risks to the managers of appropriale departments and
focused units throughout the group.




The scope of Investec’s activities, which brings about legal
risk, is continuously reviewed and includes the following
areas:

+  Relationship contracts.

- Legislation/governance.

- Litigation.

< Corporate events.

»  Dual Listed Companies structure,

* Incident or crisis management.

+  Ongoing quality comrol.

The legal risk policy is implemented through:

= Identification and ongoing review of areas where legai
risk is found to be present.

< Allecation of responsibility for the development of
procedures for management and mitigation of these
risks.

« Installation of appropriate segregation of duties. so that
legat documentation 1s reviewed and executed with the
appropriate level of independence from the persons
involved in propasing or promoting the transaction.

* Ongoing examination of the interrelationship between
legal risk and other areas of risk management, so as to
ensure that there are no "gaps” in the risk management
Process.

*  Establishment of minimum standards for mitigating and
controlling each risk, including the nature and extent of
work to be undertaken by the group’s internal and
external legal resources.

= Establishment of procedures to monitor compliance,
taking into account the required minimum standards.

+  Establishment of legal risk forums. bringing together the
various legal risk managers, to ensure Investec keeps
abreast of developments and changes in the nature and
extent of the group’s activilies, and to benchmark
Investec's processes against best practice.

A Legal Risk Forum is constituted in each significant legal
entity within the group. Each forum meets at least half yearly
and rnore frequently where business needs diciate. and is
chaired by the Global Head of Legal Risk or his appointed
deputy. Minutes of the meetings are circulated to the Chief
Executive Officer of each legal entity as well as to the
Group Risk Operational Risk division.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit's primary role is to provide objective
assurance to the board that the management processes in
place are adequate to identify and monitor significant risks
and Lhat the control environment is effective in managing
those risks, Internal Audit's ancillary role is to assist in the
evaluation and enhancement of risk management, controls
and governance processes.

An Internal Audit charter, approved by the Group Audit
Committees and reviewed annuaily, governs intermal audit
activily within the group. The charter defines the role and
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objectives, authority and responsibility of the function.

As a result of the regulatory responsibilities arising from the
Dual Listed Companies structure, there are essentially two
greup Internal Audic divisions (located in Johannesburg and
London) for|Investec Limited and Investec plc. Internal Audit
functions reporting into Investec plc also exist 'n Tel Aviv and
Sydney, with|an audit committee in each of the respective
jurisdictions.|All Internal Audit departments use similar risk
based methodologies. The heads of Internal Audit report at
each Audit Committee meeting and meet regularly with the
chairrnan of their entity's Audit Committee. They operate
lndependequy of executive management and also have ready
access to the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
board. For administrative and co-ordination purposes, they
report to the Global Head of Corporate Governance and
Compliance

Annually, Internal Audit conducts a formal risk assessment
for all businesses incorporating management’s own risk
assessment (Turnbull). A comprehensive annual audit plan is
derived from this assessment and identifies areas of focus,
which are cenfirmed with executive management and
approved by the responsible Audit Committee, High risk
businesses apd processes are audited annually, with other
areas coverad al regular intervals based on their risk profile.
Given the group's dependence on [T systems, there is an
increased fokus on auditing technology risks. The annual plan
15 reviewed regularly to ensure that it remairs relevant and
responsive, given changes in the group's operating
environmenl. The Audit Committee approves changes to the
plan,

Internal Audit proactively reviews its audit practices and
resources for adequacy and appropriateness, to rmeet the
increasingly flemanding corporate governance and regulatory
expectations, Audil teams comprising well-qualified staff with
appropriate [experience ensure that the function has the
competencigs to match the diverse reguirements of the
group. Whete specific spedialist skill or additional resources
are required this would be obtained from a third party.

Significant control failures are reported, in terms of an
escalation protocol, to the Audit and Compliance
lmplementation Forum, where rectificazion procedures and
progress arg monitored, as well as to the appropriate Audil
Committee.




Compliance

Introduction

Campliance risk is defined as the risk of non-compliance
with the etter and spirit of all relevant statutes, regulations,
superviscry requirements and industry codes of conduct ta
which the group s subject. In keeping with its values, the
group also strives to maintain the highest standards of
integrity and ethical behaviour in its dealings with
stakeholders.

The group is subject to extensive supervisory and
regulatory regimes in South Africa, the UK, Europe, the US,
Australia, Hong Kong, lsrael and in the other countries
around the world in which it operates. The South African
Reserve Bank is the lead regulator of the groun.

In order to meet the regulatory requirements arising from

the implementation of the Dual Listed Companies structure,

indepencent Group Compliance functions exist within
Investec Limited and Investec plc. The respective Group
Compliance functions carry out their responsibilities under
terms of reference approved by the board and the Audit
Committee. A Groep Comgliance Officer. who operates
independently from executive management and is
responsibte for ensuring that compliance risk within each
group is adequately managed, heads each function. Each
Group Compliance Officer reports directly to the Chief
Executive Officer and the Global Head of Compliance, with
unrestricted access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee

The Group Compliance functions are structured on a
decentralised aperating model that consists of a central
Group Compliance function, supported by specialist
operatonal compliance functions within the relevant
operating entitics or divisions. Caompliance officers have
been appointed in all significant business units. The
egerational compliance functions report to tive Group
Cornpliance Officer, as part of a matrix management
reporting structure.

Compliance risk is addressed through the development
and implementation of effective compliance processes,
which include providing advice and training on regulatory
matters, development of policies and procedures affecting
regulatory issues, and monitoring adherence to these
poiicies and procedures through the implementation of a
risk-based monitoring methodelogy.

The Group Cornpliance functions work closely 1o ensure
that compliance risk is managed consistently throughout the
broader group. A key responsibility of the Global
Carnpliance Officer and the Group Compliance Officers is
1o deveiop and maintain constructive working relationships
with regulators and supervisors in jurisdictions where the
garoup Is represented.

Developments

Southern Africa

During Aprii 2003, the Fimlancia\ Action Task Force. an inter-
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for the first time of certain types of mortgage products.
Changes to the Proceeds of Crime Act and the Joint Money
Laundering Steering Committee Guidance Notes further
strengthened the UK's anti-money laundering regime and the
industry had to respond to these changes.

The Compliance department participated in a number of
“industry themed' visits from the regulater, in addition to
participating in the FSA's pericdic ARRCW review process
(the process by which the regulator assesses the regulatory
risk of each regulated firm), and routine supervisory visits, A
FSA supervisory visit to Carr Sheppards Crosthwaite in
September 2003 noted certain comphance failings in the
processes adopted by the firm, Subesequent to the year end
the FSA imposed a fine of £500,000 on Carr Sheppards
Crosthwaite. Management co-operated fully with the FSA in
taking prompt and effective remedial action to rectify these
shortcomings and were commended by the FSA for their
approach in resclving the matter.

The Comptliance department restructured significantly during
the year, to enhance its capacity to provide the strength and
breadth of service needed to ensure compliance with
evolving UK regulations, Sternming from this initiative,
common objectives across Investec plc were identified,
which will further encourage improvements and consistency
across the businesses.

USA

Regulatory scrutiny continues to escalate in the US.
Research and investment banking and anti-money laundering
efferts continue to receive considerable attention. in
addition, in recent months, mutual fund timing activilies as a
whaole came under significant scrutiny by US regulators, the
Securities and Exchange Commissicn and the New York
Attorney General. First, US regulators were investigating
late-trading scenarios in which the client, taking advantage of
market information disclosed after the close of the market.
places an order after the market close and receives that
day's price. By doing so, such clients will be treated more
favourably than others in contravention of the mutual funds’
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prospectus. Of note, Investec stated market policies prohibit
late trading. pecond, the regulators contend that short-lerm
trading of a putual fund has a negative effect on long-term
investors, as[the fund must adjust its investrent strategies to
handle the fluctuations in purchases and sales of the fund.
Investec codperated with the regulators in their
investigationp. There are no indications that Investec is the
subject or tgreet of further iwestigation.

Australia |

During the past year. the Australian regulatory envirgnment
underwent substantial reform, with the introduction of new
legislation, Alstralwam Securities and Investments Commissicn
policy statements and Australian Prudential Regulation
Authority standards. The mast significant legisiation was the
Financial Sefvices Reform Act, which brought about a
uniform licensing, conduct and disclosure regime forr
Australian financial markets, products and services. Investec
Bank (Australia) adapted its licences and further developed
its compliance framework to ensure it can comply with this
expanding regulatory and legislative environment.

srael

Following the appointment of a dedicated Compliance
Officer in 2002, resources in the Compliance department
were increased to meet the requirements of an increasingly
regulated enpvironment. Management established a
Compliance Enforcement Coordination Committee, te
facilitate thg implementation of the annual compliance pian.

During 2003, the Compliance department implernented and
trained all employees en new consumer protection laws. The
mest significanl new legislation relates to the requirement to
pre-notify clienls of charges for services provided by banks,

Following a|Bank of Israel directive on anti-money
laundering, the Compliance Officer included the
implementation and manitoring of anti-money laundering
policies in the detailed Compliance annual work pian.




Credit ratings

Historically. rating agencies tended to focus on rating the combined Investec group. However,

Limited, investec Bank (UK} Limited and Investec Bank {Australia) Limited. Certain rating agen

Ratings for Investec Limited

Capital Intelligence Ratings
Foreign currency - short-term rating
Fareign currency - long-term rating

CA Ratings
Short-term local currency debt rating
Long-term local currency debt rating

Fitch

{ndividuai rating
Support rating
international short-term
International long-term

Ratings for Investec Bank Limited a wholly owned subsidiary of Investec Limi

Capital Intelligence Ratings
Domestic strength rating

Foreign currency - short-term rating
Foreign currency - long-term rating

Fitch

Indwidual rating
Support rating
International short-term
International long-term
Domestic short-term
Damestic [ong-term

Global Credit Ratings
Short-term rating
Long-term rating

Moody's - Foreign
Bank financial strength
Short-term bank deposit

In general, Investec has been assigned strong ratings for credit quality, capacity for timely repay

Investec's Dual Listed Companies structure, investec Limited and Investec plc are treated sepa
As a result the rating agencies have assigned ratings to the significant banking entities within th

Investec Limited (formerly Investec Group Limited}. The ratings as at 31 March 2004 are set o

Long-term bank depasit

Moody's - National |
Bank financial strength

Short-term bank deposit Prime
Leng-term bank deposit |

* constrained by the sovereign rating for South Africa.

ment and financial strength,

in terms of the implementation of
rately from a credit point of view.
e group. namely Investec Bank

ties have also continued to rate

ut below.

A3®
BEB-*

A+

B/C

F3*
B33

AZF
BBB-*

B/C

Fye
BRE*

Prime 2%
Baaz*

A3
Prime |
Al




Ratings for Investec Bank (UK} Limited a wholly owned subsidiary| of Investec plc

Fitch

Individual rating

Support rating
Short-term rating
Long-term rating
Subordinated note rating

Glebal Credit Ratings
Shart-term rating
Long-term rating

Moody's

Barlk financial strength
Short-term bank deposit
Long-term bank deposit
Subordinated note rating

Ratings for Investec Bank (Australia) Limited a wholly owned subsidiary of Investec plc

Moody's

Bank financial strength
Short-term bank deposit
Long-term bank deposit
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F2
BBB+
B23

A2

C-
Prime 2
Baa2
Baa3

D+
Prime 2
Baa2




Directors’ responsibility and

corporate governance

“Extremely sound approaches, processes and systems are
extremely carefully planned and designed with intent to achieve
appropriate goals olmaost witheut foil; the application is of
extremely high standard and has become a cuiture.
Stakeholders are assured that their interests are judged
extremely impaortant in every case”

CA Ratings - AAg Carporate Governance Rating, Investec
Limited, Novernber 2003

Introduction

While the board reuains responsibility for the overall
process and structure of corporate governance of the
group. each business area and all employees worldwide are
also responsible for adherence to geod corporate
goverNance practices.

Investec recognises that good governance:

+  Protedts the brand of the organisation.

»  Mitigates against reputational impacts.

+ Supports the trust and confidence of stakeholders,

»  Leads to effectiveness. efficiency and sustainability.

» Enhances the capital market perception of the group.

Sound corporate governance continues to be instilled in the
group's values, culture, processes, functions and
crganisalionat structure, QOver time, the group has created
the structures necessary to formalise oversight and to
ensure lhat the values remain embedded in ali businesses
and processes. investec continues to refine these structures,
including a writlen Statement of Values, which serves as
Investec’s Code of Ethics and has always been a pillar of its
culture.

The grous’s values and philosophies form the framework
against which bebhaviour, practices and activities are
measured, to assess the characteristics of good governance,
Investec’s values demand that the directors and employees

of the group canduct all internal and external dealings with

integrity, consistently and

strength and behaviour w

ncompromisingly displaying moral
ich promates trust.

Governance highlights

Investec's governance philosophy s to focus on practices
that add competence rather than mere compliance. The

group is aware that a simg

in responses that are not
the governaice environm

The board recognises tha
must be appropriate and

e "tick box" approach can result
demanstrable and do not add to
et

corporate governance practices
relevant for the size, nature and

complexity of the group, to prevent stifing of the

entrepreneurial spirit, whi
within the context of eco

e promoting sound practices
nomic performance.

Investec continued to refine its corporate governance

practices during the year
environment is monitore

under review. The governance
, and developments and emerging

issues are assessed and aqidr‘essed as considered

appropriate,

The following matlers hignlighted in the previous year's

report were addressed d
+ Non-executive status
Myburgn review, the

pring the year:
af the Chairman - following the
outh African Reserve Bank

(SARB) raised a concern relating to the Chairrnan's non-

executive status, This

as fully addressed and the SARB

accepted that the arrangements that are now in place

salisfy its requiremnen
status.

s with regard 1o his non-executive

* Size of the Investec Bank Limited board - this was
reviewed and is considered to be operating effectively.

Investec also reviewe
executive directors,

«  Director Affairs Com
the section on board

d the independence of the non-

mittee - this was established. See
committees below for more detail.




Governance achievements

Governance achievements during the vear under review
include:

Aag - extremely sound corporate governance rating
assigned by CA Ratings in an independent governance
rating of |nvestec Limited

The rating assigned by CA Ratings was based on the
principles of the South African King Il "Code of Corporate
Practices and Conduct” (King |I) and international practices.
The focus was on apoproaches, processes, systems and
appiication of practices and whether these supported long-
term sustainability,

Factors identified that supported the rating were:

«  Directors and senior management are receptive to open
and vigorous debate.

+ A clear organisztional alignment of goals.

+  Ap extensive consuitative management approach.

The review alse highlighted certan suggestions to further
refine and enhance the governance practices within Investec
Limited, which the board will consider,

Beard and Audit Committee assessments

Internal assessments were conducted to assess the
effectiveness and performance of the boards and the Audit
Committees of Investec Limited and Investec plc. The beards
of the significant subsidiaries of the group were also
assessed.

The assessments were initiated by the Chairmen of the
board and Audit Committee respectively, completed by all
members of the board and Audit Committee, and reviewed
and reported on by the Global Head of Corporate
Governance and Compliance,

The assessments, which took the form of a questionnarre.
were based on the King il, London Combined Code {199%),
Blue Ribbon and QECD guidelines. The Smith report on
Audit Committees forms part of the London Combined
Code.

The role and functioning of the Internal Audit and
Compliance functions were assessed as part of the Audit
Committes assessment.

Matters identified are being addressed by the Chairmen of
the board and Audit Committee,

Participated actively in the development of the Financial
Sector Charter in South Africa

Senior management of Investec Limited played an active role
in the working committee established by the Banking
Coungil South Africa to deliberate and develop a framework
that proactively redresses the socio-economic challenges in
South Africa.

The charter was well received by all stakeholders and has
moved into practicai implementation during the year
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Reviewed and addressing the risk management
expectations of the revised Basel Capital Accord {Basei Il
that is planned for implementaticn in 2007

The group implemented plans and actions to address the
requirements of the new capital accard due for
implementation in 2007, These include participation in
industry fora, reviews of internal processes and
appropriateness of disclosures.

Reviewed the revised London Combined Code

I July 2003.|the Financial Reporting Coundl published a
new Londory Combined Cade on Corporate Governance.
The revised [code followed the review of the role and
effectivenesy of non-executive directors by S Derek Higgs
as well as the review of audit committees by Sir Robert
Smith. The revised code applies for reporting years beginning
on or after | November 2003 The group has reviewed the
recommeandgtions made in the revised code and where
relevant, changes have been. and will continue to be made
1o comply with these provisions, which are aophcable for the
group's 2003 financial year

Black econgmic empowerment

During November 2003, Investec Limited concluded a
groundbreaking shareholding transaction between three
empowerment partners and an employee trust, which
resulted i the empowerment consortium acquiing 25.1%
of the issued share capital of the company. Furthermaore.
Investec won the "Most progressive established company of
the vear”, presented by BusinessMap, in recognition of its
carefully crafted. tailor-made approach t¢ black economic
empowerment and the need for transformation.

Inclusion in|sustainability indices

Investec plcfwas included In the Kempen/SNS Smalier
Europe Socially Responsible Investment Index, the first
sustainable index for small European companies, which was
launched on | Cctober 2003, Furthermore, Investec Limited
was included in the JSE Socially Responsible Investment
Index, which was launched «n May 2004,

Reporting awards

The group dontinued to receive recognition for its ongoing
commitment to provide timeous, detailed and relevant
disclosure t¢ stakeholders and was rated in the excellant
category (just cutside the top 10) of the top 100 iisted
companies ¢n the |SE in terms of the Ernst & Young
Excellence in Financial Reporting Awards.

Internal control issues

During the period under review the following issues with
respect to internal controls are noted:

+  Asadvised at the time of the group’s interim results a
dealer suppressed dealing information, whicn action was
facilitated by a manipulation of contrals resulting in a
loss. The relevant controls have been remedied and
enhanced by senior management.

* A regulatory review of Carr Sheppards Crosthwaite’s
compliance related procedures and processes by the UK




Governance organisation

The governance practices can be depicted as follows:

Board of Directors — Investec Limited and Investec g

Nomination Committee

Remuneration Committee

Directors Affairs
Committee
{Investec Bank Limited}

Audit Committees
and Sub-Committees

Audit and Compliance
Implementation Fora

Board Risk Review

Committee

yle

Chairman’s
Committee

Group

Gro

Opera

Executive Risk Review Forum

Credit Committee

Group ALCO Committee

Group Market Risk Forum

up Deai Forum

tional Risk Forum

Legal Risk Forum

Country Risk Forum

l

Internal Audic

(employees, shareholders, government, regulatory bodies, clients, supplie

Y

Compliance

Stakeholders

l

Risk Management

rs, communities)




Financiat Services Authority (FSA}. noted certain failings
in the processes adopted by the firm. Subsequent to the
year end the FSA imposed a fine of £500,000 on Carr
Sneppards Crosthwaite. Carr Sheppards Crosthwaite co-
operated fully with the FSA in taking prompt and
effective reniedial action to rectify these shortcomings
and was cormmended by the FSA for its approach in
resohving the matter.

Executive management has reviewed both the incidents and
has implernented corrective action and enhanced control
processes to mitigate these risks from reoccurring.

Board statement

The board is of the view that the group complied with King
II'and the London Combined Code (1998) principles during
the period under review, except as follows:

King 1l

«  The Chairman of the board is not considered to be
independent but has further enhanced his non-executive
status. as discussed elsewhere in this report.

»  The Chairman of the Investec Limited Audit Committee
and the combined group Audit Committee is not
independent, but is considered by the board to be the
most appropriate non-executive director to chair the
Audit Committee, as set out below in the review of the
Audit Committee on page | 10.

tondon Combmed Code (1998)

* With regret, subsequent to the year end, john Abell, the
senior independent non-executive director passed away
unexpectedly. The board will review the appointment of
a serwor Independent non-executive director shortly.

Other international business units operate in accordance with
the governance recommendations of their jurisdiction, but
with clear reference at all times to group values and culture.

The view of the board is based on the following practices,
which were in operation during the period under review.

Financial reporting and going concern

The directors are responsible for monitaring and reviewing
the preparation, integrity and relizbility of the Investec plc
and Investec Limited consolidated financial statements,
accounting pelicies and the information contained in the
arnual report.

In discharging this responsibility, the directors are supported
by an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant risks faced by the group, which was
in place for the year under review and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements. The
process Is implemented by Investec management and
independently monitored for effectiveness by the audit, risk
and other sub-commitiees of the board, which are referred
to below.
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Investec operates under a Dual Listed Companies (DLC)
structure (see page 37), which requires compiiance with the
corperate ard accounting regufations of both the LXK and
South Africa.

The financial|statements of the group were prepared on the
going concern basis, taking inte consideration the following

matters:
+  Corporate governance practices.

*  Accounting policies adopted.

*  The natyre and complexity of the business of the group
*  The nisks assumed by the group.

»  Key busipess and control processes in operation.

»  The cperation of board committee suppart structures.

The beoard is of the opinion, based on its knowledge of the
group. key processes in operation and specific enguiries, that
adequate resources exist to support the group on a going
concern basis over the next yean

Board of|Directors
General

The compatition of the boards of Investec Limited and
Investec plc s set out on pages 139 to 140.The boards of
Investec plc and Investec Limited are separate and subject to
legal obligations particular to each company. The boards
comprise the same persons who are autherised, as board
members, 1§ manage Investec as if it were a unified
economic enterprise.

The majority of the board members are non-executive
directors. An assessment of the boards of Investec Limited
and Investec plc based on the King I and the London
Combined Code {1998} criteria for independence.
respectively,was completed and reviewed by the board. In
terms of these respective evaluations, the following persons
are not considered to be independent non-executive
directors:
+  Board of Investec Limited: Messrs HS Herman, DE
Jowell IR Kanton, P Malungani and F it
»  Board of Investec plc: Messrs HS Herman, DE Jowell, IR
Kantor, P Malungan: and F Tri.

The board is of the view, however, that the majority of the
non-executive directors are independent of management m
order to promote the interests of stakeholders. The balance
of executivg and non-executive directors is such that no one
person or group can dominate the board processes. Arising
out of the Sputh African Reserve Bank (SARB) Myburgh
review, a reqommendation was made that a majority of nen-
executive directars on the lnvestec Limied and Investec
Bank Limited boards should be independent by 2009 The
board will consider this matter over the next year.

The roles of the Chairman {Hugh Herman) and the Chief
Executive Officer (Stephen Koseff) are separate. During the
year, the Chairman further distanced himself from any
executive aythority and status, thus enhancing his status as a
non-executive director.




The board is considered tc be appropriately skilled with
regard to its responsibilities and the activities of the greup.
The skill and experience profile of the board is regularly
considered, to ensure an approgriate and relevant board
composition. The board profile on pages 139 and 140 sets
out brief biographies of the members of the board.

The boards understand and accept their responsibility for
the performance and affairs of the group.

Identification, selection and appointment of directors are
dealt with by the Nomination Committee. Induction and
ongoing awareness of emerging issues and developing
matters are provided to directors, to enable farniliarity and
an understanding of the business of the group and the
operating ervironment. This process was improved during
the year under review.

In terms of the Companies’ Articles of Association, each
director is required to seek re-election at least every three

years. Details of the directors presenting themselves for re-

election at the Annual General Meetings (AGM) in August
2004 may be found in the Notice of the AGMs. Service
contract details are set out In the remuneration report an
page |19

In accordance with the London Combined Cede (1998).
lohn Abell was appointed the senior independent non-

executive director during [the period under review. With
regret, iohn Abell passed alvay unexpectedly in May 2004
and the board will look tolappoint a new senior
independent non-executive director shortly. The non-
executwe directors meet regularly without the executive
directors present. under the auspices of the senior
independent non-executive director.

The board has unrestricted access te senior management
and company secretaries, information, documentation and
records as needed to fulfil| their responsibilities. In addition.
each director has access t¢ specialist independent advice
through the senior independent director.

The company secretaries of Investec Limited and Investec
plc are both experienced and appropriately skilled, They are
supported by the group Head of Corporate Governance
and Compliance.

|
Board meetings are scheduEed annually in advance and are
held equally in South Afrida ang the UK in any calendar yean
in ine with the requirements as laid down in terms of the
group's DLC structure. Agendas have been established and
directors are able to add any matters to these agendas.
Directors are provided with full board papers, to enable
them to corsider in advance the issues on which they will
be requested to give deciions.

Board meeting attendance

Investec Limited and 8 April 20 May 9 July | Ot 26 Nov 4 Feb
Investec plc 2003 2003 2003 2008 2003 2004
Executive directors

S Koseff {(Chief Executive Officer) v v v v v v
B Kantor (Managing Oirector) v v v v v v
GR Burger {Group Risk & Finance Director) ¢ v v v v v
A Tapnack v v v v v v
Non-executive directors

HS Herman {Chairman)* v v v v v v
IN Abell v v v 4 v v
SE Abrahams v v v v v v
GFO Alford v v v v v v
H Fukuda (appainted 21 July 2003) A v v
GMT Howe {appointed 21 july 2003) V| v v
DE Jowell® v v v V| v ['4
IR Kanter® v v v v v v
Sir C Keswick v v A A A v
MP Malungani® v A v V| v v
PRS Thomas v v v v/ v v
FTit* {appointed 30 jan 2004) A
A = Apology

* Non-executive directors who are considered not to be independent.




Role and responsibility of the board

The board retains full and effective control of the group
and is ultimately accountable and responsible for the
performance and affairs of the group. This includes
responsibility for reviewing and guiding corporate strategy.
through the establishment of key policies and objectives,
understanding the key risks faced by the group, determining
the risk tolerance of the group and the processes in
aperation to mitigate these.

The board defined the limits of delegated authority and 15
ultimately responsible for assessing and managing risk
policies and philosophies: overseeing major capital
expenditures, acquisitions and dispesals: approving the
establishment of businesses; and approving the introduction
of new products and service offerings.

in discharging its responsibilities, the beard is supported by
mernbers of Investec management, who are required to
implement the board plans and strategies. The board
maonitors management's progress in this regard on an
ongoing basis.

Furthermare, the board. directly or through its sub-

committees:

+  Continually assesses both the quantitative and qualitative
aspects of the group’s performance through a
comprehensive system of financial and non-financial
monitoring, This involves an annual budget process,
detailed monthly reporting and management strategic
ang operational updates.

= Approves the annual budgets and business plans.

* Monitors the group's compliance with relevant laws,
regulations and codes of business practice

*  Monitors the group’s communication with all
stakeheclders.

+  Identifies and monitors key risk areas and key
performance indicators.

*  Reviews processes and procedures 1o ensure the
effectiveness of the group's internal systems of control.

The board is accountable to all Investec’s stakeholders for

exercising leadership, integrity and judgement in pursuit of
its strategic goals and objectives. This s to achieve long-term

Membership and attendance

sustainable g

As noted in
performanceg was internally assessed during the year under
review.

Board su

The beoard is
below:
Chairmap's Committee

Audit C
o Aud
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rowth and prosperity for the group.

he "Gaovernance achievermnents’ section, board

b-committees

supparted by specialist committees, discussed

mmittes
t and Compliance Implementation Forum

Board Risk Review Committee

Exed
Gro
Gro
Cou
Gra
Gro

G 0O 0 C O 00

utive Risk Review Forum

up Asset and Liability Committee
p Credit Committee

piry Risk Farum

e Market Risk Forum

up Deal Forum

Opaerational Risk Forum

Directors Affairs Committee
Normination Committae

Rermunel

These comr)
appropriatel
director me
access to sp

not required

{1998), arisin)
recommend
participate |
recommend
be appropri

Chairman’

Role and re
The Chairm
group’s strat
Responsibilit
is defegated

ation Committee

ittees have specific terms of reference,

skilled members, independent non-executive
bership. senior management participation and
=cialist advice when considered necessary While
by King I and the London Combined Cede
g out of the Myburgh report, the SARB
ed that all non-executive directors should

at least one Board Commuttee. This

tion will receive board consideration and will
tely assessed.

s Committee

ponsibility

n's Committee 1 responsible for reviewing the
egy and managing its business affars,

for the day-to-day operations of the business
to senior management as described above.

Investec Limited Chairman’s Committee 3C July 2003 29 Sept 2003 24 March 2004
HS Herman (Committee Chairman) v v v
GR Burger (Group Risk and Finance Director) v v v
DE Jowell {non-executive direclor) v A v
B Kantor (Managing Director) v v v
S Kaseff {Chief Executive Officer) v 4 v
DM Lawrence {executive director - Investec Bank Limited) A 4 v
A Tapnack {executive director) v A v
B Tapnack {executive director - investec Bank Limited) v v v

A= Apoclogy




Audit Commitrees

Role and responsibility

The various Audit Commitiees are responsible for, among

cther things:

+ The review and recommendation for the board's
approval of Investec’s combined consolidated and
individual company reports and financial statements and
other published financial reporting documents.

»  Review of the appropriateness of the combined group’s
and individual companies’ accounting policies and their
application

+  Oversecing Investec’s external audit process in the
revicw of reports and accounts.

= Consideration of the external audit scope. fees and
audit findings

= Review of internal Audit plans, reports, capacity and
capability, and the reliance by external audit on the work
and findings of Internal Audit.

= Review of nen-audit services provided by the group's
external auditors.

«  Focus on investec's compliance with legal requirements,
accounting standards and the relevant listing
requirements.

= Measures to maintain cffective systems of mternal
financial control and for reparting nan-financial
operating data.

Membership and attendance
Investec has a combined DLC group Audit Comimittee

Investec DLC Audit Committee

(referred to in this section jas the DLC Audit Commitiee),
which is chaired by Donn jowell,

|
In accordance with the recJuwements of the London
Combined Code (1998} arfwd King II, ail members of the
DLC Audit Committee are non-executive directors and a
majority of the voting members are independent directors
Donn Jowell is not considered to be an independent non-
executive director: The board considered this situation and
having regarc to his knowlgdge of the group and his
objectivity, is satisfied that fie is currently the most
appropriate non-executive [director to chair the Audit
Committee.

Furthermore, in terms of the DLC structure. Investec
Limited and Investec ple have individual Audit Committees
that share similar respansibilities to the DLC Audit
Committee and report to the DLC Audit Committee. The
members of the Audit Cohmittee of investec plc are non-
executive directors and arg considered to be independent in
terms of the Londan Combined Code. The members of the
Audit Committee of Investec Limited are non-executive
directors anc the majority are considered to be
independent in terms of Kipg Il.

A number of seror managers are invited (or required by
the various Audit Committee charters) to attend the Audit
Committee meetings. The fisk and compliance managers,
internal auditors, respective firms of external auditors and
non-executive directors alkhave unrestricted access to the
Chawman of each Audit Committee and to one another

19 May 2003* 24 Nov 2003* |

DE Jowell {Chairman} v v
JN Abell v v
SE Abrahams {non-voting member) A v
GFO Alford v v
Sir C Keswick v A
Investec Limited Audit Committee 7 April 2003 27 Aug 2003 | 17 Nov 2003 2 Feb 2004
DE Jowell (Chairman) v v v v
SE Abrahams v v v v
PRS Thomas v v A v
Investec plc Audit Committee 9 May 2003 7 July 2003 29 Sept 2003 24 Nov 2003
IN Abell (Chairmar) v v : v v
SE Abraharrs A AL v v
GFO Alford v v | v v
GMT Howe (appointed 29 August 2003) | v v
Sir € Keswick v v \ A v
A= Apology

#* = Annual and interirm results review of the consolidated groun.




Audit and Compliance Implementation Forum

The Audit and Compliance Implementation Forum
continued o evolve in the year under review.

The forum is attended by certain executive directors and
heads of risk and control functions, Non-executive direciors
attend by invitation. The purpose of this forum is to facilitate
the timely escalation, response and understanding of risk and
contrel matters that require a response from management.
The forum performs a key role in enhancing risk and contral
cansciousness and the associated control environment of
the group. Tt supports and pravides key insights to the Audit
Committees.

Board Risk Review Committee

Role and responsibility

The purpase of the committee is to ensure that:

«  All decisions of the board on risk management policics
and procedures are implemented and monitored
throughout Investec.

*  The risk management structure is adequate, with
sufficient resources and budget, and exceptions are

Membership Board Risk Review Commitcee
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reported to the board.

+ Exposurg limits for market, counterparty and credit risk
are ratified,

+ There isjan ongaing process of risk and control
identification. particularly for any changes 1o business
objectives and the bases of measuring risk

The Board Risk Review Committes defines the processes by
which internal financial control risk is assumed and
monitored. The Audit Committee is responsible for
reviewing these processes, which are the domain of the
Board Risk Review Committee. The independent Group Risk
Management division provides the expertise, processes and
techniques flom which the processes can be built and
monitored daily.

A number of committees are dedicated to aspects of risk
management and report directly to the Board Risk Review
Committee and the Board of Directors. These include the
Group Asset| and Liability Committee, Group Credit
Committee, Country Risk Forum, Group Market Risk Forum
and Group Deal Forum. Details of these committees can be
found in the section on "Risk management” cn

pages 79 to §2.

Chairman

S Koseff (Chief Executive Officer)

Members

Neon-executive directors
it Abell

SE Abrahams
OMT Howe
DE jowell

Sir C Keswick
PRS Thomas

Executive directors of DLC and subsidiary boards
GR. Burger {Group Risk and Finance Director)

RFMA Forlee ‘
B Fried
B Kantor {(Managing Direclor}

DM Lawrence
A Tapnack
B Taprack
Senior management
JKC Whelan
IR WWohlman

Meeting times during the year

Manthiy




Executive Risk Review Forum
Role and responsibility

The Executive Risk Review Forum supplements the Board

Risk Review Committee and its purpose is to

+ Evaluate the most significant risks Investec faces in the
ordinary course of business (credit, market, liquidity,
operational, legal and reputational)

+  Ensure that limits are adhered to and that agreed
recommendations to mitigate risk are implemented.

+  Act as agent of the board to ensure that all decisions of
the board on risk management peolicies and procedures

are implemented and

monitored throughout groun.

+  Ensure the group-wide risk management structure is

adequately resourced
+  Provide regular report
effectiveness of the co
«  Provide reguiar report
regulatory reguiremen
regulatory requiremen
+  Ensure that there Is an
control identification,
changes to business ot
cammencang of a new

nd has an appropriate budget.
to the board with emphasis on
ntrof framework.

5 on group-wide adherence to
Is and advise on how changes to
rs will affect the group.

ongaing process of risk and
larticutarty m line with any
jectives, for example, the
trading area or product stream.

Membership
Chairman 5 Koseff (Chief Executive Officer)
Members GR Burger (Group Risk and

RPMA Forlee ‘

Finance Director)

B Fried |

S Hackner

PR jacobson

B Kantor (Managing Directo
DM Lawrence
AW) Leith

A Tapnack

B Taprack

DM van der Walt
R| Wainwright
JKC Whelan

IR Wohlman

)

Meeting trmes during the year

Bvery Friday except on the
Board Risk Review Comimitt

ee dates

Directors Affairs Committee

Investec Bank Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Invesec

Limited, a5 required in terms of the South African Banks Act,

esiablished the Directors Affairs Committee.

Role and responsibility

The role of the commitlee is to:

+  Assist the board in the determination and evaluation of
the adequacy. efficiency and appropriateness of the
carporate governance struclure and practices of the
bank.

«  Estabiish and maintain a board directorship continuity
programme entailing:

o A review of the performance of and planning for
successors to the executive directors.

o Measures to ensur
directors.

o A regular review g
experience and o
effectiveness of th

e continuity of non-executive

f the composition of skills,
her qualities required for the
= board.

¢ An annual assessment of the board as a whole and
of the contribution of each individual director.
+  Assist the board in thg nomination of successors to key

positions in the bank a
succession plan is in pl
+  Assist the board in det
employment of any di

nd ensure that a management
Ree.

ermining whether the

ector should be terminated.

= Assist the board in enguring that the bank was at all

times in compliance w,
and codes of conduct

th all applicable laws. regulations
of practices.

Membership
Chairman HS Herman
Members Non-executive directors
D Motsepe
Dr: MZ Nkos
FTit
RAP Uptan

Meeting times during the year

Twice a year




Neomination Committee
Role and respensibility

The committee will

*  Regularly review the board structurc, size and
composition and make recommendations to the board
on any changes that are deemed necessary.
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continuation (or not) n service of any director wha has
reached fthe age of 65 years

= Recommlend directors who will be retiring by rotation
to be put forward for re-election.

*  Assist the board in defining the role of the senor non-
executive director as required by the London Combined
Code {1p98).

*  Identify and nominate candidates for the approval of the Membership
boa‘]rd to ﬂ“. boe‘ird va‘canci{cs as and wherj they gr"i?c. ?s Chairman HS Herman
well as put in place plans for succession, in particular, for -
the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and the Members S_E Abr aharTws
Managing Director: Sir C Keswick
*  Make recommendations to the board for the Meeting times during the year Annually
continuation (or not) in service of a dirccton
*  Make recommendations to the board for the
\
Remuneration Committee \
Role and responsibilicy
The role of the Remuneration Committee is discussed in detail on pages 117 to| 119,
Membership and attendance
8 April 20 May 9 July, § Oct 26 Nov 4 Feb
2003 2003 2003 2003 2003 2004
GFCO Alford (Chairman) v v v v v v
IN Abell v v v v v v
Sir C Keswick v v v v v v

Management and succession planning

Global business unit heads, geographic management, and
heads of central and group service functions are appointed
by executive management and endorsed by the board,
based on the skills and experience deemed necessary to
perform the required function. In general, managers do not
have fixed term employment contracts and there are no
employment contracts with managers for a term of more
than three years. Investec’s management structure, reporting
lines and the division of responsibilities are built around a
geographic, divisional and functional network, as depicted on
page 44.

Furthermore, each strategic business unit has its own
executive rmanagement committee and is respansible for
taking and implementing operational decisions, manzging risk
and aligning divisional cbjectives with the group strategy and
vision,

Mattars of succession are considered regularly. Decision
making Is spread to encourage and develop an experienced

peol of talent. As at the year end, the Executive Committee

and Group Management Forum in South Africa were

augmented with selected senior management appointments.
i

Internal gontrol

The group aglopted the Turnbull guidance {"internal
Control: Guiglance for Directors on the Combined Code™,
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Englarid
and Wales in| 1999, and continued to embed the principles
throughout the group during the year under review.

Risks and cantrols are reviewed regularly for
appropriateniess and effectiveness. The Board Risk Review
Commitlee assists the board in this regard, Leading risk
management| practices are premoted by the Group Risk
Management| funclion, which is independent of cperalional
management

The board recagnises its responsisility for the overall risk
and control framework and for reviewing its effectiveness.




The system of internal control is designed to manage, not
eliminate, significant risks faced by the group and was in
place for the year under review. It is recognised that such a
system can only provide a reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance agamst material nusstatement or loss.

This 1s acheved within the group through a combination of
risk identification, evaluation and monitoring process,
appropriate decision and aversight forums and control
functions such as Risk Management, Internal Audit and
Compliance. These ongoing processes ware in place
throughout the year under review.

As part of the process, the overall Investec business was
broken down inte strategic business units. Through
establishment of a network of local risk champions, each unit
was empowered with the responsibility and accountability
for management of its own risle Cach business unit now
follows a consistent risk assessment process through
workshops facilitated by Group Risk Management.
Objectives to achieve shareholder value are defined, and the
risks to these objectives and controls for each risk are
identified and evaluated. The action plans and risk and
control issues arising from this process are reviewed
regularly at the relevant executive and management
committees based at a business unit level,

These risk assessments are reviewed regufarly by senior
rmanagernent and at least annually by the Board Risk Review
Committee.

Internal Audit reports any control recommendations to
senior management, risk management and the relevant Audit
Cornmittee.

Appropriate processes exist to ensure that timely corrective
actions are taken on matters raised by internal Audit.

Significant risks are reviewed weekly by the Executive Risk
Rewew Forum and maonthly by the Board Risk Review
Committee. Significant and material breaches of prescribed
controls are reperted to the Board Risk Review Commitiee
and the Audit Committee. Reports from the Audit
Committees, Board Risk Review Caommittee and control
functions are reviewed at each board meeting

Internal financial control

Financial contrels throughout the group focus an critical risk
areas. 1 hese areas are, a3 appropriate, identified by
operational management, confirmed by group management,
menitored by the board, reviewed by Group Risk
Management. assessed by the risk assurance functions of
Internal Audit and Compliance.

Internal financial controls are based on established policies
and procedures. Management is responsible for
implementing internal finangal controls, ensuring that
personnel are suitably qualified and that an appropriate
segregation exists between duties and independent review.

Processes are in place to monitor internal contrel
effectiveness, identify and report material breakdowns, and
ensure that timely and appyopriate corrective action s taken

The directors consider that the group’s system of internal

financial control is adequately designed to:

+  Provide reasonable, although not absolute, assurance of
both the integrity and felability of financial information.

« Identify and appropriately mitigate significant risks.

«  Safeguard, verify and mjaintain accountability of assets.

< Prevent and detect frafid.

+  Support business objegtives and sustainability under
normal and adverse ogerating conditions.

= Ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Risk management |

The board is responsible for the total process of risk
management and the system of internal control and
implemented a number oficommittees (as mentioned
above) to assist in this regdrd. Seniar management are
responsible far identifying fisk and implementing appropriate
mitigation and controls within their businesses. An
independent Group Risk Management division, which is
accountable 1o the board, {s respensible for designing and
reviewing the process of risk management.

Risk management is discussed in more detail an
pages 79 to 103.

Internal audit

Fach significant jurisdiction lhas an Internal Audit presence
that 15 appropriate for the size, nature and extent of
business conducted. Smaller jurisdictions are supported by
the internal Audit teams of the lnvestec Limited and Investec
ple groups.

A risk based audit approach is followed. Annual audit plans
are approved by the Audit|Committee.

Heads of Internal Audit report to the Head of Corporate
Governance and Compliance, and have unrestricted access
to the Chairmen of the various Audit Committees.

For further cetails on the group's internal Audit function.
see page 29.

External audit

The group’s external auditgrs are Ernst & Young and KPMG
Inc. The independence of the external auditors is recognised.

The Audit Committee megts with the external auditors to
review the scope of the externat audit, budgets and any
audit matters arising.




The external auditors attend the Audit Committee meetings
and have access to the Chairmen of the various Audit
Committees. Non-audit services are dealt with in terms of
an agreed policy.

Compliance

The group recognises its responsibility to conduct business
in accordance with the laws and regulations in the
jurisdictions in which it conducts business.

The group Compliance function is supparted by compliance
officers in the business units.

For further details on the group's Complance function, see
page 100 1o 101,

Regulation and supervision

The group is subject to external regulation and supervision
by various supervisory authorities - the main ones being the
South African Reserve Bank (SARB), the UK Financial
Services Authority (FSA) and the Australian Prudential
Regulatory Authority.

In terms of the DLC structure, the 5ARB Banking
Supervision Department is the lead supervisor of the
combined investec group, comprising Investec Limited and
Investec plc. The SARB is alse the supervisor of Investec
Limited, while the FSA in the UK is the supervisor of
Investec plc. The group attempts to establish and maintain
open and active dialogue with its regulators and supervisors.
Processes are i place to respond proacuvely and
pragmatically 1o emerging Issues, The group reports to
regulators and supervisory bodies regularly, Where
appropriate, the group participates in industry committees
and discussion groups to maintain and enhance the
regulatory envirgnment in which it operates.

Communication and stakeholder relations

The Board of Directors subscribes to a philosophy of
providing meaningful, transparent, timely and accurate
financial and non-financial information to its primary
stakeholders, which include employees, shaveholders,
government, regulatory bodies, clients. suppliers, rating
agencies, the media, communities and industry investment
analysts, This is to help these stakeholders make meaningful
assessments and informed investment decisions about the
group. Investec endeavours to present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the group’s position by
addressing material matters of significant interest and
concern. The board recognises the importance of ensuring
an appropriate balance in meeting the diverse needs and
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expectationg of all the group’s stakeholders and building

lasting relatig

The Investot
interaction

Relations di
divisions, the
matters and
again consid

nships with them.

Refations area continues to be enhanced and
ith major stakeholders is ongoing. The Invester
ision reparts back regularly to the operating
group executive and the board on various
concerns raised by stakeholders The group was
ered by independent evaluations of the annual

report to have excellent stakeholder communication.

The Annual
all stakehold

Vartous shan
raised a nur
Thase were
adopted in 1]
continue 1o
emerging go

Dealings

General Meeting 15 considered a forum in which
Ers can raise matters of concern.

eholder representative organisations in the LUK
ber of matters with the group during the year
all responded to and, where appropriate,

he practices of the group. The group wiil
pngage these bodies, to remain informed of
ernance 1Ssues.

in securities

Dealings in decurities are subject to a pelicy that has

operated for
regulatory g

The palicy d
transparenc
division. A ¢l
price sensiti

a number of years. invesiec's policy is based on
uidance and industry practice.

iscourages speculative trading, encourages

and is monitored by the Group Compliance
bsed period policy is in place during periods of
ity. during which officers and staff are precluded

from dealing| in securities of the group.

All personal

dealings are required 10 be conducted through

the group's $ecurities operation. to further enhance
transparency and monitoring.

VYaiues and code of conduct

The group H

RS a strong organisational culture of entrenched

values, which forms the cornerstone of the expected
behaviour off the group towards all stakeholders, both

internal and

lexternal. These values are embodied in a

written Statgment of Values. which serves as the group’s

Code of Eth
Code of Eth

cs and 15 continually reinforced The group's
¢s 1s updated from time to time. The group

regularly conducts vatues worksnops across the entire group,
to review with all members of staff the values, their meaning,

relevance an
group.

The group v
behaviour, w
policies and

K importance in the daily operations of the

ews all employees as the custodians of ethical
hich is reinforced through internal processes,
procedures. As such. ali new emplayees are

invited to attend induction processes at whicn the group's

philosophies,

values, culture, risk management. and




compliance procedures are explained and discussed.
Furthermore, the group's Organisational Development team
plays an impaortant rele in facilitating the understanding and
ongoing practice of the group's values. philosophies and
culture. In addition to the group values, acceptable business
practices are communicated through the Human Resource
practices manual, which is available online on the group's
intranet.

Investec continually strives to conduct its business with
uncormprormising integrity and fairness so as to promote
complete trust and cenfidence in the banking industry.

Employee participation and skills
development

Investec recognises that people are its most important asset.

1ts philosophy, therefore, 1s 1o employ the highest caltbre
individuals, who are characterised by integrity. intellect and
innavation, and demonstrate compatibility with Investec’s
philosophy and core values. Investec has a flat, integrated
structure, whare individuality is encowaged. The group is
cormmitted to meaningful employee participation in the
affairs of the group and to skills development. This is
elaborated on in the group’s 2001 sustainability report.

|

Employee ownershrp

Material employee owner

hip is cne of Investec's

fundamentat philosophies. As at 31 March 2004,
management and staff helq‘l an effective interest in Investec

of approximately 20%. O

to employees through the
leveraged equity schemes,
alt ernployees s aciively e

Information on the varioud

rernuneration report on p

Sustainable busines

nership of the group is devolved
varicus share optiens and

and participation in ownershio by
couraged,

schemes can be found in the
hges [21 1o |25,

5 practices

Seund governance at Investec covers economic, social and
environmental performance and practices.

The group's 2004 sustaémaﬂ)iht\/ report details invastec's
initiatives, programmes, actjvities and successes in

demonstrating the group’s
responsibility.

commitment to corporate social

The 2004 sustainabillity regort has been published as a
separate docurmertt and has been packaged with the annual
repost. 1t 1s alse available ﬁ: request and on the group's

website; www.investec.co

/grouplinksfinvestorrelations
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Remuneration report

Statement from the Chairman of the Board The report is intended ta comply with the provisions of the
R . C . 1998 Londoh Combined Code. the UK Directers’

emuneration L.ommittee Remuneratign Report Regulations 2002, the UK Financial
Services Authority Listing Rules, the South Alrican King !
“Code of Corporate Practice and Conduct” and the [ST
Securities Exchange South Africa (JSE) Listing Rules. In
addition, the|board recognises the recemmendations made
in the revised London Combined Code {the 2003 Code),
which will bgcome effective for all listed companies for
reporting yeprs beginning on or after | November 2003,
Where relevant, changes have been, and will continue to be
made 1o comply with these provisions, which are applicabte
forr the group's 2005 financial year.

The remuneration report has been prepared by the
Remuneration Committee and has been approved by the
Board of Directors,

The board believes that a properly constituted and effectve
remuneration committee is key for improving the link
between directors’ pay and performance, with the ultimate
aim of enhancing the group's competitiveness,

The primary purpose of the committee 15 to determine the
2roup’s policy on the remuneration of executive directors
and the remuneration package for each executive director,
The committee is made up exclusively of non-executive
directors, and executive directors are not involved in
determining their own remuneration packages.

This report describes the group's current remuneration
policy and details the directors' remuneration for the 2004 <

. ; . -
financial year. Srge Alford‘ \

Chairman, Bpard Remuneration Cormmiriee

Furthermore, the auditors are of the opinion that the
auditable paft of this report on pages 127 tc 133 has been
properly prepared. in accordance with the Directors’
Remuneratign Report Regulations 2002




Composition and role of the committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee during the
year were George Alford (Chairman), John Abelt and Sir
Chips Keswick. The committee membpers are independent
non-execytive directors and are free from any business or
ather refationship which could materiafly interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgement.

The commiteee’s principal responsibilities and cbjectives

are to:

+  Make recommendations to the board, within agreed
terms of reference, an the group’s framework of
executive remuneration, and to determine on thew
behalf specific remuneration packages for executive
directors.

»  Ensure that executive directors are appropriately and
fairly remunerated and incentivised for their contribution
to the group's performance, taking into account both
qualitatrve and guantrative factors.

¢ Review comparable companies’ remuneration practices.
This is to ensure that competitive reward strategies and
programmes are in place, which will attract and retain
qualifed and experienced management and executives
necessary 10 meet the group’s objectives and safeguard
sharehoider interests.

= Administer and establish performance targets for
Investec’s employee share schemes.

= Ensure that the comments, recommendations and rules
within South Africa and the UK pertaining to director’s
remureration are given due regard, in determining the
packages and arrangements of executive directors,

+  Review the remuneration packages for executive
management.

The committee 1s authorised by the board to seek any
information it requires from any employee of the group n
arder to perform its duties.

Meetings

The committee met six times during the linancial year and
all members attended the meetings, The Company Secretary
of investec ple, Richard Vardy, acted as Secretary 1o the
committee.

Advisers to the committee

Where aporopriate, the committee has access to
independent executive remuneration consultants. The
selection of the advisers 15 at the discretion of the
committee Chairmar, and the group bears any expenses
relating to the appoirtment of external consultants, During
the financial year, the committee continued to use the
services of Sibsen Consuiting. Furthermore, the group has
used the services of Linklaters, which has advised on a
number of issues pertaining to the group's share incentve
plans. Linklaters is Investec plc’s legal adviser.

Group Human Resources lalso advises the committee, The

Human Resources divisior

15 a specialist function within the

group and provides supperting information and

documentation relating to
committee. This includes ¢
for proposed safary, bonug

matters that are presented to the
prparative data and moetivations
and share awards. The Head of

the group's Human Resoufces division, Patsy McCue, is not a

board director and is not

While the Chief Executive
any meeting of the cormmi

sppointed by the cormnmittes,

Officer has the right 1o address
tiee, he plays no role in the

determination of his remuheration package or any other

exacutive director’s remu

Policy on executivg
employees’ remund

The group's philosophy is
individuals, who are charag
innovation. lnvestec strives
within all areas of the gro
environment that stimulats
that executive diectors a
contributeors to the group,

eration package.

directors’ and
ration

te empioy the highest calibre
terised by integrity, intellect and
o inspire entrepreneurship

p by providing a working

s extraordinary performance, so
d emnployees may be positive

its clients and their communities.

Investec rewards execulive directors and employees as

individuals for their contrit
industry competitive annu
reward and awnership in

utien through payment of an
al package, a variable performance
he form of share incentive

scheme participation. Qverall rewards, however, are

considered secondary in if
values of werk content (g
variety of work and high lg
affliation {entrepreneurial
culture) in the attraction,
employees.

Investec has a strong entre
culture. characterised by a
and stamina. The ability 1o
values, culture and philose
of excellence is considere:
overall reward levels. Thes
of the execulive diractors.

hportance to Investec’s core
eater scope of responsibility.
wvel of challenge) and work
feel to company and unigque
etention and motivation of

preneurial, merit and values-based
high degree of passion, energy
live and perpetuate the stated
phies of the group in the pursuit
paramount in determining

F values clearly apply i the case

Both the type of people the oreanisation attracts, and the

culture ang environment -
crucial in determining the
Investec.

ithin which they work, remain
buccass and long-term progress of

The key principles of Investec's overall remuneration
Y P P

policy for executive direc

ars and employees, which was

applied during the financial year, are as follows:
*  Reward programmes Jre designed and administered to

align directors’ and en

the group's stakeholde)

ployeas’ interests with those of

“

«  Reward programmes gre clear and transparent, in order
1o retain individual intgrest in. and identification with, the

short and long-term s

liccess of Investec.




*  Total rewards comprise a fixed and variable camponent,

* Asignificant proportion of rewards, including bath
annual and long-term incentive compoenents, are
explicitly linked to the performance of the business and
the individual business units. Investec recognises the
performance of the business and the individual As
indicated above, however, both qualitative and
quantiative issues form an integral part of the
determination of reward levels.

*  Reward fevels are targeted 1o be commercially
competitive, on the following basis;

© The most relevant competitive reference poirts for
rewvard levels are based on Lhe scope of
responsibility and individual contribution made.

© Appropriate benchmark, industry and comparable
organisations’ remuneration practices are reviewed
regularly.

o For executive directors. the FTSE UK Speciality and
Other Finance firms provide the most appropriate
benchmark.

o For employees. a combinalion of firms from the JSE
Financiat 15 and the FTSE UK Speciality and Other
Finance sector offer the most appropriate
benchrmark.

© In order to avoid disproportionate packages across
areas of the group and between exacutives,
adjustments are made at any extremes to ensure
broad internal group consistencies. Adjustments may
also be made to the competitive positioning of pay
components for individuals, in cases where a higher
level of investrent is needed in order to build or
grow etther a business unit or the group's capability
in a geography.

= The total cash element of compensation {base salary
plus annuai bonus) is linked to the relevant competitive
market {see above) at upper quartile levels,

*  The reward strategy is open to internal as well as
externai scrutiny and challenge, and reward programmes
are communicaled to executive direclors.

Al the time of writing, the committee’s intentions were to
apply the same philosophies and prindiples for the
determination of the executive directors’ reward packages
for the 2005 financial year. These philosophies and principles,
however, are subject to appropriale review,

Pelicy on non-executive directors’
remuneration

The policy on the remuneration packages for non-executive
directors is agreed and determined by the beard. During the
previous financial year. the committee conducted a peer
group review in order to determine the appropriate level
for non-executive directors' packages.

Following the peer group review, it was agreed that the non-
executive directors (with the exception of the Chairman)
would te paid a basic retainer of £35,000, during the 2004
financial year, for their services as directors. Additicnal fees
of £10,000 are payable for ¢hairing or being a member of

|19

Annuzt Report 2004

the group Audit or Remurieration Committee. Furthermore,

£5000 per annum is payal

le for being a member of an

Investec plc subsidiary board and R8,000 is payable par
meeting for being a member of the Investec Bank Limited

beard. Fees are also payab
services that are provided

e for any consulting and other
to the group. At the time of

writing, lhe committee’s inlentions were to maintain this fee
structure for non-executive directors for the 2005 financial

year, except as follows:
+ The fee payable for be
Bank Limited board wi
RI12000 per meeting.
*  The chairman of the R
receive £15.000.

These fee structures. howew

review.

During the 2004 financial
fee of £250,000 for his ser

ing a member of the Investec
Il increase from R8,000 to

emuneration Committee will

er, are subject 1o appropriate

ear. the Chairman received a total
ices as a director and it is intended

thal he will receive £275,000 for the 2005 financial vear

Furthermare, nan-executi
the group’s share incentive

e directors may not participate in
plans. Prior to the

implementation of the grolp’s Dual Listed Companies

(DLC) structure in July 20

2, certain non-execuiive directors

did participate in Investec Group Limited’s (now Investec

Limited's) share incentive g
Service contracts a
employment

The executive directors of]
contracts of employment,

lans.

nd terms of

the group have indefinite
erminable by either party giving

six months written notice fto the other. Each executive

director is entitled to recel
eligible for an annual bonu
determined al the discreti

e 2 basic salary and is aiso
, the amount of which will be
n of the committee,

Furthermore, the executive directors may elect to sacrifice a

pertion of their annual sal#ry 1o receive company benefits
such as a travel allowance pnd medical aid. The full costs of
these benefits will be deducted from their annual salary. The
contracts of employment do not contain provisions for
compensation payable on garly termination,

Non-executive directors db not have service contracts and
letters of appointment confirm the terms and conditions of
their service. Unless the ndn-executive direclors resign
earlier or are removed from their positions, they will be

appointed as directors unt
general meeting (AGM) in
directors at that AGM and
Articles of Association),

Dates of appointme

The beards of Investec plc
and subject to separate leg
campany. They comprise th
authorised, as boards, to m
unified economic enterpris

| the close of the group’s annuat
2005 (subject to re-election as
in terms of the provision of the

2nt to the board

and Investec Limited are separate
Al obligations for each respective
e same persons who are

gnage Investec as if it were a

o




The directors of investec plc, and the dates on which they were appointed to the board, are set out in the table below:

Date of Notice Compensation payable on
Name appointment period early termination of contract

Executive directors |

S Koseff (Chief Executive Officer} 24 June 2002 é menths ! No

B Kantor (Managing Director) 26 June 2002 & months No

GR Burger {Group Risk and Finance Director) 3 july 2002 & months ‘ No

A Tapnack I buly 2002 6 months | No
Non-executive directors ‘

HS Herman {Chairmar) 26 June 2002 !

IN Apell 19 March 2042 !

SE Abrahams 26 June 2002 |

GFO Alferd 26 June 2002 \

H Fukuda OBF 21 July 2003

GMT Howe 21 Juby 2003

DE Jowell 26 June 2002 i

IR Kantor 26 June 2002

Sir C Keswick 26 June 2002

MP Malungani 26 June 2002 |

PRS Thomas 26 June 2002 ‘

FTiti 30 January 2004

The directors of Investec Limited, and the dates on which they were appointed to the board, are set out in the table below:

Date of Notice Compensation payable on
Name appointment period early termination of contract
Executive directors
S Koselff (Chief Executive Oflicer) & October 1986 & months No
B Kantor (Managing Director) § June 1987 6 months No
GR Burger (Group Risk and Finance Director) 3 July 2002 & months ; No
A Tapnack I July 2002 & months ‘ No
Non-executive directors ‘
HS Herman {Chairemany | Janoary 1994 i
N Abell 26 June 2002
SE Abrahams 21 October 1996
GFO Alferd 26 June 2002
H Fukuda OBE 21 July 2003
GMT Howe 21 july 2003
DE Jowell | January 1989
IR Kantor 30 july 1980
Sir C Keswick 26 June 2602
MP Malungani 26 June 2002
PRS Thomas 2% June 1981
F Tt 30 January 2004

Note: The board of Investec Group Limited (now Investec Limited) was reconstituted in terms of the implementation of the
group’s DLC structure in July 2002 In terms of providing informauon on the date that directorfs have been appointed to the
Investec Limited board. it would be misleading, in the <ase of those directors who had been members of the Investec Group
Limited board. to indicate that they have only been directors since the date of implementing the group’s DLC structure. As a
result, for those directors concerned, the dates of appointment reflect the date that they werel first appointed to the Investec
Group Limited board.




Biographical details of the directors of the
board

These details can be found on pages 139 and 140.

Policies on the components of
remuneration and employment

The reward package for executive directors and employees
comprises:

*  Base salary and benefits,

» Annual bonuses.

+  Long-term share incentive plans.

The committes reviews the elements of the reward package
relative 1o appropriate benchmarks and other comparable
orgamisations, the value of indwviduals in perpetuating the
group'’s values and cutture, and the possible reptacement
cost of such individuals.

The elements of the reward package, as listed above, are
discussed below and the components for each director are
detailed in tables accompanying this report.

Base salary and benefits

Salaries are reviewed annually and reflect the relative skills
and experience of, and contribution made by, the indradual.
Base pay levels are linked to the refevant competitive
market (as discussed on page |192) at median levels,

Benefits pravide lang-term financial value based an
continucus employment and are targeted at compettive
levels. These are delivered through flexible and tatlored
packages. Benefits include pension schemes: tife, disability and
personal accident insurance: medical cover; and other
benefits, as dictated by competitive local market practices.

Annual bonus

Annual bonuses are linked to business performance. based
on target business unit performance goals. individual annual
incentive levels are allocated, based on individual
perfarmance. as determined by the committee,
Furthermore, as discussed previously. qualitative issues are
integral in the determination of annual bonuses.

The total cash element of compensation (base salary plus
annual bonus) 5 targeted at the relevant competitive market
{as discussed on page 1 19) at upper quartile Jevels for
meeting target performance goals.

In this regard, if business and individua! performance goals
are achieved or bettered, the variable eiement of the total
reward package is likely to be substantially higher than the
relevant target market. This is in order to ensure that overall
reward levels are finally posrtioned at the upper quartile
level In certain circumstances, therefore, the annual bonus
may be more than 100% of the base salary. The commitiee
has set an upper limit for the annual bonus for executive
directors at a maximum of three times thew respective
annual base salaries.
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Long-term share incentive plans

The group his & number of share incentive plans that are
designed to |ink the interests of the directors and employees
with those of shareholders and long-term organisational
interests, thraugh performance and risk-based equity grants, The
share plan vehicles In operation. and in which the directors are
eligible to participate, are outlined below. Directors and
employees collectively hold approximately 20% of the group's
issued share capital. as detalled in tables accompanying this
report,

Share oprion/incentive plans

Investec ple|Share Option Plan 2002 {approved and
unapproved
Allacations under ths scheme are granted to all new fuil-
time employess and, on & discretionary basis cartain other
employees, including directors and executives, in the group
in all jurisdictions, excluding South Africa, Botewana, Namibia
and Mauritids.

Under this stheme, options are granted, over Investec plc
shares. at the prevailing market value and each tranche of
the options may only be exercised if the committee is
satisfied that| the relevant performance conditicns have been
met. These donditions require growth in headline earnings
per share {EPS) over the relevant option period to equal or
exceed the UK Retail Price Index (RPI}, plus 3%
compoundegt annually over the same period. In choosing the
performance targets for this plan, the committee considered
the merits of EP5-based targets against alternative
possibilities, puch as comparative perfermance or
comparative| growth in return on average shareholders’ funds
(ROE) against a basket of other companies. The committee
determined fthat EPS-based targets are most appropriate as
they measure the underlying growth of the group. The
committee intends to continue to apply this during 2005 but
keeps the whole matter of the suitability of target-linked
share based|remunaration under periadic review.

Grants up 16 the value of £30,000 are made 10 UK
employees an the approved plan. Options exceeding
£30,000 and grants in jurisdictions other than the UK are
made on the unapproved plan.

Under the approved plan. options vest in tranches of 20%,
30% and 50% at the third. sixth and ninth anniversaries of
the grant respectively. Any portion of the tranches that is
not, or cannpt, be exercised lapses on expiry of 90 days
after each anniversary.

The options|in terms of the unapproved plan pecome
exercisable in tranches of 25% each on the second, third,
fourth and fifth anniversaries of the grant respectively. They
similarly lapge 90 days after each anniversary if the options
are not, or dannot be, exercised.

Investec plc|Share Appreciation Cption Plan 2002
Under this scheme, options are granted which, when
exercised, pay out a cash amount based on the increase in
the Investec|Limited share price. This scheme is used to
achieve the kame objectives as the unapproved plan in
circumstances in which the reguiatory authorities of the




previous plan, o of the country in which the intended
participant is resident, or the individual or corporate
taxation consequences of such participation. make
participation in the previous scherme impossible or
inadvisable.

It is thus a scheme which, by duplicaling the provisions of
the previcus scheme, enables the group to place a proposed
participant in the same position by way of cash settlernent
or otherwise. as he would have been had he participated in
the unapproved plan.

Investac Group Limited UK Share Option Plan

Prior to listing on the London Stock Exchange (LSE) on

29 July 2002, the group operaled this plan in terms of which
options over the then listed Investec Group Limiled shares
were grarted to employees, directors and executives in all
jurisdictions, exciuding South Africa. Botswana, Naribia and
Mauritius. The options were exercisable in tranches of 25%
each on the second, Lhird, fourth and fifth anniversaries of
the grant. Performance conditions were not attached, as at
the time this was not deemed appropriate, and the options
did not lapse until the 10th anniversary of the grant,

Participants have ongoing rights in terms of the plan, on
which the last grant was made on 20 June 2002, No further
options will be granted under this plan.

Investec Limited Security Purchase and Option Scheme
Trust 2002

Allocatiors under the option scheme of this trust are
granted to all new fuli-time employees and, on a
discretionary bass, certain other emgployees, including
directors and executives, in the group in South Africa,
Botewana, Namibia and Mauritius. Since listing on the LSE on
29 July 2002, three grants have been made in terms of the
option scheme. The most recent grant was made on 3
December 2003.

As with the UK scheme above, options are granted at the
prevailing market value and each tranche may oniy be
exercised If the commitlee is satisfied that the performance
conditions have been met. These conditions require growlh
in headling EPS over the relevant performance period to
equal or exceed the UK RPL plus 3% compounded annually
over the same period. The reasons for adopting an EPS-
based target are the same as those outlined above, Subject
Lo this perormance condition being met, options become
exercisable in tranches of 25% each on the second, third,
fourth and fifth anniversaries of the grant and will lapse 20
days after sach such anniversary if the options are not, or
cannat be, exercised.

Prior to listing on the LSE, offers of shares in terms of the
purchase schemne were made, for which participants have a
liability Lo the trust for the purchase consideraticn of the
shares, They bear the risk for any potential loss in the
market value of the underlying shares but are entitled to any
rise in such market value after the offer becornes

axercisable, Purchase offer
of 25% each on the secon
anniversaries of the effecti
but none of the tranches |
the acceptance of the offe

become exercisable in tranches
d. third, fourth and fifth

e date of acceptance of the offer
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Investec Limited Security
Trust
Prior 1o listing on the LSE
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- 10% of original number of securities offered, on 15 May 2006,
- 10% of criginal number of securities offered, on 15 May 2007,
- 10% of criginal number of securities offered, on 15 May 2008.
- 20% of original number of securities offered, on 15 May 2009
- 20% of original number of securities offered, on 15 May 2010,
- 30% of original number of securities offered. on 15 May 201 1.

No shares may be released from the scheme until
I5 May 2011.

Leveraged equity plans

A grouo of senior and executive managers, ncluding certain
Investec Limited/ Investec ple directors, who have or can
have a significant impact on the business, have been granted
participation in leveraged equity plans known as Fintique |l
and Fintique |ll, details of which are outlined below.

Fintigue 11

Fintigue 1l was constituted on 31 July 1996, via a special
purpose vehicle (SPV), inttially availabie to 235 selected
executives, senior managers and directors. Participants
acquired units in the SPV, where the underlying instruments
are compulsory convertible debentures, which convert inte
886 investec shares for every | Q00 units in Fintique 11,

The scheme was funded through:

+  Cash contributions from participants.

«  The upfront sale of the income stream on the
debentures and the right to the redemption proceeds.

Fintique Il participants have a right to receive a combination
of tnvestec Limited and Investec plc shares on maturity of
the scheme on 31 July 2008 They also have an obligation o
pay any patential shortfail on maturity. for which they have
signed a personal surety.

All the units in Fintique Il were fully vested as at 31 July 2002
As at 31 March 2004, the unit holder had a liability of R77.63
oer share. A total of 4.0 million units have been issued in
terms of the scheme, converting into approximately 3.5
millicn shares.

Fintique Il}

Fintigue Il was constituted in Guernsey (British Virgin
lslands) on |5 December 1998, via its own SPV, initially
available to 500 selected executives, senior managers and
directors. Participants acquired units in the SPV, where the
underlying instruments were compulsory convertible

debentures,
svery | 000
The scheme
«  Cash cor
+  The sale

third pat
+  The sho
+ The sale
+ Loans fr

Investec

Fintgiue NIl p;
of R102.38

on |5 Decel
signed a per

in terms of t
or vested, wi
December 2
as at 31 Mart
consideratic
above.

A total of 9,
scheme, con
a gross basis

Share inve
Spunwing is
vehicle, creal
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participants.
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Summary of Investec’s share option plans

The table below provides a high-level summary of the information on the share option plans g

utlined above.

Date Maximum award
Plan Eligibilivy implemented Option/shares per individual'
Investec plc Share + New and existing LUK 28 August 2002 lrwestec plc + Cumuiative lirmit of 500,000
Option Plan 2002 full-time employees - grants across all option plans
(approved plam) up to the value of £30.000 ¢ In any financial year:
« Dieclors and executives Ix remuneration package
Investec plc Share + New and existing full-time 28 August 2002 Investec ple + Cumulative limit of 500,000

Option Plan 2002
{unapproved plan)

employees

1Y

Excluding employces in SA,

Botswana, Namibia

and Mauritius

« UK employees - grants
exceeding £30,000

+ Dircctors and executives

accross ail option plans
In any financial year:
I remuneration package

Investec plc Share + New and existing full-time
Appreciation Option ernployees
Plan 2002 = Excluding employees in SA,

Botswana, Namibia
and Mauritius

+ UK employees - grants
exceeding £30,000

» Directors and executives

28 August 2002

Cash scttled based
on the increase in
the Investec
Lirnited share price

Curnulatve limit of 500600
across all option plans

In any financial year:

Ix remuneration package

Invester Group Limited  »
UK Share Option Plan

Employees - excluding S5A,
Botswana, Namibta
and Mauritius

.

Directors and executives

I November 1999

Investec Group
Limited (prior|to
implernentatioh of
DLC structurg)(now
Investec Limited
and Investec plc)

Cunwiative limit of 500,000
across all option plans

In any financial year:

Ix remuneration package

Investec Limited + New and existing full-time
Security Purchase employees in SA, Botswana,
Mamibia and Mauritius

Trust 2002 + Directors and executves

and Option Scheme

20 June 2002

investec Limited

Curmlative limit of 560,000
acrass alt option plans

in any financial year:

I» remuneration package

Investec Limited * Employees in SA, Botswana,

Security Purchase and Namibia and Mauritius

Ostion Scheme Trust Directors and executives

25 November 1988 nvestec LémiLJd

Cumulative limit of 500,000
across all option plans

In any financial year:

> remuneration package

Notes:
" The limits for allocations to employees and executive
management during a financial year may be oxceeded if
the directors determine that exceptional circumstances
make it desirable that options should be granted in
excess of that limit.
This represents the number of options issued 1o all

participants. For furthel’ detalls, sce the Director's
Report on page 146. More details on the directors’
shareheldings are also prowided in tables accompanying

this report

As from the date of the implementation of the group’s
DLC structure (29 July| 2002). the maximum number of
shares which may be allocated under all of the group’s




Performance conditions

Growth in headline EPS>UK
RPI plus 3% compounded annually
over the pericd of the grant

Vesting period

Tranches of 20%, 30%
and 50% at the third, sixth
and ninth anniversaries

respectively

Options granted
during the year ?
i

t ﬂO.‘IS?.
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Total issued as at
31 March 2004 ***

Number: 614,576
% ol issued share
capral of company: 0.8%

Growth in headline EPSZUK
RPI plus 3% compounded annually
aver the peniod of the grant

Tranches of 25% each on the
second, third, fourth and
fifth anniversaries

959.584

Number: 6,587,117
% of issued share
capital of company: 8.8%

Growth in headline EPS>UK
RPI plus 3% compounded annually
over the period of the grant

Tranches of 25% each on the
second, third, fourth and
fifth anniversaries

Number: 267 553
% of issued share
caprtal of company: 0%

Naone

Tranches of 25% each on the
second, third, fourth and
fifth anniversaries

Last grant made
20 Junc 2002,
N further grants

=]

will be made

Number: Nil

Growth in headline EPS>UK
RPI plus 3% compounded annually
over the period of the grant

Tranches of 25% each an the
secand, third, fourth and
fifth anniversaries

212,550

Number: 5.8:9.363
% of issued share
capital of company: 13.2%

MNone

Tranches of 25% each on the
second, third, fourth ard
fifth anniversaries

Last grant made
or] 20 june 2002,
N

will be made

b further grants

Number: 2,273,383

% of issued share
capizal of company: 5.2%

option plans may not exceed 105 of the issued share
capital of the company The issued share capiial of
Investes plc and Investec Limited at 31 March 2004 was
74.6 million shares and 44.0 million shares respectively.
In terms of the London Listing Requirements, shares
allocated in terms of the share incentive plans prior ta

the impl
consider
The rmar

The mar
31 March

mentation of the BLC structure are not
ed when calculating the 10% threshold.

et price of an Investec plc share as at

31 Marciy 2004 was £10.89 (2003: £6.15).

et pricc of an Investec Limited share as at
2004 was R12530 (2003: R76.50).



Performance graphs

investec is an international specialist banking group that
provides a diverse range of finandial products and services
to a niche client base in two principal markets, the UK and
South Africa, as well as in certain other geographies,
including Australia and Israel. The group 15 not considered to
be purely a commercial bank and facuses on the following
four core areas of activity: Investment Banking, Private Client
Activities, Treasury and Specialised Finance and Asset
Management,

The group has implemented a DLC structure, in terms of
which it has primary listings in Johannesburg and London
(for furthe: information, see page 37).The listing on the LSE
took place on 29 july 2002, although the group has been
listed n South Alfrica since 1984,

The market price of the group's shares on the |SE was
R12530 as at 31 March 2004, ranging from a low of R77.50
to a high of R151.00 during the financial year. Furthermore,
the market price of the group’s shares on the LSE was
£10.89 as at 31 March 2004, ranging from a low of £6.12 to
a high of £11.81 during the financial year

The UK Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002
require this report to include a performance graph of the
company’s total shareholder return performance against that
ol a broad market index.

Investec has found 1t difficult to find an appropriate group of
cempanies 10 benchmark itself against because of its
specialist activities. A number of companies within the FTSE
Speciality and Other Finance index conduct very similar

activities 1o Investec, altholgh they do not necessarily have
the same geographical profite. Nevertheless. the group
believes thal this is the mast appropriate index against
which to measure its perfdrmance on the LSE. Selection of
an appropriate index against which to measure the group's
performance on the |SE islmore difficult. None of the
companies within the financial sector could be considered
direct comparators as they are generally commercial banks,
and asset management or |nsurance companies. The group.
however. still considers thel JSE Financial 15 Index a more
appropriate benchmark than the |SE Top 40 Index,

The graphs below show the cumulative shareholder return
for a holding of the group’s shares (in green), firstly in
Sterling on the LSE, compared to the average total
shareholder return of other members of the FTSE Speciality
and Other Finance Index and secondly in Rands on the JSE
compared to other membeérs of the |SE Financial |5 Index.
The informatien for Investec ple is only available from the
end of July 2002, whan it was listed on the LSE.

The graph thal indicates investec plc's performance relative
to the FTSE Speciality and |Gther Finance Index is included
in terms of the requirements of the UK Direclors’
Remuneration Report Regllations 2002, However, since
there is no five-year history of Investec plc's share price
performance, the graph on Investec Limited's performance
on the JSE has been included, in order o provide
stakeholders with a more complete picture.

During the pericd under review the return to shareholders
of Investec pic (measured n Pounds Sterling) and Inveslec
Limited (measured in Rands) was 859% and 72.9%,
respectively.
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Audited information

Directors' annual remuneration

The following table shows a breakdown of the annual remuneration (excluding g
3t March 2004:

quity awards) of directars for the year ended

As mentioned elsewhere in this report, the fees of the non-executive direc

1
board. following a peer group review undertaken by the Remuneration Corq

The salaries of S5 Kosefl and B Kantor were adiusted by the Remuncrat
undertaken during the prior financial year, in order to align their base sa
philosophy. as discussed clsewhere in this report. GR Burger is paid gros
represents an increase of 4% in Rand terms over the prior year (2003: R2.5
reflects the appreciation of the Rand against Pounds Sterling of approximate
The executive directors receive other benefits which may include pensio
insurance; and medical cover, on similar terms ta other scnior executives
The annual bonuses paid to executive directors increased substantially, refle
54.1% to £132.1 million and the improverment in the return 1o sharehoiders
72.9%, vespectively, The Remuneration Committec believes that the overall re
annual bonus) of the executive directors are still below that of the compar:
that the annual bonus awarded is well below the maximum limit for variable

Salaries, directors Total Total Total
Gross fees and cther other Annual remuneration remuneration
remuneration  remuneration benefits benus expense expense

2004 2004 = 2004 ¢ | 2004 ° 2004 2003 ¢
Name £ £ £ £ £ £
Executive directors
S Koseff
(Chief Executive Officer) 350 000 311633 38 367 625 Q00 975 000 580 000
B Kantor }
{Managing Director) 350 000 316773 33227 I 625000 975 000 630 000
GR Burger E
{Group Risk and i
Finance Directar) 216403 183 777 32626 625 000 841 403 317 570
A Tapnack 237 702 215 000 22702 250 000 487 702 487 742
Total Pounds Sterling 1 154 105 1 027 183 126 922 2 125000 3279105 2215312
Non—executive directors !
HS Herman {Chairman) - 250 000 - ‘ - 250 000 186 311
JN Abell - 70 000 - - 70 000 43 250
SE Abrahams 103 074 ‘ 103 074 59 332
GFO Alford 70 000 \ - 70 000 40 QCC
Dr HK Davies ’ - - - - - I 0C9
GH Davin® - - - - - 1279
H Fukuda OBE * 26 250 - 6250 -
GMT Howe * - 31558 - - 31558 -
DE Jowell 182 116 - 182 116 127 760
IR Kantor - 40 000 - - 40 0G0 22 500
Sir C Keswick - &0 000 - - 60 000 40 0C0
MP Malungam 36997 ! 36 997 23750
DR Motsepe - - - - I 009
Dr MZ Nkosi - - - - - - 2851
PRS Thomas - 102 409 - - 102 409 57 785
FTiti * - 8 496 8 495
Total Pounds Sterling - 980 900 - - 380 900 606 835
Total Pounds Sterling 1 154 105 2 008 083 126 922 2 125 000 4 260 005 2 822 147
Notes:

Gross remuneration comprises base salary and other benefits (sec point 4 Helow).

rs, including the Chairman, were adjusted by the
mittee during the prior financial year.
on Committee following a peer group review
aries at median levels in line with the group's
remuneration in Rands of R2.4 million, which
millier). The Pound Sterting increase of 29.14%
y 20% over the period.
schemes; lfe, disability and personal accident

ctive of the imprevement in eperating profit of
of Investec plc and Investec Limited of 85.9% and
nuncration packages (comprising basc salary and
tive peer group (as reflected on page |19} and
remuneration as set out on page 121




A breakdown of the components of the reward packages for the execulive directors in th 2003 financial year is as follows:

1 Annual

Total Total
Gross other remuneration
remuneration Salary benefits ‘ bonus expense

Name £ £ £ £ £
Executive directors
S Koseff {Chief Executive Officer) 280 000 248 253 31 747 i 300 000 58C 000
B Kantor (Maraging Director) 280 000 257 434 17 566 350 000 630 000
GR Burger {Group Risk and Finance Director} 167 570 143 834 23736 350 000 517 570
A Tapnack 237 742 215 000 22742 250 000 487 742
Total Pounds Sterling 965 312 859 521 105 791 | 250 000 2215312

Resigned with effect from 26 June 2002. In terms of the implementation of the DL{]

committees of tnvestec Group Limited (now Investec Limited) were reconst tuted.
* Appeinted to the board with effect from 21 July 2003,
Appeintad to the board with effect from 30 |anuary 2004,

Retirement benefits
Nene of the executive directors belong to a defined benafit pension scheme and all are mem
contribution schemes. The total contribution to these schemes, payable by the company, includs
or included in benefits paid as highlighted in the table above. ks a3 follows:

structure, the board and board

bers of one of the group's defined
d in the total salary of the director

Name 2004 2003
£ £
Executive directors
S Kaseff {Chief Executive Cfficer) 28 080 22697
B Kantor {Managing Cirector) 26 364 23 261
GR Burger (Group Risk and Finance Director) 24 960 18 157
ATapnack 21 560 22742
Totat Pounds Sterling 100 904 86 857
Non-executive directors
HS Herman (Chairman) - il 348

Directors’ shareholdings and options
The company's register of directors’ interests contains full details of directors’ shareholdings ary

The tables that follow provide information on the directors' shareholdings and options for the

d options.

year ended 31 March 2004,



129

Annual Repart 2004

Directors’ shareholdings in Investec plc and Investec Limited shares as at 31 March 2004
Beneficial and Beneficial and Beneficial and Beneficial and
ron-beneficial non-beneficial % of shares non-beneficial non-beneficial % of shares
Name interest ' interest ' in issue interest ' interest ' in issue ?
Investec Investec Investec Investec Investec nvestec
ple? ple ple Limited * Limited Limited
L April 2003 31 March 2004 31 March 2004 | April 2003 31 March 2004 31 March 2004
Executive directors
S Koseff 782 401 871 997 1.2% 341 987 181 386 0.4%
B Kantor 370 267 100 792 795 1 050 000 2.4%
GR Burger 404 275 445 3560 0.6% 143 465 80 977 2%
ATapnack - - - - - -
Non-executive directors
HS Herman 214823 255 205 0.3% o 67442 48 905 0.1%
IN Abell 283 283 - 66 166
SE Abrahams - - - } - - -
GFO Alford - - - i - -
H Fukuda OBE - I 000 - -
GMT Howe - -
DE Jowell 73732 60 000 0.1% 43 302 -
IR Kantor 250 867 250 867 0.3% 450 450
Sir C Keswick 3150 3150 | 850 | 850 -
MP Malungan: * - - I 545 778 3.5%
PRS Thomas 137 162 137 162 0.2% 51191 51191 0.1%
FTig ¢ - - - - 364 000 0.8%
Total number 2 236 970 2025 124 2.7% | 442 648 3324 703 7.5%

Notes:

Towards the end of the 2003 financial year, certain directors acquired shareg

Spurwing. These shares are included in the amounts reflected under benefic:al interests.

The total number of Investec Limited and Investec plc shares i issue as at 3

respectively.

through a special purpose vehicie called

| March 2004 was 44.0 million and 74.6 million

The market price of an investec plc share as at 31 March 2004 was £10.89
The market arice of an Investec Limited share as a1 31 March 2004 was R
In addition to his shareholdings reflected in the table above, | Kantor has an
the details of which are as follows:

2003 £e.15)
253G (2003: R76.50).
interest in options over Investec Limited shares,

- | Kantor acquired 200 000 European calt options at an average strike price of R110.00 per option, en

26 February 2004 n the market - expiring on |9 February 2007,

- | Kantor acquired 200 000 BEuropean call options &t an average strike price of R136.83 per option, on

26 February 2004 in the market - expiring on |9 February 2007,

- | Kantor sold 200 000 European put options at an average strike price of R136.83 per option, on

26 February 2004 in the market - expiring on |9 February 2007

On 15 May 2003, Investec Limited announcead that it has entered an empaovperment transaction with Tiso Group (Tiso}, Peu
Investrent Group (Peu) and the Entrepreneurship Development Trust. In tefms of this transaction, Tise, Peu, the broad-
based Entrepreneurship Development Trust and an Employee Share Trust hdve acquired a 25.1% stake in the issued share

capital of Investec Limited. This transaction was concluded at the end of No
Peu and F Titi is the Chiefl Executive Officer of Tiso.

ember 2003. MP Malungani is the Chairman of




The directors, together with all other employees of the Investec Limited gr
[nvestec Limited Security Purchase and Option Scheme and are therefore inte
20,268 (2003 125785) lnvestec Limited shares.
2,5039218 (2003: 3,738,753) Investec plc shares.

The directors, together with all other employees of the Investec plc group, are
plc jersey Number | trust and are therefore interested in:
Call gplions in respect of 1,398,236 (2003: 1,398.236) Investec plc shares at £7.93 per sha
Call opticns in respect of 449,693 (2003: 449,693) Investec plc shares at £10.52 per share

The directors, together with all other employees of the Investec plc group, arg
plc Guernsey Number | trust and are therefore interested in:
Call options in respect of 6,600 {2003: 6,600} Investec plc shares at £7.93 per share.
Call options in respect of 6,221 {2003: 6,221} Investec plc shares at £10.57 per share.

Directors’ interests in the Investec Limited security purchase and o
31 March 2004

Investec Limited security purchase scheme - Investec plc shares

oup, are beneficiaries of the
rested in:

beneficiaries of the Investec

re.

beneficiaries of the Investec

htion scheme trust as at

Number of ;
shares for which Market
liabilicy Date price at
Balance of  was settled liability Average date of Balance of
shares as at during was original repayment  sharesasat  Settlement
Name I April 2003 the year settled offer price of liability 31 March 2004 period
Executive directors
GR Burger 20 046 20 046 27 Jan R45.0¢ RI42.|1
2004
A Tapnack 2277 - R57.0% 2277 1 Apri 2004
to | july 2004
Non-executive directors
HS Herman * 13714 13714 27 Jan R38.66 RI42.[1 -
2004
Total number 36 037 33 760 2277
Investec Limited security purchase scheme - Investec Limited shares
Number of
shares for which Market
liability Date price at
Balance of  was setded liabitity Average date of Balance of
shares as at during was original repaymen shares as at  Settlement
Name | April 2003 the year settled offer price of Iiabilit),r 31 March 2004 period
Executive directors
GR Burger 1774 1774 27 Jan R45.06 R142.00 -
2004
A Tapnack I 337 - - R57.05 - | 337 | April 2004
to | July 2004
Non-executive directors
HS Herrman 8 054 8 054 27 Jan R38.6¢ R142.00
2004
Total number 21 165 19 828 | 337
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Notes:
The shares in the tables above are held in terms of the Invester Limited share purchase scheme, for which the directors have a
liability for any relaled scheme debt, No shares were granted in terms of this scheme during the year As at 31 March 2004, all the
shares were fully vested. No options have been allocated to directors in terms of this scheme,

GR Burger settled his share fabity on 27 January 2004, when the rarkey value was RI42.14 per Investec pic share and
R142.00 per Investec Limited share. The shares were originally granted in terms of the purchase scheme over 1993 Lo 19595
at an average price of R45.06 per share.
HS Herman settled his share liability on 27 january 2004, when the market value was RI42.1 | per Investec plc share and
R142.00 per Investec Limited share. The shares were originally granted in terms of the purchase scheme over 1994 to 1995
at an average price of R38.66 per share.

Directors’ attributable interest in Investec plc and Invester Limited shares through a
leveraged equity plan called Fintique Il as at 31 March 2004

Tocat entitlement
| {i-e. investec

Limited
ang Investec
Entitlement to Entilement to  Entitlement to Bntitlement to plc shares)
Investec plc Investec plc Investec Limited  [nvestec Limited Settlement - % interest
shares shares shares shares period in scheme
| April 2003 31 March 2004 1 April 2003 3li March 2004 31 March 2004
Executive directors
S Koseff 78 145 122 800 45 895 72020 1 Apnl 2004 to 54%
31 July 2008
B Kantor? 78 115 122 800 45 895 72121 | April 2001 to 5.9%
i 31 July 2008
GR Burger * &7 680 1o 171 39 748 59 417 | April 2004 to 45%
31 July 2008
A Tapnack 33 491 33 491 19 669 19 64% | April 2004 1o 1.5%
31 Juby 2008
Non-executive directors
HS Herman 78 145 78 145 45 895 45895 | April 2004 to 35%
31 July 2008
IR Kantor 50 236 50 236 29 504 29504 | April 2004 1o 22%
31 July 2008
Total number 385 842 508 643 226 606 298 727 22.5%

Nortes:
Al the shares that the directors are entitied to in terms of the Fintique |l schemg are fully vested and can be taken up at a price
of R77.63 per share, based on the valuation of the scheme as at 3|1 March 2004. The market price of Investec ple shares znd
Investec Limited shares as at 31 March 2004 was £10.89 and R125 .30, respectively. The directors are at risk for ary shortfall on
maturity of the scheme,

S Koseff acquired entitlements in terms of the Fintigue 1l scheme 16 44,654 |Investec ple shares and 26,224 Investec Limited
shares on 22 Septemberr 2003, for a cash amount of R10.84 per share plus 4 future lability of R79.0C per share.
B8 Kantor acquired entitlements in terms of the Fintique 1l scheme to 44,654| Investec ple shares and 26,226 Investec Limited
shares on 22 September 2003, for a cash amount of R10.84 per share plus g future liability of R79.00 per share.
GR Burger acquired entitlements in terms of the Fintique Il scheme to 33,491 Investec plc shares and 19,669 Investec Limited
shares on 22 September 2003, for a cash amount of R10.84 per share plus a]future liability of R79.00 per share.




Directors’ attributable interest in Investec plc and Investec Limited
leveraged equity plan called Fintique Il as at 31 March 2004

shares through a

Total entitlement

(ie. Investec
Limited
and Investec
Entitlementto  Enutlement o Entitlementte  Emtitlement o plc shares)
Investec ple Investec ple Investec Limited  Investec Limited Settlement - % interest
shares shares shares shares date in scheme
| April 2003 31 March 2004 | April 2003 31 March 2004 31 March 2004
Executive directors
S Koseff 193310 247 617 113531 59 224 15 Dec 2004 3.6%
B Kantor 193 310 247 8617 113531 59 224 15 Dec 2004 36%
GR Burger 134 149 171 711 78786 41 224 1 15 Dec 2004 2.5%
ATapnack 67 023 85 608 39 362 20777 | 15 Dec 2004 3%
Non-executive directors
HS Herman 147 166 188 452 86 432 45 146 1S Dec 2004 28%
SE Abrahams 11 651 4610 6 843 3884 15 Dec 2004 0.2%
DE Jowell 17 477 21 915 10 264 5826 15 Dec 2004 03%
PRS Thomas i4 564 18 263 8 554 4 855 15 Dec 2004 0.3%
Total number 778 850 995 793 457 303 240 160 14.6%

|
Note:

In terms of the scheme structure, 70% of the shares are free or vested, with a further 30% i
2004.The share entitlements through the Fintique 1l scheme can be taken up on maturity of the
a maximum consideration of R96.00 to R102.38 per share for Rand denominated units and £51
uriits, based on the current leverage position of the scheme. The share entitlements disclosed
entitlerents, which amount to a share entitlement of approximately 84.59% per unit held. {
scheme, the directors’ entitlemnents to lnvestec shares will reduce to 72.83% per umt on m
lnvestec Limited and Investec plc shares are indicative and, while the total net entitlement will
of shares receivable on maturity will vary The directors are at risk for any shortfalls on maturit
of Investec ple shares and Investec Limited shares as at 31 March 2004 was £10.89 and R125.;

During the course of the year the securities within the scheme were restructured resulting in
to Investec plc and Investec Limited shares respectively, although the directors’ overall entitler
unchanged.

ecoming vested on |5 December
> scheme (15 Decernber 2004) for
15 for Pound Sterling denominated
n the above table represent gross
ue to the leverage nature of the
aturity of the scheme. The mix of
remain the same. the combination

of the scheme. The market price
0. respectively

b change in directors entitlements
ents within the scheme remained

004
Balance at Period
31 March 2004 exercisable
33000 20 Dec 2004

Directors’ interest in options - Investec plc shares as at 31 March 2
Number of
Date of Exercise Investec plc Balance at
Name grant price shares 31 March 2003
Executive directors
S Koseff 20 Dec 2002 RITIS6 33 000 33 000
B Kantor 20 Dec 2002 £791 50 000 50 000
GR Burger 28 Aug 2001 R164.50 63 000 63 000
20 Dec 2002 RITi96 33000 33000
A Tapnack 28 Aug 2002 £1052 47 250 47 250
20 Dec 2002 £7.93 50000 50 000
Note:

Mo grants were made and no options were exercised or lapsed during the financial year The ma

to 20 Mar 2008

20 Dec 2004 10
20 Mar 2012

50 000

63000 20 june 2004 o
33000 20 March 2008
97 250 20 June 2004 to

20 March 2012

ket price of an Investec pl share

as at 31 March 2004 was £10.8% (2003: £4.15). A total of 74.6 million Investec pic shares were i) issue as at 31 March 2004




Directors’ interest in options - Investec Limited shares as

Date of Exercise

Name grant price
Executive directors
S Kaoseff 20 Dec 2002 RITI32
GR Burger 20 June 2002 R1&4.50

20 Dec 2002 RTI1.32
A Tapnack 20 June 2002 R164.50
Notes:

No grants were made and no oplions were exercised or
lapsed during the financial year. The market price of an
Investac Limited share as at 21 March 2004 was R125.30
{2003: R76.50). A total of 44.0 million Investec Limited
shares were In issue as al 31 March 2004

| 33

Annuat Report 2004

at 31 March 2004

Number of
Investec Limited |Balance at Balance at Period

shares 3§ March 2003 31 March 2004 exercisable
|7 000 17 000 |7 000 20 Dec 2004

to 20 Mar 2008
37 000 37 000 37 000 20 Junc 2004 to
|7 000 17 000 17 000 20 March 2008
27 750 27750 27 750 20 jume 2004 w0

20 Sept 2007

The directgrs, together with a selected group of senior
managers who are beneficiaries of Fintique Ill and as part of
the scheme(s leveraged nature, are indirectly interested in:

- S Koseff's and GR Burger's oplions were granted in terms
of the Inveslec Limited share option and purchase

scheme trust 2002

B Kantor's and A Tapnack's options were granted in terms

of the Investec plc share option plan 2002,

- Options granted on 20 December 2002 were based on -
the weighted average markel value of the preceding five

days.
- The options granted on 20 June 2002 and
20 December 2002 were made for no consideratton.

The options granted on 20 December 2002 had certan
performance conditions attached (see page |21), which,
to summarise, required growth in headine earnings per

share over the relevant option pericd to equal or

excead the UK RPI plus 3% (compounded anneally over

the same period). There were no performance
conditions attached to the oplions granted on 20 June
2002,

- Options granted on 20 December 2002 included grants

to certain senior executives {other than directors).
which were greater than [00% of their annual
remuneration. The allocations were deemed to be
axceplional, but were approved by the Remuneration
Committee, as they believed the allocations were

necessary i order to retain the skills and contributions

of these individuals.

Directors’ interest in derivatives covering
Investec Limited and Investec plc shares

As discussed on page 123, these derivatives have been

entered inlo through a SPV and not by any of the individual

diractors.

Call oplions in respect of 0 (2003 530.000) Investec ple
shares at a strike of R4S per share, which expired on
4 March 2004,

Call apions in respect of 0 (2003: 370.000) Investec
Limitedishares at a strike of R145 per share, which
expired/ on 4 March 2004,

Call options in respect of 1,260,000 (2003: 1.260.000)
Investeq plc shares at a strike of R170 pear share. which
expire on 14 Decamber 2004.

Call options in respect of 740,000 (2003: 740.000)
Invested Limited shares at a strike of RE70 per share.
which gxpire on 14 December 2004,

Call oplions in raspect of 441,000 (2003: 441,000)
Investeq plc shares at a sirike of Ri7() ner share, which
expire pn 20 July 2004,

Call oplions in respect of 259,000 (2003 252,000)
Investes Liruted shares at a strike of R170 per share,
which gxpire on 30 July 2004,

The directors, together with a selected group of senior

managers

vho are beneficiaries of Spurwing and as part of

the scheme's leveraged nature, are indirectly interested in:

Call options in respect of 123,935 (2003: 123935
Invester plc shares at a strike of £7.93 per share. which
expire pn 20 December 2004,

Call options in respect of 487.003 (2003: 487.003)
Invester plc shares at a strike of £7.93 per share. which
expire pn 20 Decemnber 2005.

Call opjtions in respect of 397,091 (2003:397.0%1)
Irvester ple shares at a strike of £7.93 per share, which
expire on 20 December 2006,

Call options in respect of 396.807 {2003: 394.607)
invester plc shares at a strike of £7.93 per share, which
expire jon 20 December 2007

Call epticns in respect of 455914 (2003: 455.214)
Investec plc shares at a strike of £10.52 per share, which
expire lon 20 December 2007




Conclusion

The Remuneration Committee will cortinue to ensure that Investec's reward packages rema

N competitive, provide appropriate

incentive lor performance and take due regard of the culture, values and philosephies of the group. The committee will keep the

existing remuneration arvangements, as discussed in this report, under review during the 2005

Signed on behalf of the board

<7\

George Alford

Chairman, Board Remuneration Committee

financial year




Shareholder analysis

The group has implemented a Dual Listaed Companies structure in terms of wh

and London (see page 37).

\
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ch it has primary listings both in Johannesburg

Investec ple, which houses the majority of the group’s non-South African businegses, was listed on the London Stock Exchange
on 29 july 2002, Investec plc also has a secondary listing on the ISE Securities Exchange South Africa {JSE). Investec Limited,
which houses the group's Southern African and Mauritius operatiens, has been [isted in South Africa since 1986,

As at 31 March 2004 Investec plc and Investec Limited had 74.633.746 and 43,999,527 ordinary shares in issue, respectively.

Spread of ordinary shareholders as at 31 March 2004

Investec plc ordinary shares in issue

Number of shareholders Holdings % of total shareholders Number of shares in issue % of issued share capital
l4 788 I to 500 B1.4% | | 600 900 2.2%

| 359 504 - 1 000 7.5% 994 110 1.3%

LTS L% 10 5000 639% 7754 440 37%

252 500! o 10000 1.4% | 824 204 24%

349 10001 to 50 000 | 9% B 197 769 F1.0%

75 30 00! 10 100 000 QA% 5125237 69%

95 100 00 and over 0.5% 54 137 086 72.5%

18 174 160.0% 74 633 746 100.0%

tnvestec Limited ordinary shares in issue

B L N 1

Number of shareholders Holdings % of total sharehelders Numben of shares in issue % of issued share capital
13830 I 1o 500 38.9% i 102 275 25%

700 501 -1 000 4.5% 516 490 1.2%

759 [ 001 o5 000 4.8% I 706 558 3.9%

159 5001 10 10 000 1.0% P Y77 167 27%

8 10004 to 50 000 0.1% 5675 636 12.9%

46 50 001 to 100 000 0.3% 3170 556 7.2%

59 100 001 and over 0.4% 30 650 845 65.6%

15601 100.0% 43 999 527 100.0%

T
\




Sharehoclder classification

Investec Limited Inveszec ple

number of shares % holding nun"ber of shares % holding
Public® 34 900 947 79.32% 62 476 282 8371%
Non-public 9 098 580 20.68% I2 158 464 16.29%

MNon-executive directors of

Investec Limited/investec plc** 102 562 0.23% V07 667 0.91%

Executive directors of

!

|
Investec LimitedfInvestec olc I 312 363 298% | 347 457 1.77% i
Investec staff share scherre and leveraged ‘
ownership schermes 12723544 5.07% 10133 440 13.58% }
Tiso Group™* 2 800 000 6.36% - - |
Peu Investment Group™* 260111 5.94% - - f
Taral 43 999 527 100.00% 74 431 746 100.00%

* Ag per the |SE listing requirements.

** In Novernber 2003, Investec Limited irnplemented an empowermert transaction as detalet on page 7. The shareholdings
held by F Titi and MP Malungani are shown under the heldings of Tiso Group and Peu Investrient Group. respectively.

Largest beneficial shareholders as at 31 March 2004

in accordance with the terms provided for in Section 212 of the UK Companies Act 1985 ang Section 140A of the South
African Companies Act, 1973, the group has conducted investigations inte the registered holders of its ordinary shares (including
nominee and asset management companies) and the results are as disclosed below.

Investec plc
Beneficial owner Number of shares % holding
T Finfique i (BVIY* 7 3%8 74 950%
2 Puplic Investment Commissioner {SA) 7 3b6 351 9.86%
3 Old Mutual Life Assurance {SA) 3997 137 5.24%
4 Spuraing Investments Ltd (Cl) 3220 000 431%
5 Irwestec Ltd Security Purchase and Onption Scheme Trust 2002 (SA) 2 700 000 362%
& Citigroup Global Markets UK Equity (UK) 2015 260 270%
7 Legal and General Pooled Index Fund (UK) I 838911 146%
8 Maomentum Life Assurance (5A) L 622 127 2i7%
9 Liberty Life Association of Africa (SA) 415552 1.90%
10 Sanlam (SA) 245 511 i.70%
Cumulative total 32 842 690 4386%

The top 0 beneficial shareholders account for 43.86% of the total shareholding in Investec plc]This information 1s based on a
thrashold of 20,000 shares. Some major fund managers hold additional shares below this. which may cause the above figures 1o
be margnally understated.




Investec Limited

Beneficial owner
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Number of shares % holding

I Public Investment Commissioner (SA) 5 390 850 12.25%
2 EdTrust International Investments (SA)*# 2 800 Q00 £.36%
3 Tiso International investiments Pty Lid (SAY* | 2 800 000 £36%
4 Peu International Investments Pty Ltd (SAy** l 268 111 594%
5 Cld Mutual Life Assurance (SA) i 2 366 830 536%
6 Fintigue M (BYH* i 2111 259 4.80%
7 Sanlam (SA) l I 375072 313%
8 Spurwing Investments Ltd {C) ‘ 215000 2.08%
¢ Momentum Life Assurance (SA) ‘ 906 673 2.06%
10 Investment Seolutions (SA) 853 086 i F4%

Cumulative total 22 129 881 50.28%

The top 10 beneficial shareholders account for 50.28% of the total shareholding
a threshold of 20,000 shares. Some major fund managers hold additional shares
to be marginally understated.

# A small group of senior and executive management, including certain Investec
have a significant impact on the business, have been granted participation it leve
Fintique lIl. In terms of these plans, participants acquired units that entitled therr|
2004 and 2008, future benefits of ownership of the underlying Investec shares. F
pages 121 to 125,

# In November 2003, Investec Limited implemented an empowerment transac

in Investec Limited. This information is based on

below this. which may cause the above figures

Limited/ Investec plc directors, who have or can
raged equity plans known as Fintique Il and

to the risks and, on maturity of the plans in

urther detail on these plans is provided on

ion as detailed on page 7.

Geographic holding by beneficial owner as at 31 March 2004

Investec plc

Qther 3.3%
UK apd Europe 243% i
Channel [slands 4.4%
LsA 1.2%
British ¥irgin Islands 9.9%
South Africa 56.9%

Note: The percentage holding in the British Virgin Islands represents the holding |

Investec Limited

Other |.6%

UK and Europe 1.5%

Channed Islands 3.6%
USA 6%
British Virgin Islands 4.8%
South Africa £49%

h Fintique Il as discussed above.




Share statistics

|
Investec Limited (formerly Investec Group Limited) ordinary shares in issue\
|

For the year ended 31 March 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Closing market price per share {cents)

- year end 12 530 7 650 13000 19 700 26 020
- highest 15400 17 440 24 580 27 800 30 0C0
- lowest 7750 7 650 |3 00C 19 200 18 440
NMuraber of ordinary shares in issue (million) 440 384 942 810 806
Market capitalisation (R millions)’ |4 860 8645 14 196 19 286 24 (095
Number of shareholders 156l 17 957 19 445 3454 3070
Monthly average volume of shares traded ('000)° 38.9% - - - -
Investec plc ordinary shares in issue

For the year ended 31 March? 2004 2003
Closing market price per share (pence) |

- year end il 089 615

- highest i 81 &0

- lowest ) 6 2 607
NMumber of ardinary shares in issue (million) 744 744
Market caprtalisation (£ millions)* 812 459
Monthiy average volume of shares traded ('000) F3.56 69.6
Price earnings ratic” | 105 63
Dividend cover (times)* i1.79 178
Dividend yicld (%) ¢ 5.3% 8.8%
Earnings yield (%) ¢ 3.5% 15.6%
Nurnber of sharcholders HF 174 20 684

Notes:

The number of shares in issue has reduced significantly following the implementation of the DLC structure, in terms of
which Investec ple was unbundled from Investec Group Limited (now lnvestec Limited),
Ihe JSE has agreed to use the total number of shares in issue for the combined grous, coPnprwsmg Investec Limred and

Investec plc. in calculating market capitalisation ie. a total of | 18.6 mitlion shares in issue for the year ended 31 March 2004.

Information prior to the implementation of the DLC structure is not comparable.
Irvesiec plo has only been listed on the LSE since 29 July 2002, !

The LSE only include the shares in issue for Investec plc i.e. 74.6 million, in calculating market capitalistion, as Investec
Limited is not incorporated in the UK.

Calculations are based on the sroup's consofidated earnings per share before exceptional ftems and amortistion of goodwill,
and dividends per share as prepared in accordance with UK GAAP and denominated in P$unds Sterling.




Directorate Investec
Investec plc

Executive Directors

Stephen Koseff (52)¢7

B8Com CA (SA) H Dip BDP MBA

Chief Executive Officer

Stephen joined Investec in 1980. He has had diverse
axperience within investec as Chiel Accounting Officer and
General Manager of Banking, Treasury and Merchant Banking.
His directarships include the JSE Securities Exchange South
Africa. Investec Bank Limited, Investec Bank (JUK) Limited and
I'he Bidvest Group Limited.

Bernard Kantor (54) 7

Managing Director

Bernard jnined lnvestec in 1980, He has had diverse
experience within Investec as a Manager of the Trading
division, Marketing Manager and Chief Operating Officer. His
directorships include Investec Bank Limited, Investec Bank
(UK} Limited and Phumelela Gaming and Leisure Limited.

Glynn R Burger (47)%7

BAcc CA(SA) H Dip BDP MBL

Executive Director responsible for Finance and Risk.

Glynn joined Investec in 1980, He has had diverse experience
within Investec as Chief Accounting Officer Group Risk
Manager and Joint Managing Director for South Africa. His
directorships include Investec Bank Limited.

Alan Tapnack (57)7

BCom CA (SA)

Alan practised as 2 chartered accountant and is a farmer
partner of Price Waterhouse and former Managing Director
of Grey Phillips Buntan Mundell and Biake, z leading South
African marketing services group. Alan joined Investec in 1991,
He recently stepped down as Chief Executive Officer of
Investec's UK operations, He is also responsible for Investec's
Israeli operations. His directorships include Investec Bark (UK)
Limited and Carr Sheppards Crosthvaile Limited.

I
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Non-Executive Directors

Hugh $ Herman {63} **

BA LLB LLD (Honors CAUSA)

Non-txecutive Chairman

Hugh practided as a lawyer before joining Pick 'n Pay, a leading
Souwth Africah retail group, where he becarne Managing
Director. He|joined Investec in 1994, His directorships include
lmvestec Bank Limited, Investec Bank (UK} Limited, Pick 'n Pay
Holdings Limited and Pick 'n Pay Stores Limited.

John N Abell (72) 247

MA. (Hons)
john was th4 former Chairman and Chief Executive of Orion
Rayal Bank ahd former Chairman of CIBC Wood Gundy
Europe. His directorships include investec Bank (UK) Limited,
Passed away 26 Moy 2004.

Sam E Abrahams (65) %%

FCA CA (SPL)

Samisa forn)wer international partner and South African
Managing Partner of Arthur Andersen. His current,
directorships|include Foschini Limited, Surer Group Limited,
Investec Ban# Limited and Phumelela Gaming and Leisure
Limited.

George F O Alford (55) “**

BSc (Econ) FCIS FIPD MSI

George is former Head of Private Banking and Head of
Persannel at Kleinwort Benson Group. and is currently a
serior acvisor to the FSA. His directorships include Investec
Bank (UK) Lirpited.

Harukeo Fulruda OBE (57}

MA (Cantab) Dsc

Previously Chjef Executive of the Werld Gold Council.
[Directorships|inchude, AB Volvo, The Foreign and Colonial
Imvestment Trist PLC and Aberdeen Asian Smaller Companies
Investrnent Trpst PLC. Advisor 1o Metro AG and Lazard.




Directorate Investec Limited
and Investec plc

Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Geoffrey MT Howe {54)%"

MA (Hons)

Geoffrey is a former Managing Partner of Clifford Chance LLP
and Director and Group General Counsel of Rebert Fleming
Haldings Lid. He 15 also a former Chairman of Railtrack
Group ple. His current directorships include Jardine Llayd
Thompson Group ple. The P Margan Overseas lavestmeant
Trust plc and Ahli United Bank plc. He is also an advisor to a
number of leading professional and financial service
organisations.

Bonn E Jowell (62) %7

BCom LLB

Donn is Charman of and a consultant to Jowell Giyn &
Maras Inc. the South African legal advisers 1o Irvestec
Limnited. His current directorships include Investec Bank
Limited and vanious other Irvestec cornpanies.

tan R Kantor (57)

BSc {Eng) MBA

lars is former Chief Executive of Investec Bank Limited,
resigning in [985 and relocating to the Netherlands. His
current directorships include Insinger de Beaufort Holdings
SA {where he is Chairman of the management board and in
which Investec holds an 8,6% interest), Bank Insinger de
Beaufort NV and Investec Bank (UK} Limited.

Sir Chips Keswick (64) "2**7

Sir Chips is former Chairman of Hambros Bank Limited and
Harrbros PLC and a former director of Anglo American Ple,
He was on the Court of the Bank of England. His
directorships indude De Beers SA, De Beers Consthidated
Mines Limited, Persimmon Plc and Irwestec Bank (UK}
Lirrited.

Mangalani Peter Malungani {46)

BCom MAP LDP

Peter is Chairman of Peu lnvastment Group (Proprietary)
Limited. He is Chairman of Paumelela Gaming and Leisure
Limited and is a Director of Super Group Limited, BACSA
(Business Against Crime South Africa} and Investec Bank
Limited. He is deputy Chairman of Capital Alliance Holdings
Limited and Capital Alliance Life Limited.

Peter R S Thomas (59
CA (5A)

Peter ts a chartered accouptant and former Managing
Dhrector of The Unisec Grpup Limited, His current
directorships include Invesiec Bank Limited.

Fani Titi {42)
BSc (Hons) MAMBA
Fari is currently Chief Exe

former Chairman of the Armaments Corporation of South

Africa Limited and a Divector of The Bidvest Group Limited

and Kurmba Resources Lim
I

Notes:

v The dates on which the directors were appointed %o the
ted and Investec plc can be found

boards of Investec Lim
on page 120,

» M Geoffrey MT Hows
appointed as independ
boards of Investec Lim
21 July 2003,

e MrFari Titi was appot
the baards of Investec
30 January 2004

utive Officer of Tiso Group. a

ted,

ted and Investec pic, on

Limited and Investec ple on

The directors serve as Chajrman or members on the

following commitiees,
* Combined group/BLC

'rﬁ\udit Comrmiittee

investec ple Audit Comjmittee

Investec LLimited Audit

Committee

Remuneration Commitiee

MNomination Committe

Chairman’s Committee

b

Board Risk Review Committes

Details on these committess can be found on

pages 1101 U132,

> and Miss Haruko Fukuda were
nt non-executive directors to the

ted as a non-executive director 1o




Directorate

Investec Bank Limited
Reg. No. 1969/004763/06

Executive Directors

David M Lawrence (53)

BA(Ecan) {Hons) MCom
Deputy Chairman

Glynn R Burger (47)
BAcc CA(SA) H o BDP MBL

Bernard Kantor (54)

Maraging Director

Stephen Koseff (52)

BCam CA(SA) H Dip BIDP MBA
Chicf Exgcutive Officer

Bradley Tapnack (57)
BCom CA(SA)

Non-Executive Directors

Hugh § Herman (63)

BA LLB LLD {Honoris CAUSA)
MNon-Executive Chairman

Sam E Abkahams (65)
FCA CA(SA)

Donn € jawell (62)
BCom LLB

Mangalani Peter Malungani (46)
BCom MAR LDP

Daphne R Motsepe (47)
BR BCompyg MBA

Dr Morley Z Nkosi (69)
BSc MBA PhD

Peter R S[Thomas (59)
CASA)

Fani Titi (42)

BSc (Honsy MA MBA

Russel A B Upton (69)
CA(SA) |
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Directorate

investec Bank (UK) Limited

Hugh S Herman (63}

BA LLB LLD {Honoris CAUSA)
Non-Executive Chairman

Bradley Fried (38)

BCom CA(SA) MBA
Managing Director

John N Abelt (72)
MA (Hons)

George F O Alford (55)
BSc (Econ) FCIS FIPD 8

Peregrine Crosthwaite (55)
Resigned 31 March 2004

Michael A Jameson-Till {59)
Bernard Kantor (54)

lan R Kantor {57)
BSc(Eng) MBA

Sir Chips Keswick (64)

Stephen Koseff (52}
BCom CA(SA) H Dip BDP MBA

Richard PMA Forlee (43)

BCom CA(SA) MBA
Resigned 23 june 2004

Alan Tapnack (57)
BCorm CA(SA)

David M van der Walt (39}
BCom (Hons) CA (SA)

lan R Wohlman (49)
ACIB

\
Investec Bank (isrTel) Limited

Hugh 5 Herman (63}!

BA LLB LLD {Honoris CAUSA)

Non-Executive Chairman’

BCom CA(SA)

|
Alan Tapnack {57) l
|
Deputy Chairman |

|

Jonathan Irroni (54)
BA
Managing [irector and C

Talya Aharoni (52)
MBA

Amihai Ayalon (59}

David Golan (63)
MBA

Bernard Kantor (54) ‘

Stephen Koseff (52)
BCom CA(SA} H Dip BD

Mordechai Limon (80
MBA

Oren N Most (53)
MBA

Shimon Ravid (68)
PhD

Zvi Zur (81)

ef Executive Officer

P MBA




Directorate

investec Asset Management (Pty) Limited
Reg. No. 1984/011235/07

Hugh S Herman (63)

BA 11B LLD (Honoris CALISAY
Chairman

Hendrik ] du Toit (42)

BCom (Hons) MCom MPhil
Chiief Executive Officer

Gail Daniel (36)
BA, (Hons) MBA

George H F Brits {44)

PrD MBA
Resigned | Aprif 2004

Robert A Coombe (35)

BCom CA[SA) ACMA
Resigned | Apri 2004

Elsabé deVries {41)
BAcc BCompt (Hons) CTA MBA

Domenico Ferrini (35}
BCom

Jeremy B Gardiner {39)
B8Com {Hons)

John C Green (38)

BCom Blaw
Appointed | Aprit 2004

** British

Roelof C
BCeom (Ho

Horne (40)
5) CA(SA)

Bernard Kantor (54)

Thabo KHojane (31)
BA Heons (Hcon) BSc (Eng)

Stephen Koseff (52}
8Com CA(bA) H Dip BOP MBA

Kim M M

cFarland (39)%*

Bacc CASA) MBA

John T McNab (37)

BEng MEng

Andre D
MSc (Oxfo

[CFA

Roux {50}
rd) MPhil (Cambridge)

Mark | Samuelson (39)

BCom
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Directorate

Investec Bank {Australia) Limited

David Gonski (50}

BCom LB
Chairman

Geoffrey Levy (45}

BCom LLB
Chief Executive Officer

Alan Chonowitz (49)
BAce MCom CA(SA)

Sam Hackner (48)
BCom (Hons) CA(SA)

Hugh § Herman (63)
BA LLB 1. X {Honoris CALISA)

Stephen Koseff (52}
BCom CA(SA) H Dip 8DP MBA

David M Lawrence (53)
BA{Econ) (Hensy MCom

Andy W Leith {44)
BCom CA(SA)

Richard A Longes {58)
BA LLE MBA

Robert C Mansfield (52)
BCom

lohn W Murphy (51}
BCom MCom ACA FASA

Investec Bank (Mapritius) Limited

Hugh S Herman (63)

BA LLB LLD {Honoris CAUSA)
Non-Executive Chairman

Pierre de Chasteigner du Mee {(51)
ACEA FBIM FMAAT

Stephen Koseff (52}
BCom CA{SA) H Dip BOP MBA

David M Lawrence (53
BA(Econ) (Hons) MCom

S

Angelo | Letimier (54}

Craig € McKenzie (43
BSc MSc CFA k
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Investec plc financial statements
(incorporating the results of| Investec Limited)

Director's report

Nature of business

Investec is an internaticnal, specialist banking group that
provides a diverse range of financial products and services to
a niche client base in two principal markets, the United
Kingdom and South Africa, as well as certain other
geographies including Australia. Investec is organised into four
principal divisions, namely Investment Banking, Private Client
Activities, Treasury and Specialised Finance and Asset
Management. In addition, Investec's head office provides
certain group-wide integrating functions such as Risk
Management, Information Technclogy, Finance, Investor
Relations, Marketing, Human Resources and Organisational
Development. It is also respansible for the group's central
funding as well as other activities, such as the group's
property business, trade finance and traded endowrnent
operations. A review of the operations for the year ¢an be
found on pages 45 to 78,

This report deals with the requirements for the consolidated
Investec group {comprising the legal entities Investec ple and
Investec Limited).

Authorised and issued share capital

Investec pic and Investec Limited

Dretaiis of the share capital is set out in note 33 in the
finandial staterments.

Pursuant to the black economic empowerment deal which
was announced during 2003, Investec Limited issued
5600000 crdinary shares for cash at R90.00 per share on
27 November 2003. In terms of the group's Dual Listed
Companies structure (see page 37 for further information})
the number of Investec plc Special Converting Shares of
£0.001 each inissue must equal the number of Investec
Lirmited ordinary shares of ZARQ.OO! each in issue.

Accordingly, on 4 February 2004, lnvestec plc issued
5,600,000 ple Special Converting Shares of £0.001 each by
way of a bonus issue from reserves.

Investec Lir#lited

On 30 Margh 2004, Invastec Limited issucd 877 variable rate
redeemable[cumulative preference shares of €0 cents cach for
a total consideration of R877 million {£75 milion).

Financial results

The results of Investec plc (incorporating investec Limited)
are sct out in the financial staterments and accompanying
notes for the year ended 31 March 2004,

Ordinary dividends
investec pic
An interim dividend of 3.5 pence por share was declared 1o
sharcholders registered on 19 Decermber 2003, Together with
the intenm dividend of 14.5 pence per ordinary share
declared by fnvestec Limited on the A DAN and SA DAS
shares, as prpvided by the DLC structure Sharing Agreement.
the total intgrim distribution to sharcholders of Investec ple.
paid an 5 January 2004, cquated to 28 pence per share
(2003: 26 pance).

The directons have proposed a final dividend of 30 pence per
share (2003128 ponce) to shareholders registered on

30 July 2004|to be paid on 23 Avgust 2004. The finzl dvidend
is subject tafthe approval of members of Investec ple at the
Annual General Meeting schaduled for 19 August 2004,

The holder of 7,388,741 Investcc ple shares has zgreed to
walve s rights to the proposed final dividend.

Investec Linfited

Aninterim ovidend of 309 cents per share (2003: 395 cents)
was declared to sharchalders registered on

19 December 2003 and paid on 5 January 2004, Dividends in
aggregate anmounting to R107.592,008 were declared on the
SA DAN ang SA DAS shares, equivatent to 149 pence per
Investec ple ordinary share. Together with the interim dividend
of 13.5 pence per ordinary share declared by Investec plc, this
equated to g total interim distribution to shareholders of
Investec ple of 28 pence (309 cents) per share.
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The directors have proposed a final dividend of 360 cents per
share (2003:356 cents) to shareholders registered on

30 July 2004 to be paid on 23 August 2004. The final dividend
is subject to the approval of members of Investec Limited at
the Annual General Meeting scheduled for 19 August 2004,

The holder of 2,111,259 Investec Limited shares has agreed
to waive its rights to the proposed final dividend,

Preference dividend
Preference dividends of £7.553.000 were accrued by Investec
Limited.

Directors and secretaries

Details of the directors and secretaries of Investec plc and
Investec Limited are reflected on pages §39 and 140 and at
the beginming of the Annual Report.

Ms H Fuxuda CBE and Mr GMT Howe were appointed 1o
the board with effect from 21 July 2003 and Mr F Titi was
appointe with effect from 30 January 2004,

With regret, Mr JN Abell, 2 non-executive director, passed
away unexpectedly on 26 May 2004,

Directors and their interests
Directors' shareholdings and options 1o subscribe are set out
on pages 129 to 133,

The company's register of directors’ interests contains full
details of directors' shareholdings and options to subscribe.

Share incentive trusts
Details regarding options granted during the year are set out
on page 208.

Audit committee

An audit committee comprising non-executive directors
meets regularty with senior management, the external
auditors, Operational Risk, Internal Audit, Group Compliance
and the Group's Finance and Accounting division to consider
the nature and scope of the audit reviews and the
eflectiveness of the Group's risk and control systems. Further
details on the rele and responsibility of the Audit Committee
are set out on page 10,

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingnass to
continue in office as auditors. A resolution to re-appont Ernst
&Young LLP as auditors will be proposed at the next Annual
General Meeting.

Contracts
Refer to page |19 for details of contracts with directors.

Subsidiary and assoclated
Details ¢of principal subsidi
reflacted on pages 164 an

Major shareholders
Investec plc

At 31 March 2004 the foll
of 3% or more of the issu
Fintique I (BVI) Limited
Public investment Commig
Cld Mutual Life Assurancd
Spurwing Investments Lim
tnvestec Ltd Security Purc
Option Scheme Trust 200

Investec Limited
At 31 March 2004 the foll
of 3% or more of the issu

Public Investment Commigsionar

£d Trust Imternational Inve
Tiso International investm
Pau International Investmg
Old Mutual Life Assurance
Fintique lil {BVI} Limited
Sanlam

Special resolutions
Investec plc
At the Annual General Me

companies
ary and associated companies are
i 165.

pwing were the beneficial owners
ed ordinary shares of the company:

$.9C%
sioner 9.88%
5.24%
ftted 4.31%
ase and
b 36%

awing were the beneficial owners
ed ordinary shares of the company:
12.25%
6.36%
6.36%
5.54%
5.36%
4.80%
3.13%

stments
ents Pty Ltd
nts Pty Ltd

aeting held on 7 August 2003,

special resolutions were passed in terms of which:

* A renewable authority
acquire s own share;
Companies Act, 1585,

+ A renewable authority
allot equity securities
application of the pre
89 of the Companies

+  Article 52.2 of the Ar

was granted 10 the Company to
in terms of Section 166 of the

was granted to the Company to
bf the Company for cash without
emption rights provided by section
Act, 1985

ticles of Association was amended

to correct a typographical error.

Investec Limited

At the Annual General Megeting held on 7 August 2003, a

special resolution was pas:
authority, urtil the next An

ed granting a renewable general
wnwal General Meeting, for Investec

Limited or its subsidiares ko acquire shares in Investec

Limred.

Investec Limited subsidiary companies
In addition to amendments to the Articles of Associaticn and

name changes of various 4

ubsidiary companies, a number of

special resolutions were phssed as indicated in the table

beicw.
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Investec Limited
Subsidiary

Barfold Investments Limited

23 july 2003
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Effective date

Special resolution \

Reduction of R967 554 652 in stated capital.

Reduction in the number of authorised no par value shares from
300 0C0 000 to 100

Consolidation of issued share capital from 76 066 076 ordinary no
par value shares to iO,1 ordinary no par value shares

Grayinvest Limited

4 February 2004

Acquisition and cancellation of 14 990 000 ordinary shares of the
company at R3.50 ner|share

Investec Bank Limited

10 June 2003

Investec international
Holdings (Pty) Limited

Investec Investments Limited

9 February 2004

9 February 2004

non-redeemable, non-tumulativa, non-participating preference shares

Increase in authorised share capital by the creaton of 15 000 Q00
of RO.OT each

Amendment to Articlgs of Asseciation to allow for acquisian of own
shares
Acquisition and cance

llation of 500 986 ordinary shares of the company
at R4.26 per share \

General authority for the campany or its subsidiaries 1o acquire shares
in Investec Investrnentq Limited and for lnvestec Investments Limted to
acqguire shares in fits hojding company

!

investec Private Trust Limited

29 September 2003

SIB investments Limited

4 February 2004

Stated capital account reduced by R8 538 626.80
Caonsolidation of issued share capitat fram 9 833 018 000 ordinary no
par vatue shares into 100 ordinary no par value shares

Acquisition and cancellation of 80 000 GO0 ordinary shares of the
company at R7.00 per fhare

Secfin Finance Limited

9 March 2004

Sibvest Limited

25 September 2003

Acquisition and cancellation of 799 900 ordirary shares of the
company at R1.00 per fhare

Acquisition and cancell ltion of 2 666 567 ordinary shares of the
campany at R40.00 pe? share

Vesque Limited

|6 October 2003

Accounting policies and disclosure
Accounting policies are set having regard to commergial

Acquisiticn and cancellgtion of 223 619 900 ordinary shares of the
company at ROO! per share

considered bearing in mind the qualifications and abiliues of
the applicanty In the event of employees becoming disabled,

practice and comply with applicable United Kingdom law and avery effort i made to ensure thelr continued employment.
accounting standards. These policies are set out ¢n pages 158 The group's policy is 1o adopt an open managerment style,
to 163 thereby encouraging informal consultation at all levels about

Creditor payment policy
The group's standard practice s to

payrment with suppliers at the time of contract and make

agree the terms of

payments within the agreed credit terms subject to

satisfactory performance.

Employees Limited made|domations for charitable purposes, totalling
The group's policy is to recruit and promote on the basis of £1,145.380. Investec plc made no political donatiens. while

aptitude and ability without discnmination of any kind,

Applications for empioyment by disabled people are always the twa main political parties in South Africa,

aspects of thg group’s operations, and motivating staff
involvernent gf the group's performance by means of
Emnployee Share Schemes,

Donations

During the yenr. the Investec ple made donations far
charitable purtoses. totalling £3%91.079. Furthermare, Investec

Investec Limited made political donations of R2.5 million to
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Environment

The group is committed to pursuing sound environmental
policies in all aspects of its business. and seeks to encourage
and promote good environmental practice among its
employees and within the community in which it operates,
Investec's 2004 Sustainability Report was produced as a
separate report accompanying the Annual Report for 2004.

Subsequent events

On 16 June 2004 Investec plc, the controlling shareholder of
Investec Bank {Israel) Limited (the Bank), reached an
agreemenit with First International Bank of lsrael whereby it
has agreed to sell its 80.28% stake in the Rank to First
International Bank of lsrael.

The purchase price will be based on the net asset value of
the Bank subject to adjustments. k is the intention of the
parties 10 sign an agreement within |4 days of the |6 june
2004. 1t is not practical to make an astimate of the financial
effect of this proposed transaction.

The transacuon amounts to less than 5% of the Investec
group's combned market capitalisation. At 31 March 2004, as
reflected in the consolidated accounts of the combined
Investec group {comprising Investe plc and fnvestec Limited),
Investec Bank (Israel) Limited reported an operating profit
zfter taxation but before exceptional items and amortisation
of goodwill of £1.9 million and its shareholders' funds at that
date were approximately £48 miltion.

The sale of the shares 1s dependent on the approval of the
relevant regulatory authorities in lsrael, South Africa and the
United Kingdom, including the Bank of Israel and the lsragli
Antitrust authorties The agreement also requires the
zpproval of the Board of Directors of both parties.

By order of the board

For" e

Richard Vardy
Secretary - Investec plc

Selwyn Noik
Secretary - Investec Limited

28 June 2004

, |
Directors'
responsibil
statement

The following statement, which should be read in comunction
with the Auditor's report set out on page 149, is made with a
view 1o distinguishing for stakeholders the respective

responsibiliies of the directors and of the auditors in relation
to the financial statements,

ities

Company law requires the|directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit
or foss of the company for| that financial year

The directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements on pages 150 1o 157, and 164 to 226 and the
additional information contpined on pages | to 44, the
company has used appropriate accounting policies which have
been consistently applied apd have been supportad by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, and that al!
accounting standards whicH the directors consider to be
applicable have been followed.

The financial statements of the company have been prepared
on the going concern basis|The directors are of the opin:on,
based on its «<iowledge of the cornpany: key processes in
eperation and specific enquiries. that adequate resources exist
to support the company 01 a going concern basis over the
next year.

The directors are respansible for leeping proper accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the|company and to enable them to
ensure that the financial stafements comply with the
Companies Act 1985. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking
reasorable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

Signed on behalf of the baard

7

tephen Koseﬂir“
Chief Executive Officer

28 June 2004

Managing Oirecter
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Report of the independent auditors

We have audited the group's financial statements on pages 150
to 226 for the year ended 31 March 2004 which comprise
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account. Consolidated Balance
Sheet, Company Balance Sheet, Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement, Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised Gains
and Losses, Reconciliation of Consolidated Shareholders’ Funds
and the related notes | to 44 These financial staterments have
been prepared on the basis of the accounting policies set out
therein. We have also audited the information on pages 127 to
133 in the Directors' Remuneration Report that is described
as having been audited,

This report 15 made solely 1o the company's members, as a
body, in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act
[985. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state 10 the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditors report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law. we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit
waork, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and
auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report, including the financial statements which are required
1o De prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
law and accounting standards as sel out in the Statement of
Drrectors' Respansiiities in relation to the financial
statements on page [48.

QOur responsibility 15 to audit the financiai statements and the
part of the Directors’ Rermuneration Report to be audited in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements,
United Kingdem Auditing Standards and the Listing Rules of
the Financial Services Authority,

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial
statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Repart to be audited have been properly orepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985, We also report to
you if. in our opinion, the Directors’ Report is not consistent
with the financial statements, if the company has not kept
prope:r accountng records, if we have not received all the
nformation and explanations we require for our audit. or if
information specified by law or the Listing Rules regarding
directors’ remuneration and transactions with the group is not
disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement
on pages 104 to | 6 reflects the company's compliance with
the seven provisicns of the Combined Code specified for our
review by the Listing Rules. and we report if it does not. We
are not required to consider whether the beard’s statements
on internal control cover all risks and contrals, or form an
opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s corporate
governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read ofher information contained in the Annual Report
and considgr whether it is consistent with the audited financiat
staterments.|This other information comprises the Directors’
Report, undudited part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report, Chairman’s Staterment, Chief Executive Officer and
Managing I§irectors' Report, A Detailed Analysis of the group's
Perfarmance, Divisional Reviews and Corporate Governance
Report ang Risk Management We consider the implications
for our repprt if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or malerial inconsistencies with the financial
statements) Our responsibilities do not extend 1o any other
information.

Basis of jaudit opinion

We condugted our audit in accordance with United Kingdom
Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An
audit incluges examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to|the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements|and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the
significant gstimates and judgements made by the directors in
the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the group's
circumstantes, consistently applied and adeqguately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as ta obtan all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order Lo provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reascnable|assurance that the financial statements and the
part of the| Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are
free from r‘nater\a\ misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or
ather Irregplarity or error. In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report 1o be audited.

Opinior
In our opirkion:

v the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company and of the group as at
31 Mafch 2004 and of the profit of the group for the
year then ended; and

*  the financial statements and the part of the Direciors
Remuneration Report 1o be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act | 985,

er‘r El YO'MJ U.P

Ernst &Yoing LLP
Registered|Auditor

London
28 June 2004




Consolidated profit and loss q\ccounts

|
|
|

|
|
|

|

For the year ended 3| March 2004 2003%
Before Before

goadwill & Goadwill & gobdwill & Goodwill &

exceptional exceptional exdeptionzl exceptional
{£'000} Notes Notes items items Total items items Total
Interest receivable - interest income
artsing from debt securities 91 845 - 31 845 171 D66 171 066
interest recewvable - other interest incorne 588 067 - 588 067 673 615 78 615
Interest payable {574 249) - (574 249) (J7_38 980) (738 980)
Net interest income 105 663 - 105 663 110 701 - 1#Q 701
Dividend income 4 3 450 - 3450 3597 - 3597
Fees and cammissions recenvable 340 528 340 528 B30 959 - 330959
- Annuity 272718 - 272718 K87 19% - 287199
- Deal &7 810 - 67 810 43 760 - 13 760
Fees and cormmission payable (22 155) - {22 155) (54 768} {54 768
Dealing profits 5 91 015 - 21 015 1 57 668 57 668
Ingome from long-term assurance business 23 5082 5082 |27 779 27775
Return on shareholders' funds in the
long-term assurance business 25 24122 - 24122 15551 - 15551
Ower operating income 13028 - 13028 27 780 - 27 780
Other income 455 070 - 455 0670 H08 566 —- 408 566
Total operating income 560 733 - 560 733 %|9 267 - 5191267
Administrative expenses 6 (395 188) - (395188y (400 780) - {400 780)
Depreciation and amortisation {12 448; (50 644) (63097 14417y 122302y (136719
- tangible fixed assets 7 [ (17 448) - (127348 14 417) C (14 417)
- amortisation and impairment of goodwill 20 — (50 649 (50 6443 : (122 302) (122 302)
Provision for bad and doubtfuf debts I5 (20 958) - (20 958) 18 308) - {18 308}
Operating profit/{loss) 132139 (50 644) 81 435 35762  (122302) (36 540)
Operating profit/(loss)
from cantinuing operations 132 139 {50 B44) 8l 495 102431 (116599) (14 168}
Operating loss from discantinued operations - - - 16 669) (5703) (22371
Operating profit/{loss) 132 139 (50 644) 8l 495 85 762 (122302} (36 540)
Share of income of associated cormpanies 11205 (2132 9073 11350 {1 &44) 9706
Exceptionzl items 9 8 529 8529 (28757 (28757
Provision for losses on termination and
disposal of group operations - discontinued - {5 103) {5 103) - {3 437) (437
Losses on termination and disposal of
group operations - discontinued - (24 328) (24 328) (16 493) (16493
Less provision made last year 19 225 19 225 7056 7 Q56
Impairment of goodwill on
discontinued operations - - - - (1?2 047y {19 047)
Profit on termination and disposal of group
cpelations - continuing - 13632 13632 - 5800 5800
Fundamental rearganisation and
restructuring costs - continuing - - - {6 073) (6 073}
Profit/{loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 143 344 (44 247) 99 097 P7 112 {152703) (55591}

*Restated (refer to accounting policies)

—i
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Before
goodwill & Goodwill &
exceptional exceptional
(£'000) Notes Notes items items

Profit/{loss} on ordinary activities

before taxation (continued) 143 344 (44 247)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 10 (27 821) {678}
Tax on profit on ordinary continuing activities (27 821) -

Tax on loss on ordinary discontinued activities - -
Tax on termination and disposal of group

operations - continuing - (678)
Profit/(loss) on erdinary activities after taxation 115523 {44 925)
Minority interests - equity {1 B88) 75
Profit/(less) attributable to shareholders 113 635 (44 850)
Dividends - including non-equity Il (63 70%) -
Retained profit/(loss) for the year 49 926 (44 850}

Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders
Amortisation and impairment of goodwill

Profit an termination and disposal of group
operations (net of deferred tax and minority interests)
Provision for lasses on termination and disposal
of group operations (net of deferred tax)
Amaortisation of goodwill of associates
Fundamental reorganisation

and restructuring costs

Preference dividends

Earnings before goodwill and exceptional items

Earnings per share (pence)
- Basic [
- Diluted It

Excluding goodwill and excepricnal items

- Basic H
- Ditluted

Headling earnings - basic Il
Dividends per share (pence) Il

*Restated (refer to accounting policies)

2004 2003*
Before
goodwill & Goodwill &
exceptional exceptional

Totat items items Totat

99 097 97 112 (152703) (55 591)
log499)  (5377) (5 377}
(27 821) 838 - 838
- (6215) - (6215

(678) - - -

70 598 91 735 (152703} (60 968)
{1813) (| 636) ~ {1 646)
68 785 90089  (152703) (62 614)
(63 70%) (53 428) - {53428
5076 36661 (152703 (116042
68 785 {62 614)
50 644 122 302
(13029 (5 800)
5103 28 484
2132 | 644

- 6073
(7 553} (421)
106 082 89 668
599 (67.6)
595 (67.6)
1037 9.1
100.7 919
1034 896
580 540

1




Consolidated statement of reg

gains and losses

For the year ended 31 March

(£:000)

"ognised

Profit/{(lcss) for the year attributable to shareholders

Currency transiation differences on fareign currency net investments
Unrealised surplus on revaluation of mvestmeant properties

Actuarial losses recogmised on pension fund schemes

Total recognised gains and losses for the year

Prior year adjustments in respect of changes in accounting policies

Total gains and losses since last annual report

In addition to the above prior year adjustments net assets at 31 March 2003
have also been reduced by £54.8 millien as a result of changes in accounting

policies that have had no impact on gains and losses as explained in the
accounting pchicies note.

There was no matenal difference between the results as reported and the

results that would have been reported on an unmedified historical cost basis.

Accordingly no note of historical cost profits and fosses has been included.

*Restated (refer to accounting policies)

2004 2003*
68 785 (62 614
(4 10 (13 870)
13982 18 265
(1 294) CROT
77 369 (67 926)
(2 276)

75 143




Consolidated balance sheet

For the year ended 31 March
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(£°000) : Notes 2004 2003*
Assets ‘
Cash and balances at central banks ‘ 363 862 318 343
Treasury bilis and other cligible bills | 12 332208 243019
Loans and advances 1o banks 13 1704 715 2758797
Loans and advances to customers 14 & 345 848 4 883 903
Debt securities 16 | 466 437 | 931 26
Eauity shares 17 418 254 147 638
Interests in associated undertakings 18 70006 62 122
Other particpating interests : 19 9135
Intangible fixed asscts i 20 251 508 299 773
Tangible fixed assets 22 116 326 205982
Own shares 23 43780 52223
Other assets 24 1 081 131 P21 44]
Prepayments and accrued income i 81511 i24 390
Long-term assurance business attributable to the shareholder 25 265 315 108 528
12 580 036 12377 724
Long-termy assurance assets attributable te policyholders 26 2781 335 2536319
| 15 361 371 14914043
Liabilities ‘
Deposits by banks L 27 | 233 605 2129292
Customer accounts ! 28 7200292 6 354 867
Debt securtties in issue | 2 621 857 | 089 756
Other fabilities E 30 1 969 855 | 580 88
Accruals and deferred Income 185 600 254 413
Pension fund lability H 967 10041
11 234 180 11419 250
Long-term assurance liabilities attribwtable to policyhotders 26 2781 335 2536319
14015515 13 955 569
Capital resources
Subordinated liabilties (including convertible debt) 32 497 858 279 702
Minority interests -cquity 39 029 38 804
Called up share capital 33 165 158
Share premium account | 020 890 280 321
Treasury shares 34 (52100 {40 387y
Shares to be issued 35 2 666 2428
Perpetual preference shares 36 1726 698 -
Revaluation reserves 43 142 29 160
Other reserves (168 402) (166 9073
Profit and foss account (164 088) {164 205)
Sharcholders' funds 808 345 639 968
- equity 682 271 639 968
- non equity 126 698 -
| 345 856 958 474
15 361 371 14914043
Memarandum items
Commitments 40 522 879 496 638
Contingent liabilities 11 267 441 318 906
790 320 845 544
The directors approved the accounts on 28 June 2004
S. Koseff
Chief Exacutive Cfiicer
*Restated (refer to accounting policies)
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 March

{£°000) Notes 2004 2003*
Net cash (outflow)finflow from operating activities 38 (489 492) 114779
Dividends received from associated undertakings 3769 2286

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Preference share dividend paid {7 553) {121}
Interest paid on subordinated debt and compulscrily convertible debentures (45110 (25 09
Net cash cutflow from return on investments and servicing of finance (52 663} {25 51 1)
Taxation (31917 {21 151
Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of investment securities (2451 6113 (3318 553)
Sale and maturity of investment securities 2791001 3190235
Purchase of own shares I 655 It 401

Purchase of tangible fixed assets {9 818} {7 746)
Sale of tangible fived assets 2 960 19 294
Net cash inflow/{cutfllow) from capital expenditure and financial investment 334 187 {135 377}

Acquisitions and disposals

Net cash cutflow from the purchase of interests in subsidiary undertakings (4772) (672)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from the disposal of greup undertakings 44 999 (8 579)
Investment in associated undertakings - (! 598)
Repayment of the loan capital in associated undertaking - 1220
Net cash inflow/{outflow} frem acquisitions and disposals 40 227 {9 629)
Equity dividends paid - ordinary share dividends (52 810) (54 335)
Financing

Proceeds from the issue of subordinated liabilities 216 056 48 650
Repayments of compulsorily convertible debentures (13939 {11 380}
Proceeds from shares to be issued 238 -
Proceeds from issue of preference ordinary share capital 127 484 -
Proceeds from issue of ordinary share capital ‘ 45 757 36 830
Share issue expenses ‘ (2031 (32213}
Net praceeds on acquistions and disposals of treasury shares 14 126 (38 543)
Buy-back of ordinary share caprtat - (5 079)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing 387 691 (2 335)
Increase/(decrease) in cash 138 992 (131 273)

*Restated (refer to accounting policies)




Consolidated cash flow

For the year ended 31 March
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sqatenwent

i
i
|
|

(£'000) Notes 2004 2003*

Cash flow reconciliation

increase/(decrease} in cash 138992 (131 273)

Cash and demand bank balances at beginning of the year i 033902 | 165 175

(Cash and demand bank balances at end of the year | 172 834 1933902

Cash and demand bank balances at end of year comprise:

Cash 3463 862 348 343

Demand bank balances 80% 032 685 559
| 172 894 I 033 902

*Restated (refer 1o accounting paolicies)




Reconciliation of shareholders

For the year ended 3! March

"funds and

Share Share Share
capital premium Capital capital
Investec Investec Treagury reserve Investec
{£000) Limiced Limiced Shares account plc
At 31 March 2002 - 2s previcusly reported 7530 814 089 - -
Pricr year adjustments:
Adoption of full requirements of FRS 17 :
Retirernent benefits - - -
Adeption of UITF 37:Purchase and sale of own shares - 2444 (2 444y - -
At 3| March 2002* - restated for prior year adjustments 7 530 816533 (2 444) - -
Year ended 31 March 2003%
Foreign currency adjustments - -
Retained ioss for the year -
Retained earnings of associates - - - - -
Issue of shares on listing - (9] bo- - 3
Conversion of shares to be ssued 374 86 402 | -
Issue of shares to staff share scheme - - - - Z
Buyback of shares to be 1ssued - - ‘
Buyback and cancellation of shares {148} {4931 - - -
Conversion from debentures l - \ - - -
Adjustment 1o par value of Investec Limited shares (7712) - | - 7712 -
Unbundling of Investec ple from Invesiec Limiled - (290 535) . - 108
Movement i treasury shares (16 231) (38 34)
Irvestec plc transfer to capital redemption reserve fund - - | — 50 -
[ssue expanses - (4741) . - -
Transfer to pension deficit fund - - - - -
Revaiuation of investment properties® - - - - -
Transfers on disposal of revalued investment properties - -
At 31 March 2003* - restated for prier year adjustments 45 586 497 (40 987) 7762 113
At 3| March 2003 - as previously reported 45 600 284 - 7762 13
Cumulative prior year adjustments to 31 March 2003* - {13 787) (40 987) - -
Year ended 3| March 2004
Foreign currency adjustmenis -
Retained profit for the year -
Retained earnings of associates - - - -
Reduction in shareholding of associate - - ;
lssue of shares 45750 - - 6
lssue of perpetual preference shares - - - - -
Share issue expenses (I 245) - -
Re-issue of treasury shares - {3938) 14126 -
Purchase of treasury shares - - {25 247} - -
PLC transfer ta capital reserve - - 156 -
Transfer to pension deficit fund - - - -
Revaluation of investment properties®* - - - -
At 31 March 2004 46 627 066 (52 102 7912 1%
*Restated {refer to accounting policies)
**Revaluation of investment properties is subject to taxation on rezlisation.




movements in reserves
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Share Revaluation

premium Shares Perpetual reserves Equity Foreign Profit
Investec o be preference investment accounted currency and loss

pic issued shares properties reserves reserves account Total

- 4% 148 - 1202 3287 {180 120y 37 166 734 302

- - 487 487

- - - - - (32) {960} (992)

- 41 148 - 11 202 3287 (180 152) 36 693 733797

- | 727 {15 597) - (13 870}

- - (116 042) (116 042)

- - - - 2 064 (5 064) -

36 B26 - - - - 36 829

- (38 148} - - 48 628

27 701 - - - - - - 27703

- (572} - - (572}

- - - (5 079}

- - - - - - - |

356 769 - - - - - {66 347) -

- 7002 (47 770

- _ - - - (50} _

(27 472} - - - - - - (32213

- - - - - - (3 707 (9 707)

- - - 13 265 - 18 265

- - (307) 307 -

393 824 2428 - 29 160 14078 (188 747} (64 205) 639 968

393 824 2428 29 160 14078 (195717} (155 009) 696 968

- - - - - & 970 (% 196) (57 000}

- | 124 (5 228) - (4 104}

- - - - 5076 5076

- - - - 3515 (3515) -

----- - {1 056) - {1 056)

238 - - 45 995

- - 127 484 - - - - 127 484

(786) - - (2031)

- - - 10190

- - - - - - - (25 241

- - - - (150} -

- - - - - - (12943 {1 294)

- - - 13932 - - - 13982

393 824 2 666 126 698 43 142 17 661 (193 975} {164 088} 808 969




Accounting policies

Basis of presentation
The group compriscs Investec ple. Investec Limited and their
subsidiary undertakings.

The consolidated financial staterents have been prepared
under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of certain assets.

These financial statements have been prepared having regard
to PartVIL Chapter ! of, and Schedule 9 to, the Companies
Act 1985 in accordance with applicable UK accounting
standards. and with the Statement of Recommended Practice
issued by the British Bankers' Association, except where
noted in the financial statements below.

Under UK GAAP the accounts of Investec ple and Investec
Limited have been combined in accordance with 5227 (5) of
the Companies Act {285 on the grounds that they form a
single economic entity. The merger method of accounting has
been used to account for the combination in accordance with
the provisions of FRS 6 applying to group reconstructions,
since the Dual Listed Company structure was brought into
effect. in the 2003 financial year, by de-merging the then
existing Investec group into two sub-groups headed by
Investec plc and Investec Limited by virtue of share for share
transfers which did not alter the rights of cxisting
sharcholders or the interest of any minority. The nature of the
DLC merger has resulted in the inclusion of amounts
attributable to the shareholders of both Investec plc and
Investec Limited in capital and reserves on the balance sheet.
and in attributable profit.

The effect of the BLC merger is that Irvestec plc and its
subsidiaries and investec Limited and its subsidiaries operate
together as a single ecanomic entity, with neither assuming a
dominant rale This is demonstrated by the following key
features of the arrangements:

+  The sharehalders of Investec ple and Investec Limited
have a common economic interest in both groups:

*  The sharcholders of Investec plc and investec Limited
take key decisicns, including the clection of directors,
through a joint electorat procedure under which the
shareholders of the two companies effectively vote an a
joint basis:

+ lInvestec plc and Investec Limited have a common Board
of Directors, a unified management structure and joint
objectives; and

+  Dividends and capital distributions made by the two
companics arc equalised.

Il either Investec plke or Investec Limited proposes to pay a
dividend to its sharcholders, then the other Company must

pay a matching cash dividepd of an equivalent amount per

share to its shareholders. |

i either Company is prohibited by

law or is otherwise unable|to declare, pay or otherwise make

all or arvy pertion of such
plc ar Investec Limited wil

1 matching dividend, the Investec
I so far as it is practicable to do so.

enter into such transactions with each other as Boards agree
10 be necessary or desiraljle so as to enable both Companies

to pay dividends as nearty

las practicable at the same time.

Changes to accounting policies and
comparative information

The accounting policies adopted by the group are consistent
with the prior year except as noted below.

The group edopted the folﬂow'mg new UK accounting

standards during the year:

UITF 37: Purchase and sale of own shares (excluding ESOP

trusts)
The group has adopted U

TF 37 in respect of own shares

held. In summary the impact for the group is as follows:

s Consideration paid fo

I the group's own shares are

deducted from shareholders' funds (referred to as

‘treasury shares’).

* No gain or loss is rec
account or staterment
on the purchase, sale
shares.

ognised in the profit and loss
of 1otal recognised gaing and losses
or cancellation of the group's own

The impairment charge bpoked in the 2003 financial year that

wollld not have been bog
£535 thousand. The adep
shares being included with
£52.1 million at 31 March
31 March 2003, Previous!

ked under UITF 37 was a loss of
ion of UITF 37 resulted in treasury
In capital resources amounting to
2004 and £41 million at

- these own shares were presented

within assets on the balance sheet.

Included in the restatement related 10 own sharesis a
correction of £10.2 milliop in share premium and foreign
currency reserves, This is is a result of an overstatement of

own shares and share preg
issuance of shares to groy

FRS 17 - Retirement

rmium in 2002 in relation to the
p schemes.

Benefits

The group has fully adopted the requirements of FRS 17 n

respect of retirement ben

efits. In ine with the abjective of the

standard, the group reflects the fair value of assets and
labilities and any related funding arising from defined benefit

schernes wethin the group.




Accounting policies

The implementation of FRS 17 resulted in a reduction of net
assets at 31 March 2003 of £3.1 millior (£10.1 million
~epresenting FRS |7 deficit less the SSAP 24 accrual of

£0.9 million). This change in policy increased net assets at

31 March 2002 by £0.5 milion (£G4 million representing the
FRS |7 deficit less the SSAP 24 accrual of £0.9 million}. The
charge to the consolidated statement of recognised gains and
losses relating to FRS 17 for the 2003 financial year was

£3.7 million, net of deferred taxation. The impact on the
statement of recognised gains and tosses for 2004 was a
charge of £1.3 million. nat of deferved taxation. FRS 17
resulted in interest income of £0.1 million in 2003 and
interest payable of £0.9 million in 2004.

Restatements to prior year's consolidated
profit and loss accounts

In the US business, certain directly attributable variable staff
costs were netted against the dealing profits generated there
from. In the current finandiat year these costs (£4.9 million}
have been included under administrative expenses {staff costs)
with a corresponding restatement to the prior year (£8.3
million).

in the prior year income on shareholders’ funds within the life
assurance business of £15.5 million was reflected as part of
interest margin. In the current year, this return on
sharehelders' funds (£24.1 million} is disclosed as a separate
line em in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Further, there were minar reclassifications between income
categories. Specifically, they relate to interest earned on cash
balances held on behalf of third parties (disclosed under net
interest income instead of annuity fees and commissions
receivable); returns generated on private client nvestment
banking activities (disclosed under dealing profits instead of
fees and commissions receivable): income from the group's
interest in securitisation schemes (disclosed under net interest
income instead of other cperating income); income on
certain trading positions {included in dealing profits instead of
other operating income); and the funding casts associated
with scrip lending activities {deducted frem fees and
commissions recelvable instead of interest income). The net
effact of the above was a decrease in net interest incorme of
£3.4 million, a decrease of £0.4 million in ret fees and
commissions' receivable, a decrease in other operating
income of £0.2 million, all of which were offset by an increase
in dealing profits of £4.0 million.

The above reclassifications were made so as to reflect the
nature of the underiying transactions in a more meaningful
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manner The reclasses have no net impact an the profit and
loss account,

Restatement to the weighted average number of
shares in issue (“the wanos”)

Investec has lestablished a number of share incentive plans
that are designed 1o link the interests of employees with
shareholders and long-term organisational interest through
performance and risk-based equity grants. These schemes are
required to be consolidated into the accounts of the group.
Haowever, to|the extent that the underlying risks and rewards
inherent in these schemes have already vested with the
participants, Investec is entitled to recognise its respective
pro-rata share of any income on related balances, This
accounting treatment has been consistently apphed in the
current and |prior years.

Historically shares that were not entitled to dividends were
not includeq in the wanos. In order to match the wanos to
the group's share of income associated with such schemes,
the wanos Has been increased by the weighted number of
shares vested, notwithstanding no dividend being payabile on
theses sharas.

The |mpactEEf this change in methodology has resuited in the
wanos increasing from 50,878,706 to 93291 446 in the prior
year resufting in comparative earnings per share - pre
goodwill and exceptional items decreasing from 98.7 pence
{including the effects of UITF 37 and FRS 17 per above) 10
96.1 pence.|

Had the original methadolegy been apphed in the current
year, the wanos would have been 97,330,743 (instead of
102,30007 1y and the equivalent earnings per share - pre
goodwill and exceptional items would have been 103.0 pence
(instead of | 03.7 pence), an increase of [0.4% over the prior
year.

Basis of consolidation

The group financial statements incorporate the financial
results of the group and its subsidiaries. All subsidiaries in
which the group holds mere than one half of the voting rights
or over which it exercises control are consolidated from the
effective dates of acquisition and up to the effective dates of
disposal, extept entities where they are held with a view to
subsequent|resale. In the case of Investec Bank (israed)
Limited, whpse accounts are compited to 31 December
annually, the group uses interim management accounts, drawn
up to 31 March annually.

Entities, cther than subsidiary undertakings, in which the group
has a partigpating interest and exercises significant influence




Accounting policies

over operating and financial policies, are treated as associates.
In the group accounts, associates are accounted for using the
equity method. Other participating interests on which the
group dees not exercise significant influence are accounted
for at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The consolidated financial statements include the attributable
share of the results and reserves of associated undertakings.
The group’s interests in associated undertakings are included
in the consolidated batance sheet at the group's share of net
assets plus unamortised goodwill.

Positive goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is
amortised against income over its wseful economic life, for a
period not exceeding 20 years. Negative goodwill arisng on
acquisitions 15 Included within intangible fixed assets and
released to profit and loss account initlally over the period
that non-monetary assets are recovered and then over the
periods expected to benefit. Goodwill is reviewed for
impairment at the end of the first full financial year foliowing
the acquisition and in other periods If events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

in order to reflect the different nature of the shareholders’
and policyholders interests in the long-term assurance
business, the value of the long-term assurance business
atributable to shareholders and the assets and liabilities
attributable to poficyholders are classified under separate
headings in the consclidated balance sheet.

The group operates various Employee Benefit Trusts. In terms
of UITF [3,1he assets and liabilities of the Employee Benefit
Trusts are consolidated within the group financial statements,

Foreign entities

The net assets of foreign subsidiaries are translated at closing
rates of exchange and the translation differences arising are
taken to reserves. The results of these companies are
transtated at weighted average rates of exchange for the
relevant period. The difference between the profit and loss
translated at an average rate and the closing rate is recorded
as a movement in reserves. Any exchange differences on
foreign currency loans which are used to hedge the net
investrnent in foreign subsidiaries are also taken to reserves.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of foreign entities is
transiated at the closing exchange rate.

Foreign currency transactions

Monetary assets and labilittes in foreign currencies are
translated inte the local reporting currency at market rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date All foreign currency
transactions are translated into the local reporting currency at

the exchange rates ruling gt the time of the transactions. Any

gain or loss arising from a

thange in exchange rates

subsequent to the date of the transaction is included as an
exchangs gan or loss in the profit and loss account.

Debt securities and equity shares
Shares and securities intented for use on a continuing basis in

the group's activities are ¢
Such shares and securitias
any impairment in value T

lassified as investment securities.
are stated at cost Iess provision for
& cost of dated investment

securities is adjusted for the amortisation of premiums or
discounts on 2 level yield basis over the period to maturity.

Debt securities held for the purpose of hedging are valued on

the same basis as the liabi
debt securities and equity

lities which are being hedged. Cther
shares are included in the balance

sheet at market value. Changes in the market value of such
assets are recognised in the profit and loss account as
'Dealing profits’ as they arse.

Where securities are sold subject to a commitment 1o
repurchase thern, they remain on Balance Sheet. Obligations
for the repurchase of these securities are included under
deposits by banks and customer accounts. Securities that are

purchased under a comm
future date are not recog)
consideration paid is inclu
or loans and advances to

Stack lending and borrow

collateralised are not inch
lending and borrowing tra
collateralised are account
sold or purchased subject]

Financial instrume

Financial instruments in th

tment to resell the securities at a
nised on the Balance Sheet. The
ded in joans and advances 1o banks
customers.

ing transacticns that are not cash
ded in the balance sheet. Stock
nsactions which are cash

ed for in the same was as securities

to repurchase commitments.
nts

e trading book are measured at fair

value, whereas financial instruments in the non-trading book,
including leans and investinent securities, are measured at
amortised cost. Income and expenses on trading instruments

are recognised in the prof

it and loss account in full In the

current period, whereas income and expenses on non-trading
instruments are amartised over the life of the instrument,
with adjustments made to reflect changes in estimated

premiums and discounts.

Derivatives

Dervatives are used to hedge interest, exchange rate and
equity expasures related [to non-trading positions. instruments

used for hedging purpose
credit derivatives, forwar

s include swaps. equity derivatives,

rate agreements. futures, options

and combinations of these nstruments. In addition. the use of
derwatives and their sale to customers as risk management
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preducts is an integral part of the group's trading activities.
Derwvatives entered into for trading purposes include swaps,
equity derivatives, credit derivatives, commodity derivatives,
forward rate agreements, futures, options and combinations of
these instruments.

Where the group has entered into legally binding netting
agreements, positive and negative values of derivatives are
offset within the balance sheet totals.

Exposures to market risks are limited through the use of
hedging instruments. The criteria used for a derivative
instrument to be classified as a designated hedge include:

»  the transaction must efectively reduce the price or
interest rate or credit risk of the asset. lability or cashflow
to which it is finked, and

*  adequate evidence of the intention to link with the
underlying risk inherent in the asset, lability or cashfiow:
and

+  the transaction must be designated as a hedge at the
inception of the derivative contract.

The hedging instrurments are accounted for on the same basis
as the underlying asset. liability, position or cash flow being
hedged with income and expense being recognised in the
profit and loss account, Hedging transactions which are
superseded, cease to be effective or are terminated prior to
the end of the life of the asset, liability or cashflow being
hedged are measured at fair value. Any profit or loss arising is
deferred and amortised inte income or expense over the
remaining life of the item previously hedged. When the
underiying asset, liability position or cashflow is terminated
prior to the hedging transaction, the hedging transaction is
measured at fair valug and the resulting profit or loss is
included in the category of income ar expense relating to the
previcusly hedged transaction.

Instalment credit, leases and rental agreements
Amounts outstanding on these contracts, net of unearned
finance charges, are ncluded in foans and advances. Finance
charges on finance leases and instalment credit transactions
are credited to income in propariion to the capital balances
outstanding. Rentals payable undar operating leases are
charged in the prefit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the lease term.

Specific and general provisions for bad and
doubtful debts

Specific provisions represent the quantification of actual and
expected losses from dentified accounts ang are deducted
from loans and advances in the balance sheet. The amount of
specific provision raised is the group's conservative estimate
of the amount needed to reduce the carrying value of the
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asset to the lexpected ultimate net realisable value, taking into
account the|financial status of the customer and any security
for the loan,Included in the specific provisions are amounts in
respect of interest that is not serviced. The charge for
provision for bad and doubtful debts in the profit and loss
account incllides the unserviced interest which has been
transferred 1o specific provisions. Doubtful debts are written
off against the balance sheet and provision in part, or in
whole, when the extent of the loss incurred has been
determined

General pravisions augment specific prowvisions and provide
cover for lagns which are impaired at the balance sheet date
but which will not be identified as such until some time in the
future. The group's general provision has been determined
taking into gccount the structure and the risk characteristics
of the group's toan portfolio. A number of complex and
changing fagtors are collectively weighed by management in
determining the adequacy of provisions. These factors include
management's view of the extent of existing risks in the loan
portfolio and prevailing economic conditions. General
provisions Jre deducted from loans and advances to
customers |n the balance sheet.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixgd assets are stated at original cost. Depreciaticn
1s provided| on a straight-line basis over their anticipated useful
lives, Leasshold improvements are amortised over the
shorter of PO years and the remaining period of the |eases.

The annual rates used to depreciate assets are as follows:

Computer |equipment 33%
Metor vehicles 20% - 25%
Equipment] 20%
Furniture and fittings 10% - 20%

Freehold properties 2%

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for
impairment if events or changes in crcamstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable.

Certain of|the group's properties are held for long-term
investanent. Investrment properties are accounted for in
accordance with SSAP 19, as follows:

{i) investment properties are revalued semi-annually. The
surplus or deficit on revaluation s transferred to the
revaluation reserve unless & deficit below original cost. or
its reversal, an an individual property is expected to be
permanant, in which case it is recognised in the profit and
loss agcount for the year; and

{1} no depreciation is provided in respect of freehold
investment properties or leasehold investment properties
wherg the lease has over 20 years 1o run.

Although the Companies Act would normally require the
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systematic annual depreciation of fixed assets, the directors
believe that the policy of not providing depreciation is
necessary in order for the financial statements te give a true
and fair view, since the current value of investment properties,
and changes to that current value, are of prime importance
rather than a calculation for systematic annual depreciatton.
Depreciation is only ane of the many factors reflected in the
annual valuation. and the amount which might otherwise have
been mcluded cannct be separately identified or quantified.

Dealing properties
Dealing properties are included in other assets and are stated
at the lower of cost and net reafisable value.

Taxation
Corporation tax payable is provided on taxable profits at the

current rate.

Deferred taxation

The directors have implemented FRS 19 on deferred taxation.

Deferred taxation 1s recognised in respect of all timing
differences that have originated but not reversed at the
balance sheet date where transactions or events that resuft in
an obligation to pay mare tax in the future or a right 1o pay
less tax in the future have occurred at the bafance sheet date.
This is subject to deferred tax assets only being recognised if
it considered more likely than not that there will be suitable
profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing
differences can be deducted. Timing differences are the
differences between the group's taxable profits and its results
as statec in the financial statements, which are capable of
reversal in one or more subsequent periods.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised in respect of capital
losses as crystallisation of capital gains ad the eligibility of
potential capital losses is uncertain,

Deferred 1ax is recognised in respect of future remittance of
retained earnings of overseas subsidiaries only to the extent
that, at the balance sheet date, dividends have been accrued
as recelvable {or a binding agreement to distribute past
earnings in the future has been entered into by the
subsidiary).

Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which
the timing differences are expected to reverse, based on tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

Long term life assurance
1) Investec Employee Benefits
Investec Employee Benefits is engaged in writing long-term

assurance business, including the provision of life assurance.
pensions and, annuities, Thg company is structured intlo

policyholders' funds and a

shareholder's fund. All premiums

received, investrnent returris, claims and expenses, and

changes in liabilities to pol
the related long-term assu

cyholders are accounted for within
ance fund. Any surphus, which 1s

determined annually by the Appointed Actuary after taking

account of these items, ma

ether be distributed between the

shareholder and the policyholders according to a

predetermined formula or
assurance fund The share
management and administ
assurance fund.

retained within the long-term
holder will also Jevy investment
ation charges upon the long-term

The group accounts for itg interest in long-term assurance
business using the embedded value basis of accounting. The

value of the shareholder's
business ('the embedded
balance sheet is an actuar
economic value of the grg
excluding any value, which)
business. The embedded
assets of the life assurancs
retained within the long-te
transferred to the sharehq
in-force business, The valy
calculated by projecting tH

interest in the long-term assurance
alue’y included in the group's

pily determined estimate of the
up's life assurance subsidiaries,
may be attributed to future new
alue comprises the net tangible
subsidiaries. including any surplus
ron assurance funds. which could be
ider; and the present value of the
e of the in-force business is

e future surpluses and other net

cash flows attributable to the shareholder arising from

business written by the b

lance sheet date, using appropriate

economic and actuaral assumptions, and discounting the

result at a rate which reflg
premium.

cts the shareholder's overall risk

Changes in the embedded value, which are determined on a
post-tax basis, are included in the profit and loss account.

The assets held within the
legally owned by the life 3

long-term assurance funds are
ssurance cormpanias, however the

shareholder will only bengfit from ownership of these assets
to the extent that surpluges are declared or from other
cashflows attributable to the shareholder. Reflecting the

different nature of these

1ssets, they are classified separately

on the group's balance sheet as 'Long-term assurance assets

attributable to policyhold

ers', with a corresponding lizbility ta

the policyholders also shpwn. Investments held within the
long-term assurance funds are included on the following basis:

equity shares, debt securt

ties and unit trusts are valued at

market prices; investment properties are reflected at

directors' valuation , and
written off

2) Investec Assurance L
The pokicy liabilities of In

oans are at cost less amounts

mited
estec Assurance Limited comprise
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Accounting policies

unit-inked business sold to retirement funds and individual Retirement benefits

investors. All kabilities are directly related to asset values and The group gperates various defired contribution scheres and
the company assumes no mortality risk. two closed glefined benefit schemes.

The liabilities are valued on a basis consistent with the asset In respect of the defined contribution scheme all emplover
valyes and comply with the Financial Soundness Valuation cantributions are charged to mcome, as they become payable
basis, as is accepted accounting practice in South Africa. i accordande with the rules of the scherme, and included

under staff dosts.
Investments are reflected at market value, Where market

value cannot be determined, investments are reflected at The assets af the defined benefit schemes are measured at
directors' valuation. their market value at the ba‘ance sheet date and the labilities
of the schernes are measured using the projected unit
Income from long term assurance business comprises interest, method The discount rate used to measure the schemes’
dividends and rental income received on investments held, as liabilities i5 the current rate of return on an AA corporate
well as premium income in respect of linked business sold. bond at the |balance sheet date of equivalent term and
Gains and fosses ansing as result of the fluctuation in the currency to the liabilities The extent to which the schemes'
market value of investments, whether rezlised or unrealised, assets excedd or fall short of the schemes liabilities is shown
are accounted for as movernents in the long term assurance as a surplus pr deficit in the balance sheet net of deferred
fund. taxation {to the extent that it is considered recoverable).
Income recognition The movement in the scheme surplusideficn is spht between
Interest income is recognised in the profit and loss account as operating charges, financing items and, in the statement of
it accrues other than interest the collectability of which is total recogniped gains and losses, actuarial gaing and losses,
considered doubtiul which is credited to a suspense account
and excluded from interest income. The closing balance on Capital instruments
the suspense account is netied in the balance sheet against Shares are included in shareholders' funds, Other instruments
accrued interest receivable o as the case may be, the amount are classified|as liabilities If they contain an abhgation to
debited to the borrower Suspended interest is written off transfer economic benefits and if nct they are included in
when there is no longer any realistic prospect of it being shareholdery funds The finance cost recognised in the profit
recovered. and loss account in respect of capital instruments other than
equity shareg is allocated to pericds over the term of the
Dealing profits is shown net of the funding cost of the instrument at a ¢constant rate on the carrying amount,

underlying positions and includes the unrealised profits on
trading portfalics, which are marked to market dally.

Commissions and fees include fees earned from providing
advisory services, portfolic management and the arranging of
financing for clients. All such commissions and fees are
recognised as revenue when the related services are
performed, Fees and comrmissions charged in fieu of interest
are taken to income on 3 level yield basis over the period of
the loan. Equity investments receved in liew of corparate
finance fees are included in trading securities and valued
accardingly.

Other operating income includes realised profits and losses
on disposal of investments and dividends received.
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Principal Country of Interest %  Interest %
(£'000) Activity Incorporation 2004 2003

I, Principal subsidiary and assocfated companies

Direct subsidiaries of Investec plc

tnvestec Holding Company Limited Investment holding England and Whles 100 100
Indirect subsidiaries of Invescec plc

Investec Bank (Australia) Ltd Banking institution Australia 100 100
Investec SA Investmment holding Luxembourg 100 00

lowestec Holdings (UK) Lid Holding company England and Whiles 100 100
investec | Ltd Investment holding England and Whles 100 GO
Investec Bank (UK) Lid Banking institution England and Whales 100 10G
Investec Group (UK) PLC Holding company England and Weles 100 100
Investec Asset Finance PLC Leasing company England and Whles 100 100
lnvester Finance PLT Drebt issuer England and VWhles 100 100
Invester Group Investments (UK) Ltd Investment holding England and Viles 100 100
Investec Investment Holdings AG Investment hoiding Switzerland 100 100
Guinness Mahon & Co Limited Investment holding England and Wales 100 10
Investec Bank {Channel Islands) Ltd Banking mstitution Guernsey 100 100
Irvestec Trust (Switzerland) SA, (Formerly
Radcliffes Trustee Company S.A) Trust cornpany Switzerland 10C 100
investec Bank (Switzerland) AG Banking institution Switzerland 100 100
Imvestec Trust (Guernsey) Limited Trust company Guernsey 100 100
Investec Trust (Jersey) Limited (Formerty
Theodares Trust & Law Group Limited) Trust company Jersey 100 100
Carr Sheppards Crosthwaite Ltd Stockbroking and

portfolio managernent  England and Wiles 100 100
Investec Asset Management Limited Asset management England and Wales 100 100
Investec Ireland Ltd Financial services Ireland 100 GO
lnvestec US Inc (Formerly lnvestec Ernst
and Company nc) Financial services USA 100 100
Investec Bank (|srael) Lid Banking institution fsrael 80 80
European Capital Company Ltd Project finance England and WWales 10¢ G0
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 March

Principal Country of Interest % Interest %
(£:000) Activity mcorporation 2004 2003

|. Principal subsidiary and assaciated companies (cantinued)

Direct subsidiaries of Investec Limited

Invego Investments Lid Investment holding South Africa 100 100
irvestec Assel Management Holdings (Pty) Lid Investment holding South Alrica 100 100
Imvestec Assurance Ltd Insurance company Jouth Africa 100 100
Investec Bank Ltd Registered bank Jouth Africa 100 100
Investec Employee Benefits Holdings Ltd

(Formerly Wilcardo Investments & (Pty) Ltd) Investment holding Qouth Africa 100 100
Investec Int. (Gibraltar) Limited Investment holding Gibraltar 100 100
Investec Securitics Ltd Registered stock broker  South Africa 100 100
Sibvest Limited

{Formerly Securities Investment Bank Ltd) Investment holding South Africa 100 100
Fedsure International Ltd livestment halding Sputh Africa 160 160
Investec Property Group Holdings Ltd Investment holding Sputh Africa 10G 100
Indirect subsidiaries of Investec Limited

Grayinvest Limited

(Formerly Investec Ltd) Investrment holding Sputh Africa 100 10
Barfold Investments Ltd

(Formerty South African Drruggists Ltd) Investment helding Sbuth Africa 100 1C0
Investec Asset Management (Py) Lid Asset management Sputh Africa 1GQ 184
Invested Insurance Brokers (Py) Ltd Insurance breking South Africa 100 100
investec internationat Holdings (Pty) Lid Investment hotding Sputh Africa 100 100
Investec Fund Managers 5A Ltd Unit trust management  Sputh Africa 100 100
Investec Bank (Mauritius) Ltd Banking institution auritius 100 100
Investec Property Group Ltd

{(Formerly IPG Property Trading &

Development (Pty) Ltd) Property trading Seuth Africa 100 100
Reichmans Ltd Trade financing South Africa H00 Hoo
Investec Employee Benefits Ltd

(Formerly Fedsure Life Assurance Ltd) Long-term nsurance Sauth Africa 10¢ 100
Traded Endowment Policies Ltd

(Formerly Fedsure Traded Endowments Ltd) Endowments trading  Unjited Kingdom 100 100

Principal assoclated company of Investec Limited
Capital Allance Ltd Long-term insurance Squth Africa 290 9.2




Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 3| March
Private Treasury & Asser | Group

Investment Client Specialised Management |Services Discontinued Total
(£000) Banking Activities Finance & Assurance & Other Operations  group
2. Segmental analysis
Business analysis 2004
Met interest ncome & 484 83 591 41 405 2900 (28T - 105463
Dividend incorne 308 87 2 872 - 183 3450
Net fees and commissions receivable 51 5C1 114 635 35 389 100 129 16718 - 318373
Dealing profits 23721 7517 35634 | 736 22407 - 91015
Incorme from long-term assurance business - - 5082 - 5082
Beturn on shareholders' funds in
the long-term assurance business - - - - 24122 24122
Other operating income 5904 | 343 {1 458) 138 7101 13028
Operating income 87918 207 174 113842 109985 41 814 - 560733
Adrinistrative expenses (49 636) (135075 (72837 (79794 |(57 84&) - (395 18®)
Deprecialion (563)  (4034)  (1258) ©998) | (5 595) (12 448}
Provision for bad and deubtiul debts : {14203 {3942) (2813) {20 958)
Operating profit{loss) before amertisation
and impairment of goodwill 37719 53862 35 805 29 193 (24 440) - 132139
Share of {lossiincome of
associated companies - - (300) 2373 - 9073
Amortisation and imparment of goodwill {5 841} (4 347 {2658y (23754  [(14 044) (50 &44)
Other exceptional items - - - - 13 632 (5 103) 8529
Profit/{loss) on ordinary activities
before taxation 31878 49515 32 847 f4812  [[24852) (5103) 99097
Net inlercompany interest (5447 (89 585) 169 311 185 |74 464 -
Total assets (£ million} 304 4 562 5515 3388 I 592 [5 361
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For the year ended 3| March

Private Treasury & Asset  Group

Investment Client Specialised |[Management Services Discontinued Total
{£000) Banking  Activities Finance |& Assurance & Other Operations  group
1. Segmental analysis {(continued)
Business analysis 2003
Net interest incomne 4 548 70174 31892 2993 (2 965) 4059 110701
Dividend tncome [ 608 114 - | 875 - 3 597
Net fees and commissions recervable 36 141 92018 24 49| 85976 Il 082 26483 276 191
Dealing profits %233 8748 35 454 722 4 472 961y 57 668
Incormne fram long-term assurancs business - - 7779 - - 27779
Return on sharcholders' funds in the
leng-term assurance business - - - - 15551 - 15 551
Other operating income 12 654 284 341 16 15479 (994 27780
Cperating income 64184 171224 92232 | 117 486 45 494 28587 5191267
Administrative expenses (49 164y (120777) (66 577y | (71 896) (48054 (44 312y (400 780)
Depreciation (307} (3 835) {1 259) {1 005) {6 1567) 941y (14417
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (589) (l12611) {4 258) {40} 81 - (18308
Operating profit{loss) before
amortisation and impairment of goodwill 13524 34 001 20 198 44 545 (9837) (16669 85762
Share of (loss)y/income of associated comparvies  (23) (n (1 9 693 48 9 706
Amortisation and impairment of goodwilf (6 795)  {13169) 177 (74 419y {22093) (5 703y (122 302)
Other cxceptional items (3 068) {595) 4 355 {967y (28484} (28 757)
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities
before taxation 3 640 19 926 24729 20 181)  (32849) (50856) (55 5%1)
Net intercormpany interest (2 625) {54 766) 73971 {14322} (327 (1931 -
Total assets (£ million) 257 3191 7388 2918 | 130 - 14914

The Statement of Recommended Practice on Segmental Reporting by Banks recommends, inter alia, net assets to be disclosed by
class of business and geographical segment In the view of the directors it would
class of business since economic capital of cortatn significant businesses of the grolip is not held in, or allocated to, these businesses,

but is held centrally.

ot be meaningful to provide this information by

As the business of the group is mainly that of banking and insurance, ng segmenta analysis of turnover is given.
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For the year ended 3! March

1S

United

Kingdom  Southern Discontinued Toral
(£'000) & Europe Africa  Awstralia Israel USA  Operations  group
2. Segmental analysis {continued}
Geographical aralysis 2004
Net interest income 43 594 37513 13210 10874 472 105 é63
Dividend ncorne 249 3162 12 27 3450
Met fees and commissions receivable 172334 121 422 12 571 10026 2020 318 373
Dealing profits 23981 59 034 277 977 6 746 - g1 015
Income from leng-term assurance business - 5082 - - 5082
Return an shareholders’ funds in the
long-term assurance business - 24122 - 24 122
Other operating income 3956 7 886 il 602 573 13028
Operating income 244 114 258221 26 081 22 506 98l - 560733
Administrative expenses (197 0793 (158 149y  (15824) {[49311) (9 225) (395 188)
Depreciation (5204 (5898) (259) (934) {153) (12 448)
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (3097y (16 746) (372) (743) - {20 958)
Operating profit before amortisation
and impairment of gaodwill 38734 77 428 9 626 5918 433 - 132139
Share of income/{lass) of associated companias - 3 249 {300y (17) 141 7473
Amortisation and impairment of goodwil! {12919 (31673 {6 052} : - {50 644}
Other exceptional items 13832 - - {5103 8 529
Profiti{loss} on ordinary activities
before taxation 25 815 68 636 3274 5901 574 (5 103y 99097
Taxation (6300 (16291 (2 833) (3 474 399 —- (28 499)
Minorities {41 (1267 - (505) - (t 813)
Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders 19 474 51078 44 | 922 973 (5.103) 68 785
Net intercompany interest (8 787) 10 259 {369) - (1 103) - -
Cash and balances at central banks 2 104 2 248 364
Treasury bills and other eligible bills 7 187 138 - 332
Loans and advances to banks 253 551 65 131 5 P 705
Loans and advances to cuslomers 2 425 3476 253 192 - 6 346
Debt securities 628 678 - 133 |7 | 466
Equity shares 255 159 2 - 2 418
Interests in associated undertakings ! 67 i - [ - 70
Participating interests 9 - - g
Intangible fixed assets 145 95 12 - - 252
Tangibie fixed assets 8 13 \ i3 \ 146
Crwin shares - 44 - - - - 44
Other assets 479 576 4 20 pl - | 081
Prepayments and accrued income 48 42 \ €3] 82
tong terrm assurance assets - 3046 — - - 3046
Total assets {£ million) 4 987 9138 480 728 28 - 15361




Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 3| March

| 69

Annual Report 2004

United

Kingdom  Southern Discontinued Total
(£'900) & Europe Africa  Australia Israel UsA  Operations  group
2. Segmental analysis {continuad}
Geographical analysis 2003
MNet interest income 56 359 31 652 7817 10 951 (137 4059 110701
Dividend incorme 305 3083 192 |7 : - 3597
Net fees and commissions receivable 136 075 92 468 9 987 7 852 3326 26483 276 191
Dealing profits 11290 35203 (% { 958 10185 (961) 57 658
Incame from lang-term assurance business - 7779 - - - 17779
Return on sharchalders’ funds in
the long-term assurance busincss [5 551 - - - - IS 558
Other operating income 15987 12 688 &4 (293 328 (994) 27 780
Cperating income 220016 218 424 18 053 20 485 13702 18587 519267
Administrative expenses (187 599) (130863 (11500 | (14525) (11980} (443120 (40C 780)
Depreciation {6 205) {5 193) (196) {1127 (752) (944 (14 41N
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (3650) (12889 {432} (1337 - - (18 308)
Qperating profit/{loss) before amortisation
and impairment of goodwill 22 562 69 479 5 924 3 496 970 (16 669) 85 742
Share of income/{loss) of associated companies 3 689 (3% 52 g 706
Amortisation and impairment of goodwill (23 979) {87 392) (5 195} (33} (5703) {122 302)
Other exceptional items {5 353} 5080 - (28 484) (28757
(LossMprofit on ordinary activities
before taxation (6 770) (3 144) 729 3428 | 022 {50 856) (55 591}
Taxation 13684 (9967) (245D (4273 - (6215 (5377
Minoritias (1 033) (153) - {460) - - {1 646)
Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders 5 88l {13 264) {1 723) 2 54] | 022 (57 071) (62614
Net intercompany interest 942 5049 {902) - (3 158) {1 931) -
Cash and balances at central banks 13 20 2 43 - - 348
Treasury bills and other eligible bills - 175 68 - - - 243
l.oans and advances to banks 2 143 401 31 153 31 2759
Loans and advances 1o customers | 825 2648 174 236 | - 4 884
Debt securities I 077 702 - 141 |1 - I 931
Equity shares 59 85 | - 32 148
Interests i associated undertakings 4 58 - 62
Intangible fixed assets 165 19 16 - - 300
Tangible fixed assets 20 168 | 16 I 206
Cran shares - 52 - - - 52
Other assets 203 994 & 24 (15% 1212
Prepayments and accrued income a3 40 \ - 124
Long tcrm assurance assets - 2 645 - - : 2645
Total assets {£ million) 5592 8177 300 813 32 - 14914
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2. Segmental analysis {continued)

The Statement of Recommended Practice on Segmental Reparting by Banks recommends, inte
class of business and geographical segment. In the view of the directors it would not be meanin

class of business since the economic capital of certain significant businesses of the group is not

businesses, but is held centrally. Similarly, an analysis by geographical segment woud not be meal

the Group has been structured and funded historically.

The Statement of Recomimended Practice on Segmentat Reparting by Banks and the Compan

by geographical segment of gross income, consisting of interest receivable, dividend income, fee

dealing profits and other operating income. In the view of the directors, interest receivable and
menitored on a net basis and an aggregate split of fees and commissions receivable and payabl
not provide meaningful disclosure. Consequently, gross income is not separately disclosed,

The Statement of Recommended Practice on Segmental Reporting by banks recommends that
on the location of the office at which the transaction was recorded or the location of the custg

15 based on the location of the office at which the transaction was recorded, except for the tra

the traded endowment business is conducted and recorded in the United Kingdom, it has been
segment as the business is held by Investec Limited and managed as part of the South Afiican g

As the business of the group is mamly that of banking and insurance, no segmental analysis of 1

A geographical breakdown of business operating profit before goodwill amortisation is show

For the year ended 3| March

Nnts

alia, net assets to be disclosed by
gful to provide thus information by
held in, or allocated to, these
ningful, because of the way in which

es Act recommends the disclosure
and commissions receivable,

fees and cormmissions receivable are
by geographical segment would

G

the geographical analysis be based
mer The group geographical analysis
ded endowment business, Although
allocated to the South African
perations.

Irnover is given.

n below:

United
Kingdom  Southern Discentinued Toral

(£'000) & Europe Africa  Australia Israel USA  Operations  group

2004

Investrnent Banking 2939 27 147 4312 3066 255 - 37719
Private Client Activities 30 627 9610 3025 600 - - 53 862
Treasury and Specialised Finance 14015 18 887 436 2 467 - - 35 805
Asset Management I 614 22 740 - 257 - - 24 611

Assurance - 4582 - - - - 4582
Group Services and Other Activities {10461y (15538} i 853 (472} 178 - {24490y
Discontinued Operations — - - — - - —
Total group 38734 77 428 9 626 5918 433 - 132139
2003

Imvestrment Banking 4297 4 898 2532 I 797 - - 13524

Private Client Activities 18 884 12722 930 | 465 - - 34 00t

Treasury and Specialised Finance (5650 26 604 {865) 118 - - 20198
Asset Managemen: I 426 16 171 - I8 - - (7715

Assurance - 26 830 - - - - 26 830
Group Services and Other Activities 3614 (17 746) 3327 (2 §70 - (2830
Discontinued Operations - - - - - (16 669 (16 669
Total group 22562 &9 479 5 924 3 496 970 {l6669)  BS 762
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(£'000) 2004 2003

2. Segmental analysis (continued}

Further breakdowns of businesses line operating profit before goodwill

amortisation are shown below:

Investment Banking

Corporate Finance 8 206 464

Institutional Research and Sales and Trading 4129 (3'76)

Direct Investments 18 635 4 368

Private Equity 6749 |1 868
37719 13524

Private Client Activities

Private Banking 45 397 9 S88

Private Client Portfolio Management and Stockbroking 8 465 4413
53 862 34 001

Treasury and Specialised Finance

Banking Activities 33104 23242

Finangial Market Activities 2 701 (3044
35 805 20 198

Asset Management and Assurance

Asset Management 24 611 17 71%

Agsurance 4 582 26 830
29 193 44 545

Group Services and Other Activities

International Trade Finance 2725 978

Property Worldwide 10125 5113

US conlinuing cperations 178 970

UK Traded Endowments {3279 (8 945)

2 749 (1 584

Central Funding (8483 7 161

Cenitrat Costs (25 726) {15 414)
(24 440} (9 837)

Discontinued Operations - {16 669)
132 139 85 762
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For the year ended 31 March Continuing Discontinuing
(£000) 2004 R003 2004 2003
3. Discontinuing operations

Interest receivable --interest income arising from debt securities 91845 170 839 - 227
Interest receivable —other interest income 588 067 669 548 - 2 Q&7
Interest payable (574 249) (733]74%) - {5235}
Net interest income 105 663 106 642 - 4059
Dividend income 345Q 3597 - -
Fees and commissions reccivable 340 528 2971907 - 33052
annuity 272718 254 584 - 30615
deal &7 810 41 323 = 2437
Fees and comrmission payable (22155 (48199 (& 56%)
Dealing profits 9t 015 58 629 - (981}
lncome from long-term assurance business 5082 28 77% -
Return on sharehoiders funds 24122 15 551 - -
Other operating income (3028 28774 - (554
Orther income 455 070 384 038 - 24 528
Total operating income 560733 430680 - 28 587
Adrministrative expenses (395 188) (356 468) - (313
Depreciation and amortisation (63 092) (130/072) (6 647)
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (20958)  (18[308) - -
Operating profit/(loss) 81495  (14|t68) - (22372)
Share of income of associated companies 9073 9706

Provision for losses on termination and disposal

of group operations - discontinued - - (5 103) {9 437
Losses on termination and disposal of group operations-discontinued - - (24 328) (16 493)
Less provision made last year — — 19 225 7 056
Impairment of goodwill oa discontinued operations - - (19 047)
Prafils on termination and disposal of group eperations - continuing, 13632 5800 -
Fundamental recrganisation and restructuring costs - continuing . (6 073) -
Profit/{lass) on ordinary activities before taxation 104 2006 (4735 {5 103} (50 856)
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March
{£'000) 2004 2003
4. Dividend income
income from cquity shares 3450 3 587
5. Dealing profits
Interest rate instruments (4120 27 677
Foreign exchange instruments 9 03t 12200
Commaodities trading (4 903) 4263
Profit on disposal of dealing properties 4875 47391
Equities and other securives 84 261 10 162
Traded endowments L §72 RN
21 Qi5 57 668
6. Administrative expenses
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
Wages and salaries 239 336 233513
Social security costs 12951 18514
Pension and provident fund contributions |2 947 13410
265 234 265 437
Other administrative expenses
Premises {excluding depreciation) 8 883 5058
Operating rental expenses 17 363 17 245
Equipment (excluding depreciation and cperating rental expenses) 22838 25 569
Business expenses 65 924 74 628
Marketing expenses 14 944 12 843
129 954 135343
395 188 400 780
The following amounts were paid to the auditors
Audit fees 3466 3627
Other services | 220 585
4 686 4212
Audit fees by audit firm
Ernst & Young LLF 21316
KPMG Inc I 148
Other 2
3 466
Number of employees
The number of persons employed by the group was as follows:- Number Number
Private Client Activities 1569 | €23
Treasury and Speciahsed Finance 77 507
Investment Banking 276 33s
Asset Management 784 771
Assurance 156 430
Gioup Services and Cther Activities 1196 | 141
4 458 4 874
Details of the directors’ emocluments, pensions and their interests are disclosed in the directors' remuneration report on
pages |17 to |34

.
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For the year ended 3| March

Nts

{£'000) 2004 2003
7. Group profits on ordinary activities before 1ax is stated after:
Income:
Gains on disposalfireclassifications of investment securities |2 828 25 269
Operating lease income 506l 5016
8. Pension costs
Defined benefit obligations - -
Defined contributions 12 947 13410
Pension and provident fund contributions 12 947 13410
The group operates pension schemes throughout its areas of operation. The
majority of the schemes are defined contribution schemes with the exception of
the Guinness Mahon Pension Fund Scheme ("GM Scheme”) and the Investec
Asset Management Pension scheme ("IAM Scheme™). The group has this year
adopted FRS 17 in respect of defined benefit schemes. The schemes have been
valued at 31 March 2004 by qualified independent actuares m accordance with
FRS | 7. There were no unpaid contributions, in relation to the defined
contribution schemes, outstanding at the year end.
The major assumptions used were:

GM Scheme IAM Scheme
31 March 2004 2003 2002 2002
Discount rate 5.60% 550% 6.00% 6.10%
Rate of increase in salaries 3.65% 325% 4.25% 425%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment for
pre 1997 pension (GM Scheme} 1.90% 1.67% 1.83% -
Rate of ncrease in pensions in payment lor
post {997 pension 250% 2.50% 2.75% 2.70%
Inflation 290% 2.50% 2.75% 2.70%
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The assets held in the scheme and the expected rates of return were:

Value at Long term Value at Long term Value at Long-term
2004 rate of return 2003  rate of return 2002 rate of return
31 March £000 expected £000 expected £000 expected
\

GM Scheme
Equitics 23 391 7.70% 17 986 6.50% 34 539 7.25%
Gilts 43933 4.70% 32 484 450% 24 405 5.25%
Insurance policy - G 405 5.50% 10 161 6.25%
Cash L 041 4.00% 2934 375% | 655 4.00%
Total market value of assets 68 365 62 809 70 760
Present value of plan liabilities (83 186) {74 456) (68 3313
Deficit in the plan (14821 (11 647} 2429
Irrecaverable surplus - {2 429
Deficit in the plan (14821 {Fl 647) -
Related deferred tax asset 4 446 3454
Net pension hability (10 375) {8 153} —
IAM Scheme
Equities S 059 7.70% 3 804 8.25% 5545 8.25%
Silts | 4927 4.70% | 386 4.50% Y 5.25%
Cash 222 4.00% 527 3.75% 328 4.00%
Total market value of assets 6773 5717 7030
Present value of plan liabilities (3 047y (8414 (7571
Deficit in the plan (2274) (2 697) (5413
Related deferred tax asset 682 809 162

Net pension liability {1 592 {1 888) 37N




Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 3| March

Gin 1AM Total
2004 £000 £'000 £000
8. Pension costs {continued)
The following amounts have been recognised in the performance statements in
the year ta 31 March under the requirements of FRS 17:
2004
Mo amount has been charged to operating profit relating ta current and past
service costs as the schemes are closed.
Analysis of amount credited/(debited) to other finance income
Expected return on pension scheme assels 3 18] 390 3573
Interest on pension scheme liabitities (4 013y (460) {4 475)
Net return {831 (70} {907)
Analysis of amount recognised in statement of total recognised
gains and losses (STRGL):
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 5314 852 6163
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilies (18710 - (1 871)
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities {5 783) (359} (6 141
Actuarial (loss)/gain recognised (2342 433 {1 849}
Deferred tax /03 (148} 555
Actuarial (loss)fgain recognised in the STRGL {1639 345 (1234
Movement in deficit during the year:
Deficit in the scheme at beginning of the year (i1 647 (2 697) {14349
Movement in year - -
Net returns (832 (70) (902)
Actugrial (joss)/gain {2 342 493 {1 84%
Deficit in schemne at end of year {14871 (2274 {17 095
2003
Analysis of amount credited/(debited) 1o other finance income
Expected return on pension scheme assets 4 Q0! 524 4525
Interest an pension scheme liabilities {4 00l (458) {4 459
MNet return - 66 65
Analysis of amount recognised in statement of total recognised
gains and losses (STRGLY:
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets {9038 {1 854) {10 692}
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme fabilites {451 394 (57)
Changes in assurmptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities (4 968 (962} (5930)
imipact of chanige in irrecoverable surplus 2810 2810
Actuarial toss recogrised (11 647 (2222) {13 86%)
Deferred wax 3494 468 416l
Actuarial loss recognised in the STRGL {8 153) (1 554y (9 707
Movement in surplus/(deficic) during the year:
Surplus/(dedicit) in the scherne at beginming of the year 2429 (544 i 838
Movement in year
Net returns - 66 66
Actuarial loss (14 076} (2273 {16 298)
Beficit in scheme at end of year it ean (263N {14 344
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GM 1AM Total
History of experience gains and losses: | April 2003 to 31 March 2004
Difference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets:
Arncunt (£ '000) 531 852 6 163
Percentage of scheme assets at year end 7.8% 12.6% 8.2%
Experience gains and losses of scheme liabilities;
Amount (£ '000) {1 871) - (1 871}
Percentage of the present value of the scheme liabilities at year end (2.2%) - (2.0%)
Total amount recognised in statement of total recognised gains and losses:
Amount (£ 000} (2 342) 493 {1 849)
Percentage of the present value of the scheme labilities al year end (2.8%) 5.4% {(20%)
Contributions in the year ended 3| March 2004 were £NIL for both schemes.
Employer contributions for the GM scheme will be reviewed at 31 March 2005.
Both schemes are closed to new entrants and accrual of service ceased on
31 March 2002,
History of experience gains and losses: | April 2002 to 31 March 2003
Difference becween the expected and actual return on scheme assets:
Amount (£ '000) {9 038) {1 654) (10 692)
Percentage of scheme assets at year end (14.4%) (28.5%} (15.6%)
Experience gains and losses of scheme liabilities:
Amount (£ '000) (451} 394 (57
Percentage of the present value of the scheme liabilities at year end (0.67%) 7% (0.1%)
Total amount recognised in statement of total recognised gains and losses:
Amount (£ '000) {1647} 2170 {13817
Percentage of the present value of the scheme liabilities at year end (156%) (258%) {16.7%)

Contributions in the year ended 31 March 2003 were £NIL for both schemes,
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9. Non-operational exceptional jtems

2004

Losses of £5.1 millign on termination of the group's operations in the US were recorded. The|group made a final exceptional
charge (including future run-off costs) for the closure of these operations. This charge was raised in the first half of the current
financial year and to the extent that any costs are incurred in future periods (inclusive of the second half of the 2004 financial
year) in excess of this charge, they will be treated as nen-exceptional operating expenses. Thefe was ne tax or minority effect

on the above.

A €136 million profit on disposal of group operations refating to the sale of the companies, 180 Grayston Drive Property (Pty)
Lirmited, Block E Power Station Properties (Pty) Limited, Westrust {Pty) Ltd, and tnvestec Bank |(Botswana) Limited at market
value. The tax effect and minerity interest in refation to the £13.6 million profit was £678 000|and £75 000 respectively.

2003
Losses of £285 million in respect of the disposal and termination of substantial components ¢
Profit of £5.8 million on the termination of the Securities Investment Bank Limited.
Casts of £6.1 million relating to the fundamental reorganisation and restructuring of business 4
credit is attributable to Whis cost in the year as the group has not recognised a deferved tax as

due to the level of total deferred tax asset compared to forecast profit (in the legal entities in
These unrecegnised losses have been treated as attributable te the recrganisation and restrucy

the US operations.

nits within the Group. No tax
et for all of its tosses in the vear
hich the tax losses reside).
uring costs.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 March

{£'000) 2004 2003

1 0. Taxation
Corporation tax
United Kingdom

- current tax on income for the year 330 560
- adjustments in respect of prior years {521} (8 00O
- corporation 1ax pefore double tax refief 309 {7 440)
- double tax refief {1425 (560}

(BLAY (8 000}

Overseas current tax charge
Current tax on income for the year

Europe 2553 2295
Southern Africa g 920 727
Australia 2962 2679
lsraet 3678 | 629
USA (35%) 4 594
18714 18 470
Adjustment in respect of prior years
Southern Africa 3587 | 960
Aystralia - (274)
USA - i 330
‘ 1587 3016
Secondary taxation on companies{*) 783 i 551
Total corporation tax 22 468 15 037

Deferred tax

United Kingdom 4363 {7 930)
Southern Africa 2001 (814
Australia {129 47
lsract (204} {1 202)
USA - 289
6031 (9 660)
Total tax charge for the year 28 439 5377
Tax on continuing businesses 18 499 (838)
Tax on discontinued businesses - & 2i5
28 499 5 377

Please refer 1o note 3 on page 172 for details on discontinuing operations.
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Nnts

{£'000) 2004 2003
| 0. Taxation {continued}
items which affect the tax rate going forward are:
Estimated tax losses arising from trading activities, available for
relief against future taxable income
United Kingdom IS 500 20 00C
Europe 29 405 29 405
South Africa & 484 7523
5i 389 56 928
£2.6m (2003 - £11.9m) of the above losses had been recognised as deferred tax assets.
The rates of corporation tax for the relevant years are:
United Kingdom 30% 30%
Europe (average) 20% 20%
South Africa 30% 30%
Awstralia 30% 30%
lsrael 45% 45%
USA{™ 35% 35%
Profiv{lossjon ordinary activities before taxation 99 087 (56 525)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 28 499 5377
Effective tax rate 28.8% (3.5%)
The tax charge on activities for the year is different to the standard rate as detailed below: |
Tax on profitflos) on ordinary activities before taxation at UK rate of 30% 9729 {16979)
Tax adjustrents relating to foreign sarnings {12 268) {6 283)
Taxation relating to prior years (524 (8 000)
Capital allowance in excess of depreciation (7 405) 589
Googwill 7 226 42 405
Permanently disallowed items for corporation tax purposes 6543 I 301
Carvied forward utilisation of capital and trading losses (1 287) 22
Other timing differences 451 2026
Current tax charge 22 468 15037

{(*) These are the statutory federal tax rates and therefore exclude state and local income taxe
which range from 7.3% to 9%.
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For the year ended 31 March

(£7000) 2004 2003

!'|. Dividends and earnings per share
Ordinary dividends - pence per share

Interim 280 260
Firal 300 28.0
58.0 540
Qrdinary dividends
nterim 25 277 27 539
Final 30 879 25 468
56 156 53 007
Preference dividends
Dividends 7553 421
Total dividends 63 70% 53 428

Earnings per share - pence per share

Basic earnings per share (pence per share) are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to the ordinary shareholders in Investec pic by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the vear. 59.9 {6786)
Group profit/(loss) attributable to the shareholders per profit and loss account ‘ 68 735 (62 614}
Preference dividends } {7 553y {420
Group profit/{loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders \ 61 232 (63 035)
Diluted earnings per share - pence per share |

Group profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders ; 61 232 {63 035)
Diluted carnings/{loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit‘{loss) attributable

to the ordinary shareholders of Investec plc, adjusted for the effects of dilutive ofdinary

potential shares, by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the ygar

plus the weighted average nurniper of ordinary shares that would be issued on

conversion of the dilutive ordinary potential shares {being share options

outstanding, not yet exercised) during the year 595 {67.6)
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year 114 884 639 107 559 259
Weighted average number of treasury shares (12584 568) (14267814

102 300 671 93 291 445
Welghted average number of shares in issue resuiting from future diutve
potential shares 718 364 -
Adjusted weighted number of shares potentially in issue 103018435 93291 445

Excluding goodwill amortisation and exceptional items - pence per share
Basic earnings per share excluding goodwill and exceptional items {pence per sharg)
are calculated by dividing the profit before deducting goodwill amertsation and
impairment and exceptional items attributable to the ardinary sharehalders in
Investec ple by the weighted average nurmber of ordinary shares

in issue during the year 1037 361
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(£'000) 2004 2003

11. Dividends and earnings per share {continued)

Reconciliation between group profit/{less) attributable to ordinary shareholders and earnings

attributable to ordinary sharehelders excluding goodwill and exceptionat items

Profit{lass) attributable to ordinary shareholders 61 232 (63 O35)

Armgortisation and impairment of goodwill 50 644 122 302

Profit on termination and disposal of group operations

- continuing {net deferred tax and minority interest) 13 029} (5 800)

Provision for losses on termination and disposal of group operations (net of deferred tax) 5103 5437

impairment of goodwill on discontinued operations - 1 047

Amertisation of goodwill of associates 2132 | 644

Fundamental recrganisation and restructuring costs - continuing - 6 073

Earnings attributable to ordinary sharehoiders before exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill 106 (82 39 668

Reconciliation between earnings per share and earnings per ordinary share before

exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill

Earnings per ordinary share 599 (67.6)

Amortisation and impairment of goodwil 49.5 1311

Profit on termination and disposal of group operations

- continuing {net deferred tax and minorily interest) ‘ {12.7) (6.2}

Provision for losses on termination and disposal of group operations (net of deferred tax) | 49 10.4

Impairment of goodwill on discontinued operations - 204

Amortisation of goodwill of associates 2.1 1.8

Fundamenrtal reorganisation and restructuring casts - continuing - 6.5

Earnings per ordinary share before exceptional items and amertisation of goodwill 103.7 36,1

Headline earnings per share

Headline eamings per share (pence per share) has bean caleulated in accordance with

the definition in the Institule of Investment Managernent Research ("lIMR) Statement of

Investraent Practice Ma. | "The Defintion of Headiine Earnings’. 1034 896

Profitfloss) attributable to ordinary shareholders &l 232 (63 035}

Amortisation and impairment of goodwil 50 644 122 302

Profit on termination and disposal of group operations

- continuing {net deferred tax and exceptional items) {(1302% (5 800)

Provision for Yosses on termination and disposal of group operations {net of deferred tax) 5163 9 437

Impairment of goodwill an discontinued operations - 19 047

Amoriisation of goodwill of assaciates 2132 | 644

Profit on sale of investment equities {330) —

Headiine earnings attributable 1o ordinary shareholders 105 757 83 595

In terms of the DLC sharing agreements, Investec pic and Investec Limited shareho-ders share eqpally

in the profits of the group. Accardingly in the earnings per share calculations the weighted average

number of shares in issue includes both the lnvestec pic and Investec Limited shares in issue.

12. Treasury bills and other eligible bills

Dealing securities held ac fair value

Treasury bills 20 631 42 156

Cther unlisted eligible bills with banks 166 796 132 545
187 427 174 701
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(£'000} 2004 2003

12. Treasury bills and other eligible bills {continued)

Investment securities held at cost

Other unlisted eligible bills with banks 144 781 68 318

144 781 68 318
332 208 243019

\nvesument securities:

Opening balance 68 318 42 4]

Purchases I 441 803 868 181

Maturities (1373 654} (644 331)

Exchange movements ‘ 8314 2057

Closing balance * 144 78| 68 318

Treasury bills and other unlisted eligible bills are mainly short term in maturity

with & book value not materially different from market value.

13. Loeans and advances to banks

Remaining maturity:

Repayable on demand 809 032 685 55%

Up to three months excluding on demand 833 481 I 405 991

Three maonths to one year 52277 592 171

One year to five years 9925 70 550

Greater than five years = 4526
| 704 715 2758 797

14. Loans and advances to customers

Remaining maturity:

Repayable on demand or at short notice | 551 320 &677 234

Up to three months excluding on demand or at short notice 655 115 785 646

Three months to ane year 702 864 726 877

One year to five years | 867 477 | 562 579

Greater than five years | 659 301 I 2i4 551

Provision for bad and doubtful debts (90 229 {82 384)
& 345 848 4 B33 903

Inciuded in foans and advances to customers are:

Core loans and advances to customers (refer to note on credit risk} 5149 720 3991 649

Net investment in finance leases 51 889 71 555

Net investment in HP contracts 139 573 115 809

Non-performing loans 90 347 60 677

Less : Security held against non-perfarming loans (64 9043 {36 132

Net non-performing loans 15 443 24 545

All of the net non-performing loans are covered by specific provisions.
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(£'000) 2004 2001

15. Provisions for bad and doubtful debts
Specific provisions

At beginning of year 30813 27 253

Charged against income 4 547/ 8 380
- increase in provisions 4820 8 380
- recoveries (273

Util:sed (6 964) (10 287

Transfers I 128 (505)

Exchange adjustments 345 5972

At end of year 29 869 30813

General provisions

At beginning of year 52171 36 974
Charged against income 164t 9928
Acquired or disposed with subsidiaries (295) -
Uhilised 8791 14 777)
Transfers {0 128) 505
Exchange adjustment | 992 9 54|
At end of year 60 360 52 171

Total provisions

At beginning of year 82 984 &4 227
Charged against income 20 958 18 308

- increase in provisions 21 231 18 308

- recoveries (273} -
Acquired or disposed with subsidiaries (295 -
Utilised (15755) (15 064)
Exchange adustment 2 337 15513

At end of year 20 229 82 984
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(£'000) 2004 2003

16. Debt securities

Dealing and market making securities at market value

Governrment securities 194 849 140 058

Unlisted bank and building society certificates of deposit 2674 480 515

Other debt securities 366 485 27 830
571 008 £48 403

The cost of dealing and market making securities has not been disclosed, as it

canngt pe determined without unreascnable expense.

Investment securities at cost

Government securitigs 103 090 209 690

Unlisted bank and building society certificates of deposit 578 128 916 450

Other debt securities 214211 156 722
895 429 | 282 862

Total debt securities | 466 437 | 931 265

Amounts n¢clude:

Unamaortised net premiums on investment securities 137

The cost of the investment securities, all of which are held in the banking book,

does not differ materally from the fair value.

Remaining maturicy

Up to one year 974 856 | 637 806

Greater than one year 491 581 293 459

| 466 437 | 931 265

Investment securities:

Opening balance | 282 862 1129719

Additions | 002 175 2632187

Sold/matured (1 378921) (2483 134)

Exchange adjustment {10 687) 4 03¢

Closing balance 595 429 | 282 B62
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(£°000) 2004 2003
17. Equity shares
Dealing securities at market value
Listed 284 603 33 18%
Unlisted 98 601 60 169
383 204 93 358
tnvestment securities at book vajue
Listed 4 388 1063
Unlisted 30 562 43217
35050 54 280
i
| 418 254 147 638
Investment securities at market value
Listed 4 229 i1 076
The market value of unlisted investment securities is not disclosed as its determination is
not practicable. Unlisted investment securities are valued by the directors for impairment
at each reporting date. This valuation is based on predicted cash flows. To the extent that
the bock value has been impaired, an impairment loss has been recagnised in the prafit
and loss account.
The cost of cealing securities has not been disclosed, as its cost cannot be determined
without unreasonable expense.
Investment securities at book value
At beginning of year 54 280 56 898
Additions 7633 48 195
Provisions 7 063 (10 163)
Disposals (25 598) (37 50
Reclassificatians {9 495) {4 525)
Exchange movements (833) | 376
At end of year 35 050 54 280
Provisions on investment securities
Opening balance {10 710y (30 547)
Movement 9 063 (101633
Closing balance (31 647} (40 71
Profit on reclassification of equitics from invesirment to trading I 915
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(£'000) 2004 2003

t8. Interests in associated undertakings
Interests in associated undertakings consist of:

Net asset value 57 560 48 720
Goodwill 12 444 13702
Investment in associated undertaking 70 006 62 422

Analysis of the movement in our share of net assets:

At beginning of year 48 720 31145
Exchange adjustments 2460 9 046
Acquisitions - 685
Repayment of loan capital - (F220)
Operating profits (net of dividends) 7436 9 064
Reduction in shareholding (1 056) :
At end of year 57 560 48 720

Analysis of the movement in goodwill:

At beginning of vear 13702 13881

Acquisitions 913
Goodwill amortisation (2 132) (1 644}
Movement in foreign currency translation reserve 876 552
Al end of year |2 446 13702
Associated undertakings:

Listed 64 667 58 758
Unlisted 3339 3 664

70 006 62 422
Market value of listed investments S0 905 39 273
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2004

2003

18. Interests in associated undertakings {continued)
The goodwill relates 1o the acquisition of Capital Alliance Limited ("CAL".

the value of the in-force business.

shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2004 was £40.1 miifion.
Their issued ordinary share capital at the end of the year is:

Holding in CAL ordinary share (%}

The significant transactions between the group and CAL. all of which are on arm’s length basisja

Loan to CAL (incluged in loans and advances to customers)
Interast received on the loan to CAL

Re-insurance premiums paid by clients of Investec Employee Benefits and paid over to CAL

The Group earned investment management fees of £2.5m (2002 £2.2m) from CAL

under arms length agreements.

The group has ne holdings of securities issued by significant associated undertakings

axcept as listed above,

19, Other participating interests
Investment in other participating interest at book value

Analysis of the movement in investment;
At beginning of year

Acquisitions

Transfers from Equities

At end of year

QOther participating interests:
Unlisted

The only significant interest during the year was a 35% investrnent in Hargreave Hale Limited.
was shown within equity shares. The directors do not consider Hargreave Hale Limited to be
they do not exercise significant influence over the operating and financial policies of Hargreavs

The equity accounting for our share of CAL's profit for the current year does not include

The only significant investrnent heid in associates in the vear was CAL CAL is a listed

company an the johannesburg Stock Exchange and conducts the business of long term
lifc assurance. CAL became an associate on |9 October 2001. Based on audited resuits
for the year ended 3t March 2001 {released on 21 June 2004), CAL's aggregate capital
and reserves at 3} March 2004 was £180.3 million. lts earnings attributable 1o ordinary

89 402

89 &7¢

23.0

2937

e

17 142

15984

1 545

| 757

92 360

9135

385
8 750

88 114

9 135

g 135

& 135

In the pricr year accounts this helding
an associated undertaking because

Hale Limited.
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Negative
Total Gaoodwill Goodwill

2003 £000 £000 £000
20, Intangible fixed assets
Year ended 31 March 2003
Goodwill
At | Aprit 2002 537 098 550 131 (13 033)
Additions 594 594 -
Fair value adjustment 16 749 16 749
Disposals (6413 {611)
Movement in foreign currency translation reserve 58 697 62 494 (3797
Cost at 3| March 2003 612 497 629 327 (16 830)
Accumulated amertisation
Accumulated amortisation at | April 2002 i52 198 157 628 (5 430}
Charge/(credit) to the profit and loss account 135 549 144 701 (2 152)
Disposals (128} (128} -
Maovement in the foraign currency translation reserve 25 105 27 353 (2 218)
Accumulated amertisation at 31 March 2003 312724 329 554 (16 830)
Net book value at 31 March 2003 29% 773 2589 773 -
Year ended 3| March 2004
Goodwill
Av | Aprit 2003 612 497 629 327 {16 830
Additions (6 206) 799 (7 GO5)
Disposals (18} (18 -
Movement in foreign currency translation reserve 15 047 15 017 -
Cost at 31 March 2004 621 320 645 |55 (23 835)
Accumulated amortisation
Accumulated amortisation at | April 2003 312724 329 554 (16 830y
Charge/(credit) to the profit and loss account 50 644 57 649 (7 005)
Disposals (7 (7 -
Maovement in the foreign currency transiation reserve 6451 6451 -
Accumulated amaortisation at 31 March 2004 36% 812 393 647 {23 835)
MNet book value at 31 March 2004 251 508 251 508 -

Additions comprise goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries which is be
years reflecting its expected usefut life. Far the majority of acquisitions the good

Negative goodwill is released to the profit and loss account over a period of | t
Included in the goodwill amortisation charges for 31 March 2004 are impairm
The goodwill attributable to Investec Ireland's Shannon subsidiary was fully impai

An impairment review was conducted on the goodwill attributable to Fedsure Ty
use and discounted cash flow valuations. This resulted in an impairment of £8.1 n

discounting cash fiows of the income generating units.

ng amertised over periods of bevween 3 and 20
itl is amortised over 5t 10 years.

4 years, reflecting the period of expected benefit.
ent losses of £8.3 million.
ed in the current year by £0.2 millon.

aded Endowments using a combination of value in
rillion. A discount rate of 12.5% was anplied n
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20. Intangible fixed assets {continued)
Included in the goodwill amortisation charge for 31 March 2003 are impairment losses of £60.8 million.

Following the reinsurance transaciions between Investec Employee Benedits (formerty Fedsure Ufe Insurance ) and Capital Aliancs
Limited. an impairment review was conducted using a combination of value in use and a discoupted cash flow valuations, This

resulled n an impairment of £452 million. & discount rate of 13.4% was applied in discouing rash flows of the income generating
units. !

With the discontinuance of the USA operations, the remaining goodwill was written off, resulting in an impairment of £19 million.

Securities Investment Bank Limiled ceased operatmg during the year and the remaining negative| goodwill of £5.8 million was
released to income.

With the downlurn of the Eurcpean econarmy, an impairment review was conducted on goodwil relating to the Group's Swiss
operations. This resulted in an impairment of £4.4 millicn on the Radcliffes operations. VT

21, Acquisitions & disposals
Acquisitions

The group made the lollowing acquisitions of subsidiary undertakings or et assets and operations in the year ended
31 March 2004 which were accounted for on an acquisition basis:

In October 2003 Guinness Mahon & Co, a wholly owned subsidiary of the group, acquired & |00% interest in Investec
investmants (UK) Limited (Naticnale-Nederlanden {UK) Limited). The company was acquired for a consideration of

£3955 million and fair value of its net assets at acguisition was £10.954 million. The negatwve| goodwill arising from this
transaction was £6.999 million.

i In March 2004, there was an adjustment to the goodwill related to Wertworth Associates (fty) Ltd of £456 thousand which
represents the rermaning consideration payable to Investec Corporate Finance Ltd. The defgrred censideration still payable s
200,000 investec plc shares which increases the provision for deferred consideration to £2.1|78 million based on the value of
200,000 frvestec ple shares at the 3i March 2004 price of £10.89.

il In March 2004 Investec Asset Management Holding (Pty} Limited mcreased its holding of lnvpstec Asset Managernent Solutions
(Pty) Lted which resulted in an addition to goodwill of €343 thousand.

v o August 2003 lovestec Property (Business Centres) Limited {formerly Enterprise Business Centres Limited) was acquwed at a
purchase price of £18 thousand.

v Other immaterial acquisitions generated negative goodwill of £& thousand. The value of the #et assets acquired was
£6 thousand.

The acquisitians were satisfied by the payment of cash. Assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition and total considecatian paid
are disclosed in the table on the following page.
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Book value Fair Fair values
at date of value at date of
acquisition adjustment acquisition
21. Acquisitions and disposals {continued)
Year ended 3] March 2004
Gogdwill
Loans and advances to banks 40 000 40 000
Debt securities, equity shares and investments in associates 981 281
Tangible fixed assets 155 - 155
Other assets - deferced tax - 10 950 10 950
Other assets 196 — |96
|
Total assets i 41 332 10 950 52 282
Crepasits from banks 3 (40 000 - (40 000)
Other liabilities {304) (1 000y (1 304
{40 301 (1 000y (11 304)
Net assets / fair value of net assets 1 028 9 950 10 978
Net negative goadwil (6 206}
Fair value of consideration 1772

The fair value adjustments relate mainly to deferred tax assets availzble to the acq

acquired,

Disposals

The Group disposed of its interest in Cosec (Pty) Ltd {part of the Intelligence at

resulted in a reduction in goadwill of £11 thousand.

uirer but not recegrised by the company

ork {Pty) Ltd Group} during the year wiich
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Nts

Freehold Leasehold Furnicure Investrent
{£'000) properties Improvement & Vehicles  Equipmpnt Property Total
22.Tangible fixed assets
Cost or valuation
At 3| March 2003 54 294 25 898 18901 49 311 116725 265 129
Exchange adjustments (514 (997) (20) (312) 6 242 4399
Revaluation of investment properties - - 9 655 9 655
Acquisition of a subsidiary undertaking - I35 - - 155
Disposal of a subsidiary undertaking (38 579 - (3 h - (38 583)
Reclassifications - - 8702 (8 70 {33 824) (33824
Additions 89 i 539 2708 4794 2115 Il 245
Disposals (420} &) (3477 (6 072) (672) {10 645)
At 31 March 2004 14 870 26 436 26 964 %08 100 231 207 521
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation
At 3| March 2003 3122 10 688 1196 34 |41 - 59 147
Exchange adjustments {952} (924} (77 (498) - (2550
Disposal of a subsidiary undertaking {+ 590) - (n - {159
Reclassiications - - 6572 {6 372) - -
Additions - 197 467 Fé3 - I 427
Disposals (1280 (3 {753) (5 4% (7 68%)
Charge for the year 700 | 555 2673 7520 - |2 448
At 3| March 2004 - {1513 19 978 29 704 - 61 195
Net bock value
At 31 March 2003 51172 15210 7795 15 |70 116 725 205 982
At 3| March 2004 14 870 14 923 & 988 9314 100 231 146 326

The group values its investment properties twice annually The properties were valued by directg

The valuation is performed by capitalising the budgeted annuat net income of a property at the

the time.

Mo depreciation is provided on investment properties.

rs of the company concerned.
market related yield apphcable at

2004 2003
£000 £000
Cost of investrent properties 57 089 L5 241
Carrying value of properties occupied by group entities 29 793 66 387
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23. Own shares

Investec plc ordinary shares 36 067 43 631
Investec Limited ordinary shares 7713 8592
43 780 52223

The group has set up a number of trusts as part of its employee remuneration and share
ownership arrangement and the assets, liabilities and transactions of those trusts are
brought into the consolidated financial statements as if they were part of the group,
except for those assets that have vested unconditionally with employees The
arrangements vary from scheme to scherne but principally comprise conditional ayvards
of share gptions and share purchase schemes whereby group companies pravide loans
to employzes 1o enable them to acquire shares. The conditions attaching to the granting
of rights ta shares principally involve the employees remaining emploved by the grpup for
specified periods of time. Where equity instruments of the group that have been
recarded as assets are sold to third parties, the difference between the net proceeds
received and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the profit and loss account.
Equity instrumenits that are recorded as assets arc written down through the profit and
loss account if, in the opmion of the directors, they have suffered a permanent dirrjinution
in value. Capital instrurnents of the group that are issued by or through the trusts,
including certain advance paymenits for shares made by employees, are credited tq shares
to be issued at the net proceeds received where there 13 no associated obligation jon the
group to transfer economic benefit to the holder, Otherwise they are recorded as

labilities.
Number of lavestec plc ordinary shares held in employee share trusts 4954 269 7 030 503
Number of Investec Limited ardinary shares held in employee share trusts | 582 142 2059035

Included in the above

Number of Investec ple ordinary shares conditionally allocated to employees - 5635
Nurnber of investec Limited ordinary shares conditionally allocated to employees - 3309
Market value of own shares: £000 £'000
Investec pic 53952 42 238
Investec Limited 17230 12 6563

71182 54 9C1

Dividends on own shares have not been included in the profit and loss account.

24. Cther assets

Settlement debtors 385 900 518022
Deferred tax asset (refer to note on deferred taxation) 33745 28 086
Derivative instruments positive fair values 522 960 477 183
Dealing properties 46 236 25 600
Other investments [ &89 27 807
Traded endowments 1380 18 274
Other debtors 66 221 |12 469

| 081 131 1211441
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25. Leng-term assurance business attributable to the shareholder
Investec Employee Benefits Limited
The embedded value comprises:
Net tangible assets of life company including surplus 343 590 273072
Reallocated to nvestments in asseciated underiakings {58 83 {50 824)
Elmination of Intercompany balances {27 842 (120 833)
Value of in-force business § 399 7113
265 315 108 528
Movements in embedded value
At beginning of year 108 528 67 116
Prafit per profit and loss account 5082 37779
Return on shareholders' funds 24 122 15551
Exchange adjustments 12 241 (I 3186)
Gain on revaluation of investment properties 4327 14949
Reclassification of shareholder assets 11 G112 {15551)
At end of year 265 315 108 528
Income from long-term assurance business comprises:
Premium Income 264 423 306 110
investment income 157 717 13920
Total income 422 140 320030
Operating expenses (19029 (21 003)
Policyhotder's benefits paid (416 556) (419 310}
Decrease in technical provisions 139 280 457 680
Re-msurance premium expense {15970 (277 387)
Operating profit 9 863 60 010
Tax charged 1o technical account (5 564} (8 296)
Surplus attributable to shareholders 4299 5714
Value of in-force business 783 {23 935)
Income from long-term assurance business 5082 27779

Mo current taxation has been provided on the surplus attributable to shareholders due to the a
taxation losses. A deferred tax charge of £5.25 million has been raised representing a reduction
to sharehaolders in respect of the amount of taxation losses utilised during the current year.

Assumptions
The economic assumptions are based upon a long-term view of economic activity in South Afri

for market movements which are considered to be short term. This approach is considered to i
fong-term nature of the portfolic of products and that the business is tocated in South Africa. Th

aitability of brought forward
ko deferred tax asset attributable

a and are therefore not adjusted
e the most appropriate given the
e economic assumptions are

derived by adding appropriate long term risk/equity margins to the benchmark gilt {ie. RI53 Sopth African government bond).

The principal economic assumptions which have been used are as follows:

Risk-adjusted discount ratc

Return an equities (gross of tax}

Return on fixed interest securities (gross of tax)
Return on property investments {gross of tax)
Return on cash beld (gross of tax)

Inftation rate

%
12.8
18

2.8
0.8
7.8
6.8

%
134
124
10.4
1

7.4
64
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25. Long-term assurance business attributable to the shareholder (continued)
Balance sheet

The assets of the long-term assurance fund attributable to the sharehalder are detailed below:

Investrerts 326 264 176 858
Intercormpany loans due 27 842 120823
Other assets 61 207 64 176
Assets of long-term assurance fund attributable to the shareholder 415313 361 867
Current liabilities (71 723y {88 795}

313 590 273 072

Investrents shown above comprise -

Inlerest bearing securities 40 |18 14034
Stacks, shares and unit trusts 94 448 14 259
Investment properties 76 484 51 468
Associate 58 832 50 824
Deposits 56 382 46 273

326 264 176 858

An increase in the investment properties’ value of £4.3 million in the year ended
31 March 2004 (2003 - £18.2 million) has been recorded as a movement on the
revaluation reserve.
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26. Long-term assurance business attributable to policyholders
Investec Employce Benefits Limited | 257 948 1334775
Investec Assurance Limited | 523 387 | 201 544

2781 335 2536 319

Investec Employee Benefits Limited

The assets of the long-term assurance fund attributable to policyholders are detailed below:

Investments | 257 948 | 334775

Irvestrments shown above comprises-

Interest bearing securities 264 270 168 368

Stocks. shares and unit trusts 622271 680 959

investment properties - 23195

Deposits 371 407 462 253
| 257 948 1 334775

Investec Assurance Limited

The assets of the long-term assurance fund attributable to policyholders are detailed below:

Investments I 501 377 | 155 383

Debtors and prepayments 18 300 45 175

Other assets 3710 986

Assets of long-term assurance fund attributable to policyholders | 523 387 1 201 544

Investments shown above comprise:-

Interest bearing securities 369 076 294 276

Stacks, shares and unit trusts 604 489 454 377

Investment properties | 500 I 399

Deposits 526 312 405 331
| 501 377 | 155383

The business of Investec Assurance Limited is that of linked business with retirement

funds. The retirement funds hold units in & pooled portfolic of assets via a linked policy

issued by the company. The assets are beneficially held by Investec Assurance Limited.

Due to the nature of a linked policy Investec Assurance Limited's liability to the

policyholcers is equal to the market value of the assets underlying the policies.

The liabilities to policyholders comprise:

Technical provisions 342 803 472 563

Funds for future appropriations 915 145 862 212

Technical provisions for linked liabilities | 523 187 | 201 544

2781 335 2536319

Liabiltties relating to investec Employee Benefits of £1 395 miliion have been reinsured with CAL (£1 073 million) and Liberty
Group Limited (£322 million). Until such time as a formal s37 (of the South African Long-Term Assurance Act) transfer i
concluded, there remains a potential contingent liability.




Notes to the financial stat

Fer the year ended 3[ March

ements

197

Annual Report 2004

{(£'000) 2004 2003

27. Deposits by banks

With agreed maturity date or periods of notice, by remaining maturity:

Repayable on demand 259 940 145 979

Up to three maonths excluding on demand 700 358 | 394 028

Three months to one year 247 383 557 106

One year to five years 18217 24 808

Greater than five years 7711 7071

| 233 609 2129 292

28. Customet accounts

With agreed maturity date or periods of notice, by remaining maturity:

Repayable on demand 2217332 I 817 593

Up to three months excluding on demand 3757 976 3189 799

Three rmonths to one year 877 632 9251232

One year 1o five years 179 399 127 186

Greater than five years 178 916 235 057

7211292 56 354 867

Redeemable preference shares issued by subsidary undertakings of

Investec Limited, which have been guaranteed by Investec Bank Limited

are included in customer accounts, 149 133 159 422

29. Debr securities in issue

Bonds and medium term notes repayable:

Qwer five years 190 7014 73765
190 701 73 765

Qther unlisted debt securities in issue repayable:

Not more than three months 213496 435 830

Over three months but not more than cne year 155 257 545 033

Over one year but not more than two years 35 663 104

Over two years but not more than five years 6740 -

Cver five years - 35 024
431 158 1 015 551
621 857 | 089 75&

The bends are listed on the Bond Exchange of South Africa. The maturity dates of|
£79.0 milkon  +  final legal maturity of 15 December 2025,
«  the group, subject 1o certain conditions being met, may at its
but not before 15 December 2006.

Ll million  « final legal maturity of |5 November 2029,
+  the group. subject to certain conditions being met. may at its
but not before |5 November 2007.

the bonds are as noted below.

Hiscretton redeem these bonds at an earlier date,

discretion redeem these bonds at an earlicr date,
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30, Other liabilities
Settlernent creditors 989 128 760 920
Short positions in securities Si9 792 226 087
Provision for deferred tax {refer 10 note on deferred taxation) 3767 61t
Current corporation tax 50218 45 78%
Sharehalders ordinary dividend 32740 25 468
Derwatives negative faw values 194 934 362 370
Other creditors and accruzls 179 276 154 136
| 969 855 | 580 881
Short positions in securities comprise:
Commaodities - gold 4974 -
Debt securities - government bonds 47 415 147 550
Equities - listed securities 467 403 78 537
519 7392 225 087
Included above is:
Provision for losses on termination and disposal of group eperations - discontinued
AL beginning of year 18 784 7089
Additions 1o provisions during year 4510 9 437
Utitisation of the provision during year (14 851) :
Forex difference (1 986) 2258
At end of year £ 457 18 784
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3[. Deferred taxation
Deferred tax asset

Deferred capital allowances 16 347 10927
Tax relief in respect of the utilisation of tax losses brought forward against future tixable incorne 2586 3 585
Income and expenditure accruals 14 755 9951
Other timing differences S57 3623

33 745 28 08¢

Deferred tax liability

Incorne and expenditure accruals 199 93
Equipment allowances - 16
Property allowances 2991
Unrealised gains on investrments 3546 2797
Crther timing differences 22 H4
Deferred tax liabilty 3767 il
MNet deferred tax asset 29 978 21975

Reconciliation of net deferred tax asset

Opening balance 21 975 12 002
Charge to profit and loss (6031} 9 640
Included within sension fund deficit lrability 270 20
Charge to profit and loss relating to long term assurance assets attributable to the|shareholder 5250
Arising on acquisitions 10950
Exchange adjustments {2 436} 293

Closing balance 29978 21975
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32, Subordinated liabilities

Dated subordinated debt

Issued by Investec Finance plc

- a wholly owned subsidiary of Investec Bank (UK} Limited which is a wholly owned

subsidiary of lnvestec plc

Guaranteed subordinated step-up notes 195 775 -

Issued by investec Bank (UK} Limited

Zero Coupon Bonds 6 596 -

{ssued by Investec Limited

Class "A" Series | Unsecured subordinated compulsorily convertible debentures ("CCD's") | 293 | 742

Class "A" Series || Unsecured subordinated CCDs 2332 2447

Issued by Investec Bank Limited - a wholly owned subsidiary of Investec Limited

Unsecured subordinated CCOs 21 743 20 300

Class "A" Unsecured subordinated CCDs 4 866 12611

Class "A" Series | Unsecured subordinated CCDs | 008 2 609

Class "B" Unsecured subordinated CCDs | 989 5030

Class "C" Unsecured subordinated CCDs 8 474 I't 085

16% subordinated bonds 20172 issued in South African Rands 168 074 156 720

Class "E" 15% unsecured redeemable debentures - 2014 - 22 697

V(2 12.55% Subordinated unsecured callable bonds 85 708 44 46|
497 858 279 702

All subordinated debt issued by Investec Limited and its subsidiaries is denorninated

in South African Rand

Rernaining maturity:

In one vear or less or on demand 7863 -

In more than one year, but not maore than two years - 23 055

In more than two years, but not more than five years 40 438 -

In more than five years 449 557 256 647
497 858 279 702
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3. Subordinated liabilities (continued)

The compulsorily convertible debentures issued by Investec Bank Limited were spl
The equity components were sold to employee share trusts. The debt component
amaunts above.

Guaranteed subordinated step-up notes

On | March 2004 Investec Finance ple issued £200,000.000 of 7.75% guaranteed
discount. Interest is paid annually. The notes are guaranteed by Investec Bank (UK)
Exchange The Step-up Notes may be redeemed by the issuer, at par, at any time

redemption yieid of the relevant benchmark gikk.

Zerc coupon bonds
On 29 March 2004 the bank issued 9,253 zero coupon bonds of £1,000 each at 3
on 29 March 2009

Series | & Il Class “A” debentures:
interest is payable sic monthly in arrears, on | May and | Novermber of each year
defined in the 7th schedule of the South African Income Tax Act of 1962

The debentures convert into ordinary shares, on a one for one bass, at the electio
the Series | debentures will automatically convert on | October 2008.The Series
4 December 2010

The unissued debenturas are under cantrol of the directors until the next, annual

Unsecured subordinated CCDs
The compulserily convertible debentures will convert into Investec Bank Limited g
31 July 2008. The cormpany at its discretion, may at the request of the helder conv

The lrvestec Bank Limited shares arising out of the conversion have peen sold fory
exchange for 3573994 Investec Limited ordinary shares.

Class A unsecured, Class A Series il, Class B and Class C unsecured CCDs:
The 5,000,000 Class A unsecured, 1,000,000 Class A Series II, 1,500,000 Class B an
compulsarily convertible debentures were acquired by Investec Limited on 18 June
Investec Group Limited shares. Pursuant to the implementation of the Dual Listed
Group Limited shares were exchanged for 5,985,000 lnvestec ple shares and 3.5153

16% subordinated bonds 2012 issued in South African Rands

RI 961 million (2003 - RI 961 million) Investec Bank Limited 6% local registered
Interest is paid six monthly in arrears on 2i March and 30 September at a rate of
bonds is 31 March 2012.

Class "E" 15% unsecured redeemable debentures - 2014
Romil (2003 - R284 million) investec Bank Limited Class E 15% unsecured redeems
current financial year The debentures yielded inferest at a rate of 15% (nominal an

V02 £2.55% Subordinated unsecured callable bonds
R1.000 miflion (2003 - R556 million) Investec Bank Limited V02 subordinated 12.5
redemption date 1s 31 March 2013 but the company has the option to call the bo
will switch to a floating rate of 3 month JIBAR plus 300 basts pants payable quarts

H"ter | March 2011, su
of the Finandial Services Autharity,. On | March 201 | the imterest rate will be res;
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It at issue into their debt and equity components.
E were sold to third parties, represented by the

ubcrdinated step-up MNotes due 2016 at a
Limited and are listed on the Luxembourg Stock
bject to the prior consent
to becomne the aggregate of 3.5% and the gross

n effective yield of 6.89094%. The bonds mature

at 2 variable rate of 3% below the official rate as

n of the holders. If not converted by election,
Il debentures will automaticzlly convert on

reneral meeting,

rdinary shares, on a one for one basis, on
ert at an earlier date.

ward by the holder thereof to Investec Limited in

d 2,000,000 Class C unsecured subordinated
> 2002 in exchange for the issue of 9.500000
Company structure, the 500,000 Investec
000 Investec Limited shares.

unsecured subordinated bonds are due in 2012,
162 per annum.The settlement date of the

ble debentures were early redeemed during the
nual compounded).

5% unsecured callable bonds. The bonds
nd on 31 March 2008. If not called, the bonds
rly in arrears untl maturity.
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33. Called up share capital

Investec plc

Authorised

The authorised share capital of Investec plc is £167,500 {2003: £167 500} comprising:
112.000,000 ordnary shares of £0.001 each (2003: 112,000,000 shares of £0.001 each)
55 500 000 Special Converting Shares of £0.001 each {2003 55 500 000)

| Special Voting share of £0001 each (2003 1)

VUK DAN Share of £0001 {2003: 1) and 1 UK OAS Snare of £0.001 (2003: 1)

Issued, allotted and fully paid

Number of ordinary shares Number Number
At beginning of year 74 633 746 S00 000
Subscription for shares - 3 300
Subdivision on 100 for | basis - 49826 700
Cancellation of shares - {50000 000)
Issued for acquisition of subsidiaries from Investec Limited - 70303748
Share issued in the Global Offer - 4 000 000
At end of year 74633746 74633746
Neominal vatue of ordinary shares - GBP £'000 £'000
At beginning of year 71 50
Subscription for shares * ®
Subdwision on 100 for | basis - -
Cancellation of shares - (50)
lssued for acquisition of subsidiaries from Investec Group Limited - 70
Share issued in the Global Offer - 4
At end of year 74 74
Number of special converting shares Number Number
At begmning of year 38 399 527 -
Issued during the year 5 600 000 38 399 527
At end of year 43 998 527 38 399 527
Nominal value of special converting shares - GBP £'000 £000
At beginning of year 38 -
Issued during the year S 38
At end of year 44 38
Number of UK DAN shares Number Number

At beginning of year [ -
Issued during the year - |
At end of year | |

Nominal value of UK DAN share - GBP £000 £000
At beginming of year _+ _
lssued during the year - -
At end of year —x =
Number of UK DAS shares Number Number

At beginning of year \ -
Issued during the year - |
At end of year ! |

Neminat value of UK DAS share - GBP £000 £1000
At beginning of year - _
issued during the year — >
At end of year = T

* Less than £1 000
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33. Catled up share capital {continued}
Investec Limited

Authorised

The authorised share capital of Investec Limited is South African Rand 205 502 (2003: R205 502), comprising 55 500 000 ordinary
shares of South African Rand 0.001 each (2003: 55 500 00C}, 8 000 000 {2003: 8 000 GO0) convertible non-cumulative preference
shares of South African Rand 0.001 each, 50 000 (2003: 50 000} variable rate cumulative redeemable preference shares of South
African Rand 0.60 cents each, | SA DAS redeemable preference share of | South African Rand (2003 1) | SA DAN receemnable
preference share of | South African Rand (2003: 1), 112 000 00G (2003: 112 Q00 D0O0) convertible redeemable preference shares
of South African Rand 0.001 each {special converting shares)

Issued, allotted and fully paid

Number of ordinary shares Number Number
At beginning of year 38 399 527 92228 309
Issued during the year 5 600 COC -
Conversion of preference shares - 2 000 000
issued for acquisition of compulsorily convertible debertures - 3 500 000
Subdivisian on 600 for | basis - 62 164913 642
Cancellation of shares - (67 230 242 424)
At end of year 43 999 527 38 399 527
Nominal value of ordinary shares - GBP £'000 £000
At beginning of year 45 7 418
Conversion of preference shares - 12
lssued for acquisiton of compulsorily corvertible debentures - 374

Subdivision on 600 for | basis - _
lssued during the year -
Conversion of compulsorily convertible debentures -

Canceliation of shares - (7 85%)
At end of year 46 45
Number of convertible preference shares Number Number
At beginning of year - 2 000 000
lssued during the year - (2 0G0 000}
At end of year - -
Nominal value of convertible preference shares - GBP £'000 £'000
At beginning of year - 12
Converted during the year - (11

At end of year - _

Number of redeemable preference shares Number Number

At beginning of year I 750 -

Issued during the year - | 750
1 end of year | 750 | 750

Nominal vafue of redeemable preference shares - GBP £'000 £'000

At beginning of year -

issued during the year - —*

At end of year % =
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33. Called up share capital {continued)
Investec Limited

Number of special converting shares Number Number
At beginning of year 74833 746 -
Issued during the year - 74 633 746
At end of year 74 433 746 74 633 746
Nominal value of special converting shares - GBP £000 £'000
At beginning of year 3

lssued during the year —

At and of year 5 5
Number of SA DAN shares Number Number

At beginning of year ! _
issued during the year - |
At end cf year | |

Nominal value of SA DAN share - GBP £000 £'000
A beginming of year % -
Issued during the year —*
At end of year —* —*
Number of SA DAS shares Number Number

At beginning of year I
Issued during the year |
Az end of year } |

Nominal value of SA DAS share - GBP £900 £000
At begmning of year P

Issued during the year _*
At end of year L o

* |_ess than £3 000

Neminal value of issued, allotted and fully paid called up share capital
of Investec ple and lnvestec Limited

Total called up share capital 169 162
Less: Held by Investec Limited -
Less: Held by Investec ple 4) {4)

Total called up share capital |65 158
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33. Called up share capital {continued}
The Investec Limited shares were issued in South African Rands, The amounts recg
historic Sterling/Rand exchange rates.

The redeermable prefarence shares ave variable vate, cumulative and redeemabie Th
RS9 999.40 per share. The dividend rate on these shares is [0.83% of the subscript
in advance on 28 November each year These shares are redeemable on 29 Novery

The holder of 2,775,000 Investec Limited and 4,725,000 Investec pic shares has ag
15 December 2004. The holder of 740,000 Investec Limited and |,260.000 Investsy
dividends until 31 March 2008,

In terms of the Dual Listed Companies Structure. shareholders have common eco
investec plc were a single company. These include equivalent dividends on a per sh
and equivalent position on the termination of either company.

The UK DAS snares, UK DAN share, S& DAS share, the SA DAN share and the
achieve this.
The unissued shares are under the control of the directors until the next annual g
* Less than £1,000.

Staff Share Scheme
The Bank operates a share option and a share purchase scheme for employees. Th
allocated to employees are disclosed i note 23

Movements in the number of share options issued for | share each, held by emplg

Each option is in respect of one share.

Qutstanding at | April
Issued during the year
Exercised

Lapsed

Outstanding at 31 March

The purpose of the Staff Share Scheme is to promote an "esprit de corps” within
Imvestec's performance and provide an incentive to maximise individual and group

risks and rewards of the group.

The group makes shares or debentures avaifable to staff members via the underlyi

varies from tme to time depending on taxation legislation and factors affecting the

instrument chosen, its underlying value depends solely on the performance of the

At present, the practice of the group is to give all permanent staff members a shar

package afier completing six menths of emplayment. in line with the objective of g

participants may not deal in any shares acquired in terms of the Scheme within tw

rded above were calculated by reference to

e shares were issued at a premium of

lon price (R175 million). and are payable annually
ber 2005 at a premium: of R99999.40 per share.
-eed to waive its right to dividends unti!

« plc shares has agreed to waive its right to

pomic and voting rights as if investec Limited ang
are basis, joint electorate and class right voting,

pecial converting shares have been ssued 1o

eneral meeting.

e number of ordinary shares conditionally

yees are as follows:

Number Number
5 156 443 5 657 874
2062 413 10 667 827
(31 477 (5 940)
{1 625 407) (1 163 298)
15 561 997 15 156 463

he organisation, create an awareness of
performance by allowing all stafl to share in the

ng share trusts. The particdlar instrument useg
Group structure. Neavertheless, whatever the
group and stock market cenditions.

e allocation approximately equal to their annual
roviding a long-torm incentive for staff,
0o years of accepting them. Thereafter they may

acquire them over a minimum period of a further three years or maximum perﬁoc1 of a further eight years.

After the initial allocation referred to above, additional allocations are made to staff members at the discretion of group
managernent and depending on the individual performance, and contribution made by, the respective staff members

In addlition to the Stafl Share Scheme, other incentive schemes are operated by th

are identical to the Staif Share Scheme, membership of them is not extended to 3

group whaom executive management believe are in a position to add significant val
structures from the Staff Share Scheme the underlying assets in them are group in
from such schemes is thus totally dependent on the performance of the group.

The extent of the directors interest in the incentive schemes is detailed an pages

& group. Whitst the ebjectives of such schemes
| staff imembers but to key members of the

be to the group. Whilst housed in differant
ttruments. Any benefit derived by the members

129 10 133
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34.Treasury shares
Treasury shares held by subsidiaries of Investec limited and Investec plc £900 £'000
Investec plc ordinary shares 17138 26120
Investec Limited ordinary shares 34 %64 14 867
52 102 40 987
Number Number
Number of Investec ple ordnary shares held by subsidiaries | 633413 2715673
Number of Irvestec Limited ordinary shares held by subsidiaries 4 126 257 i 589 788

5759 670 4 305 46|

Reconciliation of treasury shares

Opening balance 4 305 46! 100 000
Purchase of own shares by subsidiary campanies 3208 197 4205 461
Shares disposed of by subsidiaries (1 753 988) -
Closing balance 5 759 670 4 305 461
Market Value of treasury shares: £'000 £000
Investec plc 17 788 16 701
Investec Limited 44 935 § 777

62723 26 478

[Dividends on treasury shares have not been included in the profit and loss account.
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35. Shares to be issued

Number of ordinary shares Number Number
At beginning of year 2963818 13073994
Conversion - {9500 000}
Soldf{acquired) by staff share scheme 250 651 (604 176)
At end of year 3220 469 2969 818
Nominal value of ordinary shares £'000 £'000
At beginning of vear 2428 41 148
Corversion - (38 148)
Sold/{acquired) by staff share scheme 238 (572)
At end of year 2 666 2428
The amounts ncluded in the above figures represent contributions received by

the group in respect of employee share schemes. All of the 3 220 469 shares to

be issued at 31 March 2004 are due to be issued an 31 July 2008. However. the

company may on the clection of the holder issue shares to the holders of these

shares at an earfier date.

During the year the staff sharc scheme sold the rights in respect of 250 65 |

(2003: acquired 604 176} shares to be issued.

36. Perpetual preference shares

15 000 D00 (2003 - i) autherised and issued non-redeemable,

non-cumulative, non-participating preference shares. |26 698

Preference shareholders will be entitled to receive dividends at a rate of 75% of
the South African prime interest rate, of the face value of the preference shares
held. Preference shareholders receive dividends in priority ta any payment of
dividends 1o the holder of any other class of shares in the capital of the
cempany not ranking prior or parl passu with the preference shares, Preference
dividends are payable sermi-annually at least seven business days prior to the dale
on which Investec Bank Limited pays its ardinary dividends, if any, but shall be
payabie no later than | 20 business days after 31 March and 30 September
respeciively.
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Details of share options
Number
of options
Expiry Exercise issued/
Instrument date price exercised
37. Share options
Details of share opticns:
Granted during the year 2004
Investec Limited 17 Sep 2008 Ri01.32 9 827
Investec ple 17 Sep 2008 776 636 943
Investec plc 03 Mar 2009 £10.60 322 641
Investec Limited 17 Jun 2009 R 101.3% 53677
Investec plc ['7 Sep 2009 R ICL76 91 423
Investec plc 03 Mar 2040 R 11585 483517
Investec Limited 03 Dec 2000 R 11543 283923
Invastec plc 17 Sep 2012 £776 41982
Irvestec plc 03 Mar 2013 £10.60 138 470
Exercised during the year 2004
Investec Limited R 11000 68
investec Limited R 13000 70
investec Limited RI1I1.32 I Q20
investet plc R110.00 L&
Investec plc R 130.00 149
Investec ple RI1I196 | 980
Investec plc £10.86 23 380
Investec ple £9.18 4724
Granted during the year 2003
Investec Group Ltd '3 Sep 2007 R 16450 6 736 26C
Investec Group Ltd i3 Sep 2007 R 17000 770 612
Investec ple 19 Mar 2007 RI1119s 1117845
Imvestec Limited 9 Mar 2007 R1IT.32 833 586
Investec ple 19 Mar 2007 £793 775 401
Investec ple f9 Mar 2012 £733 434 123
Exercised during the year 2003
Investec Group Ltd R 78923 5 940
Investec Heldings Limited R 8743 6 893
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Terms of share options SA Schemes ‘ UK Schemes
Number of Number of

Average Investec  Number of Average Investec Average Number of

exercise Limited Investec plc exgreise Limited exercise Investec pic
Instrument price shares shares price shares price shares
31 March G4 R 17000 374 639 R 24600 117 476 £15.73 199 345
31 March 05 R 146%9.49 66 046 113796 R 43537 69 048 £1508 17 567
31 March 06 R 154.44 5781 9 847 R 1169.80 98 574 £1086 167 841
31 March 07 R 103180 | 004 L 79 ROSTO6 | 413680 £386 2743 647
31 Mareh 08 R 17292 22379 38138 R 161.3¢ 243 093 £11.47 | 356 768
3| March 0% R 14822 1746596 3101 247 R 43603 44 300 £1509 75430
31 March 10 R 14758 452 680 771 145 R 1[30.28 77 071 £8.88 565 352
3} March |1 R 24108 129 899 221 191 R 11487 - £994 180 452
31 March 12 RI74.11 519592 884 683
31 March (3 R16800 1119 3780
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38, Cash flow reconciliations

Reconciliation of operating profit to net operating cash flows

Operating profit/{loss) 81 495 {36 540}
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and acorued income 42879 (26 192}
(Decrease)increase in accruals and deferred income (73216) 37 119

Interest expense on subordinated labilities (including convertible debt) 45 HO 25090

Depreciation |2 448 11417

Provision for bad and doubtful debts 20 958 18 308

Amortisation of goodwill 50 644 122 302

Gains on disposalireclassifications of investment securities (12 828) (25 269)
Fundamental reorganisation and restructuring <osts - (6073
Lorg term assurance business attributable to the shareholder (157 815) (47 275)
Net cash inflow from trading activities 8 975 75 617

MNet increase in treasury bills and other eligible bills (31 708) (21 402)
Met decrease/{increase) in loans and advances to banks | 217 555 (197 586}
MNet increase in loans and advances 1o custormners {1 507 029) (73947
Met {increase)/decrease in non-investment debt and equity securities (220 238) 2613665

Net {decrease)/increase in debt securities in issue (467 899) 483 510

MNet decrease/(increase) in other assets 172477 (21 136)
MNet decrease in deposits by banks (932 716y (1 516018)
MNet increase/{decrease) in customer accounts 892 144 (713 353)
Net increase/{decrease) in other liabilities 378 945 (514 173)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities {489 492) 114 779

Subordinated liabilities

At beginning of the year 276 702 191 851

Foreign currency adjustments 16 039 51382

Issues during the year 2te 056 48 65C
Repayments (13939 (119803
Conversions during the ycar - 48]
Az end of year 497 858 279 702
Calleé up share capital

At beginning of year 158 7530
Met 1ssues during the year 7 5
Conversions during the year - 374
Buy-back of shares {148)
Unbundling and restructuring {7 603)
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings - =
At end of year 165 158
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38. Cash flow reconciliations (continued)
Share premium

At beginning of year 980 321 8l6 533
Net issucs during the year 15 750 64 527
Conversions during the year - 86 102
Buy-back of sharcs (3 936) (1931
Unbundiing and restructuring - 66 234
Share issue expenses (1 245) (32 213)
Movement in treasury shares - (16231
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings - =
At end of year | 020 890 280 321
Treasury shares
At beginning of year (40 987) (2 444
Purchase of treasury shares during the year (25 241) (38 543)
Reissue of treasury shares during the year |4 126 :
At end of year (52 102 {40 987)
Shares to be issued
At beginning of year 2428 41 148
Net issues/(conversions) during the year 238 (38 7203
At end of year 2 666 2428
Total financing
At beginning of year | 221 622 ' 054 418
At end of year 1463 477 | 22 622
The group is required to make deposits with central banks as a result
of government regulations in the territories in which 1t operates, amounting to: 405 708 327 957
Purchase of interests in subsidiary undertakings
Net assets acquired 10978 78
Goodwill (6 206) 554
4772 672
Satisfied by
Cash and acquisition cost 4772 672
Analysis of the net cash (outow)/infiow from the purchase of subsidiary
undertakmgs
Cash consideration (4772) (672)
Net cash outflow (4772 (672)

Due to the integration of acquisitions into our continuing aperatiors
it is not practical to analyse the post-acquisition cash flows of the acquired units,
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38. Cash flow reconciliations (continued)

Disposal of group undertakings

Goodwill written off Il 1S 047

Fixed assets and other accounts 103 285 5327

Cther liabilities (31 930 (4 46%3

Net assets disposed of 71 366 19905

Profitfloss) on disposal 13632 (28 48%)

MNet proceeds from disposal of group undertakings 84 998 (8 579)

Satisfied by

Cash 44 999 30722

Deferred payments I6 243 -

Equity shares 23756

Costs incurred in termination and disposai of business undertakings (39 301}

84 998 (8 579

39. Annual commitments in respect of non-cancellable operating leases

Leasehold properties

Within one year i 680 777

Between one and five years 8 449 b 062

Ower five years 15 567 14782

25 6%6 16 6728

40. Commitments

Forward repurchase agreements 195 122 155

Undrawn facilities 514955 360 850

Other commitments 7729 6633
522 879 496 638

The group has entered into forward foreign exchange contracts and loan commitments

in the normal course of its banking business.

41. Contingent liabilities

Guarantees and assets pledged as collateral security:

- guarantees and irrevocable letters of credit 265 758 264 824

Other contingent liabilities | 683 84 082
267 44} 348 906

The amounts shown above are intended only 1o provide an ingication of the volume of
business outstanding at the balance sheet date.

Legal proceedings

Investec is party 1o various legal proceedings, the ulimate resolution of which is rot
expected 10 have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the group.
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42. Risk management

Financial Instruments, including Derivatives and Risk
Disclosure

The group’s risk management abjectives and policies, ncluding
market risk, credit risk and the management of risks that arise
in connection with the use of financial instrurents, is detalled
on pages 83 to 95. In the notes below, short-term debtors
and creditors are included in the interest rate repricing
analysis, non trading currency risk tables and the table detailing
assets and liabilities denaminated in sterling and foreign
currencies, All other disclosures exclude these short-term
palances.

Fair values

The group’s trading book comprises treasury bills, settlement
accounts, debt securities, equity shares, short positions in
securities, and derivatives as well as secured customer loans and
deposits, All amaunts are included in the balance sheet at fair
value. The fair values of listed and publicly traded securities held
for non-trading book purposes (comprising debt securities and
equity shares) are disclosed under the relevant balance sheet
note. The fair values of other non-trading book balances

approxXimite

to their carrying value in the balance sheet where

a liquid and agtive market exists as defined by FRS 13.

Derivatives

loff balance sheet financial inscruments

The group emters into varicus contracts for derivatives both
as principal for trading purposes and as customer for hedging

foreign exch
financial futu

ange and interest rate exposures. These include
es, options, swaps and forward rate agreements,

All interest rate contracts are transacted with other financial
institutions. The risks associated with derivative instruments
are monitored in the same manner as for the underlying

instryments.

Risks are also measured across the product range

in order to take into account possible correlation's. In the
tables belownotional principal amounts indicate the volume
of business dutstanding at the balance sheet date and do not
represent armounts at risk, The fair value of a derivative
financial instrlment represents the pasitive or negative cash

flows which

ould have accurred had the rights and

obhgations arising from that instrument been closed out by
the group in jan orderly market transaction at balance sheet
date. Detailed below is the derivative exposure for both
trading and non trading portfolios.

Notionai Positive Negative Notional Positive Negative
principal fair fair principal fair fair
For the year ended 3| March amounts value value amounts value value
(£'000) 2004 2004 2004 2003 2003 2003
Trading derivatives
Foreign exchange derivatives
Forward foreign exchange 5599 108 268 483 273 996 5803 110 292 649 301 276
Currency swaps 975 185 133 946 S 614 977 81% 75 610 47 544
CTC opticns bought and sold | 320 680 73 244 3t 561 683 897 68 045 28 802
Other foreign exchange contracts 28 455 - - - - -
OTC derivatives 7923428 480 673 315 171 7 464 886 436 304 378 022
Exchange traded futures 131972 299 28 - - -
Exchange traded options - - - - :
8 055 400 480 972 315 19% 7 464 886 436 204 378 022
Interast rate derivatives
Caps and floors 611 606 2342 3393 1 329 411 3758 4749
Swaps 24 884 385 403 228 327 102 37732945 484 417 437 275
Forward rate agreements 62 362 574 63714 58948 | 107788 182 59 385 60 828
CTC options bought and sold 631 813 2003 3230 | 658 469 7767 8 401
Other interest rale contracts - - - 47 532 230
OTC derivatives 88 490 358 471 287 392673 | 143 556 559 555 327 511 483
Exchange traded futures 10298 932 I 842 | 310 18 441 355 2343 588
Exchange traded options - - 640 467 7 414
98 78% 250 473 129 393983 | 162 838 381 557 677 512485
Equity and stock index derivatives
OTC options bought and sold 12 932 625 I5: 748 177 583 638 124 63 270 45 230
Equity swaps and forwards 50 708 4024 4193 358 802 27 100 62 754
OTC derivatives 12993 334 155 774 181 776 996 926 20 370 107 984
Exchange traded futures 472 714 380 216 4 456 472 846
Exchange traded options I 197 962 10963 6773 265716 3048 I 833
Warrants 40 540 41 603 g2 212 27
14704 550 208 720 188 765 | 268 050 94 102 110 650




Notes to the financial statements
Netional Positive Negative Naotional Positive Negative
principal fair fair principal fair fair
For the year ended 31 March amounts value value amounts value value
{(£000) 2004 2004 2004 2003 2003 2003
42, Risk management
Trading derivatives (continued)
Commodity derivatives
OTC options bought and sold 943 376 71 354 8423 i 361 272 78 620 52 044
Commodity swaps and forwards __ 47| 346 25573 21 234 206 780 542 5330
OTC derivatives | 414722 96 933 29 657 I 568 Q52 85 162 57 374
Exchange traded futures 3312844 135 665 162 191 I 513923 - -
Exchange traded options | 601 844 62 B67 40 678 319 374 -
6329 410 295 465 232 526 3401 349 85 |62 57 374
Credit derivatives
Credit linked notes bought and sold - - : B - -
Credit swaps bought and sold 58 573 233 20 124 678 291 152
58 573 233 26 124 678 291 152
Gross fair values | 458 519 | 130493 P 173536 1 058 723
Effect of netting {935 559} (335 559} (696 353} (696 353)
Amourts includes in
other assets/liabilities 522 940 194 934 477 183 362 370

The replacement values of these contracts are their positive fair values. The noticnal principal ary
transacticns outstanding at the balance sheet date and do not represent amounts at risk.

Nen trading derivatives
Foreign exchange derivatives
Forward foreign exchange
Currency swaps

ounts represent the volume of

OTC derivatives
Exchange traded futures
Exchange traded options

Interest rate derivatives
Caps and floors

Swaps

Forward rate agreements
OTC options bought and sold

OTC derivatives
Exchange traded futures

Equity and stock index derivatives
QOTC oplions bought and seld

Credit derivatives
Credit link notes bought and sold
Credit swaps bought and scld

Total

17188 476 86 59 307 977 412
g 378 141 - 23 314 | 366 2597
25 566 617 86 82 623 2343 3009
25 566 617 86 82 623 2343 3009
- - - 765 -
I 401 600 3886 18 101 2763913 37 121 94 067
3000 - 84 - - -
4200 = - - -
I 408 800 3886 18 185 2764678 37 124 94 067
|7 625 535 - 338 604 | 617 105
| 426 426 442] 18 185 3103 27§ 38 738 94 172
- - 35917 2527 |63
359147 2527 163

8378 39 959
- - - 76 170 528 Il
8378 - L6 129 528 il
5038 18 271 44 136 97 355
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42. Risk management (continued)

MNon-trading derivatives {continued)

Book carrying values

Foreign exchange contracts

Forward foreign exchange - 2

Currency swaps - {786

OTC derivatives - {4923

Interest rate derivatives

Swaps (6 609) (55501

Forward rate agreements (&) -

QOTC derivatives {6 693 (55 50

Exchange traded futures 816 541
(5 877 {54 960

Equity and stack index derivarives

QTC options bought and sold - 2 352

Credit derivatives

Credit swaps bought and sold 532

Credit finked notes bought and sold - {an

- 521

Total book carrying values {5 871 {52 579)

Hedging instruments

Gains and losses on derivatives used for hedging are

recognised in line with the underlying items that are being hedged, These

values have been caloulated by reference to the ultimate maturity date of the

derivatives.

Unrecognised gains to be recognised within one year 6137 i 167

Unrecognised gains to be recognised in more than one year 36 767 34 371

Total unrecognised gains 42 504 35 541

Unrecognised losses 1o be recognised within one year 5483 ! 685

Unrecognised losses to be recognised in mare than one year 103 634 89 391

Total unrecognised losses 199 117 21 078

Total recognised gain/(foss) in current year 8 485 (5611)

Partion of recognised {loss)/gain which was unrecogpised in prior year (2 288) 2453

Net recognised gain/(loss) arising in the current year 10777 (8 064y
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For the year ended 3| March one year five years five years one year five years five years
{£:000) 2004 2004 2004 2003 2003 2003
42. Risk management {continued)
Maturities of derivative instruments
National principal
Foreign exchange derivatives
Forward foreign exchange 5063 494 431 363 149 894 4 852 646 738 963 270 788
Currency swaps 204 287 403 992 375284 428 044 218716 354 435
Futures 131 972 - - - - -
Options | {74788 145 892 - 358 053 335 €38 -
6574 54| 981 247 525 178 5638 743 | 283517 625 323
Interest rate derivatives
Caps and floors 611 606 - - 707 784 622 392 -
Swaps 23713974 | 563 960 | 008 032 |7 952 075 12 468 925 5075878
Futures 2 502 969 813 589 - 15209 94| 3554 538 IS5 45
Options 636 013 - - 2278717 20219 -
Forward rate agreements 62 365 573 - - 80 005 221 27 782 961 -
Other irterest rate contracts - - - 47 352 - -
96 830 135 2377 549 1008032 116201 110 44 449 035 5091 334
Equity and stock index derivatives
Swaps and forwards 60 708 - 196 807 161 993 -
Futures 472 714 - - 444! 15 -
Options 14 024123 106 465 - 86% 5247 707230 -
Warrants — 30022 10513 743 &4 105
14 557 545 136 487 0518 | 67| 560 232 302 105
Cemmodity derivatives
Cptions I 397 370 799 206 348 644 478 286 482 974 719 406
Futures 2 854 340 458 504 - | 304 732 209 191 -
Commedity swaps and forwards 324 327 142 076 4 %343 136 590 70190 -
4576 037 1 399 786 353 587 1919 588 762 355 719 406
Credit derivatives
Credit linked notes bought and sold 3 378 - - 39 950 - -
Credit swaps bought and sold 29 681 28 392 - 129 907 70 94| —
38 05% 28 892 - 169 846 70 941 -
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For the year ended 31 March one year five years five years one year five years five years
(£'000) 2004 2004 2004 2003 2003 2003
42. Risk management (centinued)
Maturities of derivative inscruments {continued)
Positive fair values
Foreign exchange derivatives
Forward fareign exchangs 209 930 45 80% 13224 189 668 30 130 13828
Currency swaps 12763 59 812 61 512 5748 40216 31012
Futures 299 - - - - -
Options 65 471 12773 - 7 453 60 592 -
288 463 |18 390 74736 202 869 190 938 44 840
Interest rate derivatives
Caps and floars 2342 - - 710 31048 ~
Swaps 373793 21 486 14835 64 368 173 958 283 212
Futures 1262 (] - 1333 627 -
Options 2003 - - £ 840 934 -
Forward rate agreements 63714 - - 3% 675 19710 -
444114 21 801 11 835 113926 9% 277 /3 N2
Equity and stock index derivatives
Swaps and forwards 4026 - - 18 040 ERY -
Futures 380 - - 472 - -
Options 148 432 14 27% - 36 998 31847 -
Warrants - 4] 083 520 137 44 31
152 838 55 362 520 S5 £47 40951 31
Commodity derivatives
Options 65 319 38 844 30 058 6 288 25 444 46 888
Futures 126 581 9 084 - - - -
Commeodity swaps and forwards 18 562 6 664 353 3018 3524 -
210 462 54 592 30411 9 306 28 968 44 883
Credit derivatives
Credit linked notes bought and sold - - - - - -
Credit swaps bought and sold |24 109 - 129 494 -
124 102 - 123 690 -
Total | 0%6 001 250 054 117 502 38l 877 460 824 374 971
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For the year ended 31 March one year five years five years one yegr five years five years
(£'000) 2004 2004 2004 2003 2003 2003
42. Risk management {conctinued)
Maturities of derivative instruments {continued)
Negative fair values
Foreign exchange derivatives
Forward foreign exchange 211 508 52 496 10078 243 56b 43 525 14518
Currency swaps 1613 S 19 2882 S 244 337 3696
Futures 28 - - - - -
Options 22 184 g 377 — 1561 13191 -
2353 64 992 12940 264 420 65 087 51 444
Incerest rate derivatives
Caps and floors 31393 - - L 258 1496 -
Swaps 31277 18 026 15 9C0 48 31| 178 501 304 53¢
Futures I 12 198 - 630 8l 2
Opticns 3230 - 8775 40 -
Forward rate agreements 59 032 - - 43319 17518
Other interest rate contracts - - - 230 - -
378 044 18 224 15 300 102 SOp 199 614 304 532
Equity and stock index derivatives
Swaps and forwards 4193 - - 20 472 42 282
Futures 216 - - 83p G
Options 177 370 6 986 - 35 61 1613 -
Warrants - - - 2f - -
18! 779 6986 - 56 948 53905 -
Commedity derivatives
Options 25 889 15 363 3849 4 957 6 767 30280
Futures 146 274 15917 - + -
Commaodity swaps and forwards |6 520 4714 - 3129 2201 -
192 683 35994 3 849 8 126 18 968 30 280
Credit derivatives
Credit swaps bought and seld 20 - - 162 | -
20 - = 162 | -
Toral 987 85% 128 196 32 709 432 165 337 577 386 256
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42. Risk management {continued)

Denominated in sterfing
Denominated in currencies other than sterfing
Total assets

2801 233 3433422
12 560 138 1480621
|5 361 371 14914 043

Denominated in sterling
Demominated in currendies other than sterling
Total liabilities(*)

2500204 3042432
12013 159 11492 839
14513373 14235 271

Currency disclosure I
Assets and liabilities denominated in sterling and foreign currendes \
{*} Includes subordinated liabilities. \

MNon-trading currency risk - structurat currency exposures

Non-trading currency risk exposure arises principally from the group's net investrrents in overseas
subsidiaries and associated undertakings, principally in South Africa, Israel and the United States of America,
The group’s structural currency exposures at each reporting period were as follows:

Currency of structural exposure Net investments in overseas
operations{*) £'000

31 March 2004
South African Rand

130 563

lsrach Sheket 47992
Australian Doilar |22 881
European Euro 33458

US Dollar F410 |

336 304

31 March 2003
South African Rand

60 076
lsraeli Sheket 35 617
Australian Dollar 107 18%
European Euro 27 454

US Dollar

2227
252 599

(*) There were no borrowings or derivatives taken out in the functional currencies of the overseas operations in orcer to hedge
foreign net investments.

Goadwill is not considered to form part of the net investmaent in overseas operatidns in the above taple.

R
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42. Risk management {continued}
Interest rate sensitivity for the non-trading book
31 March 2004
Assets
Treasury bilis and other eligible bills |44 781 =
Loans and advances to banks 980 806 | 10203 -
Loans and advances to customets 3593070 200 136 165 822
Debt securities & eguily shares 336 688 219 796 136 782
Other assets 450 009 — —
Total assets 5 505 354 430 835 302 604
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 694 358 126 179 12t 126
Customer accounts 5 800 550 369 161 667 311
Debt securities in 1ssue 596 177 3625 22055
Other liabilities - - -
Subordinated liabilities 5874 - -
Minarities interest and shareholders' funds - - -
Total liabilities 7 096 959 498 965 810 492
Off-balance sheet items 1138 284 (212 514y 24 558
Interest rale repricing gap {453 324) 280 &44) (483 230}
Cumulative repricing gap (453 221} (733 965} (| 217 295}
31 March 2003
Assets
Treasury bills and other eligible bills £8 318 - -
Leans and advances to banks 1 083 861 2 822 -
Loans and advances 10 customers 2581 263 102 491 148 390
Debt securitics & equity shares 779 887 75040 70 526
Cther assets 553 574 3090 3537
Total assets 5 066 903 183 443 222 453
Liabilities
DCeposits by barks 660 122 313491 37 831
Customer accounts 4 615570 330 145 178 560
Debt securites in ssue 513539 313228 231 805
Other liabilities 167 913 15095 59 Q94
Subordinated liabilities 4189 - -
Mmorrues interest and shareholders' funds - — -
Total liabilities 5961 333 571 659 507 290
Off-balance sheet items 235 692 |11 884 460 752
Interest raze repricing gap {658 /38) 676 3327 175915
Cumulative repricing gap (658 738 | 3350700 {1 159 155)

| ]
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More than
I year but less More than Non interest Torat
than 5 years 5 years bearing Non Trading Trading Total
- 144 78|t 187 427 332208
6 505 - - 998 214 706 501 F704 715
785 151 634 362 5605 52384 146 961 702 6 345 843
174 433 27729 35050 930 479 954 212 | 884 631
- 303 350 [ 353 358 959 216 2312574
J66 089 6562 031 944 005 8810378 3769 058 |2 580 036
1
18208 4634 2437 966 24P 266 667 i 233 60%
79918 6% 773 6986718 224 579 72112%2
- - £21 857 - 621 857
‘ - 463 568 463 568 703 854 2167422
128 135 363 849 - 497 858 - 497 858
- 847 998 847 99 847 998
226 26| 438 256 | 314003 10384 93 2 195 100 12 580 036
{736 879) (213 49%) - - -
199%¢ 10 336 {375 159 (4 579 04 1579 119
(1 214 296) (1 203 960} (1 579 119) (1 579 113 -
- - - 68 318 |74 701 243 019
- 27763 3583 I 118029 | 640 748 2758 797
687 814 618977 5410 4 144 3493 739 558 4 883 903
124 669 127 547 159 473 I 337 141 741 7al 2078903
8 073 3 351 824 969 | 412 594 ! Q00 508 2443 102
830 556 793 638 9393 435 8 080 429 4397 296 13 377 724
24 808 7072 13382 | 056 374 1072916 1129292
91 818 51 2i9 26 849 5 394 161 60 706 6 354 867
3l 184 1 089 754 - | 089 756
128 981 > 0% 187 453 563 632 I 281 703 | 845 335
20 250 255 263 - 279 702 - 279 702
- = &78 772 678 772 - 678 772
397 041 318 650 906 426 9 062 399 3315 3325 12377724
(701 357) {106 371) - - - -
(267 840 358017 87 009 (581 971 981 971
(1 426 997 (f 068 380) (981 971} (381 971
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42, Risk management {continued)
Non-trading currency risk: nen-scructural currency exposure

The table below shows the group’s currency exposwres. These non-structural expasures give ri%
losses recognised on the profit and loss account. Such exposures comprise the monetary assety
group that are not determined in the functional currency of the operating unit involved.

Net foreign currency monetary assets/(liabilities) in £'000

Functiona! currency of

|

e to the net currency gains and
and monetary liabilities of the

group operations Sterling SARand  USDollar Israeli Sheket Euro Other Total
31 March 2004
Sterling - (231 988) (46 514) (60 434) 18333 (37 148) (4177513
SA Rand CIEIPARS] - (33 193 (7 697 {24567 {65 045) {60% 706)
US Dollar {1eb) (14 337) - - - - (14 503)
Isragh Shekel - (21 699 4743 - - - {16 956)
Euro I 035 430 (7 482) 16 446 - - 38 1044432
Other 3706 {18 573 : {14 866)
619 757 (294 078) (118518) (68 127) (6 £29) {162 155) {29 3509
|
31 March 2003
Sterling - 564 (2 884) 5 2879 21 400 21 964
SA Rard 90 775 - {128 418) 2 3892 5376 {28 573}
US Doilar (17 8%¢) - - - 554 398 {16 844)
Israeh Shekel {1 995) - 10022 - 16 - 8043
Euro 7320 {10) P733 - (572) 8 471
Other {3 306} (29%) B3 - 5 - {35\7)
74 898 255 {119 464) 7 7 146 26 602 (10 456)

The amounts shown do not take into account the effect of any curmency swaps, forward contracL and other derivatives entered

into 1o manage these currency exposures,
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 March

(£'000) 2004 2003

43, Related party transactions
Transactions, arrangements and agreements involving directors and others:

Particulars of transactions, arrangements and agreements entered into by the Group with directors

and connected persons and companies contralled by them, and with officers of the company:

(a) At the respective year-end dates  directors had outstanding loans from Investec Bank Limited.
For loans to related parties, normal credit parameters are applied
Loans - Investec Bank Limited & 987 899

() H. Herman has a |3.25% holding in Taaibos Square (Pty) Ltd.
Loans were provided to these entities by Investec Bank Limited on an arms length,
fully secured basis as follows:
Taabos Square {Pty} Ltd 6 007 6170

(€} Investec Bank (UK} Limited provided 4 loan to Boutique Finance 1l Lid and
uscs Boutique Finance 1 Lid's mvestrment in shares as security therefon

Loan provided by investec Bank (UK} Limited | 180 1730

The tarems of the loan in {¢) above are such that 200% cover is required at all times. If the cover
drops below 175% a margin call back to 200% must be made. | Kantor, wha is a director of Investec
Limited, has guaranteed 34% of the above loan provided.

$ Koseff, G Burger, B Kantor, | Kantor: H Herman, P Thomas and & Jowell have an interest in Spurwing
P Investments Limited and Spurwing L Investrments Limited, which jointly amount o a holding of

32.3% and 12.029% respectively. Loans were provided to these entities by Investec|Bank (Mauritius) Lid
on an arms length, fully secured basis as follows:
Spurwing P Investments Limited 6 087 7678
Spurwing L investments Limted | 730 2182
All of the above loans are included in leans and advances to customers.

(d) The group's personal account trading palicy requires all employees who partitipate in sccuritics
transactions to deal on an arm’s length basis through Investec Securities Limited. This has no
material effect on either Investec Securitics Limited or the Group.

(e) Directors portiolios are subject to management fees on an arms length basis.

{f) Particulars of directors’ dealings in Investec shares are recorded in a register heid at the
Registered Office of the Compariy which is available for inspection.

Other loans

Included in loans and advances to customers is the following funding provided to 4he participants in
the black econemic empowerment transactions {as discussed on page 7):

Peu Investment Group 4 805 -
Tiso Group | 906 -
The loans are at rmarket related interest rates. ‘ 671 -

Transactions with other refated parties of the group

In the year ended 31 March 2004 the group concluded an agrcement to dispose g subsidiary, Westrust (Pty) Ltd, to PEU (of which
MP Malungani s a director) for £4.3m resulting in a proft on disposal of £1.4m,

Any dealings with regards to investments in unit trusts or the asset managernent division occur at arms length.




Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 3| March

(£000) 2004 2003

44, Miscellaneous

Assets subject to sale and repurchase transactions maturicy:

Government securities, included within debt securives |3 039 9 457

Value of liabilities secured by assets:

Deposits by banks 68 085 984 819

Deposits by customers 40 040 333 505
(28 125 |_318 324

Aggregate amaounts receivable, including capital repayments under finance

leases, hire purchase and conditional sale contracts 38 258 35 456

Costs of asscts acquired for the purpose of letting under financial leases 37 59¢ 31428

The group has investment management and stack broking businesses.




225

Annual Repory 2004

Investec plc parent company accounts -

balance sheet

For the year ended 31 March

(£000) Notes 2004 2003
Fixed Assets
Investrments a 42| 446 421 503
Current Assets
Cash at bank &7 0
Other debtors b 26 114 35 203
26 181 35203
Creditors failing due within one year C (53 216) 61 4751
Net current liabilities (27 035) (26 272
Total assets less current fiabifities 394 411 395 231
Capital and reserves
Called up equity share capttal d 19 b3
Share premium accaunt e 393 823 393 823
Capital redemption reserve e 50 50
Profit and joss account e 418 1 245
394 411 395 231

The directors' approved the accounts on 28 Juns 2004,

S. Koseff //”

Chief Executive Officer




Notes to Investec plc parent company

accounts

For the year ended 31 March

{£°000) Subsidiaries QOther Toral
a. investments
At 1 April 2003 421 498 5 421 503
Disposals {32) 5) {57)
AL 31 March 2004 421 446 - 421 446
The principal subsidiary undertakings of the group are detaiied in note | of the group accounts on page | 64.
For the year ended 3| March
(£000} 2004 2003
b. Other debtors
Amounts owed by group undertakings 26 103 35 194
Other debtors i b
26 114 35 203
The amounts owed by group undertakings are payable on demand
c. Creditors failing due within one year
Amount due to group undertakings 30 876 31 el7
Accruals and deferred incorme | 899 569
Other creditors 267 :
Proposed dividends 20 174 28 989
53216 61475
d.The company's called up share capital (including ordinary shares, special converting shar‘es,l
UK DAN shares and UK DAS shares) is detailed in note 33 of the group accounts on page 203 to 205.
e. Reserves
Capitj] Profit
Share  Redemptiol and loss Total
Premium Reserve: aceount reserves
At Aprit 2003 393 823 50 | 245 395 118
Loss for the year — (826) _(826)
At 31 March 2004 393 823 5 419 394 292

Parent company profit and loss account

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in 5230 of the Companies Act 1985 not tg

and loss account, The Company’s logs tor the year delermined in accordance with the Act was £
(2003 - profit of £1 295 237).

f. Reconciliation of sharcholders' equity

lssue of shares

Share issue expenses

Retained (loss)/profit for the year
Opening sharehelders' equity
Closing shareholders' equily

826 508

present its profit of own profit

2004 2003
6 421 358
(27 472

(826) | 295
395 231 50
394 4 | 395 231

N
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between UK GAAP and SA GAAP
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The results as presented on pages 150 to 226 have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generaliy accepted in
the United Kingdam. Such principles vary in significant respects from thase generplly accepted in South Africa, Prepaning the

financial staternents requires management to makes estimates and assumptions th

at affect the reported results and disclosures.

Actual results could be different from those estimates. The significant differences between SA GAAP and UK GAAPR applicable to

Investec’s accounts during the year under review are sumrmarised below.

For the year ended 31 March

{£7000) MNotes 2004 2003

Earnings before goodwill

amartisation and exceptional

items under UK GAAP 106 082 89 668

SA GAAP adiustments

Acquisition accounting I 3036 4300

Employee share optien plans 2 (7 610y 7143

AC 133 adjustents 3 9 230 -
Debenture interest reflected

directly in equity 4 247! 6 505
Interest rate swaps 5 (3224 {2580
Embedded value eamings 3 {783} 23935
Revaluation of investment properties 7 3982 18 265
Treasury shares 8 | 427 -
Perpetual preference shares g 7553 -
Other 482 -
Earnings before goodwill

amortisation and exceptional items under SA GAAP 10 138 616 147 235




Reconciliation of principal differences

between UK GAAP and SA GA

Notes:

I Urnder SA GAAR certain acquisitions incorporated a
sign-on guarantee 1o select members of stall which
were treated as goodwill and amertised over the period
over which these guarantees remained in force. For UK
GAAP they are treated as prepayments and expensed
to personnel costs {within administrative expenses) over
a similar period.

2 Investec has established a number of employee share
incentive schemes, scme of which place greater residual
risk in the hands of the participants. During the current
year, a change in accounting policy in respect of stalf
share schemes for SA GAAP purposes was
implemented with the result that the general staff share
schemes are now consolidated, rendering the treatment
af these particular schemaes consistent with UK GAAP
convention. However, on certain of the executive
schemes where participants have assumed substantially
all the risks and rewards of the scheme, the accounting
treatment for SA GAAP continues 1o recognise these
schemes as external to the group such that the ioans
advanced to the schemes remain under "advances” and
interest income generated therefrom recognised in the
incorne statement. Conversely, UK GAAP requires
Irvestec, as a sponsoring company of such schemes. to
conschdate 1thew finantial postion with the result that
the balance sheet and the profit and loss effects
representing the cornponer of the scheme which has
not fully vested with the participants are added to those
of the Group and the respective intercompany iterms
eliminated, These adjustrments unwound as a greater
percentage of the scheme vests with the participants
with the result that a greater proportion of interest is
recognised under UK GAAP towards the end of the
scheme, effectively giving rise to timing differences
between the two conventions. During 2004, a net
reversal of interest arises as these schemes approach
termination in December 20041,

3 ACI33 is a South Alrican accounting statement on
recognition and measuremant of financial instruments
and 1s based on the nternational accounting standard
IAS 39 The adoption of ACE23 under SA GAAP has
resulted in a further difference between SA and UK
GAAP

4 Investec has issued Compulsory Convertible
Debentures, which under 5A GAAP have been dassified
as shareholders' cquity. UK GAAP requires capital

instruments {other th

AP

an shares} to be ciassfied as

liabilities if they contdin an cbhgation or contingent

abligation to transfer
that they were issued

an economic benefit. At the time
ccertain of these instruments were

split into their debt and equity components. Under UK

GAAP the debt com
liabifity in the balance

onent has bean recorded as a
sheet and the equity componert

accounted for as "thare to be issued” and shaves capital
within shareholders flinds. Accordingly, the interest
payable on the debt portion has been split between
interest and repayrents of the principal. This has the

effect of reducing they

interest charge on convertible

debt under UK GAAR compared to SA GAAR

Differences ansing on
ters eg. Incorme an
swaps which was rec
but phased in over a

Under UK GAAP the

the accrual of certain income
ertain trading related intevest
gnised upfront under SA GAAP
perad of time under UK GAAR

shareholders' interest in the in-

force e assurance arld fund pensions policies of the
long-term assurance flind are valued at the net present

value of the profits in
value). Under SA GA.
recognised.

The revaluation on in
in earnings pre good

erent in such poficies (embedded
AP the value of these profits is not

estment properties 15 recognised
ill and exceptional items under SA

GAAP whereas UK GAAP requires the net movemnents
10 be tacen 1o the statement of recognised gains and

lesses and hence excl

To the extent that no
group on the issue of
treasury shares under

ided from operational earnings

new assets are created by the
shares, such shares are treated as
UK GAAP with any income

derived rom such capital excluded from earnings.

Under UK CAAP the

dividends payable to holders of

the perpetual preferences shares issued by Investec Bank
Limited during the year are deducted from earnings
whereas under SA GAAP all payments to equity holders
are taken into account|in the statement of changes in
shareholders' funds and not on the face of the income
statemnent. Further, the|dividends under SA GAAP are

only recognised on ac

The exchange rated u

thal declaration date.

sed in the above reconciliation

was based on the actual rates ruling on the date of the

transactions.




Definitions

Term

Annuity income as a percentage of operating income

Assets under adrmnistration
Core loans and advances

Cost to income ratio

Chvidend cover

Earnings attributable to ordinary sharehalders before
exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill

Earnings per ordinary share before exceptional items
and amortisation of goodwall

Effective tax rate

Equity sharehoiders' funds
Headline earnings

Headline earnings per share

Market capitalisation

Definition

MNet interest income,
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et on shareholders' funds n the long-term

assurance business and annuity commissions receivable (net of

commissians payable}

Includes third party ag
assets.

Loans and advances 1
included therein.

Administrative expens

Earnings per ordinary

aof goodwill draded byl

As per note 11 on pa;

As per note |1 on pa;

Tax on profit an ordin

expressed as a percentage of cperating income,

sets under administration and on-balance sheet

customers less cash and short-term funds

es and depreciation divided by operating income.

khare before exceptional items and amorusation

dividends per ordinary share.

ge 181 and 182

e 182,

ary activities divided by operating profit.

Total shareholders' funds excluding preference shares.

Aspecnate [ on page (82,

As pernote || on page |82,

Total number of shareq
plc) multiplied by the g
Stack Exchange.

in issue (including Investec Limited and |nvestec
fosing share price of Investec ple on the London




Definitions

Term

Net interest income

Operating income

Operating profit

Operating profit: South Afiica and Other

Operating profit: Non-South Africa and Other

Met tangible asset value per share

Return on average equity shareholders' funds

Return on average tangible net asset value

Staff compensalion to operating income ratio

Tangible net asset value

Total capital resources

Weighted number of ordinary shares in issue

Definition

tnterest recevable less interest payalie.

All income less interest payable and ffees and commission payable.

Operating income less administrativae expenses, provisions for bad and
doubtfil debxts and depreciation of tangible fixed assets. This amount is
before exceptional items and amortisation of goodwill.

Operating profit earned in South Afrjca, Mauritius and Betswana.

QOperating profit earned in UK and by

As per calculation on page 23.

rope, USA, [srael and Australia.

Earnings attributable to ordinary shar‘Fho\ders before exceptional itams
and amortisation of goodwill expressed as a percentage of average

equity sharehoclders' funds.

Barnings attributable 1o ordinary shareholders before exceptional tems
and amoitisation of goodwill expressed as a percentage of average
tangibte shareholders’ funds le. excluding goodwill,

All employee related costs expressed
income.

as a percentage of operating

Equity snarehelders' Tunds less intangiple assets.

includes shareholders' funds, subordingted liabilities and minority

interests.

The number of ordinary shaves in issul
increased by shares issued during the
the period during which they have pan
group less treasury shares, As per nof

e at the beginning of the yearn,

ear; weighted on a time basis for
Ucipated in the ncome of \he
e |l onpage |81




Contact details

Investec

Australia, Brishane

Suite 6 Level 4 320 Adelaide Street
8risbane QLD 4000 Australia
Telephone (61) 7 3229 5566
Facsimite {61} 7 3229 5533

Australiz, Melbourne
Level 20 10! Coliins Street
Melbourne VIC 3000 Australia
Telephone (61) 3 8650 1000
Facsimile {61} 3 8660 (01|

Australia, Sydney

Level 31 The Chifley Tower
2 Chifley Square

Sydrey NSW 2000 Austraiia
Telephane (61} 2 236 000
Facsimile (61) 2 9236 000/

Channel islands, St Helier
PO Box 344

5 Castle Street 5t Helier

Jersey JE4 8UZ

Telephone (44) 1534 S12 512
Facsimile (44 1534 512 513

Channel Islands, St Peter Port
PO Box 188 LaViellie Cour

St Peter Port Guernsey GY | 3LP
Telephone (44) 1481 723 506
Facsimile (44} 1431 74 147

Hong Kong

2106 - 2108 Jardine House
I Connaught Place

Central Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2861 6888
Facsimile (852} 2861 £86

Ireland, Dublin

The Harcour
Harcourt 5t
Telephore (3
Facsimile (35

t Building

eet Dublin 2
53) 1 421 0000
3) 1421 0500

Israel, Tel Aviv

PO Box 677

Tel Aviv 61006 Israel

Telephane (&
Facsimile (57

Mauritius,

72) 3564 5215
2) 35645210

Port Louis

7ih Floor Harbour Front Building

John Kenned
Port Louis M

y Street

auritius

Telephone 00 230 207 4000

Facsimile Q0

South Afri
36 Hans St
Cape Town

PO Box 182
Telephene (2
Facsirmile {27

South Afri
325 Smith &
PO Box 391
Telephone (2
Facsimile (27

South Afri
Filot Milt Ho
Selvourne Ea
PC Box 194
Telephone (2

230 208 6444

ca, Cape Town

dom Avenue Foreshore
00|

6 Cape Town 8000
721y 416 1000

213 416 1C01

¢a, Durban
reet Durban 400
R Durban 4000

7 31) 365 4700
31) 304 2698

ca, East London

use |st Floor The Quarry
st London 5201

B4 Tecoma 5214

7 43) 721 0660

Facsimile (27 43) 721 0é64




Contact details

Investec

South Africa, Johannesburg

100 Grayston Drive Sandown Sandton 2196
PO Box 785700 Sandton 216

Telephone (27 11) 286 7000

Facsimile {27 1'1) 286 7777

South Africa, Port Elizabeth
Ascot Office Park

Canyngham Road Greenacres
Port Blizabeth 6045

PO Box 27536 Greenacres 6057
Telephone (27 413 391 9400
Facsimile (27 41) 374 8346

South Africa, Pretoria

300 Middel Strect Brookiyn 0181
PO Box 1882 Brookivn Square 0075
Telephone (27 12y 427 8300
Facsimile (27 12) 427 8310

Switzerland, Geneva

12 Rue de I'Arquebusc

1204 Geneva Switzerland
Telephone (41} 22 807 2000
Facsimile {41y 22 807 2005

Switzerland, Zurich
Talacker 41

CH-8001 Zurich Switzer!
Telephane (413 | 226 10
Facsimile (41) | 226 (014

(=)

United Kingdom, Guernsey

Guinness Flight House

PO Box 290 Guernsey G| 3RP

Telephone {44} 1481 711
Facsimile (44 1481 728 4

United Kingdom, Lon
2 Gresham Street

London EC2V 7QP
Telephone {(14) 20 7597 4
Facsimile (44) 20 7597 40

500
48

don

000
70

United States, New York

One Battery Park Plaza
MNew York MY 10004-147
United 5tates

B

Telephone {i) 212 898 6200

Facsimile (1 212 898 625

b




